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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
HEEETIAR HK$ Million 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
RE4% Shareholders’ funds 15,403 17,050 19,941 21,468 22,991
fBMHET Subordinated notes 3,979 3,762 5,432 5,320 7,146
REER Deposits from customers 117,936 129,843 142,580 150,848 153,863
BRINERE Certificates of deposit issued 5,753 6,133 6,110 6,232 6,560
Fhes Total deposits 123,689 135,976 148,690 157,080 160,423
BELE(DEREER) Total liabilities (including subordinated notes) 140,674 150,162 165,372 174,549 182,204
REER(TREESEE)  Advances to customers (excluding trade bils) 86,174 97,978 105,230 109,625 113,655
EEEE Total assets 155,839 167,227 185,328 196,032 205,211
R R EE G F Profit attributable to shareholders 1,480 1,756 2,034 2,201 2,145
PERERS Total dividend distribution 388 449 505 533 533
BT HK$
HRERAHN Basic earnings per share 115 1.35 1.49 1.57 1.53
iR Dividends per share 0.31 0.33 0.36 0.38 0.38
WERRINT Percentage %
ERHETLE () Loan to deposit ratio (Note 1) 69.7 72.1 70.8 69.8 70.8
N Notes:
1. ERUGTRLEREFERAR(TRREESE 1. Loan to deposit ratio is calculated as the ratio of total advances to
B)EEREE(RIEEEITHFRE) 2hE - customers (excluding trade bills) to total deposits (including certificates

of deposit issued).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman
Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Managing Director and Chief Executive
Gary Pak-Ling Wang

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung
Seng-Lee Chan

Yuen-Tin Ng

Non-Executive Director

Kenichi Yamato

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Chairman

Seng-Lee Chan

Yuen-Tin Ng

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Chairman

Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung

Seng-Lee Chan

David Shou-Yeh Wong

COMPANY SECRETARY

Doris Wai-Nar Wong FCIS, FCS
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Nicholas John Mayhew
Executive Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited and
Deputy Chief Executive of Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Eddie Shing-Tat Lau
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of Dah Sing Bank,
Limited

Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of Dah Sing Bank,
Limited

Vincent Ho-Wing Yau
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited

Eddie Yiu-Fai Kong
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Banco Comercial de Macau,
S.A.

AUDITORS
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong

SOLICITORS
Herbert Smith Freehills

REGISTERED OFFICE

36th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre
108 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong
Tel: 2507 8866

Fax: 2598 5052

S.W.I.LF.T.: DSBAHKHH

Website: http://www.dahsing.com

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
SHARE LISTING AND STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock code: 2356

MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES

Dah Sing Bank, Limited
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

(Please see pages 315 to 320 of this annual report for respective lists
of branches.)
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 76, was appointed as the Chairman of the Company
in 2004. He is currently the Chairman of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (“DSFH”), Dah Sing Bank, Limited, Banco Comercial de
Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited, Dah Sing
Insurance Company (1976) Limited, Macau Insurance Company
Limited, Macau Life Insurance Company Limited and various
other companies. He serves as a member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of both the Company and DSFH. Mr.
Wong is the Honorary President of Guangdong Chamber of Foreign
Investors and a Vice President of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers.
Mr. Wong has over 50 years of experience in banking and finance. He
is the father of Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, the Managing Director and
Chief Executive of the Company.

Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 64, was appointed as the Managing Director of the
Company in 2004 and promoted as Vice Chairman in April 2011. He
was appointed as Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
in 1993 and promoted as its Managing Director in January 2002. He
joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), a key operating subsidiary
of the Company, in 1977 and has served and managed various
departments before appointed as a Director of DSB in 1989 and was
promoted as its Managing Director in 2000 and Vice Chairman in April
2011. Mr. Wong is the Chairman of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
and a director of various major subsidiaries of the Group. He is also
a Director of Great Wall Life Insurance Company Limited, and a Non-
Executive Director and Vice Chairman of Bank of Chongging Co., Ltd.
(listed in Hong Kong) in which the Group has a 14.66% equity interest.
Mr. Wong is an Associate of The Institute of Bankers (U.K.) and a
Founder Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and The
International Retail Banking Council of the U.K. Mr. Wong has over 35
years of experience in banking.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sze, aged 76, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in 2004. He is also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”),
Dah Sing Bank, Limited, Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited and Dah Sing
Life Assurance Company Limited. He serves as the Chairman of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
of both the Company and DSFH, and an independent non-executive
Director of a number of Hong Kong listed companies as set out
below. Mr. Sze is a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He was a former partner of an international firm of
accountants with which he practised for over 20 years.

Apart from the Company and DSFH, Mr. Sze also holds/held
directorships in other Hong Kong listed companies during the last
3 years, namely, China Travel International Investment Hong Kong
Limited, Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited, Min Xin Holdings Limited,
Nanyang Holdings Limited, Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings
Limited, Asia Satellite Telecommunications Holdings Limited (retired
in June 2013) and QPL International Holdings Limited (retired in
September 2013).

Mr. Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Leung, aged 66, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in 2004 and Dah Sing Bank, Limited, a key
operating subsidiary of the Company, in 2006. He has served as
a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company since 2005. He is the current President of the Legislative
Council of Hong Kong and is currently a Legislative Councillor
(Industrial First) and the Honorary President of Federation of Hong
Kong Industries and Textile Council of Hong Kong. He ceased as
a Council Member of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council
with effect from 31 December 2015 and retired as a Director of The
Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited with effect from 25 April
2016. He is an Independent Non-Executive Director of China South
City Holdings Limited, CN Innovations Holdings Limited and Harbour
Centre Development Limited.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Seng-Lee Chan
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chan, aged 70, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in August 2008 after his retirement in June
2008 as the Chief Executive Officer of Heidelberg China Limited. He
has served as a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of the Company since May 2011. He is
an Independent Non-Executive Director of Dah Sing Bank, Limited, a
key operating subsidiary of the Company, and was appointed in May
2012. Mr. Chan has over 40 years of experience primarily in the print
media industry and has a sound knowledge of the Asian markets,
particularly in China.

Mr. Yuen-Tin Ng
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ng, aged 65, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company in
April 2012. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Dah
Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) and Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB
China”) (the Company’s banking subsidiaries), appointed in October
2012 and February 2013 respectively. He has served as a member
of the Risk Management and Compliance Committee of DSB since
May 2013. He was appointed as a member of the Audit Committee,
Connected Transactions Control Committee and Risk Management
Committee of DSB China in February 2013. He was further appointed
as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee of DSB China in
September 2015. Mr. Ng is also an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Chinney Alliance Group Limited, a public company listed
in Hong Kong. Mr. Ng is an Associate of The Chartered Institute of
Bankers (UK) and a Fellow and an honorary advisor of The Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers. Mr. Ng has 40 years of extensive experience
in banking and financial industry with a focus on the corporate and
institutional banking business management for the last 12 years prior
to his retirement from Hang Seng Bank Limited in 2011.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Kenichi Yamato
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Yamato, aged 48, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director
of the Company in August 2016. He is currently the Deputy General
Manager of The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. (“BTMU”) Hong
Kong Branch and a director of BTMU Nominees (HK) Limited. He had
assumed various positions in corporate banking, investment banking
and corporate planning areas before his appointment as Chief
Manager, Mitsubishi UFJ Securities in 2004. He was subsequently
appointed as Chief Manager, Structured Finance Division in 2009 and
Chief Manager, Financial Planning Division of Mitsubishi UFJ Financial
Group, Inc. (the holding company of BTMU) in 2011. Mr. Yamato took
up the role as Deputy General Manager, Global Planning Division in
2014, before his recent posting to BTMU Hong Kong Branch. Mr.
Yamato has 25 years of extensive experience in various areas in the
banking industry.

Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Managing Director and Chief Executive

Mr. Wong, aged 47, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company in 2004 and promoted as the Managing Director and Chief
Executive in April 2011. He joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited, a key
operating subsidiary of the Company, in 2000, and was appointed as
an Executive Director in 2005 and a Vice Chairman in March 2010.
He is also a Vice Chairman of Dah Sing Life Assurance Company
Limited, and a Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited and Banco
Comercial de Macau, S.A.. Mr. Wong was appointed as a member of
The EFAC Financial Infrastructure Sub-Committee, a sub-committee
under the Exchange Fund Advisory Committee (“EFAC”) of the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority, in October 2014. He is a qualified solicitor
in England and Wales and in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is a son of Mr.
David Shou-Yeh Wong, the Chairman of the Boards of the Company
and Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Executive Director

Mr. Wang, aged 56, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company in 2004. He joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), a
key operating subsidiary of the Company, as the Group Financial
Controller in 1995 and was promoted as a Director in 1997,
responsible for the overall financial management and control,
operations and IT functions of the Group for a number of years. Mr.
Wang was promoted as the Managing Director and Chief Executive of
DSB in May 2011. He is also a Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited, Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited and Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited. Mr. Wang
is a qualified accountant, a Fellow of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants of the U.K. and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wang has over 30 years
of experience in financial management and banking.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew
Executive Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited and Deputy
Chief Executive of Dah Sing Bank

Mr. Mayhew, aged 49, joined Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(“DSFH”) in 1998 and is currently an Executive Director of DSFH, Dah
Sing Life Assurance Company Limited, Macau Insurance Company
Limited, Macau Life Insurance Company Limited, Dah Sing Bank,
Limited (“DSB”) and Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited. He serves as the
Deputy Chief Executive of DSB, and Head of Treasury and Corporate
Finance of DSB, responsible for its treasury and corporate finance
activities. Mr. Mayhew has over 25 years of experience in financial
services both in the U.K. and Hong Kong.

Mr. Eddie Shing-Tat Lau
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of Dah Sing Bank

Mr. Lau, aged 54, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), a key
operating subsidiary of the Company, in 1992. He was appointed
as an Executive Director of DSB in May 2012 and an Alternate
Chief Executive of DSB in May 2014. He is currently the Head
of Commercial Banking Division, responsible for overseeing and
supervising commercial banking business. Besides, he is a committee
member of SME Standing Committee of The Chinese Manufacturers’
Association of Hong Kong in 2016-2017 and an Executive Committee
member of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries Group 18. Mr. Lau
has over 25 years of experience in commercial banking.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of Dah Sing Bank

Ms. Wong, aged 50, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), a
key operating subsidiary of the Company, as the Head of Retail
Banking business in February 2012, responsible for the development
and management of overall retail banking, bancassurance, retail
brokerage, wealth management businesses, private banking and
vehicle financing. She was appointed as an Executive Director of DSB
in May 2012 and an Alternate Chief Executive of DSB in May 2014.
Ms. Wong has over 25 years of experience in retail and personal
banking business with other banks operating in Hong Kong, including
Standard Chartered Bank and CITIC Bank International.

Mr. Vincent Ho-Wing Yau
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

Mr. Yau, aged 54, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) and was
appointed as the Alternate Chief Executive Officer and Head of
Business Development of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB
China”), a key operating subsidiary of the Company, in September
2012. He was appointed as an Executive Director of DSB China in
December 2014 and the Chief Executive Officer of DSB China in
February 2015. Mr. Yau has 30 years of experience in the banking
industry in China and Hong Kong, and had assumed various senior
executive positions in Standard Chartered Bank before joining DSB.

Mr. Eddie Yiu-Fai Kong
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

Mr. Kong, aged 54, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) and was
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer and Director of Banco
Comercial de Macau, S.A. (incorporated in Macau) in July 2012. Mr.
Kong has over 28 years of experience in banking and finance business
with other banks in Hong Kong including Daiwa Bank, Standard
Chartered Bank, and had focused on corporate and institutional
banking business management for the last 12 years in DBS Bank
(Hong Kong) Limited before joining DSB.
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Despite difficult market conditions and market volatility during the
course of the year, our overall performance was relatively stable,
with profit attributable to shareholders down modestly by 2.5% to
HK$2,145 million for the year.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

During the course of the year, the performance of the Group was
relatively stable overall. Net interest income grew strongly, mainly
as a result of lower funding costs during the year, whilst fee and
commission income were down. Our core Retail banking business
performed relatively well, although our Commercial banking business
suffered from relatively slow growth, as well as some increase in credit
cost during the course of the year. Our Treasury business also slowed,
mainly due to a lower demand from customers for FX and related
products, largely relating to RMB, due to the continuing depreciation
of the currency. Our Macau business showed some growth, whilst
our China subsidiary recorded better performance, mainly due to
lower credit costs during the year. The performance of our associate
company, Bank of Chongqging, was also encouraging, posting a solid
growth in the year. Its contribution to our earnings in 2016 however
dropped slightly, as our interest in Bank of Chongging was diluted
from approximately 17.0% to 14.7% at the end of 2015.

CAPITAL AND REGULATION

Our banking group’s capital position continued to strengthen from
internal capital generation and also an issue of a Tier 2 subordinated
debt in late 2016.

In November 2016, DSB issued US$250 million of Tier 2 subordinated
debt, in advance of the call of its prior issues of $$225 million of
Lower Tier 2 subordinated debt and US$55 million of Upper Tier 2
subordinated debt for redemption in February 2017. Together with the
build-up of CET1 through earnings retention, this resulted in capital
levels as at 31 December 2016 that were substantially higher than the
prior year, at 18.3% overall, with CET1 at 12.7%. It should however
be noted that the subsequent call of the two subordinated debt issues
referred to above has lowered the overall capital ratio on a pro forma
basis by 72 basis points. We continued to comply with the Liquidity
Maintenance Ratio (“LMR”), with DSB’s average consolidated
LMR maintained at 42% during the year, well above the regulatory
minimum level of 25%. We believe that our capital and liquidity ratios
are maintained at levels within the market range for both peer banks
in Hong Kong, and indeed for banks internationally.
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CHANGES OF THE BOARD DURING THE YEAR

On 12 August 2016, Mr. Shoji Hirai, due to his new assignment
within The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd group, resigned as a
Non-Executive Director. On the same date, Mr. Kenichi Yamato was
appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company. The brief
biographical details of Mr. Kenichi Yamato are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile” in this Annual
Report.

The Board extends a warm welcome to Mr. Yamato for joining the
Board, and expresses its appreciation to Mr. Hirai for his valuable
effort and contributions to the Board during his tenure of service with
the Company.

HANG SENG INDEX

122000.56
T _9.65

2016 12 A 30 B BAERE Z MK -
Closing price of Hang Seng Index on 30 December
2016.

Closing prices of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 0440) and Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited (Stock code: 2356) on 30

December 2016.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

The outlook for 2017 remains uncertain. Whilst the US economy
continues to recover, and the Mainland China economy is likely to
grow at a rate above 6% with steadier progress and more balanced
development, there are uncertainties over the direction of global trade
agreements, and a number of key elections in Europe, in addition to
the continuing Brexit negotiations. At present, it seems that the most
likely outlook for the markets and businesses in which we operate is
one of relative stability. It is expected that US interest rates will rise,
in line with US economic recovery, and whilst in the medium term
that should be positive for banks, it is possible that there will be some
shorter term margin pressure, as funding costs move upwards. With
potential interest rate and currency volatility, there is also the risk that
local market liquidity conditions, which have been generally benign for
some time, could change.

In Hong Kong, economic growth is forecast to continue to be
moderate, although perhaps improving slightly, and unemployment is
forecast to remain low, which is generally positive for credit quality.
The outlook for the housing market is more uncertain, with current
high levels of both prices and demand balanced by likely mortgage
rate hikes and increases in property supply. The stabilization of
the Mainland economy has led to more steady credit quality for
our Mainland subsidiary in the recent past, and Macau looks set to
continue on a recovering path.

We are therefore taking a balanced view towards the year. Whilst
we think that there will be some opportunities for growth in our key
markets of Hong Kong, Mainland China and Macau, we also see
both global and local risks ahead of us, as well as the likelihood
that the volatile market conditions experienced over the past couple
of years could continue. We therefore intend to attempt to take
advantage of opportunities for growth that present themselves, whilst
monitoring closely key market and economic developments so that
the associated risks can be managed appropriately.

Finally, | would like to thank my fellow directors for their valuable
contribution and extend, on behalf of the Board, our appreciation to
all of our colleagues for their hard work and dedication over the past
year, and also our appreciation of the support from our customers and
shareholders.

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2017
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Our Group delivered a respectable set of financial results for
2016, in spite of generally sluggish market conditions in banking
during the year. Profit attributable to shareholders decreased by
2.5% to HK$2,145 million, producing a return of 9.7% on average
shareholders’ funds. The performance of our wholly-owned
businesses was solid overall. Excluding the contribution from Bank of
Chongging (“BOCQ”), profit attributable to shareholders decreased
also by 2.5%, to HK$1,543 million. In spite of the slight profit
decrease, we believe that we made improvements to the earning
power of the banking businesses that we own and operate over the
past few years.

A key management objective is to achieve a satisfactory return on
capital in the long term, whilst maintaining strong capital and liquidity
ratios as we grow our core banking businesses. While we produced a
return on equity of 9.7%, an overall improvement from 7.7% in 2011
although a slight decrease from our return of 10.6% in 2015, | would
caution, as | have in the past, that generating an attractive return
on equity will be more challenging going forward. The phasing in of
higher capital requirements pursuant to Basel Ill should see to that,
not to mention the introduction of a seemingly unending swath of rules
and regulations, unless banks in general are able to capture better
margins from the products and services provided.

The prospects for 2017 indicate a muted growth in business volumes,
a continuation of the trend from 2016, with uncertainties in the global
economy likely to affect business sentiment in our core markets. Even
though the economy has been going through a softer phase in the
cycle, we would continue to make investments in our key businesses
for the longer term, in particular in our core banking business areas
that have performed well for the Group since 2011.

As | have explained in the past, the basic banking business is easy to
understand but difficult to execute well. We have strived to maintain
our focus on the key banking tenets to drive profitability including our
deposit franchise, risk-adjusted returns from a diversified portfolio of
loans and assets, non-interest income from serving our customers,
and prudent management of our risks and costs. Amidst the increased
complexity of rules and regulations in financial services, it is vital that
our colleagues do not lose sight of the simple banking tenets, which
continue to be the foundations of our business strategy.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

15



16

SRR RITHARE S

MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT

BERMBENTIGHRFHI - XEBMAZHR
BRETIISENTIZANER  ERESREDN
=R

o  REABUWAREBSIEENFEEERBEMS
& h33E3T7TASBITLITI%E361E
3T8EHEB °

. BERITRBEMEEBEBIALE L
£ FREELRFESRAHIEITEST
TH81%E8EIT6AEBIT °

e FEERFANM1.83%IEMEE1.98% T+
ZRFFRAAPEIEFAEL -

EBAT MEHAAHRTERASE - BHE
BHIREMIEENESBZREFEAEMAR
BERERAF  ERBRITCENSERSGH
FIREZER REXNGENBR  EmER
BUARMBEILAERAT AR - BERKARLAEN
EX BEGHEMUREZOEBFERENT
k- BERXIEREGNTA%  HERAEES
REBRAER - SERAR KRG EDRALL
KRR IERNEE - GEWAB45E8TTHE
BB EA29% F47E2TEBIT - BAAE K
AL RE IS E 2016 F150.8% © JAM + #A
2016 TR AN EFRMIRE AR SR E - HEER
PITERRLEFNBBBELHERE - RREREFEA
RELRE  BAEAFHEME N TIE - BIRFH
SEEERUIER - BB EEREE—E o F M
B ZEEEMIRER  AI2BMKESE %
BREBAMYE BV FEREEFREER
I NI VERBS o

BEE B E - N EERBEBETTME
FAS—BTIEZEABEFREEBREMEE
BB H4B9T6eEEBTLLAZSE6T4
BEBT  RAEBERLEAE1.05% ° 8 AREAM
R HBFARBERAMMISMESZHR @ B
R2016F N EFERESEELEEBIET - &
PIEEROEBNEEBEEEZNARI o R1T
¥R —ERBERTE  FENEEFIHES
RAREREBERINEEES -

AHRITEBEFR AR 20165555

Despite the intensely competitive markets in which we operate, we are
pleased to report an overall respectable performance in our key profit
drivers, including the following:

. Net interest income was up by 9% from HK$3,337 million to
HK$3,638 million due to a combination of growth in volumes and
a wider net interest margin.

° Net fee and commission income decreased by 8.1% from
HK$910 million to HK$836 million, although we continued
to see growth in revenues from bancassurance and wealth
management business.

o Net interest margin widened from 1.83% to 1.98% during the
year due primarily to lower deposit costs.

Managing expenses and keeping costs under control are vital in
banking. Managing expenses well means that every dollar we spend
should be aligned with our strategy and priorities. This ought to
ensure that we are spending money appropriately in our key business
areas, investing in the right technologies, products and services,
and focusing on our customers as well as our people. Despite the
considerable pressure of cost increases including from compliance
and the need for continued investments in our core businesses,
our operating expenses were contained to an increase of 7.1%.
This however outpaced the lower increase of 2.9% in operating
income from HK$4,587 million to HK$4,720 million (not achieving the
yardstick of “positive jaws”), which pushed up slightly our cost-to-
income ratio to 50.8% in 2016. However, while the quantum in cost
increase was acceptable in 2016, as we continue to make substantial
investments in our infrastructure, systems and processes over the
next few years, we will need to work smarter and harder and ensure
that our spending is deployed effectively in line with our business
strategies. We believe that managing expenses and resources well
should allow us to realize benefits as our business scale grows
over time without diminishing customer experience or increasing

operational risk.

Another blemish during the year was the increase in loan impairment
losses and other credit provisions from HK$496 million to HK$564
million with the impaired loan ratio rising to 1.05%, as credit
conditions in the Mainland continued to prove challenging along with
a slowing economy. While we suffered from delinquencies due to
some of our clients’ exposure to the Mainland market, we believe that
the overall credit conditions in our core businesses remained benign,
noting the stabilization in the asset quality of our loan portfolio during
the second half of 2016. As banking is a risk management business,
prudent credit underwriting will continue to be an area of important
focus for the management team and our Group.
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BOCQ delivered a set of good results in 2016, with its net profit up
10.5% on 2015. Our share of BOCQ net profit dropped from HK$666
million to HK$603 million in the year, due largely to the dilution of
our interest in BOCQ from 16.95% to 14.66% further to the share
placement of BOCQ in 2015. We continued to account for the
earnings of BOCQ on the basis that it is an associate of our Group.
Unlike the businesses that we own and operate, where items relating
to revenue and expense are included in our financial statements,
only our proportionate share of net profit of BOCQ is included (as an
associate) via a one-line entry in our consolidated income statement.
However, whether or not we account for BOCQ as an associate, the
value to its shareholders (including our Group) of the earnings and
capital of BOCQ is determined by the use to which they are put and
the subsequent level of earnings produced by that usage. That value
is therefore determined by BOCQ and is not affected by the inclusion
or non-inclusion of the share of such earnings in our own reported
profit.

The growth in our earnings, coupled with the relatively mild loan
growth during the year, contributed to an improvement in our capital
ratios. As at 31 December 2016, Dah Sing Bank’s consolidated capital
adequacy ratio (“CAR”) was 18.3% and the consolidated CET1" ratio
was 12.7%. Dah Sing Bank’s new issue of US$250 million Basel IlI
compliant Tier 2 subordinated debt in the latter part of 2016 also
increased the consolidated CAR modestly. We will need to hone our
ability to generate an adequate return from the capital deployed in our
loans and assets, as we strive to sustain our profitability and further
strengthen our capital base over time.

We maintained an unvaryingly strong liquidity position, with an
average liquidity maintenance ratio of 42% in the year and a loan
to deposit ratio of 70.8% at the end of 2016. Most of our funding is
from customer deposits, the “quality” of which we have been striving
to improve over a number of years, with the goal of increasing the
share of lower cost deposits through a deeper, more transactional
relationship with our customers. Indeed, servicing the transactional
needs of our customers will continue to be a bedrock of our strategy.

We introduced a set of core values and guiding principles for the
Group along with our medium-term strategy in 2011, with the
objective to guide and align the actions of our people at work.
Moreover, we emphasize the qualities of energy, intelligence and
integrity in our people, who are key to our Group’s ability to create
value for both our customers and shareholders. We are again
delighted that the efforts of our people were recognized by the
market, with a number of awards received during the year in different
areas of our business.

' Common Equity Tier 1 capital
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| wish to thank all of our stakeholders — our customers, communities,
colleagues and shareholders - for helping make 2016 another
respectable year for our Group. In particular, full credit goes to the
leaders of Dah Sing Bank in Hong Kong, including the management of
our Treasury, Personal Banking and Commercial Banking businesses,
and Banco Comercial de Macau in Macau, who have been ably
supported by our support divisions, for the performance and earnings
of these businesses which contributed meaningfully to our Group’s
results in 2016.

It has been a privilege to manage the Group and serve you - our

shareholders — as our performance has improved steadily over the
past few years.

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Managing Director and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 22 March 2017
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The highlights of the Group’s consolidated financial performance for
the year are summarised in the table below:

2016 £ 20154 k)
2016 2015 Variance
FEE Net interest margin 1.98% 1.83%
BEBT HK$ Million
BEUA Operating income 4,720.5 4,586.9 2.9%
BRI EEERT 2 Operating profit before
B IE i A impairment losses 2,321.0 2,347.3 -1.1%
MERREEEER 2 Operating profit after
58 i A impairment losses 1,757.5 1,850.9 -5.1%
BT A& A Profit before taxation 2,446.5 2,508.7 -2.5%
P& B PB4 5 ) Profit attributable to shareholders 2,145.5 2,200.6 -2.5%
EFEX Advances to customers 113,655 109,625 3.7%
BPEHR Customers’ deposits 153,863 150,848 2.0%
BEITHFRE Certificates of deposit issued 6,560 6,232 5.3%
FRER Total deposits 160,423 157,080 2.1%
BRIBER Subordinated notes 7,146 5,320 34.3%
BESE Total assets 205,211 196,032 4.7%
BEAS Total liabilities 182,204 174,549 4.4%
REES Shareholders’ funds 22,991 21,468 71%
SFRBMA S EEWA Net interest income/operating income 771% 72.7%
RN ETUA B R Cost to income ratio 50.8% 48.8%
T4 E E R R Return on average total assets 1.1% 1.2%
FH/REE R EHR Return on average shareholders’ funds 9.7% 10.6%
BER(TREESER)HTR Loan (excluding trade bills) to deposit
(BRFEEEITHFRE) X (including certificates of deposit
issued) ratio 70.8% 69.8%
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The local Hong Kong economy recovered somewhat in the second
half of the year, with GDP growth increasing to 1.9% for full year 2016,
compared with 1.2% in the first half. Domestic demand strengthened
moderately, with household income and earnings registering
improvement, and unemployment remained at the low level of 3.3%
at the end of the year. The Hong Kong stock market also rallied in
the second half of the year, despite a sell-off towards the year end.
Therefore, in general terms, conditions in Hong Kong in the second
half of the year were somewhat better than in the first half.

Globally, however, conditions remained quite volatile. Following the
Brexit vote towards the mid-year, the Presidential election in the US
was held in November, with the new President taking office early
in 2017. Closer to home, whilst economic growth in the Mainland
was broadly in line with expectations at 6.7% for the year, the RMB
continued to weaken significantly in the second half of the year.
Notwithstanding the moves in the RMB, local Hong Kong liquidity
conditions remained strong, and local interest rates remained low until
nearly the end of the year, when they rose in tandem with those in the
US, and in line with the decision of the Federal Reserve in the US to
increase interest rates in December.

With local market conditions having improved somewhat in the
second half of the year, our profit attributable to shareholders for 2016
was relatively stable, decreasing slightly by approximately 2.5% to
HK$2,145 million compared with the prior year.

With more stable conditions in the second half of the year, the Group’s
performance was also steady, with profit attributable to shareholders
in the second half of the year of HK$1,072 million being similar to that
in the first half. For the full year, net interest income grew by 9.0% to
HK$3,638 million, despite relatively sluggish loan growth, mainly due
to an improvement in net interest margin from 1.83% to 1.98%. The
margin was helped by continued low interest rates up until the last
part of the year, when the Federal Reserve in the US raised short term
interest rates by 0.5%. Net fee and commission income was down
by 8.1% mainly due to a weaker performance from our commercial
banking and treasury activities, and lower securities brokerage fee,
whilst other retail banking fees were stable, and wealth management
fee and commission income was up. Our bancassurance business
also reported increased commissions over the prior year.



ES e

B 7% 5 B8 (a0)

BEAEBMOBE AR ERRITHNATNERR
Lo REBBINMRITEBREZAWB A RDRMR
FRITMAIRIT (PE) MEEB RS @ 815
Baaf - EERITHANERRD AR ASE
EREERITHA 2 ST EN 2015 F FE T
RABLE% - H201554)17.0% W E#E % 2016
FHI14.7%

FRAGERABRE LA  TE2EARNASBEERE
MERRITEB BT DEEBERALRYERR
MMAENESRERE  REaRERBRER
XL EEBZEEERREFREMTER
TEBESEREAEREE LA MALN - 48
HEFE THFEEREIH TR RBRAK
BET+FNERAAHEMNEELEDBNE

.
iE °

EEBWMER/11%  RABRER.7% » BEK
20154 - IR ERERIEAEF - UEREBHA
WRBAFSRAKEESHH - HRFREE
FAXZEERERBEMEERARE  KNEE
HIRK RS R A L R R 20154F 2 48.8 % 8 EFAE
2016 %2 50.8% °

M2016F 12 A31H + KFLITBR AT (K
BTG TRRE-—REAT R ER
BEEBRNERRZRBFAIE M ZE MG MNE
12.7% * M2015FFEENA12.2% o RFTIRITH
BEBITH2E2 T EEMNNETE ZRIEENR
REBNSTSAEETLNE RSB RREBER
20172 AERIAT - 2R KR 2016 F 11 AT T
2ESTEELNE _JORRER - BRBH LA
iR e TRRIE—RER - LFEEARKTRR2016
F12AIBREAFARBAZEREAT R XK
718.3% ° A - EEFENE - BEEN 20174
2 AMEE LAl FTiE MM IE R AR ERS - BEEART
R EAMEZEELTH AR E 72 EEER - REE
BERERDMERLEZRT  NFERERST
42% BV FIPKTE » IREHN25% 2K TE FIRKF o
AEBMMAEEEARRBIEL RESTEBRE
R1T R BB SRITE TG K T A o

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Our overseas banking business reported higher profit as a whole, due
to improved performance from our wholly owned subsidiaries, Banco
Comercial de Macau (“BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China), and despite
a reduction in the contribution from our associate Bank of Chongging
(“BOCQ"). The reduction in the contribution from BOCQ was due to
the dilution in our shareholding to approximately 14.7% in 2016 from
approximately 17.0% in 2015, after the completion of BOCQ’s share
placement towards the end of 2015.

Credit costs overall were up for the year, led mainly by increases
in loan impairments in our Hong Kong based commercial banking
business due to financial difficulties experienced by some SME
borrowers, as well as some increase in collective impairment charges
for the commercial and SME business to reflect a slight worsening
in asset quality when compared with the prior year, and in our retail
banking business driven mainly by increases in volumes of unsecured
personal loans. Overall impairment charges dropped half on half,
reflecting a stabilization in the underlying asset quality of our loan
portfolio during the second half.

Return on assets of 1.1% and ROE of 9.7% were slightly lower than
in 2015, due to the lower level of profit reported, as well as the higher
level of equity due to retained earnings over the period. Our cost to
income ratio was also slightly higher at 50.8%, vs 48.8% in 2015, a
result of higher rate of cost increase relative to the more subdued
growth in operating income in the year.

As at 31 December 2016, the consolidated Common Equity Tier 1 ratio
of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) strengthened to 12.7%, compared
with 12.2% at the end of 2015, driven by slower asset growth and
higher retained earnings. In November 2016, DSB issued US$250
million of Tier 2 subordinated debt, in advance of the call of its prior
issues of $$225 million of Lower Tier 2 subordinated debt and US$55
million of Upper Tier 2 subordinated debt in February 2017. Together
with the build-up of CET1, this resulted in capital levels as at 31
December 2016 that were substantially higher than the prior year, at
18.3% overall. It should however be noted that the subsequent call
of the two subordinated debt issues referred to above in February
2017 has lowered the overall capital ratio on a pro forma basis by 72
basis points. We continued to comply with the Liquidity Maintenance
Ratio, which was maintained at 42% average level during the year,
well above the regulatory minimum level of 25%. We believe that our
capital and liquidity ratios are maintained at levels within the market
range for both peer banks in Hong Kong, and indeed for banks
internationally.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
Personal Banking

Our Personal Banking business, serving the retail banking, VIP
banking and Private Banking market segments, consumer finance
and vehicle finance of Hong Kong, continued to grow steadily in
2016 with broad based fee income and balance sheet growth. The
execution of our strategy in serving different customer segments,
including upgrading our Private Banking/VIP platform together with
promoting young banking segment backed by digitalization initiatives,
contributed to our revenue diversification under the uncertain market
conditions.

The continuous upgrade of the VIP service platform enabled Personal
Banking to provide better product and service to customers, including
allowing customers to have a clearer view of their portfolios, and to
trade to capture market opportunities and manage risk. Investment
and insurance income achieved encouraging growth in 2016 despite
the slower stock trading volume, and the growth was particularly
strong in foreign exchange related products and insurance products.
Through advocating the concept of “Active Opportunity Management”
and e-Alert service, the Bank further strengthened the timely
dissemination of market information and update to customers to
facilitate their trading, capturing of investment opportunities and
managing the risks of their investment portfolios. Though stock
market was volatile in 2016 with lower trading volume, our securities
services, equipped with convenient, well developed multi-channels
including mobile, on-line, phone and securities trading centers, was
gaining momentum with the customer base expanded by 20% in the
year. Towards year end, we launched the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock
Connect securities service. We were one of the few banks that provide
customers the service to trade Shenzhen, Shanghai and Hong Kong
stock markets via mobile and on-line channels.

Our efforts in wealth management services were recognized by
receiving various awards, including “Outstanding Brand Award 2016
— Wealth Management Services” by the Economic Digest, “Excellent
Brand of Mobile Securities Services, Banking Service” and “Excellent
Brand of On-line Securities Services, Banking Service” of Hong Kong
Leaders’ Choice by Metro Broadcast, and “Outstanding Financial
Management Planner Award” by the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers.

In the year, our Personal Banking achieved solid growth in loan and
deposit balances when compared with 2015.



ES e

EBRRABE @)

BARIT @
AEFEE-—FHENTFREFAEZZ B2
RIS | - BIERITE R B RIS - BERME
NEENEE FAESFEBEYEPLH A KigE

e ZRIBEENTILHRA - BCERFERIRE 2
[EEH TR TARTS | 208 -

BM2FEEkEEEAERER  2ft [1-on-1
*”EEJUHE% ERMREPREHESFTEDN
EER - HATEL ARSI N HERIEB AR
mﬁfﬁﬁ’\ﬂl]\%ﬁﬁlﬁ%ﬁ’\]mi B o FARIIEHE
RBEITSEERE  BRRPEERE[RE
BIRTTAABERKIRIS an ke | RCE AR E [
HEAEERITRYE | 28 - ABRMMERNE

7& o

REFHRNERRTS  RPEEEEEER
R8I RS mig SRRt 8 TRIRERERRR
%o BB MEAFERRRBEERRSG - 210
EE2EAMNRBRESZ  /REPREHEEMLBEYE
B o HIPIRR 2016 FARERFEES N TEMR -
BARZERMBHB N FEREE-—TERE -
AKEBERRE - BEAREBR2016 FESM
BHIE - BT B AR B mE 2 [ S BERITHVE(E
AR | RCEAMG)RE 2 [ ERRRT
AR5 -

FERHIE RS 2 D RE T RE P E 2R
. @%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁa’ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ% o REBRE
WHRPFERAEEIN - B #E - EFRTR
15 2 T e Jo s £ ﬁiﬁz{gﬂiﬁ TRARTFE
B o AEEHELFEB AT S [KHIPAY ZfF
Fal RERERLEINRBMEIETCOXNT
RMBRMEEFHBLNTERREADENS
77 BOEEIS RN ANBETIERE - B
WA e B2 [REE £ B LEARITIRS
Fale

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)
Personal Banking (Continued)

Our “YOU Banking” service, targeting the young customer segment,
was further promoted including banking products bundling. With our
effort on sales and promotion, the number of YOU Banking customers
grew significantly in the year. The service gained market recognition,
with the CAPITAL magazine awarding us with the “Outstanding New
Generation Banking Service” award.

We actively promoted our personal loan products throughout the
year. 1-on-1 loan application service was offered which enabled
us to provide tailor-made loan proposal to customers. We also
rolled out attractive promotion activities to raise market awareness
of our personal loan services. The marketing campaign in the year
was effective in generating new business and gained good market
recognition with the awards of “Excellent Brand of Bank Personal
Loan” by Metro Broadcast and “Outstanding Personal Loan Banking
Service Award” by the CAPITAL magazine.

Against the highly competitive credit card market, we continued to
be very active in promoting our credit card services via various usage
programs and co-brand partnership programs. Dah Sing Credit Card
eShopping Butler Service was enhanced, with more comprehensive
insurance coverage, providing customers with worry-free on-line
shopping experience. We were also granted the Stored Value Facility
(SVF) license by the end of 2016 which strengthened our digital
payment platform and paved way for further development. We are
pleased to receive two awards in 2016 on our card business, which
are “Excellent Brand of Co-Brand Credit Cards” by Metro Broadcast
and “Outstanding Credit Card Banking Service Award” by the
CAPITAL magazine.

Various digitalization initiatives were launched to facilitate closer
contact with customers and enable customers to enjoy the extra
banking convenience and service. Our digital users grew significantly
in the year. E-statement, e-Alert capability and revamp of public
website further enhanced customers’ experience. New digital
payment platform “Dah Sing IPAY Payment Platform” was rolled out
with pioneer launch of Android Pay and participation of JETCO Pay,
which reflect our effort and also progressiveness to serve customers’
digital payment needs. Our efforts in digitalization gained market
recognition, with the award of “The Most Popular Online/Mobile Brand
Award - Personal Internet Banking Service” by Metro Broadcast.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)
Personal Banking (Continued)

The asset quality of our retail lending portfolio remained benign, with
the loan delinquency rate and loan loss rate staying at relatively low
levels. The increase in the loan impairment charges was mainly due to
increases in the balance of unsecured lending.

We continued our branch network upgrade and relocation program
with the objective to improve our services and offer better customer
experience. Riding on the launch of the Dah Sing Bank’s Brand
Campaign, new uniform and new promotional display were
implemented at branches which were well-perceived by customers.
At the end of 2016, our branch network included 45 retail branches in
Hong Kong, with 23 VIP centers and 34 securities trading centers.

Commercial Banking

2016 was a challenging year for our Commercial Banking business.
With the depreciation of RMB and its uncertain outlook, and coupled
with a slower growth rate in the China economy, demand for cross-
border trade financing dropped notably in the year, which as a whole
led to a significant contraction in our trade bills business and balance
at the end of 2016. Lending to manufacturing companies, particularly
on equipment finance, was slower in the year, due to both weaker loan
demand and also our tighter credit control. Despite of these and keen
market competition, our Commercial Banking loan book, including
lending on traditional trade finance, recorded a respectable growth in
the year.

Net interest income increased in the year, driven by higher loan
balance and better net interest margin. The wider net interest
margin of our Commercial Banking business was contributed by the
rise in loan yields and tight control on deposit costs. Non-interest
income however dropped, compared to the previous year, a result
of the impacts of the RMB depreciation, contraction in the trade
bills business volume, and lower treasury-related product income,
particularly on foreign exchange income, due to the lower volume of

customer transactions.

Loan impairment charges were higher in the year, caused mainly by
higher non-performing loans mainly arising from our SME customers.
With the gradual stabilization of the asset quality of our SME
customers, and also stabilization of the market values of property
collaterals in general, after mid 2016, the amount of loan impairment
charges on our Commercial Banking business required in the second
half were lower than first half 2016.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)
Commercial Banking (Continued)

In response to the changing market, we worked closely with our
customers including refining our product features and facility terms
to meet customer needs and capture market opportunities. Our
Transaction Banking team had worked to enhance our product
capabilities by deploying more resources on our e-platform, DS-
Direct, to better serve our customers especially in the areas of trade
finance, factoring and cash management services.

To meet the higher compliance and AML standards while growing
our business, we had taken further actions to upgrade various control
measures, such as transaction monitoring on our SME customers and
first line operational control, in addition to the further strengthening of
our customer due diligence.

Our dedication to serving our commercial and SME customers was
again recognized by the market during the year. We have won six
awards from various industry bodies, with good market awareness
and media coverage, including:

. Best Loved SME Bank Brand Award from RoadShow

o Corporate Social Responsibility Award from CAPITAL magazine

° Elite Award — Best Commercial Banking from Ming Pao Weekly

° Best SME’s Partner Award from Hong Kong General Chamber
of Small and Medium Business

o Best Commercial Banking from Metro Prosperity

° Capital Merits in Internet Banking Services Award from CAPITAL

magazine

To achieve better brand recognition and positioning in the market,
we reinforced our SME services and strategic focus in the year by
engaging in a variety of sponsorship programs to promote services to
SMEs, as follows:

° E-Commerce Competition, organized by the Office of the
Government Chief Information Officer, Alibaba.com and the Hong
Kong Netrepreneurs Association, to promote e-Commerce.

° Belt and Road Seminar Series featuring the Creative
Technology, E-Commerce and Smart City, in cooperation
with the Hong Kong General Chamber of Small and Medium
Business.

° World SME Summit in HKCEC to explore the 2017 Economic
Outlook amid the Global Political and Economic Uncertainty.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (Continued)

Commercial Banking (Continued)

Participated as a trainer in the “Taobao E-Commerce Training
Program” to train young talents on e-commerce, cash flow and
trade finance.

o Co-operated with Hong Kong General Chamber of Small and
Medium Business for the video shooting of “Leadership Series”
on our iISME and broadcasted to the Roadshow on buses.

We will keep helping Hong Kong SMEs to develop and grow their
businesses in the fast changing business and market environment,
and believe that our commitment and effort will contribute to their
growth and success in the longer run, and the opportunities for our
growth, together with our customers.

Treasury

Our Treasury division reported weaker results in 2016, with a decrease
in fee and commission income more than outweighing stronger net

interest income.

There were a number of major events in 2016, including both the US
President Election and Brexit. The volatility in the market heightened,
with particularly sharp movements in both currencies and equities.
Bond markets fluctuated during the year, but medium term interest
rates ended the year only slightly above the level at which they
started, despite the US Federal Reserve raising the Federal Funds
Target Rate in December. After a steady first half in 2016, the RMB,
both offshore and onshore, depreciated sharply in second half of
the year, resulting in severe volatility in what had previously been a
relatively stable currency. Concerns about the Mainland economic
slowdown and the devaluation of the RMB during the year resulted
in a substantial reduction in the volume of RMB and RMB related
business conducted by our Treasury, both for our commercial and
retail customers, but the improved net interest margin during the year,
and correspondingly higher net interest income, helped to balance
this out to allow for an overall result that was somewhat lower than
2015. The Bank continued to pay close attention to liquidity risk
management, and increased its balances of highly liquid assets during
the year. Interest rate risk was also managed conservatively bearing in
mind the rising direction of short term interest rates in the second half
of the year, and we ended the year with a relatively short duration for
our bond portfolio of slightly over one year.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)
Treasury (Continued)

Treasury continued to collaborate closely both with our Commercial
Banking division and our Personal Banking division. We continue to
strengthen the services we provide and our relationships with clients
by offering a comprehensive range of treasury related products and
services.

We continued to rebalance our securities portfolio in the usual course
of business, and were able to realise disposal gains of HK$13 million
for the year.

Banco Comercial de Macau

Banco Comercial de Macau (“BCM”) provides a comprehensive range
of commercial and retail banking and bancassurance products and
services to local customers in Macau. As of the end of 2016, BCM
operated a total of 14 branches in Macau.

Macau gaming sector recorded a mild drop in the gaming revenue in
2016, after the relatively sizeable contraction in 2015. These, together
with the weaker performance on tourist spending and consumption,
exerted pressure in the Macau economy during the past two years.
Macau’s economy reached a low point at mid 2016 and rebounded
during the second half of 2016, and ended the year with a modest
year-on-year GDP contraction. Against the generally weak economic
conditions, BCM continued to post improvement in its operating
results and its overall financial performance in 2016.

BCM'’s profitability further improved in the year, with net profit
on group reporting basis (adjusting for amortisation of intangible
assets recognised at the initial acquisition of BCM and some Group
level adjustments) up 1% on 2015. Financial performance metrics
remained stable and healthy, including asset quality. Average net
interest margin improved from 1.91% in 2015 to 1.99% in 2016,
contributed by tight control on funding cost. Fee and commission
income was affected by the lower retail securities trading volume
when compared with the more buoyant market sentiment and
customers’ trading in stocks listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
in 2015, lower lending-related fees including syndicated loan fee,
but partly offset by higher volumes and commission income on
bancassurance distribution and wealth management product sales in
the year. Operating expenses were well controlled. Cost to income
ratio ended the year at 45.4% in 2016, similar to 45.3% in 2015.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)
Banco Comercial de Macau (Continued)

BCM'’s total assets grew by 5.3% compared to the end of 2015. Loan
balance and customer deposits, relative to the end of 2015, were up
5.3% and 3.6% respectively. The growth in the loan portfolio was
driven by mortgage loan, commercial lending, working capital finance
and syndicated loan. Deposit growth was broadly diversified, with the
growth in low cost current and savings deposits and tight control on
fixed deposit cost contributing to the improvement in the overall cost
of funds.

BCM continued to promote its SME banking and made further
upgrade in its VIP Banking service platform, in addition to its ongoing
focus in promoting its retail securities trading, credit card and vehicle
finance services to broaden its customer reach and enhance its
services to the local community. As a part of its medium term strategy,
it has been BCM’s continuing effort to strengthen both the branch and
digital banking capability to better serve its personal and commercial
customers in Macau.

Dah Sing Bank (China)

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”) is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Dah Sing Bank and was locally incorporated in China in
2008.

DSB China’s financial performance improved in 2016 with lower credit
cost as a result of tighter underwriting standard and credit control
measures adopted since 2014. DSB China’s loan portfolio grew
slightly as compared to 2015, with new lending underwritten in a well-
balanced and prudent manner. Deposit growth was recorded in the
year, reflecting our effort to diversify our deposit base and steady
deposit growth, which is important to support our loan growth and
long term development.

DSB China continues to operate in 6 major cities in China, with a
network comprising the Shenzhen headquarters, and branches in
Shanghai, Nanchang, Zhenjiang, Guangzhou (with a sub-branch in
Foshan), and a sub-branch in Shenzhen Qianhai, offering a wide
range of commercial and retail banking lending, deposits and related
banking services to our customers in China and customers that have
China-Hong Kong cross border banking needs.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)
Bank of Chongqing

Bank of Chongqging (“BOCQ”) is the leading city commercial bank
in Chongqing. Chonggqing is the largest city in Western China with
a population of over 33 million people, and is one of the 4 leading
municipalities in China reporting directly to Beijing. BOCQ operates a
branch network of around 140 branches and sub-branches, including
branches and sub-branches in Chengdu, Guiyang and Xian.

BOCQ’s business performance and financial results in 2016 were
satisfactory, with its net profit up 10.5% over 2015, and a return on
equity at 15.5% in the year. Loans and deposits grew 21.0% and
15.2% respectively on 2015. Other key financial and performance
metrics were solid, with a loan to deposit ratio at 65.8% and a non-
performing loan ratio at 0.96% at the end of 2016. BOCQ’s asset
quality in 2016 was generally stable, and ended the year with a very
comfortable non-performing loan coverage ratio at 293%.

Following the completion of BOCQ’s IPO in late 2013 and its share
placing in late 2015, our interest was diluted from 20% to 16.95%
in late 2013, and further reduced to 14.66% at the end of 2015. Our
share of BOCQ net profit continued to be recognized on an equity
accounting basis. Due to the dilution of our interest in BOCQ since
late 2015 and the weaker RMB in 2016, our share of BOCQ net profit
in 2016 was HK$603 million, lower than the overall 2015 BOCQ
contribution at HK$618 million, including the deemed disposal loss on
the 2015 dilution recognized by our Group.

RISK MANAGEMENT

During the year, we have further enhanced our risk appetite framework
and stepped up the robustness of our liquidity risk management,
partly in light of the changes in the regulatory requirements put
forward under the revised Supervisory Policy Manual modules
on liquidity risk management issued by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (“HKMA?”) during 2016. Continuing effort and progress were
made in the year to improve credit approval and credit administration
processes to achieve improvement in credit controls and work
efficiency.

On the anti-money laundering (“AML”) front, we continued to
strengthen our AML risk management framework including
management oversight, policy and procedures, operational
processes, transaction monitoring and staff compliance culture.
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EXRRBEE CAPITAL AND LIQUIDITY
2016 £ 20154

AEH The Group 2016 2015
B ERTT 2 & AR ER Capital base of banking subsidiaries

(LAE&8B D) (HK$ million)
M12A31H As at 31 December
— LR - Common Equity Tier 1 17,203 15,840
——& — Tier 1 17,203 15,840
— =% —Tier 2 7,515 5,855
HMRg 2 ERER B Total capital base after deductions 24,718 21,695
BRI Capital adequacy ratio*
— LR — A - Common Equity Tier 1 12.7% 12.2%
——#% — Tier 1 12.7% 12.2%
— B - Total 18.3% 16.7%
MBEERRFLX Liquidity maintenance ratio

(FEFH) (average for the year) 41.9% 39.5%
* 201612 A31 H &% 2015F 12 A31H 2 &K~ 5 * The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December
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RARHERTT (hE)) RBEGRTTHR (B RANN
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2015 represents the consolidated position of DSB (covering BCM and
DSB China) computed on Basel Il basis with reference to the Banking
(Capital) Rules. This consolidated capital adequacy ratio takes into
account market risk and operational risk.

The liquidity maintenance ratio are calculated as the simple average
of each calendar month’s average consolidated liquidity maintenance
ratio of DSB (covering BCM and DSB China) for the twelve months of
the financial year, computed in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity)
Rules effective from 1 January 2015.

The Group’s banking business maintained healthy capital adequacy
ratios over the past two years whilst the Group pursued its growth
strategy and implemented changes to comply with the new regulatory
capital rules. In addition to profit retention in the year to strengthen
the Group’s Common Equity Tier 1 capital, DSB issued a new Basel
Il compliant US$250 million Tier 2 subordinated debt in late 20186,
which boosted the Tier 2 capital base and also consolidated capital
adequacy ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2016. The new Tier 2
subordinated debt was issued in advance of DSB’s redemption of two
non-Basel Il compliant Tier 2 subordinated debts in February 2017
(with the call options to be exercised in early 2017, after receiving the
prior consent of HKMA).

Our Group continued to maintain throughout the year a high liquidity
ratio backed by a strong pool of liquid assets including cash and
placements with banks, and diversified marketable securities held for
investment and liquidity purposes.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

HUMAN RESOURCES

We continued to make efforts to inculcate the Group’s guiding
principles and values in our employees. Riding on the success of the
staff recognition program “Unsung Hero Award” in the past years,
in 2016, we launched the new “Dah Sing Star Awards” to continue
to recognise colleagues who have exhibited the Group’s guiding
principles and values in their daily work. Recognitions were also given
to those staff who made contributions to improvement in business
performance, productivity and effectiveness of our operations.

Growing with employees through mutual commitment is a part of the
Group’s corporate mission. In 2016, we launched the new Dah Sing
Manager Program for junior managerial staff based on the successful
experience of the similar program at advanced level covering senior
executives, which will contribute to the career advancement of our
managerial staff. A number of other new training programmes and
enhanced programmes were also launched to cope with the Group’s
changing business needs.

We furthered our efforts in fostering a caring culture throughout the
organization. In 2016, we introduced birthday party subsidy for all
employees and celebration lai see for colleagues who are newly
married or have a new born baby, enhanced our group medical
insurance coverage and implemented initiatives to promote staff
wellness, such as Work-Life Balance Week, Healthy Week and
various wellness talks. To support building a breastfeeding-friendly
workplace, lactation rooms for employees in need were set up or
planned for further development in the year.

The Group was presented with “The Employer of Choice Award 2016”
by Job Market. The award is a recognition of the Group’s commitment
and achievement across different areas including recruitment and
retention strategy, training and development, reward, organizational
culture and work-life balance.
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HUMAN RESOURCES (Continued)

The Group is honoured to receive the “10+ years Caring Company”
award from the Hong Kong Council of Social Service in recognition
of our commitment to corporate social responsibility. Also, we were
granted the “2015/16 Good MPF Employer Award” by the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority as a recognition of the Group’s
efforts in enhancing the retirement benefits of employees. Further, we
were given the “Family-Friendly Employer” award and “Awards for
Breastfeeding Support” under the 2015/16 Family-Friendly Employers
Award Scheme jointly organized by the Home Affairs Bureau and
the Family Council. In recognition of our being a “Family-Friendly
Employer” in two rounds of assessment under the Family-Friendly
Employers Award Scheme, we were also given the “Special Mention”.
These awards recognised the Group’s continuous efforts in enhancing
family-friendly policies and practices.

To cope with business growth covering the Hong Kong, Macau and
China markets, and the increasing demand for human resources
to strengthen our capabilities in both business units and support
functions, the Group’s headcount further increased in 2016, with the
total number of employees of our Group increasing from 2,619 at the
end of 2015 to 2,751 at the end of 2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND
PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) and the Management of Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited (“Company” or “Group”) are committed to
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance practices within
the Group and devote considerable effort to identify and formalize
best practices. We believe that sound and effective corporate
governance practices are essential for delivering sustainable value,
enhancing a culture of business integrity and maintaining investors’
confidence. Good corporate governance promotes and safeguards
the interests of shareholders and other stakeholders, thereby
enhancing the credibility and reputation of the Group.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has
applied the principles and complied with all code provisions as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) under Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) with the exception
of code provision A.4.1 as explained in the following relevant section.
This Corporate Governance Report has been prepared in accordance
with the requirements set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, and
explains how the Company applies the principles of the CG Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company so as to promote its success and continued growth.
The Board is also responsible for ensuring that the Company has
sound systems of risk management, internal control and regulatory
compliance. The Directors, collectively and individually, have a duty to
act in good faith, and to take decisions objectively in the interests of
the Group. The Board sets the business objectives for the Company,
and monitors the execution of those objectives by the Management of
the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board (Continued)

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility of running
the Group to the Management, and has delegated responsibility for
certain matters to a number of committees, which are described
more fully in the following sections. As defined in the Board’s
terms of reference, there are a number of matters which require
the deliberation of the full Board, and may not be delegated to the
committees of the Board or the Management. These reserved matters
include:

setting and overseeing the objectives and strategies of the

Group

- approving annual budget and business plan, and monitoring
performance and execution of plan

- risk governance

- appointment and oversight of senior management, and ensuring
competent management is in place

- setting corporate values and standards

- ensuring a suitable and transparent corporate structure

- ensuring effective audit function and internal control

- ensuring an appropriate level of effectiveness in respect of the
structure, operation and risk management

- matters involving conflict of interest of substantial shareholders
or any Director

- material acquisition or disposal of assets (not in the ordinary
business or operation of the Company), investments and
business reorganization

- appointment of Directors and also appointment of individual
Directors as the chairman or members of Board Committees

- corporate governance functions in respect of the development

and review of policies and practices on corporate governance

Board Composition

The Board comprises 9 Directors, namely Messrs. David Shou-Yeh
Wong (Chairman), Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) (Vice Chairman),
Harold Tsu-Hing Wong (Managing Director and Chief Executive) and
Gary Pak-Ling Wang as Executive Directors (“EDs”), Mr. Kenichi
Yamato as Non-Executive Director (“NED”), and Messrs. Robert Tsai-
To Sze, Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung, Seng-Lee Chan and Yuen-Tin
Ng as Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”). There is a
strong independent element in the Board to ensure the independence
and objectivity of the Board’s decision-making process as well as
the thoroughness and impartiality of the Board’s oversight of the
Management.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

The Board possesses appropriate experience, competencies and
personal qualities to discharge its responsibilities adequately
and effectively. In addition, the Board collectively has adequate
knowledge and expertise relevant to the business activities of the
Company in order to ensure effective governance and oversight. Brief
biographical particulars of the Directors are set out on pages 6 to 10.
The Company has maintained on the respective websites of Dah Sing
Bank and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited an updated
list of its Directors including their roles and functions and whether
they are INEDs. INEDs are also identified as such in all corporate
communications that disclose the names of the Company’s Directors.

The independence of the INEDs has been assessed in accordance
with the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Following such assessment, the Board considers all the INEDs to be
independent. Further, the Company has also received from each of
the INEDs an annual confirmation of his independence.

The Company issues appointment letters to each of the NEDs
(including INEDs), setting out the terms and conditions of their
appointment.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company acknowledges that there are two key aspects of its
management — the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of its business, and that there should be a clear division
of these responsibilities at the Board level to ensure a balance
of power and authority, so that no single individual should have
unfettered powers of decision.

The posts of the Chairman and the Chief Executive are held separately
by Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong and Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
respectively. This segregation ensures a clear distinction between
the Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the Chief
Executive’s responsibility to manage the Company’s business and
a balance of power and authority. The Chairman mainly provides
leadership for the Board to ensure that the Board discharges its
responsibilities effectively, and that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman possesses
the requisite experience, competencies and personal qualities to fulfill
these responsibilities. The Chief Executive is responsible for the day-
to-day management of the Company to provide business direction
and operational leadership for the benefit of the Group’s businesses,
enhance shareholder value and ensure sound internal control. Mr.
David Shou-Yeh Wong is the father of Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
NEDs (including INEDs)

The Company has 1 NED and 4 INEDs. Each of the INEDs has
provided to the Company confirmation of his independence as
required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with Rule 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A with sufficient number
of INEDs who possess the appropriate professional qualifications and
experience.

Pursuant to code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, NEDs should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The NEDs of
the Company are not appointed for a specific term, but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings
in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association.

NEDs, as equal Board members, give the Board and any committees
on which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise and varied
backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance and active
participation. They attend regular and special Board meetings, and
are encouraged to attend the general or extraordinary general meeting
of the shareholders of the Company. The NEDs make valuable
contribution to the development of the Company’s strategy and
policies through independent, constructive and informed comments
and suggestions.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Board Process

Board meetings are held at least four times each year at
approximately quarterly intervals, and additional board meetings
are held as necessary. Details of Directors’ attendance at the Board
meetings and the annual and extraordinary general meetings in 2016
are set out in the section on Attendance Record.

Notice of at least 14 days is given of regular Board meetings to give
all Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notice is given in advance. Directors may submit to
the Company Secretary, in writing, and at least 7 days in advance,
matters that they would like to include in the agenda for regular
Board meetings. Minutes of the Board and committees of the Board
are kept by the Company Secretary or the secretary of the relevant
committees, and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

Other than regular Board meetings, the Chairman also meets with the
NEDs (including INEDs), without the presence of the EDs and other
Management staff, to facilitate open and frank discussion on issues
relating to the Company.

Directors may, upon reasonable request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense. In circumstances where Directors believe that independent
advice is needed, they should approach the Company Secretary or
the Chief Executive in the first instance with their request. No such
request will be unreasonably denied, and the Company Secretary
or the Chief Executive will endeavor to identify and engage an
appropriate professional adviser at the expense of the Company. The
Company maintains appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal
action against its Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties including:

- to develop and review of the Group’s policy and practices on
corporate governance

- to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management

- to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

- to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and directors

- to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report

The following is a summary of the matters relating to the above
corporate governance duties reviewed and discussed by the Board in
2016:

- Corporate Governance Report of 2015

- Requirements of the Listing Rules in respect of Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting

- Corporate Social Responsibility Report of 2015

- Change of Board composition

- Group Remuneration Policy

- Revised Code of Conduct for Staff

- Renewal of the Continuing Connected Transactions

- Adoption of e-communication with shareholders

- Revised Terms of Reference of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted its own code for directors’ securities
transactions (“Directors’ Dealing Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the prevailing required standard set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
under Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Following specific enquiry,
the Directors of the Company confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and the Directors’
Dealing Code during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

A director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after his/her
appointment. Pursuant to code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. All
new Directors are subject to election by shareholders of the Company
at the next annual general meeting after their appointments have
become effective. All other Directors of the Company are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Delegation by the Board

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Audit
Committee were set up under the authority of the Board, to assist the

Board in carrying out its responsibilities.

The current composition of the Board, the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee is as follows:

RIRITEBEFR AR 20165555

=g Board

HITES EDs

FFE(ER) David Shou-Yeh Wong (Chairman)

=EE(RIEFE) Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) (Vice Chairman)

T (ESBEIBRITIARED) Harold Tsu-Hing Wong (Managing Director and Chief Executive)

=3 Gary Pak-Ling Wang

FBTES NED

AMfE— Kenichi Yamato

hva T= INEDs

LB Robert Tsai-To Sze

REE Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung

BRI Seng-Lee Chan

RIRH Yuen-Tin Ng

Nomination and
RERFMZEE Remuneration Committee EREES Audit Committee
hvi 7= INEDs v 7E INEDs

B (ERE) Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman) $EF(EE)  Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman)
REE Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung PRSI Seng-Lee Chan
bR s 1) Seng-Lee Chan SRM Yuen-Tin Ng
BITES ED
e David Shou-Yeh Wong




ESRERAREI

ARRIEAMZENESREEEHRETFMER
REZER  XAREEEBELBHN - UBRES
HAKENEERRBHBBEENER  AEA
BAGEMREBMERLRE THRE - NRA] IR
MSEEXERIIBIITHES  UEREES
T MEBRSEBERERNROITOBE

EEH2RFEEERR  BRLEMRENZ
RFkge - WEEAR  ARBREFLHHENE -
PIAEEFHEMARMERIFEEN2016 R
Bl EC s o

BEEENFEADEX T8 Z2E -

o
O
B,y
U
O
>
_|
m
®
o
<
m
X
Z
>
Z
o
m
o |m
T
O
By
_|

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Induction and Training for Directors

A newly appointed Director is provided with a Director’s induction
handbook and materials relevant to the Company and briefed by the
Management to ensure that the Director has a proper understanding
of the operations and business of the Group and that he or she
is aware of his or her responsibilities under the relevant laws and
regulations. The Company also organized continuous professional
development and training to its Directors to ensure that they are
fully aware of their responsibilities under the applicable laws and
regulations.

Directors participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year, the
Company has organized board briefings for Directors. All Directors
provided to the Company Secretary a record of the training they
received in 2016.

The Directors received trainings on the following areas during the

year:—
E LS
Training Areas
%/
B/
TEER EERE EE
Business/
Corporate Financial/
= Directors Governance Regulatory Management
BUHBITEE INEDs
LB Robert Tsai-To Sze v v v
REE Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung v/ v v
PR 5 Seng-Lee Chan v/ v v
RIRH Yuen-Tin Ng v/ v/ v/
HHITEE NED
KFfE— Kenichi Yamato
(FA2016 58 A 12 HEZ L) (appointed on 12 August 2016) v/ v v
HITEE EDs
T5% David Shou-Yeh Wong v v v
HEH Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) v v/ v/
THHE Harold Tsu-Hing Wong v/ v v/
& Gary Pak-Ling Wang v v v
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BOARD COMMITTEE - NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Nomination of Directors

The terms of reference of the Board sets out the requirement for a
formal, considered and transparent procedure for the appointment
of new directors to the Board. The terms of reference also explicitly
prohibit the delegation of decisions regarding the appointment of
new directors to sub-committees of the Board or to the management
of the Company, and require that such appointments are made after
deliberation by the full Board.

Remuneration of Directors

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Company in
August 2005 with specific written terms of reference setting out its
roles and responsibilities. The Committee was reconstituted as the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) of the Company
in August 2006 with a set of updated terms of reference. The NRC is
responsible, among other things, for the review and endorsement of
the nomination of directors, approval of the remuneration of directors
and senior management. Since December 2010, the NRC’s terms
of reference have covered the following roles and responsibilities as

well:

- To assist the Board in discharging its responsibility for the
design and operation of the Company’s remuneration system;

- To review and make recommendation to the Board in respect of
the Company’s remuneration policy and practices;

- To determine the specific remuneration packages of directors

and senior management; and

To ensure that regular review of the Company’s remuneration
system and its operation is conducted.
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BOARD COMMITTEE - NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE (Continued)

Corporate Governance Duties
The NRC also performs the following duties:
- To review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the

Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board

- To regularly review the efficiency and effectiveness of
the functioning of the Board, particularly in respect of the

composition of Board members

- To review the Board Diversity Policy, the related measurable
objectives and the progress on achieving these objectives

The NRC is chaired by an INED and the majority of the members are

INEDs. The terms of reference for the NRC are available for inspection
at the Company’s registered office and the website of Dah Sing Bank.

The NRC held three meetings in 2016. The current members of the
NRC and their attendance record in 2016 are set out in the section on
Attendance Records.

The work of the NRC during 2016 included:

- Determining and approving the remuneration levels for
executive directors and senior management

- Reviewing and endorsing the nomination of directors to the
Board

- Reviewing and endorsing the terms of reference of NRC

- Reviewing and endorsing the Group’s remuneration policy and
related systems and practices

- Reviewing the disclosure on the Company’s remuneration
systems and practices

- Reviewing the Board governance of the Company and Dah Sing
Bank

- Reviewing the 2015 performance evaluation of individual INEDs
and the Board evaluation of Dah Sing Bank

- Reviewing and endorsing the succession plan for the Chief
Executive and Division Head positions of Dah Sing Bank
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BOARD COMMITTEE - NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Group’s Remuneration Policy

The Group’s policy on remuneration is to maintain fair and competitive
packages for its employees, which are commensurate with market
terms, and are based on business needs, expertise and quality of
the individuals, and with proper reference to industry practice and
regulatory guidelines.

For determining the level of fees paid to members of the Board of
Directors, market rates and factors such as each director’s workload
and required commitment will be taken into account. The following
factors are considered when determining the remuneration packages
of EDs:

- Business needs and performance

- The economy and business conditions in general

- Each individual’s contributions to the Group

- Risk related performance

- Reference to market pay level commensurate with the individual’s
responsibility

- Consideration of regulatory guidelines

- Retention considerations and each individual’s potential

During the process of consideration, no individual director will be
involved in decisions relating to his/her own remuneration.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”) on 3
December 2013. The key terms of this Policy are set out as follows:

1. Purpose

This Policy aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Company’s Board in order to enhance the quality of
its performance which in turn benefits the Company and its
business as a whole.
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BOARD COMMITTEE - NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE (Continued)

Board Diversity Policy (Continued)

2.

Policy statement

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board in supporting the attainment of its sustainable
development. Board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
ethnicity, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the factors on personal attributes outlined above, expectation
on contribution to the Board, and the benefit of diversity of the
Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, independence and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Monitoring and Reporting

The NRC will review and report annually, in the corporate
governance report to the Board, a summary of the Policy, the
measurable objectives to implement the Policy and progress
made towards achieving those objectives.

Review of the Policy

The NRC will review the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the
effectiveness of the Policy and discuss and recommend any
revisions that may be required to the Board for consideration
and approval.
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BOARD COMMITTEE - AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee (“AC”), established by the Board of the
Company, is responsible for ensuring the objectivity and credibility
of financial reporting, reviewing the internal control system and
compliance with regulatory requirements, and approving audit
plans and reviewing findings and reports of the internal and external
auditors, and that in presenting results to the shareholders, the
Directors have exercised the care, diligence and skills prescribed
by laws, and that appropriate accounting and financial reporting
standards are followed.

The AC makes recommendation to the Board on the selection,
oversight and remuneration of external auditors. The AC reviews and
monitors the external auditors’ independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards.

The AC reviews and monitors the integrity of the Company’s annual
and interim financial statements, including significant financial
reporting judgments used in producing the financial statements.

The AC reviews the Company’s internal controls and reports its major
findings and comments to the Board. Descriptions of the Company’s
internal control system are set out below, whilst for risk management,
these are shown in the Supplementary Financial Information
under Risk Management and described with appropriate financial
quantification in the Financial Risk Management sections as notes to
the annual financial statements.

The terms of reference for the AC are available for inspection at the
Company'’s registered office and the website of Dah Sing Bank.

The members of the AC are Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman), Mr.
Seng-Lee Chan and Mr. Yuen-Tin Ng. All of the members of the AC
are INEDs with extensive experience in banking, finance and business
management. The AC’s chairman, Mr. Sze, is a qualified accountant
and was a partner of a predecessor firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers
up to June 1996. None of the other committee members are employed
by or otherwise affiliated with the former or existing external auditors
of the Company.

The AC members meet at least three times a year with the Company’s
senior Management, the head of internal audit and the external
auditors. In 2016, a total of three meetings were held.
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BOARD COMMITTEE - AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The attendance record of individual directors at the AC meetings in
2016 is set out in the section on Attendance Records.

To enable Directors to be informed of the discussions and decisions of
the AC, members of the AC who also attend meetings of the Board will
advise on matters of significance relating to the financial statements
and the internal control system of the Group discussed in the AC. In
addition, a report highlighting the matters reviewed and dealt with by
the AC is submitted to the Board on a half-yearly basis.

The following is a summary of the work of the AC during 2016 in
discharging its responsibilities:

a. Review of, and providing advice and recommendations to the
Board for the approval of the 2015 results announcements and
audited financial statements of the Group, and the 2016 interim
results and interim report;

b. Review of external auditors’ findings and comments, and
management’s reports on major accounting and financial
disclosure matters in respect of 2015 audit and financial

statements;

C. Review of the Corporate Governance Report of 2015 for
inclusion in the Company’s 2015 annual report and the key
changes to the Corporate Governance Code of the Listing
Rules;

d.  Approval of the reports to the Board providing a summary of the
issues, focuses and discussion reviewed and dealt with by the
AC in the second half of 2015 and the first half of 2016;

e. Review of connected party transactions and disclosure;

f. Review and approval of the appointment and remuneration of
external auditors;

g. Review and approval of the external auditors’ audit plan;

h. Review and approval of internal audit plan;

i Review of the internal audit’s work, findings and
recommendations;
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BOARD COMMITTEE - AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

j Review of updates from the Legal and Compliance Division
of the Group on the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA?”)
examinations and regulatory concerns, management’s actions
in implementing the HKMA’s recommendations;

k. Review of the highlights of major new accounting and financial
reporting standards and guidance issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and impact to the
Group on their adoption; and

l. Review of significant accounting treatments for the preparation
of 2016 financial statements.

ATTENDANCE RECORD

The attendance of individual Directors at the Board meetings,
Independent Board Committee meeting, Audit Committee meetings,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings, the 2016 Annual
General Meeting and the Extraordinary General Meeting held in 2016
are as follows:-

R2016 FEHLRAY,/ ETRH
No. of meetings attended/meetings held in 2016

BUES REREH Xyl

Ezg Z88%  ENZE% ZB8 RREFAE g

Independent Nomination and Annual  Extraordinary

Board Audit  Remuneration General General

B= Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting Meeting

BUFHEE INEDs

£ EH Robert Tsai-To Sze 4/4 N 3/3 3/3 il il

2EE Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung 4/4 1N N/A 33 11 111

BRAsF Seng-Lee Chan 4/4 11 33 33 11 11

RIFH Yuen-Tin Ng 4/4 11 33 N/A 111 111
FEHTEE NED

THER Shoji Hirai 1/2 N/A N/A N/A 0/1 0/1

(20168 A 12 HEHE) (resigned on 12 August 2016)
AfIfE— Kenichi Yamato 212 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(A201658 A 12 HEZ(T) (appointed on 12 August 2016)

0 £ EDs

TF% David Shou-Yeh Wong 4/4 N/A N/A 2/3 il 0/1

BES Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 11 11

Rk Harold Tsu-Hing Wong 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 11 11

T Gary Pak-Ling Wang 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 11 11
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

It is the responsibility of the Board to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects.

Management is responsible for providing sufficient explanation and
information to the Board to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before the
Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. As at 31 December 2016, the
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The Directors have prepared
the financial statements of the Group on a going-concern basis.
The responsibility of the Group’s external auditor on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report attached to
the Group’s financial statements.

The Board is also responsible for providing a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment to annual and interim reports, other
price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, as well as to information required to
be disclosed pursuant to statutory or regulatory requirements.

Internal Controls

The Board has delegated to management the responsibility to
develop and maintain a sound internal control system. The internal
control system, operating through a framework of management and
operational controls, and risk management systems, is intended to
allow the Board to monitor the Group’s business performance and
financial positions, to control and adjust risk exposures, to adopt
sound business practices, to obtain reasonable assurance on controls
against fraud and errors, to ensure compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, and to exercise oversight on and provide guidance
to management in achieving the Company’s objectives. However, it
should be recognized that the Group’s internal control procedures
can only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance against material
errors, losses or fraud.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Internal Controls (Continued)

The key procedures that the Group has established to maintain an

effective internal control system are as follows:

A clear management organizational structure is set up with well-
defined lines of authority, accountability and responsibilities.

Specialized committees are formed to oversee and control
significant risk factors, such as credit risk, liquidity and interest
rate risks, operational risk and compliance risk.

Regular reporting of the performance of the Company’s
businesses to senior management and management
committees. Actual performance results against budgets are
closely monitored. The Board reviews the Group’s business and
financial performance on a quarterly basis.

Written policies and procedures are established to facilitate
proper assessment of customers, services to customers,
segregation of duties, accuracy and completeness of
transaction processing, safeguarding of assets, credit control
and risk monitoring, control of business exposures, compliance
control and monitoring (including anti-money laundering
(“AML”)), staff training, IT development, IT governance and
information security, business continuity planning, financial
control (including accounting, regulatory reporting, financial
reporting to comply with regulatory and financial reporting
standards, management accounting and budget control,
reconciliation of accounts), and system of management
oversight including the operations of various functional
committees.

The independent internal audit function monitors compliance
with management policies and procedures, and regulatory
requirements; and will conduct a wide variety of internal
control reviews and audit activities such as compliance audits
and operations and systems reviews to ensure the integrity,
efficiency and effectiveness of the systems of control. The Head
of Internal Audit reports functionally to the Audit Committee and
administratively to the Chief Executive with direct access to the
Executive Committee.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)
Internal Controls (Continued)

- The independent group risk function monitors and reports the
Group’s risk positions and analysis to senior management, Risk
Management and Compliance Committee and the Board, and
operates to sustain a sound asset quality and risk control in the
portfolio of the Group’s businesses with due consideration of a
proper risk and return balance.

- The Group’s business continues its ongoing upgrade of risk
management framework and capabilities to strengthen its risk
control and effectiveness, which are key to the maintenance of
sound internal control process of the Group.

- The Group Compliance Committee at the management level
serves to uphold a high level of awareness and accountability
of compliance requirements and is responsible for overseeing
and guiding the development, maintenance and enhancement
of compliance system, policies and practices to ensure
compliance with all statutory requirements and regulatory
guidelines. The Legal and Compliance Division of the Group
performs an independent on-going monitoring and advisory role
on the Group’s compliance with relevant rules and regulations,
while the AML and Financial Crime Risk Department manages
and oversees AML and financial crime risk of the Group.

Assessment of Internal Control System

In assessing the effectiveness of the internal control system, the
Board has considered reviews performed by the Audit Committee and
executive management, and the findings of both internal and external

auditors.

Under the direction of the Audit Committee, the Group’s Internal Audit
conducted an assessment covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
practices. The 2016 reviews included an annual assessment of
internal control system with reference to the comments made by both
internal and external auditors, policies and procedures of the Group,
regulatory guidelines and the CG Code regarding internal controls.
The Group will continue to work to enhance its internal control system

and processes.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

It is the responsibility of the Board to evaluate and determine the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group establishes
and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems. The Board is also responsible for overseeing
Management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems. Management has to
provide a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these
systems.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. Such
systems comprise a well-established organisational structure and
comprehensive policies and standards. Areas of responsibilities
for each business and functional unit are clearly defined to ensure
effective checks and balances.

Procedures have been designed for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining proper accounting
records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial information used
within the business or for publication. The procedures provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material errors, losses
or fraud. Procedures have also been designed to ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Systems and procedures are in place in the Group to identify,
control and report on the major types of risks the Group encounters.
Business and functional units are responsible for the assessment of
individual types of risk arising under their areas of responsibilities,
the management of the risks in accordance with risk management
procedures and the reporting on risk management. The Group
maintains an effective risk management framework through the
setting up of specialised management committees for the oversight
and monitoring of major risk areas and the establishment of risk
management departments for relevant functions of the Group. Risk
management reports are submitted to the relevant committees and
ultimately to the Board or its delegated Board committee for oversight
and monitoring of various types of risk associated with the Group’s
businesses and operations. The Group’s risk management policies
and major control limits are approved by the Board or its delegated
Board committee. Operating and risk performance are monitored and
reviewed against relevant risk limits regularly according to established
policies and procedures.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)
Annual Assessment

The Group has implemented control self-assessment process on
risk management and internal control systems with reference to the
requirements of the CG Code of the Listing Rules covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls
as well as risk management functions. The self-assessments on the
setup and effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems included assessment conducted by management and risk
control departments, review and endorsement performed by Internal
Audit function, and review and confirmation by senior management of
the Group.

The results of the 2016 review, which have been reported to the
AC and the Board, revealed that the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems were effective and appropriate.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Group has established an Internal Audit function. The primary role
of the Internal Audit function is to help the Board and Management
to protect the assets, reputation and sustainability of the Group. The
Internal Audit function provides independent and objective assurance
as to whether the design and operational effectiveness of the Group’s
framework of risk management, control and governance processes,
as designed and represented by the Management, is adequate.

Results of audit work together with an assessment of the overall risk
management and control framework are reported to the AC or the
Board as appropriate and at least annually. The Internal Audit function
also reviews the Management’s action plans in relation to audit
findings and verifies the adequacy and effectiveness of the mitigating
controls before formally closing the issue.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Company has reviewed and is satisfied with the independence of
the Company’s external auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”),
for performing the audit of the Group’s financial statements.

The Company will use the non-audit services of PwC only when
the Company can benefit in a cost-effective manner and the
independence and objectivity of PwC as the Company’s external
auditors can be maintained. Otherwise, professional services from
other firms are used.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION (Continued)

In addition to audit related services, PwC, based on agreed-upon
procedures, provided the Group non-audit services during 2016
including review of tax returns and computation, tax advisory
services, review of the Group’s interim financial disclosure, and review
of the update on the offering circular of Dah Sing Bank, Limited’s
US$2 Billion Euro Medium Term Note Programme, and independent
assessments of certain operational processes, risk management and
internal control of the Group.

The remuneration paid/payable to PwC in respect of audit services
and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set
out as follows:

X BEXNFZER
RBADTFREHRE Services rendered for the Company Fee paid/payable
(F#&x)
(HK$’000)
EZRE Audit services 7,893
FBRZAIMNRT Non-audit services:
o  EHEEIMEBUNTISHH e Review of the updated Euro Medium Term
FHE([5181]) & Note Programme (the “Programme”) and
AFIRITIEET B T 31T professional work on new subordinated note issue
g EEBNERTE of Dah Sing Bank under the Programme 770
o HREEBERRERE  BEER e Compliance reviews and independent assessments
EIR - HAAFRRIER iR on operational risk management, technology risk
Sy PN E AV management, new IT system projects etc. 3,977
o EREERRM I e Tax compliance review on taxation computation
RANM IR B NS AR and advisory service on compliance with new
ZBEEREE tax regulations relevant to the Group 1,991
o Hits e Others 1,486
a&H Total 16,117

ARFRITEBEFR AR 20165555
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Effective Communication

The Board attaches great importance to communication with
shareholders. The Annual General Meeting provides a useful forum for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Chairman of the
Board and all Directors make a strong effort to attend. The Chairmen
of the Board Committees and a representative of the external auditors
also attend the AGM to take shareholders’ questions.

The Management holds group meetings with analysts in connection
with the Company’s annual and interim results. Apart from the
above, designated senior executives maintain regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s development, subject to compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations.

Moreover, the website of Dah Sing Bank (www.dahsing.com)
offers shareholders convenient access to the Company’s financial
information, announcements/circulars and information on the
Company’s corporate governance structure and practices, in addition
to business and corporate social responsibility activities of the Group.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Shareholder(s) holding not less than 5 percent of the total voting rights
of the Company may put forth requisition to convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting of the Company.

The requisition must (i) state the objectives of the meeting, (ii) be
signed by the requisitionist(s) and (iii) be deposited at the Company’s
registered office at 36th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108
Gloucester Road, Hong Kong or in electronic form. It may also consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more
requisitionist(s).

The requisition must also state (i) the name(s) of the requisitionist(s),
(i) the contact details of the requisitionists(s) and (iii) the number of
ordinary shares of the Company held by the requisitionist(s).

The Directors must proceed to convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition.
Such meeting should be held on a date not more than 28 days after
the date on which the notice convening the meeting is given.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting (Continued)

If the Directors fail to convene the Extraordinary General Meeting
as aforesaid, the requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene the meeting. Any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the date of the deposit of the
requisition.

A meeting so convened by the requisitionist(s) shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are
to be convened by the Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) by reason of
the failure of the Directors to duly convene a meeting shall be repaid
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

Shareholders representing not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights
of all shareholders, or not less than 50 shareholders, who are entitled
to vote on a resolution at a general meeting, may:

- put forward a proposal at a general meeting

- circulate to other shareholders a written statement with respect
to matters to be dealt with at a general meeting

Shareholders may refer to section 580 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for further details on
the shareholder qualifications and the procedures and timeline in
connection with the above.

Submission of enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s attention
to the Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office at 36th
Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong.
Questions about the procedures for convening or putting forward
proposals at an Annual General Meeting or Extraordinary General
Meeting may also be put to the Company Secretary.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued)
Shareholders Communication Policy

The Company has in place a Shareholders Communication Policy
which sets out the Company’s practices in relation to communication
with shareholders and the investment community. The Policy is
available on the website of Dah Sing Bank (www.dahsing.com).

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

A Guideline on the Control and Disclosure of Inside Information is in
place, which sets out the guiding principles, procedures and internal
controls for the handling of confidential inside information, and
dissemination of inside information in a timely manner so as to allow
all stakeholders to be aware of the latest positions or price sensitive
information of the Group and its subsidiaries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has not changed its constitutional documents in 2016.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who possesses the relevant qualifications and experience
pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. She has
taken more than 15 hours of relevant professional training to update
her skills and knowledge during the financial year ended 31 December
2016.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In respect of the continuing connected transactions as set out in
Note 42 to the financial statements, all the INEDs of the Company
have reviewed the said transactions and confirmed that the said
transactions have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;
(2) on normal commercial terms; and
(8) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them

on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Further, the Company has engaged its external auditors, PwC, to
report on the Company’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. PwC has issued an unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions set out in Note 42 to the financial statements
in accordance with Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter
needs to be submitted by the Company to The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

As a renowned financial services group with a history deeply rooted
in Hong Kong for 70 years, Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (the
“Company” or the “Group” or “Dah Sing Group”) embraces our
responsibilities and desire to be a good corporate citizen who
contributes to the creation of shared social values.

We are committed to providing visibility on our performance in
sustainable development to our stakeholders. This Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report provides an update on our key
achievements concerning material ESG aspects during the financial
year ended 31 December 2016.

The scope of this report encompasses the Group’s core operations in
banking. In addition to our business operations located in Hong Kong,
this year we have extended the reporting scope to cover the Group’s
major operations in Macau and Mainland China.

This report is compiled in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide
under Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing Rules published by the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

This report supplements the Corporate Governance Report and is
included as part of the Group’s 2016 Annual Report. This report is also
accessible via the website of Dah Sing Bank at www.dahsing.com.

Our Philosophy in ESG

We believe that as a growing and responsible financial services group
in Hong Kong, we are accountable to fulfil not only our economic
responsibilities, but also our social and environmental obligations.
The Group’s Corporate Social Responsibility Policy reaffirms our
principles in ESG, and our ESG activities are organised to create long-
term value for our stakeholders.

We leverage various resources to address challenges and tap
into opportunities associated with ESG through our roles and
responsibilities at the workplace and marketplace, in the community
and the environment as a whole. At the Group level, we have
established a dedicated Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”)
Committee, comprising members of Management, to oversee the
direction of sustainable development. The CSR Committee also
reviews, approves, supervises and monitors the implementation
of our ESG initiatives. At the local level, our business units tailor
these initiatives in alignment with their nature of business and
community engagement. To facilitate continuous improvement, our
ESG performance is monitored, measured, reviewed and reported to
Management on a regular basis.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (Continued)
Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality Assessment

Addressing our ESG priorities requires working closely with our
stakeholders who share our values and vision, receive services from
the Group, or engage with the Group via different relationships;
these include our employees, customers, shareholders, suppliers,
regulators and the wider community. We engage our stakeholders on
a regular basis and maintain open and transparent dialogue with them
to collect and act on their feedback.

The table below outlines our engagement with different key
stakeholders:

Key Stakeholders Type of Engagement

Employees . Annual performance management
J Training, seminars and briefing sessions
. Dah Sing Staff Club
. Employee Assistance Program

. Staff communication

. People portal/intranet

J Recreational and volunteer activities
Customers . Relationship manager visits

. Corporate website

J Customer service hotline

. Quality Assurance unit to respond to customers’
opinions

. Customer talks and seminars

Shareholders . Annual General Meeting and other general meetings
° Investor and press conferences and briefings
° Corporate website
° Corporate communications including announcements,

circulars, interim and annual reports

Suppliers o Meetings and communications
. Regular supplier reviews
° Supplier management

Regulators J Regular meetings and communications
° On-site review
U Compliance reports
Community U Volunteer activities
o Sponsorship and donations
° Community outreach
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (Continued)

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality Assessment (Continued)

The material ESG aspects identified are in line with what is most
critical to our stakeholders and our business. We are pleased to
disclose more on how we leverage our resources and strengths to
create sustained values for our communities in which we are a part.
This ESG Report serves to address the key concerns, interests and
expectations of our stakeholders. It summarises our ESG initiatives
and performance in the order of our employment practices, operating
practices, environmental performance and community involvement.

EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES

With more than 2,700 employees serving our core markets in Hong
Kong, Macau and Mainland China, the Group values its people as
its greatest asset. We are dedicated to providing rewarding career
opportunities and an inclusive work environment to retain and engage
the best people to work for us.

Employment

The Group’s business achievements rely on the hard work and
dedication from our employees. We place great importance on talent
recruitment, development and retention through our employment
policies and practices, to ensure that we have the right talent required
to execute the Group’s strategic goals in the long run.

Our Graduate Trainee Programme has been running since 2004,
with more than 160 university graduates recruited. It manifests our
commitment to build our talent pipeline. We also offer fresh graduates
the opportunity to develop their career in the banking industry through
our Financial Services Trainee programme.

We have policies in place to
stipulate practices in relation
to recruitment and promotion,
compensation and dismissal,
working hours, resting periods,
equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other
benefits and welfare.
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EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES (continued)

Employment (Continued)

We reward our people with our “pay for performance” philosophy.
We offer competitive remuneration packages to our employees to
differentiate and reward performance. Eligible employees are entitled
to benefits that are competitive in the market, these benefits include
leave entitlements and retirement benefits which are above the
statutory requirements, medical and life insurance, staff housing loan
and staff deposit accounts with preferential rates, etc.

We are dedicated to creating a fair and inclusive work environment
for our employees. Our employment policies and practices set a
tone of zero tolerance for discrimination, harassment, victimisation
or vilification on any grounds including gender, marital status,
pregnancy, disability, family status or race.

The Group encourages and supports a balanced work-life by
providing industry-compatible leave entitlements including annual
leave, birthday leave and volunteer service leave. ‘Healthy Week’,
‘Work-Life Balance Week’ and wellness talks are organised to raise
awareness of healthy living and work-life balance. We also provide
channels to convert into part-time work for our full-time employees
who wish to fulfil their work, personal and family commitments. In
supporting employees who are working mothers, the Group joined
the “Say Yes to Breastfeeding” Community Support Campaign
2015/2016, organised by UNICEF Hong Kong in collaboration with
the Hong Kong SAR Government, and set up lactation facilities in the
office premises.

Employee well-being has always been our top priority. Since 2001,
the Group has been operating the Employee Assistance Program,
where employees are supported by professionals to prevent, identify
and address their personal, family or work-related concerns in a
confidential manner.

Health and Safety

Providing a safe and healthy workplace for all employees is ingrained
in the Group’s culture. Our employees have been informed of potential
health and safety hazards in the office and the corresponding
preventative measures through our “Guidelines on Occupational
Safety and Health”. In the event of a pandemic outbreak, our
“Contingency Plan for Outbreak of an Infectious Disease” sets out
procedures to help us cope with the situations and maintain business
continuity by taking appropriate and timely actions.
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EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES (Continued)
Training and Development

Our training programmes are designed to provide our employees with
a rewarding career and help our high-calibre talents actualise their
potential. The training programmes cover a diverse range of topics,
including sales, operations, product compliance, leadership and
management skills. Our e-learning platform, which mainly covers the
compliance and internal control related topics, allows our employees
to learn anytime and anywhere. The use of online training channel in
2016 has increased by almost 40% as compared to last year.

Dah Sing Group believes in lifelong learning. We offer education
sponsorships for employees to acquire higher academic qualifications
for their personal development. Sponsorship and examination
leave are also given to employees to attend various professional
development programmes and examinations such as FLMI, ACCA,
HKICPA, AHKIB, CFP, CFMP and CFA organised by different
professional bodies.

It is important that we help our people embrace our corporate culture
and shared values. Our Value Building Foundation Workshop adopts
an interactive approach to engage our employees to live and exhibit
the Group’s guiding principles and values in their daily work.

Labour Standards

The Group observes high labour standards and prohibits the use of
child, forced and compulsory labour. We monitor, prevent and report
such practices through scrupulous and rigorous practices.

Regulatory Compliance

During the year, we were not aware of any non-compliance with laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating to
employment, occupational health and safety, or labour standards.

OPERATING PRACTICES

We recognise that loyal and satisfied customers are critical to our
continued business success. The Group

upholds a customer-centric culture and

strives to construct a mutually beneficial

relationship with our customers in which

values created are shared in a transparent

and fair manner.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
Supply Chain Management

In managing our supply chain risk, we use suppliers that act in an
environmentally, socially and ethically responsible manner. Suppliers
are assessed based not only on their quality of work, track record
and economic factors, but also their ways of doing things in respect
of environmental, social and business conduct. Our suppliers are
expected to adhere to our standards, including those related to
ESG, as outlined in the respective request for proposal documents.
Such expectation is reinforced through our supplier performance
evaluation.

Customer Experience

The Group works to create a good customer experience by providing
quality products and services that suit customer needs.

The Group invests in leading technologies and resources to deliver
quality and up-to-date services to customers. These have provided
our customers fast account opening, services via different channels,
and the added convenience, security and service quality on the use of
our e-banking and e-payment services, which have ongoing upgrade.

Our people are equipped with proper training and skills in handling
customer enquiries and complaints. We welcome constructive
feedback from our customers and provide them with various
communication channels, such as hotline and email, in addition to our
branch network. Customer complaints are followed up and addressed
in a timely manner by the relevant parties and customer suggestions
are taken to guide our continuous efforts in making improvements.

We are committed to providing clear, accurate and balanced
information about our products and services to our customers to help
them make informed financial decisions. Our frontline sales personnel
are adequately trained to act with due skill, care and diligence.

Customer Data Privacy

As a socially responsible financial services organisation in Hong
Kong, trust is our license to facilitate the economic development of
the community we serve. The Group is committed to building trusting
relationships with our customers and communities by safeguarding
personal data privacy.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

Customer Data Privacy (Continued)

We have a Privacy Policy Statement in place which sets out clear
instructions for the collection, retention and use of customer data.
Policies and standard operating procedures are established and
adopted at the business level to protect the privacy and security of
personal data, in accordance with the applicable local regulatory
requirements. Our data privacy policies and requirements are
communicated and emphasised to all employees through inductions
and annual refresher trainings as well as various other avenues,
including seminars and quizzes. Access to customer data is strictly
limited to authorised personnel. Unauthorised use of customer data,
particularly for the purpose of direct marketing, is strictly forbidden.

With the increasing application of internet-based technologies in
financial services, the Group has been keenly aware of the cyber risks
associated with personal data security and has implemented stringent
control and security measures in offering its products and services
on the internet-based banking platform, mobile banking and mobile
securities trading platforms.

Anti-corruption and Whistle-blowing

We live up to the high expectations that our stakeholders have for us
as a responsible business by upholding high ethical values. The Group
has zero tolerance for bribery, extortion and other forms of corruption.
Our anti-corruption policies and procedures require our businesses to
meet high ethical standards at all times.

The Group’s requirements toward anti-corruption and business
ethics, incorporated in our Code of Conduct, are communicated and
reinforced to all employees. Regular training on anti-corruption and
whistle-blowing are given to all employees to create and strengthen
their awareness. The Group’s independent internal audit function
conducts in-depth reviews of various internal controls and audit
activities across our businesses to safeguard staff integrity.

Our whistle-blowing procedures encourage and enable our
employees and other stakeholders to report on observed

and suspected non-compliance and questionable
practices in confidence without retribution. Reported
cases are investigated and followed up by the
compliance or internal audit teams. Confirmed
cases are reported to the Audit Committee and
Management of the Group.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

Anti-corruption and Whistle-blowing (Continued)

The Group is strongly committed to combatting money laundering
and terrorism financing. Our Group-wide anti-money laundering
(“AML”) and counter-terrorism financing policies and procedures
are established in line with international and local AML and counter-
terrorism financing frameworks. We practise rigorous customer due
diligence and record-keeping and report suspicious transactions to
mitigate AML risks. Dedicated governance structures including the
AML Committee, Management Committee and Risk Management
Committee have been established to oversee and control the risks
concerning AML, financial crime and terrorism financing.

For more information regarding our corporate governance practices,
please refer to the Corporate Governance Report in this Annual
Report.

Regulatory Compliance

During the year, we were not aware of any breach of laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating to anti-
corruption; nor were we aware of any incidents of non-compliance
with laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
concerning health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services and methods of redress.

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

As a responsible financial services provider, we are committed to
minimising our environmental impacts, and have proactively played a role
in driving our community towards a greener economy. We work to be part
of the solution to environmental protection, by reducing our own energy
and greenhouse gas (“GHG”) footprints, practising waste recycling and
enabling sustainable businesses by supporting green financing.

Energy and GHG Emission Management

The Group recognises that energy comprises a major part of its GHG
emissions. Our businesses have implemented a myriad of measures
in improving energy efficiency in our operations and reducing the
intensity of GHG emissions.

To minimise energy use and GHG emission at its source, we choose
to procure higher energy efficient machinery and equipment. Our
employees are encouraged to avoid unnecessary business travels
and use alternatives, such as videoconferencing. To exert a positive
influence on user behaviour, we have set out guidelines to encourage
energy saving by turning off the computer or printer during idle time.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE (Continued)

Energy and GHG Emission Management (Continued)

At our banking business in Hong Kong, we have replaced over 600
fluorescent light tubes with more energy efficient LED models in 2016
to lower the CO, emissions at the office premises by about 60,000 kg.
We are proud to announce that in March 2016 we became a signatory
to the Environmental Bureau’s “Charter on External Lighting”. This
initiative allows us to reduce energy wastage and minimise light
nuisances of external lighting installations. Additionally, we undertook
a virtualisation project with external consultants to consolidate and
streamline IT equipment which helped lower electricity consumption
and GHG emissions.

Our continuous efforts in making our operations greener have been
recognised by the Environmental Campaign Committee with the
award “Energywi$e Certificate — Good Level”.

Waste Reduction and Recycling

The Group is committed to managing waste responsibly through
reducing and recycling waste. Waste generated from our operations
is recycled as much as possible. Recycling bins are provided on the
premises and are easily accessible by employees. We recycled over
140 tonnes of scrap paper, empty printer cartridges and toner bottles
in 2016.

As recognition of our consistent efforts in waste reduction and
recycling, the Group was presented the “Wastewi$e Certificate —
Good Level” award by the Environmental Campaign Committee in
2016.

Going Paperless

We have invested in state-of-the-art technologies, such as the
internet commercial banking platform, DS-Direct, which enables us
to send bank alerts, advices and statements electronically to our
customers. Additionally, we launched e-receipts for ATMs as an
alternative to paper receipts. Since March 2016, our banking business
in Macau has migrated over 4,500 customers to electronic statements
for their credit cards.

Internally within Dah Sing Group, many of our processes
have evolved to be paperless. For example, e-forms have
been widely applied internally and e-fax has been adopted
for bank-wide document transfers. We have
deployed over 200 scanning devices to facilitate
document retention in electronic form.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

o7



68

RIR - A MNERWRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIERR @)
K AKE

BPCREHORK YERMEERAZHKNE
BRE K ERTEE o 120 - AIFERPIRRITZ
T ERE L EHKBERETE /K E 81 80% H7K
BESE - R B EMAKE -

XEZRETH

FEBRAZHEZECHNTR  LHEER2HE
RRFTENEERBRRENE - RAEPEA
HEIRITE R —EEREBE R - B RIER
FAEROSRIAR BER - WRFEITEBE KR
RABTHRSHERITEERFEEGINRAE -

EEER

BANBERNL BREENEZ R BREERN
BEREHW KRS  BENEERE
BMELSHERIERMEARBEEREAY
ZeErt -

HES2H

BMEEMEMtRELERMNEFERE R
Bl HERS2EDEMEEMEEERBNEE
B BMBHATHARNTFR - AEREBETSE
B FRBFIPrEEOE
g o REBEEET
BHEEIE  TRHTD
BlE Rt EEE

REABENFE
= ok ol
glo R20164F » &
IR tt @ 28 E T
RERFRPRE
SOFHE XS
BREGH BRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE (continued)
Reducing Water Use

We support water conservation and have adopted practical water-
efficiency measures in our key premises. For example, we installed
faucets which are designed to be 80% more water-efficient than
traditional taps in the washrooms of our banking operation in Macau

to reduce daily water usage.

Supporting Green Finance

The Group recognises the global demand in green finance and is
enthusiastic to play a part in enabling capital-raising and project
investment that provide environmental solutions. Our banking business
in Mainland China has established a set of lending guidelines which
prohibits loans for inefficient, pollution-causing projects. This is in line
with the trend of the industry and addresses increasing expectations
from the public for greater accountability from the financial sectors.

Regulatory Compliance

We were not aware of any non-compliance of laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group relating to air and
GHG emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste during the reporting period.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

We believe that the prosperity of the community in which we
operate is intertwined with the growth of our business. Community
outreach is an essential part of our CSR strategy. We make efforts
to understand the needs, interests
and concerns in the community and
give back to society as much as we
could. In collaboration with various
partners, the Group supports a variety
of community programmes that create
long-lasting social benefits and brings
sustainable solutions to scale. In 2016
our community involvement focused on
Small and Medium Enterprise (“SME”)
support, youth development, sports for

charity, environmental conservation and

RPIRERTE T2RA [E87T)

financial inclusion.

Staff of BCM Bank participated in “Walk for Millions” in Macau

AFRITEEER AT 20165445
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COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (continued)
Supporting SMEs

SMEs are the lifeblood of the Hong Kong economy and they form
an important customer segment for the Group. We believe that

supporting SMEs is important not just
for the sustainable development of
Hong Kong, but also for the Pearl River
Delta region as a whole. Apart from
organising many activities for SMEs, we
also sponsored the 2016 Hong Kong
E-commerce Ecosystem Summit and
2" Hong Kong E-commerce Award
Competition co-organised by Alibaba,
the Office of the Government Chief
Information Office of the Hong Kong

SAR and the Hong Kong Netrepreneurs
Association.

Nurturing the Youth

The youth are the future of our society and we strive to empower them
and bring social mobility to them.

The Group introduced the “Life Buddies” programme in mid-2016,
where our staff volunteered to be one-on-one mentors for eight
students in Lingnan Secondary School to guide them through the
process of setting goals for personal development.

In July 2016, we supported the “Taobao E-commerce Training
Programme” by engaging employees to provide training to 50 young
e-commerce talents on topics ranging from cash flow and financial

management to the basics of trade finance.

We also supported the volunteering work organised by The Hong
Kong Association of Banks to promote financial management
concepts and career in banking industry to the youths and
participated in the career workshops organised by the Chinese YMCA
of Hong Kong for secondary school students.

The Group has given scholarships to students with
good academic results at selected universities in . | I
Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China over the
past few years.
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COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (continued)
Promoting Sports and Supporting Those in Need

The Group organised a basketball
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event with competition and
challenge games in late 2016 to
raise funds for Operation Santa
Claus. The fundraising event was
attended by over 120 staff and
32 children. The Group hosted
the event with a view to providing
DSB staff with a chance to join
hands with children in need for

charity, while also fostering a

RIMBZERRBER [EOEFRKRTH ] R

strong team spirit among its staff.

Dah Sing Charity Score Challenge raised funds for Operation Santa Claus
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The Group also sponsored 19 children from low income families to join
a 2-year free rope skipping course and 80 underprivileged children
to participate in the Doraemon Run, which helped the youngsters to
develop sports skills and sportsmanship.

.

DR SING Bax

2\

016 % Doraemon Run
Doraemon Run 2016

Environmental Conservation

To promote awareness for environmental conservation, the Group
organised a clean-up for an eco-garden in Shenzhen, southern China.
The event was attended by over 150 staff.

Financial Inclusion

Dah Sing Group supports disadvantaged customers, such as the
elderly, minors, low-income groups and physically or mentally
challenged customers, by providing waivers for low-balance
maintenance and dormant account fees. The Group also participates
in the “Treat Customers Fairly Charter” run by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority.
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

The following are the major awards received by the Group in 2016:

“10+ years Caring Company” recognition by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service

“2015/16 Good MPF Employer Award” by the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority

“2015/16 Family-Friendly Employer”, “2015/16 Awards for
Breastfeeding Support” and “Special Mention” under the
2015/16 Family-Friendly Employers Award Scheme by the
Home Affairs Bureau and the Family Council

“The Employer of Choice Award 2016” by JobMarket

“Corporate Social Responsibility Award” by CAPITAL magazine

“2016 Best SME’s Partner Award” by the Hong Kong General
Chamber of Small and Medium Business

“Outstanding Financial Management Planner Award” by the Hong
Kong Institute of Bankers for sales and financial planning colleagues

Persistently Outstanding Service Outlet (TKO Metro City
Branch) and Persistently Outstanding Service Company of the
year by Tip Top Consultants Ltd

Best Loved SME Bank Brand Award by RoadShow

Elite Award — Best Commercial Banking by Ming Pao Weekly

“Best Commercial Banking” under Metro Awards for Banking &
Finance Corporations 2016 by Metro Daily and Metro Prosperity

“Capital Merits in Internet Banking Services Award” by CAPITAL
magazine
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Closure dates of Register of Shareholders (both days inclusive)

B LR AR 3B P R

Latest time to lodge transfers

SCEE A HA

Record date

BRFAFAE

Annual General Meeting

RFRITEBEFR AR 20165555

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (the
“Company”) is banking investment holding. The principal activities
of the subsidiaries are shown in Note 26 to the financial statements.
An analysis of the performance of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the reporting period by business and geographical
segments are set out in Note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set

out in the consolidated income statement on page 93.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$0.10 per share and a
total of HK$140,325,962.50 in cash was paid on 23 September 2016.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.28
per share in cash, totalling HK$392,970,853.80.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF SHAREHOLDERS

For determining shareholders’ right to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting:

2017 5A23H (BH-)E201745 268 (EHH)
23 May 2017 (Tuesday) to 26 May 2017 (Friday)

2017522 A (EH—) TH4K305
4:30 p.m. on 22 May 2017 (Monday)

201745 26 H (E8H)
26 May 2017 (Friday)

20175 26 H (E8H)
26 May 2017 (Friday)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

For determining shareholders’ entitlement to receive the proposed
final dividend™:

2017F6 A6 H (2H=)=2017F6 A8H (EHM)
6 June 2017 (Tuesday) to 8 June 2017 (Thursday)

20176 A5 H(EH—) TF4E305
4:30 p.m. on 5 June 2017 (Monday)

20176 A8 H (EHim)
8 June 2017 (Thursday)

20176 A14H (28=)
14 June 2017 (Wednesday)

(*subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting)

During the periods of the closure of Register of Shareholders, no share
transfers will be registered. For registration, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong before the relevant latest
time to lodge transfers.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group and a discussion and analysis
on the Group’s future business development are provided in the
“Chairman’s Statement” and the “Review of Operations” of this
Annual Report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties
that the Group may be facing can also be found in the “Chairman’s
Statement” and the “Review of Operations” of this Annual Report.
The objectives and policies of financial risk management and the
risk management structure and framework of the Group can be
found in the “Notes to the Financial Statements” of this Annual
Report. Particulars of important events affecting the Company that
have occurred (if any) can be found in the “Notes to the Financial
Statements”. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is provided in the “Review
of Operations” of this Annual Report. In addition, discussions on
the Group’s environmental policies and relationships with the key
stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and regulations
which have significant impact on the Group can be found in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” and the “Corporate
Governance Report” of this Annual Report. The “Notes to the
Financial Statements” also contain description of the management
structures and framework to ensure compliance of various laws and
regulations which are applicable to the Group. The above sections
form part of this Report of the Directors.
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SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the shares of the Company issued during the year are shown
in Note 38 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$2,247,000.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are:

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman

Robert Tsai-To Sze*

Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung*

Seng-Lee Chan*

Yuen-Tin Ng*

Kenichi Yamato (appointed with effect from 12 August 2016)

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Managing Director and Chief Executive

Gary Pak-Ling Wang

Shoji Hirai (resigned with effect from 12 August 2016)

* Independent Non-Executive Directors

In accordance with Articles 107 and 108 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, one-third (or the number nearest to and at least one-
third) of the Directors being those who have been longest in office
shall retire by rotation at each annual general meeting. The Directors
retiring under Articles 107 and 108 are, however, eligible for re-
election. Accordingly, Messrs. David Shou-Yeh Wong, Robert Tsai-To
Sze and Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung will retire, and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, a Director appointed during the year either to fill a
vacancy or as an additional director shall retire at the next following
annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Mr. Kenichi Yamato, who was appointed on 12
August 2016, will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
Mr. Yamato, being eligible, offers himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors as regards their continued
independence while serving as members of the Board of Directors
during the year. The Company considers all the Independent Non-
Executive Directors to be independent.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the forthcoming annual
general meeting are set out in the circular to the shareholders sent
together with this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

A list of the names of all the directors who have served on the boards
of the subsidiaries of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this Report of the Directors is provided in the “Directors of
Subsidiaries” section which follows this Report of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
within 1 year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the Chief Executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required to
be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “SEHK”) pursuant to Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they have taken on or are deemed
to have acquired under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required pursuant to the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers and the code of conduct for directors’
securities dealing adopted by the Company (collectively the
“Securities Model Code”) were as follows:
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

B) EARAREBEIEFREZROERS a) Interests in shares of the Company and its associated
corporation
EERT
RIPEE 2
EERDH
Percentage
ANALEERRAEE of interests
Number of ordinary shares in the Company in the
BARER EEEE Hitrfgs A5HEH  total number
Personal Corporate Other Total of issued
= Director interests interests!" interests interests shares
I5% David Shou-Yeh Wong - 1,045,626,955% - 1,045,626,955 74.50
THE Harold Tsu-Hing Wong 623,127 - - 623,127 0.04
EERT
RABHZ
BEEAL
AFEREBERADEBRROHA Percentage
Number of ordinary shares of interests
in Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited in the
BARER EEER O Hitigs AR  total number
Personal Corporate Other Total of issued
= Director interests interestst interests interests shares
IF%¥ David Shou-Yeh Wong - 11,096,495  126,189,187® 137,285,682 40.97
i Notes:

() AR EMEERREAR LTEH=S 2
— A IR T AR 2 o

2 HERNBEITEEAENAFTCRAEEER
N2 Bk e MR ES KA EIEGIEXVIRE
EERIEEEANRR74.49% 2 FER TR TET
FIEHIEERSE 2 AR ERG ©

@)  WEHEEOTIRAETERERKEKEMETKL
ZERERERNELEBRERAR A RBEES
Ao

RIRITEBEFR AR 20165555

The corporate interests are in respect of shares held by companies in
which the director controls one third or more of the voting powers at
general meetings.

Such shares include the corporate interests of David Shou-Yeh Wong
under Part XV of the SFO by virtue of his beneficial share interests in the
shares of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited which currently holds a
controlling interest of 74.49% in the Company and interests in the shares
of the Company held through a company controlled by David Shou-Yeh
Wong.

Such shares are indirectly held by HSBC International Trustee Limited, a
trustee of a discretionary trust established for the benefit of David Shou-
Yeh Wong and his family members.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and its associated corporation

i) Share option schemes of the Company

The shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of
a new share option scheme (the “New DSBG Scheme”) and,
at the same time, the termination of the Share Option Scheme
adopted by the Company on 12 June 2004 (the “Old DSBG
Scheme”) at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 27 May 2014. No further options can be offered under the
Old DSBG Scheme after its termination but the provisions of
the Old DSBG Scheme remain in full force and effect to the
extent necessary to give effect to exercise of all options granted
prior to the termination of the Old DSBG Scheme but not yet

exercised at the time of termination.

In accordance with the requirements of The Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”), a summary of the Old DSBG
Scheme and the New DSBG Scheme (collectively the “DSBG
Schemes”) is disclosed as follows:

(1)  Purpose of the DSBG Schemes:
The purpose of the DSBG Schemes is to attract, motivate
and retain high quality executives to contribute to the
Group’s business and growth.

(2) Participants of the DSBG Schemes:
Eligible participants of the DSBG Schemes included

directors and employees holding supervisory positions in
the Company and its subsidiaries.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

i)
3)

Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)

Total number of shares available for issue under the DSBG
Schemes and percentage of total number of issued shares
as at the date of this Report of the Directors:

Following the termination of the Old DSBG Scheme, no
further share options can be granted under the Old DSBG
Scheme.

The number of shares available for issue under the New
DSBG Scheme and any other schemes is 70,076,781
shares, representing 4.99% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company as at the date of this Report of the
Directors.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the DSBG
Schemes:

No options may be granted to any eligible person which, if
exercised, would result in such eligible person becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of shares as, when
aggregated with the total number of shares already issued
or to be issued to him under all options granted to him in
the 12-month period up to and including the offer date of
relevant options, exceed 1% of the shares in issue at such
date. Any grant of further options above the limit shall be
subject to the provisions of the DSBG Schemes and the
Listing Rules as amended from time to time.

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option:

The exercise period is determined by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the Board of
the Company, and is specified when related options are
granted. Shares under the options must be taken up within
10 years from the date of grant. All the existing share
options under the Old DSBG Scheme shall be exercisable
upon vesting in 5 equal tranches between the first and fifth
anniversaries from the date of grant.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

i) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)

(6)  Minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised:

The minimum holding period is determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of
the Board of the Company, and is specified when related
options are granted. None of the existing share options
under the Old DSBG Scheme shall be exercisable within
one year from the date of grant.

(7) Amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls must
or may be made or loans for such purpose must be repaid:

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1
and must be made within 21 days upon offer of granting of
options or the date on which the conditions (if any) for the
offer are satisfied.

(8) Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per option share is concluded by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of
the Board of the Company on the basis no less exacting
than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing
Rules and is determined as no less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the
SEHK on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing
price of the Company’s shares traded on the SEHK for the
5 business days immediately preceding the date of grant.
For options granted before the commencement of the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) on 3 March 2014, the
nominal value of the shares of HK$1 each in the capital of
the Company had been taken into account in determining
the exercise price per option share. (The Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) adopts a mandatory system of no
nominal value for all Hong Kong incorporated companies
having a share capital and abolishes the concept of
nominal value for all shares. With effect from 3 March
2014, the shares of the Company have no nominal value.)
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

i) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)

(9) Remaining life of the DSBG Schemes:

The Old DSBG Scheme was terminated on 27 May 2014
and all outstanding share options granted under the Old
DSBG Scheme and yet to be exercised shall remain valid.
The New DSBG Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of 10 years commencing from 27 May 2014 and
expiring at the close of 26 May 2024.

No share options had been granted under the New DSBG
Scheme since the date of its adoption to 31 December 2016.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

i) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)

Pursuant to the Old DSBG Scheme, certain Directors of the
Company and its major operating subsidiaries were granted
options under the Old DSBG Scheme. Details of the movements
during the year ended, and the status as at, 31 December 2016
of the Company’s outstanding share options which have been
granted under the Old DSBG Scheme are as follows:

IREREZALARAEA
Number of the Company’s shares in the options

R2016E R2016%

1A1R  0168"  20165"  20165% 128318
20 R fff  2E/AN A @0 RiEA fiEge

Cancelled/
Held at Granted  Exercised lapsed Held at Exercise Grant  Exercise
ARA Grantee 11/2016" during 2016 during 2016  during 2016~ 31/12/2016 price date period®
(#r) (B/R/%) (B/R/%)
(HKS) (DY) (DY)
3 Directors

THE Harold Tsu-Hing Wong 2,907,927 - - - 2,907,927 891 121202011 121272012
121122017
1,038,545 - (623,127)% - 415,418 796 2114212012 2112/2013-
211212018
Ezhd Gary Pak-Ling Wang 2,700,218 - - - 2700218 891 121212011 121212012
121122017
934,691 - - - 934,691 796 211212012 2112/2013-
211212018
EffEEAEY  Aggregate of other employees ¥ 2,492,510 - - - 2492510 891 121212011 121272012
121122017
1,557,817 - (810,067)% - 747,750 796 2114212012 2112/2013-
211212018
249,251 - (62,313 - 186,938 1168 26/03/2014 26/03/2015-

26/03/2020
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(Continued)
Z) EARQXTREBEEZRREEE b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
TR#EFZRBRERER @ Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

] AR ELZERIR1BEZ] () i) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)
e Notes:

1)
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HFE o AATD 201445 A8 ARt AE
FAEMBELH AR -

FARBAMBITEEETE TREZR
EENERERRAE1EZESEBFSS
BB Al T LATTE -

REEDETETRERET  BERAE
RATELEMNBRAANES  SRTH
ABHEBAR  UAREBERBEIHT
EEEH ] TIEWEE -

HZE2016 412 31 BILFER » ARQF]
B D 75 B2 5 A B AR 1T B HA 2 AT A I
HURT{E A 14.2283 8T °

REEEE 2 EEFBRNTIEREM T
43

AR E]ZFER R EIAF 2 = F IR
R EIZ B EA &)

M

ii)

Adjusted as a result of the Rights Issue of the Company
completed in May 2014. The key summary of related adjustments
had been announced by the Company on 8 May 2014.

All the existing share options under the Old DSBG Scheme shall
be exercisable upon vesting in 5 equal tranches between the first
and fifth anniversaries from the date of grant.

Share options were granted to certain eligible employees, who
are directors, senior executives or officers of the major operating
subsidiaries of the Company and are working under employment
contracts that are regarded as “continuous contracts” for the
purposes of the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong.

The weighted average closing price of the shares of the Company
immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised
during the year ended 31 December 2016 was HK$14.2283.

Details of the computation of the value of options are shown in
Note 43 to the financial statements.

Share option schemes of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited, the holding company of the Company

AFEeREEERABA(TRFTSHD RN
2005F 4 A28 HER 4w R IRER &I (T K
NemmEE ) B2 R201554 A28 H E
Mo 201545 A27H RS RIRERA
BROER TR R & ([ RFT S st
g - RRFeRMETEEME - EEM
RREARBANERMETERLE - X
VemESEZEXR AT R ESEIE
WMAE R B ERERRDARITEZ 2R
BETEms - DA TREB O RERK -

The share option scheme of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (“DSFH”) adopted on 28 April 2005 (the “Old DSFH
Scheme”) had expired on 28 April 2015. On 27 May 2015, the
shareholders of DSFH approved the adoption of a new share
option scheme (the “New DSFH Scheme”). No further options
can be offered under the Old DSFH Scheme after its expiration
but the provisions of the Old DSFH Scheme remain in full force
and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to exercise of all
options granted prior to the expiration of the Old DSFH Scheme
but not yet exercised at the time of expiration.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

i) Share option schemes of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited, the holding company of the Company (Continued)

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, a
summary of the Old DSFH Scheme and the New DSFH Scheme
(collectively the “DSFH Schemes”) is disclosed as follows:

(1)  Purpose of the DSFH Schemes:

The purpose of the DSFH Schemes is to provide an
incentive and/or reward to grantees for their contribution
to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of,
DSFH group of companies.

(2) Participants of the DSFH Schemes:

Any director, manager, or other employee holding an
executive, managerial or supervisory position in DSFH
group of companies as the Board may in its sole discretion
determine to be eligible to participate in the DSFH
Schemes.

(3) Total number of shares available for issue under the DSFH
Schemes and percentage of total number of issued shares
as at the date of this Report of the Directors:

Following the expiration of the Old DSFH Scheme, no
further share options can be granted under the Old DSFH
Scheme.

The number of shares available for issue under the New
DSFH Scheme and any other schemes is 16,753,755
shares, representing 5% of the total number of issued
shares of DSFH as at the date of this Report of the
Directors.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

ii)

(4)

Share option schemes of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited, the holding company of the Company (Continued)

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the DSFH
Schemes:

No options may be granted to any eligible person which, if
exercised, would result in such eligible person becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of shares as, when
aggregated with the total number of shares already issued
or to be issued to him under all options granted to him in
the 12-month period up to and including the offer date of
relevant options, exceed 1% of the shares in issue at such
date. Any grant of further options above the limit shall be
subject to the provisions of the DSFH Schemes and the
Listing Rules as amended from time to time.

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option:

The exercise period is determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee on behalf of the Board of DSFH,
and is specified when related options are granted. Shares
under the options must be taken up within 10 years from
the date of grant. All the existing share options under the
Old DSFH Scheme shall be exercisable upon vesting in
5 equal tranches between the first and fifth anniversaries
from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised:

The minimum holding period is determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the
Board of DSFH, and is specified when related options are
granted. None of the existing share options under the Old
DSFH Scheme shall be exercisable within 1 year from the
date of grant.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

ii)

@)

Share option schemes of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited, the holding company of the Company (Continued)

Amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls must
or may be made or loans for such purpose must be repaid:

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1
and must be made within 21 days upon offer of granting of
options or the date on which the conditions (if any) for the
offer are satisfied.

Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per option share is concluded by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of
the Board of DSFH on the basis no less exacting than
the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing
Rules and is determined as no less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of DSFH’s shares traded on the SEHK
on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing price of
DSFH’s shares traded on the SEHK for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of grant. For options
granted before the commencement of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) on 3 March 2014, the nominal
value of the shares of HK$2 each in the capital of DSFH
had been taken into account in determining the exercise
price per option share. (The Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) adopts a mandatory system of no nominal value for
all Hong Kong incorporated companies having a share
capital and abolishes the concept of nominal value for
all shares. With effect from 3 March 2014, the shares of
DSFH have no nominal value.)

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

85



86

FRRRLE

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EERTHARERS @

) ERQATRMEBEIE ZARETEE
TR#EFZRBREER @

i)  ARE]ZERRFAAFTEHBEEEGIR
RALZ BRI &) (4

Q) ZERHEEEEEHAERS

A& RETEIN2015F4 A28 A)E
W TERBANERETEIREM
B ARITE 2 R ARERR - K&
AETstElR 20159 5 A 27 BH#ERF10
FRER - £2025F5F268EmMm °

R RAAEERMBLE20165F 127
318 - WEEARIAEREAN S B
R -

BREBEAMEBETE  ARARRAH S/
ITELENBRARNE TESFRER TN
EREFS T ZRBE - EXHERES
B TRIBEMARITR Z BREEE 2016 F
12AB1BIFFERZ BB RFELEHRZF
BT

ARFRITEBEFR AR 20165555

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

i) Share option schemes of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited, the holding company of the Company (Continued)

(9) Remaining life of the DSFH Schemes:

The Old DSFH Scheme had expired on 28 April 2015
and all outstanding share options granted under the Old
DSFH Scheme and yet to be exercised shall remain valid.
The New DSFH Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing from 27 May 2015 and
expiring at the close of 26 May 2025.

No share options had been granted under the New DSFH
Scheme since the date of its adoption to 31 December 2016.

Pursuant to the Old DSFH Scheme, certain directors of the
Company and DSFH’s major operating subsidiaries were
granted options under the Old DSFH Scheme. Details of the
movements during the year ended, and the status as at, 31
December 2016 of the DSFH’s outstanding share options which
have been granted under the Old DSFH Scheme are as follows:
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(Continued)

Z) EARQATIRMEBEEE2ARESTEE b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
T 2RREER @ Company and its associated corporation (Continued)
i) ARELZIERN AT HEEEFR i)  Share option schemes of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
WA AR AR & (%) Limited, the holding company of the Company (Continued)
AREREZ AT ERRALA
Number of DSFH shares in the options
R2016E R2016%
1R1H M6/ 201684  20168" 12531 A
5g0 b i HE/5N 58 @y RitA frEge
Cancelled/
Held at Granted  Exercised lapsed Held at Exercise Grant  Exercise
ARA Grantee 11/2016" during 2016 during 2016  during 2016 31/12/2016 price date period®
(®m) (B/B/%) (B/A/%)
HKS)  OMY) M)
£ Director
THE Harold Tsu-Hing Wong 260,767 - - - 260,767 3835 12/122011 12/12/2012 -
1212/2017
156,460 - - - 156,460 3188 21/12/2012  21/12/2013 -
2111212018
Hfpe Others® 260,767 - - - 260,767 3835 121122011 1211212012 -
1212/2017
156,460 - - - 156,460 3188 21/1212012 211212013 -
21/112/2018
i Notes:
(1)  BRHFLFHN2014F 4 AT 2 R MmIE (1) Adjusted as a result of the Rights Issue of DSFH completed in

R - KFEREN2014F4 52985t
TR E L A -

FAERBERHERE B TR T ZARA
ZRBEHERFE B REAFE1EEESEBF
7S UL TR A T IATTEE ©

REEDETETANERAEMBAR
MET  RELARFERIBLEMBA
ANEE  SRATHRABLERAR X
REBRMBEOT EEAH] TENE

8o

RIREEE 2 B EF BRI R T
43 -

April 2014. The key summary of related adjustments had been
announced by DSFH on 29 April 2014.

All the existing share options under the Old DSFH Scheme shall
be exercisable upon vesting in 5 equal tranches between the first
and fifth anniversaries from the date of grant.

Share options were granted to certain employees of DSFH or
its subsidiaries, who are directors, senior executives or officers
of the major operating subsidiaries of DSFH and are working
under employment contracts that are regarded as “continuous
contracts” for the purposes of the Employment Ordinance of
Hong Kong.

Details of the computation of the value of options are shown in
Note 43 to the financial statements.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

All the interests stated above represent long position. As at 31
December 2016, none of the Directors of the Company held any short
positions as defined under the SFO which are required to be recorded
in the register of directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
Directors or Chief Executive of the Company and their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the SEHK pursuant to the Securities Model Code.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed
above, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE COMPANY’S
BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company, its subsidiaries
or its holding company was a party and in which a Director of the
Company or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As of 31 December 2016, the following are the persons, other than
the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company whose interests are
disclosed above, who had interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of

shareholders’ interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO or otherwise known to the

Company.

HEBRITROAEHZ
BRI
Percentage of

FERDEE interests in the
[ &1 Number of total number
Shareholder Capacity shares held of issued shares®
ITBEE FAHEBEEATRERER

Christine Yen Wong

ARG REEFRAR
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited

ELBREEERAR
HSBC International Trustee Limited

it

MG AR
Deemed interest by virtue of her
spouse having a notifiable interest

EniEn
Beneficial interest

EREAREEES

Trustee and corporate interest

Notes:

1,045,626,955"

1,045,461,643

1,045,461,643%

74.50

74.49

74.49

WEROBIRESREFRHA 2R TRA
EBETEDATERZ TEZRRBEARAFN
R EROEE s N E TR BB EEROLE
FAEAARERD - TEESEILARERGER
Bz rEmmERRE - WERRBETER b
[BEERTREEER | REPMEFERARE
A

WERNHBREZERETERAR(DERZE
AEDERRETERAERBANEMKL 2 2EE
REZFEAF DEZARN EBEAR R B E
BMEFE B ETARBERERARBELR
BIMERR M ME L EE - RO ER L [E
ERITHRAEER | BRI TR DEEER ] —
HAPRE o

B TR R AT B 2w B o L IR A A A
H2016 F 12 31 A2 B#TRHAETE -

Q]

Such shares represented the deemed share interest of Christine Yen
Wong by virtue of her spouse, David Shou-Yeh Wong being a substantial
shareholder of DSFH which held a controlling corporate interest in the
relevant share capital of the Company and interest in the Company held
through a company in which David Shou-Yeh Wong has a controlling
interest. Christine Yen Wong is taken to have a duty of disclosure
in respect of the deemed interest in the Company. These interests
comprise the same interest of David Shou-Yeh Wong under the heading
of “Interests of Directors and Chief Executive” above.

Such shares represent DSFH’s corporate interest in the Company
indirectly held by HSBC International Trustee Limited (“HSBCIT”) in
trust for a discretionary trust established for the benefit of David Shou-
Yeh Wong and his family members. HSBCIT is taken to have a duty of
disclosure in relation to the relevant shares of the Company held through
its controlled companies. Related shares have been included in the
“Corporate interests” of David Shou-Yeh Wong as disclosed under the
heading of “Interests of Directors and Chief Executive” above.

Percentage of interests held by each named shareholder was calculated

with reference to the total number of issued shares of the Company as
at 31 December 2016.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS (Continued)

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31
December 2016, no short positions were recorded in the register of
shareholders’ interests in shares and short positions maintained by
the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director
and officer shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities (to the fullest extent permitted
by the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)) which he/she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors
and officers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or any
of its subsidiaries, of the listed securities of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2016.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2016,
calculated under sections 291, 297 and 299 of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), amounted to HK$11,753,000 (2015:
HK$9,982,000).

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions with related parties of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016 have been set out in Note 42 to the financial
statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The published results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last 5 years are included in the section headed “Financial Summary”
of this Annual Report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group derived less
than 30% of interest income and other operating income from its 5
largest customers.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RULES GOVERNING THE
LISTING OF SECURITIES ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED

The accompanying financial statements comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Company has not changed its auditors in the
preceding 3 years.

On behalf of the Board
David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2017
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The names of the directors who have served on the boards of the

subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2016 and up to 22 March 2017, being the date of the Report of the
Directors of Company for the year, are set out below:

(in alphabetical order)

Eric Edmund BARNETT

CHAN Seng-Lee

CHAN Sou-Chao (Kenneth CHAN)
CHAN Wai-Kin Cliff

CHENG Yu-Chung (Patrick CHENG)
CHIU Yuk-Fai Alick

Lon DOUNN

KONG Yiu-Fai (Eddie KONG)
LAU Shing-Tat Eddie

LEUNG Kwan-Yuen Andrew

LI Hau-Tak (Gary LlI)

Nicholas John MAYHEW

NG Yuen-Tin

Richard Alexander OLLIVER
POON Clement

POON Kwok-Fai *

POON Wing-Fai Jimmy

SZE Tsai-To Robert

TO King-Yan Adam *

TSANG Yuk-Fong Elly *

WANG Pak-Ling Gary

WONG Hon-Hing (Derek WONG)
WONG Mei-Chun Phoebe
WONG Shou-Yeh David

WONG Tsu-Hing Harold
WOOCO NOMINEES LIMITED *
YAU Ho-Wing Vincent

YUEN Yat-To (Henry YUEN)

*

Those who have resigned/ceased as a Director of the relevant
subsidiary(ies) of the Company.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HZE2016F 12 A 31 H LLFZ For the year ended 31 December 2016
(LA T 74157~ ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

L
Note 2016 2015
FEHBA Interest income 5,183,824 5,053,393
FEZH Interest expense (1,546,305) (1,716,705)
FR B A Net interest income 7 3,637,519 3,336,688
R & kA WA Fee and commission income 1,064,411 1,129,685
AR5 E RASZH Fee and commission expense (228,494) (220,048)
FIREERASBA Net fee and commission income 8 835,917 909,637
FEERA Net trading income 9 179,831 278,058
Hin&E A Other operating income 10 67,202 62,559
EEIA Operating income 4,720,469 4,586,942
B Operating expenses 11 (2,399,445) (2,239,658)
NBRBE IR A 2 & EEF Operating profit before impairment losses 2,321,024 2,347,284
EFRESEREMEERE Loan impairment losses and
other credit provisions 14 (563,567) (496,352)
HNBRETREREEEE 2 W Operating profit before gains and losses
EEER 2 EERF on certain investments and fixed assets 1,757,457 1,850,932
& E M E T B E 2 FEE Net loss on disposal of other fixed assets (306) (1,434)
WEYF A TERAR 2F W Net gain on fair value adjustment of
investment properties 13,462 2,323
& Al B 58 5 2 F W as Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
securities 54,502 16,568
RELEH =S A RIRE 2 EBE Loss on deemed disposal of investment
in an associate = (47,617)
i NG e Share of results of an associate 602,793 665,942
JEAG R T B S 2 4 Share of results of jointly controlled entities 18,593 21,945
BRBE RIS F Profit before taxation 2,446,501 2,508,659
1| Taxation 15 (301,043) (308,087)
FERR Profit for the year 2,145,458 2,200,572
SEEATS Attributable to:
IR AR R Non-controlling interests (33) (32)
AN EREER Shareholders of the Company 2,145,491 2,200,604
FERR Profit for the year 2,145,458 2,200,572
BRER Earnings per share
=Y\ Basic 17 HK$1.53 HK$1.57
e Diluted 17 HK$1.53 HK$1.56

FOREF 27T AZMEDN NG RMEIHR 2 —

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

#Z=2016 4 12 A 31 H L4 Z For the year ended 31 December 2016
(LAB® T LA517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2016 2015
FERA Profit for the year 2,145,458 2,200,572
FEHM2E KRGS Other comprehensive income for the year
HETeEHmsHERE ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to the
IsBRMIER ¢ consolidated income statement:
11E Premises
REEFOBRTERKREME Reserves arising from reclassification of
- premises to investment properties 29,927 1,393
e EMN EERE ltems that may be reclassified to the
WarBRmIER ¢ consolidated income statement:
BHIRE Investments in securities
RN ER 2 I HEHEERES Fair value gains on available-for-sale
N EYE securities recognised in equity 317,719 59,093
A ERGEIE REBEWREME © Fair value gain realised and
transferred to income statement upon:
—HERHHEEH - Disposal of available-for-sale securities (54,502) (16,568)
RESHFEEE RERIE Deferred income tax on movements
in investment revaluation reserve (47,455) 6,063
215,762 48,588
BERIMEREI S RRMNEN EZE  Exchange differences arising on translation
of the financial statements of foreign entities (361,896) (209,767)
MRBIAR 2 FEH M 2 EEE Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (116,207) (159,786)
HRHBER2FEEEKEEARE Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2,029,251 2,040,786
SBELAAT ¢ Attributable to:
YRR IR AR R Non-controlling interests (33) (32)
ViN/NG] o Shareholders of the Company 2,029,284 2,040,818
NBRBHEE 2 FEEEKREAE Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2,029,251 2,040,786
FIIBEF 27T B2 WFHTIARGREMBERE 2 — The notes on pages 99 to 277 are an integral part of these
5 o consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2016 12 A 31 H As at 31 December 2016
(LA T 7415178 ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BaE
Note 2016 2015
BE ASSETS
RE RERITH 5 Cash and balances with banks 18 15,058,787 17,505,906
ERIT1 £ 1218 A AR HgFR Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months 8,430,854 7,497,860
FHIEEBEREMNES Trading securities 19 8,871,844 8,572,394
BENAFEFZBEEZEA Financial assets designated
BalmemEE at fair value through profit or loss 19 279,056 217,796
PTESmIA Derivative financial instruments 20 1,177,322 1,079,328
FHEERRHARE Advances and other accounts 21 120,096,205 118,421,345
Al N E Available-for-sale securities 22 32,739,236 24,199,788
FEHE S Held-to-maturity securities 23 10,223,840 10,476,296
B N RIRE Investment in an associate 24 4,253,393 4,099,217
HEEHE R E Investments in jointly controlled entities 25 75,412 71,119
pgeR Goodwill 27 811,690 811,690
| EE Intangible assets 27 58,640 59,805
1TERHAEEEE Premises and other fixed assets 28 2,098,846 1,941,866
wEMZE Investment properties 29 964,447 991,376
BNEATH IR & 2= Current income tax assets 2,791 2,680
B IEE = Deferred income tax assets 35 68,286 83,473
BEAGT Total assets 205,210,649 196,031,939
aE LIABILITIES
RITIER Deposits from banks 2,318,203 1,550,911
PTEERIA Derivative financial instruments 20 1,343,418 1,458,432
HIEEERZNEBE Trading liabilities 31 7,748,887 6,270,630
HEER Deposits from customers 32 153,862,973 150,847,903
B BT RE Certificates of deposit issued 33 6,559,976 6,231,837
BIEE Subordinated notes 34 7,146,163 5,319,894
HMER B kAR Other accounts and accruals 2,972,623 2,620,814
BNEAFi IR B & Current income tax liabilities 160,096 201,978
EXERIBEE Deferred income tax liabilities 35 91,741 46,556
BES5 Total liabilities 182,204,080 174,548,955
= EQUITY
R PRI RE AR R Non-controlling interests 15,351 15,384
RN TR R IE( Equity attributable to the
Company’s shareholders
f&Zs Share capital 38 6,869,593 6,853,504
HEhEE (BIERBEF) Other reserves
(including retained earnings) 39 16,121,625 14,614,096
BRES Shareholders’ funds 22,991,218 21,467,600
e Total equity 23,006,569 21,482,984
EnkEEE Total equity and liabilities 205,210,649 196,031,939
EZEM2017F3 A 22 A& RIRFEREM - Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22
March 2017.
EFE FHE David Shou-Yeh Wong Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
EF EHEa Director Managing Director

SE99 B EE 277 A M RNER A MR Z —

By e

The notes on pages 99 to 277 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

#Z=2016 4 12 A 31 H L4 Z For the year ended 31 December 2016
(LAB® T LA517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

AR RRREGER
Attributable to the shareholders
of the Company
RIEHIRE
IR R
[N Hitif# REEF Non- EREE
Share Other Retained  controlling Total
capital reserves earnings interests equity
20161 A1 B4R Balance at 1 January 2016 6,853,504 1,018,216 13,595,880 15,384 21,482,984
FEmF Profit for the year - - 2,145,491 (33) 2,145,458
FEAEMZEKE Other comprehensive income
for the year - (116,207) - - (116,207)
RERBRERTZ Issue of ordinary shares
TR pursuant to exercise of
share options 16,089 (3,953) - - 12,136
VARRHE 2 1~ PARR 17 1 75 Provision for equity-settled
ERERI 2 B share-based compensation - 1,101 = = 1,101
2015 FRARR S 2015 final dividend - - (378,577) - (378,577)
2016 FHHIR S 2016 interim dividend - - (140,326) - (140,326)
2016 F12 A 31 H& &R Balance at 31 December 2016 6,869,593 899,157 15,222,468 15,351 23,006,569

RITRITEBER AT 20165 F 55



n\/T\ 1;_"_\ P %bi%

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

#HZE 20164 12 A 31 HIEFE (4) For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Continued)
(LA T 74157~ ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

KA EIRR (G =
Attributable to the shareholders

of the Company
R TIRE
(i
b Hfth e 5 RE B A Non- ERAE
Share Other Retained  controlling Total
capital reserves earnings interests equity
201561 A1 B&# Balance at 1 January 2015 6,850,354 1,176,810 11,913,989 15,416 19,956,569
FEmF Profit for the year - - 2,200,604 (32) 2,200,572
FEAEMZEKE Other comprehensive income
for the year - (159,786) - - (159,786)
RERBRERTZ Issue of ordinary shares
TR AR pursuant to exercise of
share options 3,150 (769) - - 2,381
VARRHE 2 1~ PARR 19 1 75 Provision for equity-settled
LSRN 2 B share-based compensation - 1,961 - - 1,961
2014 SEREIR S 2014 final dividend - - (364,496) - (364,496)
2015 FHHIR S 2015 interim dividend - - (154,217) - (154,217)
20154 12 A 31 B4 Balance at 31 December 2015 6,853,504 1,018,216 13,595,880 15,384 21,482,984
FI9EEFE 277 B2 M ARG sk 2 — The notes on pages 99 to 277 are an integral part of these
5 o consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#HZ=2016F 12 A 31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2016
(LAB® T LA517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

L

Note 2016 2015
RETFH2HERE Cash flows from operating activities
LR R AR 5 Net cash from operating activities 40(a) 1,696,992 2,484,441
RETBHZHRERE Cash flows from investing activities
BETE REMER Purchase of premises, investment

HAbEE & E properties and other fixed assets (257,474) (493,199)
HETE "HEMZE Proceeds from disposal of premises,

REMEEEESERIA investment properties and other fixed assets 138 23
KA BB AT E R Net cash used in investing activities (257,336) (493,176)
MEZEZRESRE Cash flows from financing activities
BT BRI, Issue of ordinary shares

(BIRREEITRMHER) (net of share issue expenses) 12,135 2,381
BITRERER Issue of subordinated notes 1,929,703 =
XN BBETREGR RER Interest paid on subordinated notes and

é%‘%'%Zﬂ = debt securities issued (277,626) (278,573)
3 R AR AR B Dividends paid on ordinary shares (518,903) (518,713)
BMEEBRA (FTH)EEFE Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 1,145,309 (794,905)
ReERERRLEREMFLE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,584,965 1,196,360
FHRERERREIER Cash and cash equivalents

at beginning of the year 17,150,328 16,081,441
[EREE 2 o8& Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (113,207) (127,473)
FERESRERELER Cash and cash equivalents

at end of the year 40(b) 19,622,086 17,150,328
FIOEEF 277 B2 IR E M HRE 2 — The notes on pages 99 to 277 are an integral part of these
25 o consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7A7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) provide banking, financial and other related
services in Hong Kong, Macau, and the People’s Republic of China.

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is 36th Floor, Dah Sing
Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The holding company is Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited, a listed
company in Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by
the Board of Directors on 22 March 2017.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the reporting years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap.622.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITA57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties, available-for-sale financial assets, financial
assets and financial liabilities held for trading, and financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) designated at fair
value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in applying the
Group’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have
a significant impact on the financial statements in the period the
assumptions changed. Management believes that the underlying
assumptions are appropriate and that the Group’s financial
statements therefore present the financial position and results fairly.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(@ New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following amendments to standards have been adopted by
the Group for the first time for the financial year beginning on or
after 1 January 2016:

° Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and

amortisation - Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38;

° Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 cycle; and

o Disclosure initiative — amendments to HKAS 1.

The adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on
the current period or any prior period and is not likely to affect
future periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1

(LA T 7A7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after
1 January 2016, and have not been early adopted in preparing
these consolidated financial statements. None of these is
expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except for the following
standards:

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”

The new standard addresses the classification, measurement
and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities,
introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new
impairment model for financial assets.

The Group is still undertaking a detailed assessment of the
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities. The derecognition rules have been transferred
from HKAS 39, “Financial instruments: recognition and
measurement” and have not been changed.

The new hedge accounting rules will align the accounting
for hedging instruments more closely with the Group’s
risk management practices. As a general rule, more hedge
relationships might be eligible for hedge accounting, as the
standard introduces a more principles-based approach. While
the Group is yet to undertake a detailed assessment, it would
appear that the Group’s current hedge relationships would
qualify as continuing hedges upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.
Accordingly, the Group does not expect a significant impact on
the accounting for its hedging relationships.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7TA57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments” (Continued)

The new impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on expected credit losses
rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case under
HKAS 39. It applies to financial assets classified at amortised
cost, debt instruments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income, contract assets under HKFRS 15,
“Revenue from contracts with customers”, lease receivables,
loan commitments and certain financial guarantee contracts.
The Group is assessing how its impairment provisions would be
affected by this new standard.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These are expected
to change the nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures
about its financial instruments particularly in the year of the
adoption of the new standard.

HKFRS 9 must be applied for financial years commencing on
or after 1 January 2018. Based on the transitional provisions
in the completed HKFRS 9, early adoption by phases was
only permitted for annual reporting periods beginning before 1
February 2015. After that date, the new rules must be adopted
in their entirety. The Group does not intend to adopt HKFRS 9
before its mandatory date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1

(LAY T 7A7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with customers”

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the recognition of
revenue. This will replace HKAS 18 which covers contracts for
goods and services and HKAS 11 which covers construction
contracts. The new standard is based on the principle that
revenue is recognised when control of a good or service
transfers to a customer. The standard permits either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach for the
adoption.

Management is currently assessing the effects of applying the
new standard on the Group’s financial statements and has
identified the following areas that are likely to be affected:

° revenue from service — the application of HKFRS 15
may result in the identification of separate performance
obligations which could affect the timing of the
recognition of revenue,

o accounting for certain costs incurred in fulfilling a contract
— certain costs which are currently expensed may need to
be recognised as an asset under HKFRS 15, and

° rights of return under HKFRS 15 requires separate
presentation on the balance sheet of the right to recover
the goods from the customer and the refund obligation.

At this stage, the Group has not yet completed the estimate of
the impact of the new rules on the Group’s financial statements.
The Group will make more detailed assessments of the impact
over the next twelve months.

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years commencing on or

after 1 January 2018. At this stage, the Group does not intend
to adopt the standard before its effective date.
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(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

HKFRS 16, “Leases”

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being recognised on
the balance sheet, as the distinction between operating and
finance leases is removed. Under the new standard, an asset
(the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay
rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are short-term and
low-value leases. Some of the commitments may be covered
by the exception for short-term and low value leases and some
commitments may relate to arrangements that will not qualify as
leases under HKFRS 16.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for Group’s
operating leases. The Group has not yet determined to what
extent non-cancellable operating lease commitments will result
in the recognition of an asset and a liability for future payments
and how this will affect the Group’s profit and classification of
cash flows.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years commencing
on or after 1 January 2019. At this stage, the Group does not
intend to adopt the standard before its effective date.

There are no other HKFRSs or interpretations that are not yet
effective that would be expected to have a material impact on
the Group.
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(LABHE T 7TA7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. FESTHEHRBEw 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 HREMKBRE 2.2 Consolidation
REMBHREREEARRREMEHRBARES The consolidated financial statements include the financial
12 A 31 B 1L 2 B8k » statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
December.
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(@)  Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the statement
of comprehensive income.
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2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
(@)  Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

(b)  Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity holders of the Company. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting and
are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in an
associate includes goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment

loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to “share of results of an associate” in the

income statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
(c)  Associates (Continued)

Dilution gains and losses in associate are recognised in the
income statement.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investments
in associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

(d)  Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity, which is
subject to joint control and none of the participating parties has
unilateral control over the economic activity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using equity method of accounting. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share
of the results of jointly controlled entities for the year, and
the consolidated statement of financial position includes the
Group’s share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABHE T 7TA7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all instruments measured at amortised cost, available-for-sale
securities and certain financial assets/liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit
losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

2.4 Fee and commission income and expense

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Loan syndication fees are
recognised as revenue when the syndication has been completed and
the Group retained no part of the loan package for itself or retained
a part at the same effective interest rate as the other participants.
Wealth management, financial planning and custody services that are
continuously provided over an extended period of time are recognised
rateably over the period the service is provided.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in the income statement when the Group’s
right to receive payment is established.

2.6 Financial assets
2.6.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition, except for
subsequent reclassification meeting specified definition of relevant
asset reclassification.

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
at inception.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so
designated by management. Derivatives are also categorised as
held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.

The Group designates a financial asset upon initial recognition
as designated at fair value through profit or loss (fair value
option) if the following criteria are met:

(i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases;

(i) A group of financial assets is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy, and
this is the basis on which information about the assets is
provided internally to the key management personnel such
as the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer; or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.6

2.6.1

(LABHE T 7TA7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Classification (Continued)

(@ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

(iii)  Financial assets with embedded derivatives where the
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are
not closely related to the host contracts.

Financial assets for which the fair value option is applied are
recognised in the statement of financial position as “Financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss”.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market, other than: (a) those that the Group intends to sell
immediately or in the short term, which are classified as held
for trading, and those that the Group upon initial recognition
designates as at fair value through profit or loss; (b) those that
the Group upon initial recognition designates as available-
for-sale; or (c) those for which the Group may not recover
substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of
credit deterioration.

(c) Auvailable-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. Available-for-sale investments are those
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may
be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest
rates, exchange rates or equity prices.

(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)
2.6.2 Reclassification

The Group may choose to reclassify a non-derivative trading financial
asset out of the held-for-trading category if the financial asset is no
longer held for the purpose of selling it in the near term. Financial
assets are permitted to be reclassified out of the held-for-trading
category only in rare circumstances arising from a single event that
is unusual and highly unlikely to recur in the near term. In addition,
the Group may choose to reclassify financial assets that would meet
the definition of loans and receivables out of the held-for-trading
or available-for-sale categories if the Group has the intention and
ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable future or until
maturity at the date of reclassification. The Group may also reclassify
financial assets that no longer qualify for recognition as loans and
receivables to available-for-sale if the financial assets become quoted
in active market.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date.
Fair value becomes the new cost or amortised cost as applicable, and
no reversals of fair value gains or losses before reclassification date
are subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial assets
reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-maturity categories
are determined at the reclassification date. Further increases
in estimates of cash flows from the financial assets will require
adjustment to the effective interest rates prospectively.

On reclassification of a financial asset out of the “at fair value through
profit or loss” category, all embedded derivatives are re-assessed
and, if necessary, separately accounted for.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)
2.6.3 Recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed
in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The bases for the determination of fair value of financial assets are set
out in Note 3.5(a).

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated at fair
value at inception are included directly in the income statement
and are reported as part of “Net trading income”. Interest
income and expense derived from and incurred on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are included under “Net
interest income” in the income statement.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost less any
impairment loss. For loans and receivables that are subject
to fair value hedge arrangements, the hedged elements of the
loans and receivables hedged are carried at fair value.
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2.6

2.6.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Recognition and measurement (Continued)
(c) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at
fair value which is the cash given including any transaction
costs. They are measured subsequently at fair value with
gains and losses (except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary assets classified
as available-for-sale) recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity until the financial assets
are derecognised. Upon derecognition, the gains and losses
previously recognised in equity are reclassified into the income
statement.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
equity is reclassified into the income statement.

Interest is calculated using the effective interest method and
recognised in the income statement. Foreign currency gains and
losses on monetary assets classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in the income statement. Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in the income statement
under “Other operating income” when the Group’s right to
receive payment is established.

(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognised at fair
value including direct and incremental transaction costs and are
measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. They are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows have expired.

Interest is included in the income statement and is reported
as “Net interest income”. If a held-to-maturity investment
is determined to be impaired, the impairment is reported as
a deduction from the carrying value of the investment and
recognised in the income statement as impairment charge on
held-to-maturity investments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.7

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset

or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is

objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

o Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or
interest;

° Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (for
example, high debt-to-equity ratio, low net income as a
percentage of sales);

° Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

o Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position;
° Deterioration in the value of collateral; and

o Downgrading below investment grade level.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes that asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to
be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

115



116

B H5 Rk B et

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITA57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.7

FTESHTEEME @

SREERE @
(FF) LABerpl A5k 2 B2 (4)

BIENSEANEENREERZERME
ERROERMEBAET ZARARBESR
EMTEEREENAREERR) MEK
REMERZZRNE - EENRHEES
BEREARER - BREEANN R
MR - WERKFER MR ERTZEBF
R e AAEEMBREBERIMAXNS
ENTEENRHERANE - ERAITZ
BEZF  AREAZXTAAMEREE
ZHER/AHEZERTEERIE

AEAERZEREENRAARREDR
ENRERRKEERRAEELNRES
MERR L EERR (T RERRIE AT
BOLW) IR AS o

ETRERERGE  SREERBEE
ERRFENEEZEEEESER £
miRR - BERMIER R EMAERE) S
B AR ZFERNEENARARRERE
ME @ EARREBAREERFGEE
MEeNGEREEEHEREINFERS

WERE °

—HEARETRENGNEREEN KK
RenBNRZMAEENGHRSRER
HZHEEANREEERRFEENEEL
BEBRKRAE - BEBBRLRIRE
B ROBURERHE  UARRRAM
W BRORBRTA B 1E B 3R BRI 7
ENRE2ZE

RIBITEBER AT 20165 F 35

2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. If
a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable

market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and
selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics (i.e. on the basis of the Group’s grading process
that considers asset type, collateral type, overdue status and
other relevant factors). Those characteristics relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by
being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the assets are considered.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group
and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data
to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the
period on which the historical loss experience is based and to
remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do
not currently exist.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.7

(LAY T 7A1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period (for example,
changes in unemployment rates, property prices, payment
status, or other factors indicative of changes in the probability of
losses in the group and their magnitude). The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related
allowances for loan impairment. Such loans are written off
after all the necessary procedures have been completed and
the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the
amount of the allowances for loan impairment in the income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in

the income statement.
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2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(b)  Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered in determining whether the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the income
statement, is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the
income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of
a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

(c) Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment
assessment or individually significant and whose terms have
been renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due but
are treated as new loans. In subsequent periods, the asset if
past due again is considered to be and disclosed as past due
loans.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial

liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at inception and

recognised initially at fair value and are derecognised when the

obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires. The bases for the

determination of fair value of financial liabilities are set out in Note

3.5(a).

@

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial liabilities held

for trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or

loss at inception.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred

principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It

is carried at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in

fair value are recognised in the income statement.

A financial liability is typically classified as fair value through

profit or loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring liabilities or recognising the gains and losses
on them on different bases; or

A group of financial liabilities is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about the liabilities is provided internally to
the key management personnel such as the Board of
Directors and Chief Executive Officer; or

Financial liabilities with embedded derivatives where the
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are
not closely related to the host contracts.
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2.8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

(@) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
include the Group’s own debt securities in issue and deposits
received from customers that are embedded with certain
derivatives. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss are carried at fair value and any gains and losses
from changes in fair value are recognised under “Net trading
income” in the income statement.

(b)  Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
net of transaction costs incurred and are subsequently carried
at amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the other financial liabilities
using the effective interest method.

If the Group purchases its own debt, it is removed from the statement

of financial position, and the difference between the carrying amount

of a liability and the consideration paid is accounted for as a gain or

loss in the income statement.

289

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on

which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-

measured at their fair value. The bases for the determination of fair

value of derivative financial instruments are set out in Note 3.5(a). All

derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as

liabilities when fair value is negative.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

(Continued)

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, such
as the conversion option in a convertible bond where it is not settled
by exchanging a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of own equity instrument, are treated as separate
derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract
is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement unless the Group chooses to
designate the hybrid contracts at fair value through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value
of recognised assets or liabilities. Hedge accounting is used for
derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well
as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment,
both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective
in offsetting changes in fair values of hedged items.

(@)  Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income
statement under “Net trading income — Net gain/loss arising
from financial instruments subject to fair value hedge”, together
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset that are
attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for
which the effective interest method is used is amortised to
profit or loss over the period to maturity and remains in retained
earnings until the disposal of the hedged item.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

(Continued)
(b)  Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised immediately in the income statement under
“Net trading income”. For derivatives that are managed in
conjunction with designated financial assets or financial
liabilities, the gains and losses arising from changes in their
fair value are included under “Net trading income — Net gain/
loss arising from financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss”.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

2.11 Sale and repurchase agreements

The liability to counterparties in respect of securities sold subject
to repurchase agreements (“repos”) is included in amounts due to
other banks, deposits from banks, or other accounts and accruals,
as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell
(“reverse repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks
or customers, as appropriate. The difference between the sale and
repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of
the agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent to

counterparties are also retained in the financial statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements,
unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the purchases and
sales are recorded with the gain or loss included in trading income.
The obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a trading
liability.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are not
derecognised and are carried in the statement of financial position
with appropriate amounts of impairment allowances made. In the case
of delinquent loans on which collateral assets have been foreclosed
and repossessed by the Group pursuant to legal arrangements or
court orders, and with the legal title of the assets having been passed
to the Group, such loans are derecognised. The foreclosed assets
held for resale are included in “Advances and other accounts — Other
assets”.

2.13 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
chief operating decision maker is the person or group of persons that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating
segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive
and members of the Executive Committee (“EC”) as its chief operating
decision maker.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on
an arm’s length basis, with inter-segment revenues and costs
being eliminated on consolidation. Income and expenses directly
associated with each segment are included in determining operating
segment performance.

Based on the requirements of HKFRS 8, the Group has the following
segments: Personal Banking, Commercial Banking, Treasury,
Overseas Banking and Others.

2.14 Foreign currency translation
(@  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK dollars, which is the Group’s presentation
currency and the functional and presentation currency of the
Company and major part of the Group.
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2. FEESHEHBE@m) 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 INEEHBRE ()

2.14 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
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(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the relevant entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in the income
statement are presented net in the income statement within
the corresponding item. Foreign exchange gains and losses
on other comprehensive income items are presented in the
statement of comprehensive income within the corresponding
item.

In the case of changes in the fair value of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets classified as available-for-sale,
a distinction is made between translation differences resulting
from changes in amortised cost of the assets and other changes
in the carrying amount of the assets. Translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the
income statement, and those related to changes in the carrying
amount, except for impairment, are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
investments in equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on certain other non-monetary items,
such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets,
are included in the fair value reserve in equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2. TESTHERMSE@m 2.
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2.14 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
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(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;

(i)  income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the above processes are
reported in shareholders’ equity under “Exchange reserve”.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income statement
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of

a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Premises and other fixed assets

Premises comprise mainly offices and shops. Leasehold land
classified as finance lease and all other fixed assets are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its
intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:
- Premises Over the shorter of 50 years or
remaining period of lease
- Furniture, fittings, equipment ~ Over the estimated useful lives
and motor vehicles generally between 3 and 10

years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.18).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the
consolidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in
accordance with the guidance issued by the International Valuation
Standards Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by
external valuers. Investment property that is being redeveloped for
continuing use as investment property, or for which the market has
become less active, continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Investment properties (Continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and other fixed assets, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of premises and other fixed assets becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the
date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of premises
and other fixed assets under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
income statement.

2.17 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination on which the goodwill arose.

Intangible assets arising from an acquisition are recognised
separately from goodwill when they are separable or arise from
contractual or other legal rights, and their value can be measured
reliably. They include core deposits, contracts and customer
relationships intangible assets, and trade names. Intangible assets
are stated at cost less amortisation, and/or accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated based on estimated useful life
ranging from 5 to 12 years using a diminishing balance method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS®EF AL/~ ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicated that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels (cash-generating units) for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Company’s financial statements, impairment testing of the
investment in a subsidiary or an associate is also required upon
receiving dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the
Company’s share of the total comprehensive income of that entity
concerned in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of that entity in the Company’s statement of financial position
exceeds the Company’s share of the carrying amount of that entity’s
net assets including goodwill in its consolidated statement of financial
position.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
In such case, the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income
within the corresponding item.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
and that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effects of income tax
losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
these losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax related to investment properties is measured
according to the tax consequence on the presumption that they are
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-
for-sale investments, which is charged or credited directly to equity,
is also credited or charged directly to equity and is subsequently
recognised in the income statement upon the realisation of relevant
investments.

2.20 Employee benefits
(@) Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. These
pension plans are funded by payments from employees and by
the relevant Group companies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(@)  Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
schemes and defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred. Other than mandatory provident fund
contribution, the Group’s contributions may be reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.

(b)  Share-based compensation

The Group has the choice to pay the intrinsic value of the share
option or to issue new shares to a grantee at the date of exercise
under the share-based compensation plans. The total amount to
be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value according to settlement type.

For cash-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
the fair value of the options granted, with re-measurement at
each reporting period with any change in the cost recognised
in the income statement, with a corresponding credit or
adjustment to the “Liabilities”.

For equity-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
measured and recognised based on the fair value of the equity
options at the grant date, with a corresponding credit to the
“Shared-based compensation reserve” in the shareholders’
funds. The total cost, which is fixed based on the fair value at
the grant date, is charged to income statement in accordance
with the terms of the vesting of the options over time. When
the options are exercised, the Company will issue new shares
to settle its obligation, and transfer applicable amount from the
“Share-based compensation reserve” to the “Share capital”
account.

(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)
(d) Bonus plans

Liabilities for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period are recognised when the Group
has a present or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised
when: the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

2.22 Leases
(@) Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Where the Group is a lessor under operating leases, assets
leased out are included in fixed assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position. They are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on a basis consistent with similar owned
fixed assets. Rental income (net of any incentives given to
lessees) is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Leases (Continued)
(b)  Finance lease

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included as liabilities. The investment properties acquired under
finance leases are carried at their fair value.

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, the amounts
due under the leases, net of unearned finance income, are
recognised as a receivable and are included in “Advances and
other accounts”. Finance income implicit in rentals receivable is
credited to the income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment
outstanding for each accounting period.

2.23 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary
capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of
individuals, trusts and other institutions. These assets are excluded
from the Group’s financial statements, as they are not assets of the
Group.

2.24 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the

financial statements in the period in which they are approved by
shareholders.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity
from the date of acquisition, including: cash, balances with banks
and other financial institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and
certificates of deposit and investment securities which are readily
convertible to cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes

in value.

2.26 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies
on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities, and to other parties in connection with the performance of
customers under obligations related to contracts, advance payments
made by other parties, tenders, retentions and the payment of import

duties.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the amount determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets” and the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation recognised. Any changes in the liability
relating to financial guarantees are taken to the income statement.

2.27 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (Continued)

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When such inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and
those activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and
management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking
risk is core to the financial business, and operational risks are an
inevitable consequence of being in business. The Group’s aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return
and minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and
up-to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,
products and emerging best practice.

Risk management is carried out pursuant to the overall strategy and
policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Risk Management
and Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) under the authority delegated
by the Board oversee and guide the management of different risks
which are more particularly managed and dealt with by the Group
Risk Division (“GRD”) and different functional committees. In addition,
Internal Audit is responsible for the independent review of risk
management and the control environment.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

To further enhance the risk governance and risk management
standards, the Board has approved a Risk Strategy framework that
also covers the Group’s Risk Appetite Statement. The Risk Strategy
sets out the core values and high level risk management direction
of the Group, taking account of the overall business strategy and
direction. As for the Risk Appetite Statement, it sets out the tolerance
for the assumption of risk by the Group in the pursuit of return and
key corporate objectives and covers the areas including target
returns to shareholders, earnings volatility, solvency and other key
risk measures. The GRD is responsible for the ongoing monitoring
of the compliance with the Risk Appetite Statement and the regular
reporting of the status to the RMCC and the Board.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market
risk and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risks.

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating
rates, and for various periods, and seeks to earn positive interest
margins by investing and lending these funds in a wide range of
assets. The Group seeks to increase these margins by consolidating
short-term funds and lending for longer periods at higher rates, while
maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to apply its interest margins through its
lending to commercial and retail borrowers and to charge customers
appropriate fees and commission, taking into consideration credit risk
and market conditions. Such exposures involve not just on-balance
sheet loans and advances, as the Group also enters into guarantees
and other commitments such as letters of credit, performance bonds
and other bonds.

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes positions
in exchange-traded and over-the-counter (“OTC”) instruments,
including derivatives, to take advantage of short-term market
movements in equities and bonds and in currency and interest rate.
The Board places trading limits on the level of exposures that can
be taken in relation to market positions. Apart from specific hedging
arrangements, foreign exchange and interest rate exposures are
normally offset by entering into counterbalancing positions (including
transactions with customers or market counterparties), or by the
use of derivatives, thereby controlling the variability in the net cash
amounts required to liquidate market positions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA FThz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

The Group also uses interest rate swap and other interest rate
derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk arising from changes in
interest rates that will result in decrease in the fair value of fixed rate
assets or increase in the fair value of fixed rate liabilities. Part of
these financial instruments are designated as fair value hedges, and
the terms of hedge including hedged item, amount, interest rates,
hedge period and purpose are determined and documented at the
inception of each fair value hedge. Hedge effectiveness is assessed
at inception on a prospective basis and is reassessed, on an ongoing
basis, based on actual experience and valuation. Fair value hedge
relationships that do not meet the effectiveness test requirement
of hedge accounting are discontinued with effect from the date of
ineffectiveness of the fair value hedge.

3.2 Credit risk

The Group’s main credit risk is that borrowers or counterparties
may default on their payment obligations due to the Group. These
obligations arise from the Group’s lending and investment activities,
and trading of financial instruments (including derivatives).

The Group has a Group Credit Committee (“GCC”) for approving
major credit exposures. The Credit Management Committee (“CMC”)
and the Treasury & Investment Risk Committee (“TIRC”) are the
committees responsible for credit policy formulation and portfolio
monitoring of the loan and treasury businesses respectively. These
committees are all chaired by the Chief Executive with certain
Executive Directors and senior business and credit officers as
members. Credit risk measurement, underwriting, approval and
monitoring requirements are detailed in credit policies.

The Group manages all types of credit risk on a prudent basis.
Credits are extended within the parameters set out in the credit
policies and are approved by different levels of management based
upon established guidelines and delegated authorities. Credit
exposures, limits and asset quality are regularly monitored and
controlled by management, credit committees and GRD. The Group’s
internal auditors also conduct regular reviews and audits to ensure
compliance with credit policies and procedures, and regulatory
guidelines.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

@

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has established policies and processes for the approval
and review of new products and activities, and credit policies
with details of the loan grading, or credit scoring, processes and
impairment policies.

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement

Loans and advances

In measuring credit risk of loans and advances to customers and

to banks and other financial institutions at a counterparty level,

the Group focuses on three components, namely (i) credit risk

of the client or counterparty; (ii) current exposures to client or

counterparty; and (iii) the amount of impairment allowances.

i)

(ii)

(iii)

The Group assesses the credit quality of corporate clients
using an internal rating tool. It is developed internally
and combines general credit analysis and judgements
of credit officers, and is reviewed, where applicable, by
comparison with externally available data. The Group’s
rating scale has 13 grades which are segmented into
three broad rating classes as shown in Note 3.2.3.
Credit exposures migrate between credit grades and
rating classes as the assessment of credit quality on the
borrower and business environment changes. The rating
tool is kept under review and upgraded as necessary.

Credit quality of personal clients is assessed using
established criteria in credit policies and external
market data from credit bureau. Loans to individuals not
relating to commercial banking business are monitored
on portfolio basis primarily based on their delinquency
status.

Current exposure represents the actual utilisation of a
credit facility and contractual obligations including both
outstanding exposure and undrawn commitment.

The assessment of individual and collective impairment is
detailed in Note 3.2.3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.2

3.2.1

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(b)  Credit-related commitments

Credit related commitments include bank guarantee, documentary
letter of credit, standby letter of credit and undrawn commitment
on legally bound facilities. Their credit risk is similar to loans except
for documentary letters of credit which are usually short term
and self-liquidating and carry a low level of credit risk and capital
charge.

(c) Debt securities and treasury bills

For debt securities and treasury bills, external credit ratings
from international credit rating agencies such as Standard &
Poor’s are used to assist in credit risk assessment on top of
internal credit analysis. These investments help to diversify
risk exposures and income streams, and to maintain a readily
available source of liquidity to the Group.

(d) Derivatives

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into a variety
of derivative transactions including forwards, futures, swaps
and options transactions in the interest rate, foreign exchange
and equity markets. Derivative transactions are conducted for
both trading and hedging purposes. The Group’s objectives in
using derivative instruments are to meet customers’ needs by
acting as an intermediary, to manage the Group’s exposure to
risks and to generate revenues through trading activities within
acceptable limits.

The Group is exposed to counterparty risk arising from its
positions in derivative financial instruments, which is either
“valuation risk” for the credit risk on receiving mark-to-market
gains upon the default of a counterparty prior to scheduled
settlement, or “settlement risk” for the possibility of not
receiving the expected cash flow of a derivative transaction
upon the expiry of a derivative contract on the settlement date.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

139



140

B H5 Rk B et

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMBEBEE @

3.2 FERME @

321 EEREEZ @)
(T) $T4TA#®)

CRTAZEESRIL TRAZITAZAR
KR RELERE 2 AFE  HILAK
RAEERFEH 2 EEREBRERR © %
ETETAREAMBSHE  EX  FHE
REEEMSRKE MEREN(E
E)ETH(RE) - FHEZITETAZAR
KEEDE REBMIAFZEE 8
SEMITATRAEERABZAFRET
EPNEDE I

AEBBEBEFRFRITEGAFR(AE
BERONER) 2B MR - RMEMAE
Al AZEERR EBRANNRAEE
ZIEABRTAFEEEIRFERERZZ
FEE)RR - WMITETAM S BHEZF
TEARBEHREZANRKEELHE

,T/\ ®

322 IR RIZHEEZHE

AEBEERENERAXRZHFER - 1TE%K
BRREEREEREFBEST AR - RiE
ERAIRZH FEE - TERLBERZBEERR
ME - ERERABKARIMAGEEZ S EHE
¥ o

ERAERZEFEB 2 RERBRERERZNER
BETE  MIRIBENARXBEEMASRRA
HIE - BRZBETN2ZEBRTREBEL T ER
ZEERRMRE - MARENHEESEEER
SFENHES -

RIRITEBER AR 20165 F 35

3.2

3.2.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(d)  Derivatives (Continued)

The notional amounts of financial instruments do not necessarily
indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current
fair value of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate
the Group’s exposure to credit or price risks. The derivative
instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable
(liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, equity prices and credit market
conditions. The aggregate contractual or notional amount of
derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to which
instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus the
aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities,
can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

The Group maintains strict control limits on net open derivative
positions (i.e., the difference between purchase and sale
contracts), by both amount and term. At any one time, the
amount subject to credit risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments that are favourable to the Group (i.e., assets where
their fair values are positive), which in relation to derivatives is
only a small fraction of the contract, or notional values used to
express the volume of instruments outstanding.

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group has an established framework to manage and control

concentrations risk with respect to individual borrower or

counterparty group, industry or country. Exposure limits by borrower

or counterparty group, industry or country are in place and their

exposures are monitored and reported to credit committees regularly.

The large exposure limits to borrower or counterparty groups are

capital based while the limits for industry are relative to the size of the

overall credit portfolio. Country limits are also set up with reference to

the sovereign credit rating from international credit rating agencies. All

these limits aim to achieve a more balanced portfolio.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7A7517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

To mitigate credit risk and where appropriate, the Group will obtain
collateral to support the credit facility granted. To control credit risk
exposure to counterparty arising from derivative positions, the Group
limits its derivative dealings with approved financial institutions, and
uses established market practices on credit support and collateral
settlement to reduce credit risk exposure to derivative counterparties.
Overall credit risk limit for individual financial institution counterparty,
including valuation limit for derivatives, is approved by the
GCC with reference to the financial strength and credit rating of
individual counterparty. The acceptable types of collateral and their
characteristics are established within the credit policies, as are the
respective margins of finance. Enforceable legal documentation
establishes the Group’s direct, irrevocable and unconditional
recourse to any collateral, security or other credit enhancements
provided.

In relation to lending commitments that are unconditionally
cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess the
necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality
of a borrower deteriorates. Accordingly, these commitments do not
expose the Group to significant credit risk.

Irrespective of whether collateral is taken, all credit decisions are
based upon the customer’s or counterparty’s credit profile, cashflow
position and ability to repay.

(@ Loans and advances

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific
classes of collateral for securing loans and advances. The
principal collateral types are:

° Mortgages over properties;

° Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory
and accounts receivable;

° Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities
and equities; and

° Charges over deposits.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(@) Loans and advances (Continued)

In addition, in order to minimise credit loss, the Group will,
where possible, seek additional collateral from the borrower as
soon as impairment indicators are noticed on relevant individual
loans and advances.

(b)  Debt securities

Debt securities and treasury bills are generally unsecured,
with the exception of asset-backed securities and similar
instruments, which are secured by portfolios of financial
instruments or underlying assets.

(c) Derivatives

All counterparty credit risk for derivatives trading are managed
as part of the credit risk control and monitoring process in
respect of the counterparty including credit controls such as
setting individual limit for valuation risk, daily settlement limits
and performing periodic credit assessment. Moreover, the
Group requires all derivative contract counterparties to enter
into International Swaps and Derivatives Association Agreement
or analogous master agreement in order to follow the
standardised market practice of close-out netting arrangement
in the event of default or early termination.

Collateral arrangements with selected counterparties are also
in place to limit our unsecured derivative exposures to these

counterparties.

3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies

Impairment allowances are recognised for loans, securities and
derivative exposures which have objective evidence of impairment at
the end of the reporting period for financial reporting purposes (see
Note 2.7).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

In determining whether objective evidence of impairment exists under

HKAS 39, the following criteria are assessed:

° Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;
° Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (e.g. equity to
debt ratio, net income percentage of sales);

° Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

o Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;

o Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position; and
° Deterioration in the value of collateral.

The Group’s policy requires the review of individual financial assets
that are above pre-set thresholds at least annually or more regularly
when individual circumstances warrant. Individual impairment
allowances on all individually significant accounts are determined by
an evaluation of the incurred loss at the end of the reporting period
on a case-by-case basis. The assessment normally encompasses
collateral held (including re-confirmation of its enforceability) and
the anticipated receipts from liquidating collaterals for that individual
account.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for:
(i) portfolios of homogenous assets that are individually below
materiality thresholds; and (ii) assets that are individually assessed but
do not have individual impairment.

The table below shows the percentage of the Group’s on-balance
sheet items relating to loans and advances and the associated
impairment allowances (both individually and collectively assessed)
covering on- and off-balance sheet amounts for each of the three
broad internal rating classes.
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3. HEEREE@m
3.2 EERKE @)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

2016 2015
WIEZEHE VERIERE
I ERERE (=GNt
BERRERK BAo ERERBR AL
B2t  Impairment B2 Impairment
Loans allowance Loans allowance
and as a % of and as a % of

advances loan balance advances loan balance

% % % %
4851 Class
1—-1E% 1 - pass 97.9 0.3 98.6 0.3
2— R E 2 — special mention 0.6 6.3 0.3 8.9
3—IRBAT 3 - sub-standard or below 1.5 27.7 1.1 29.9

ERARBZAERTER 2EEFOERME
R

F1ER [ ER ] B2 AKERERFRRLH
ZEIEFIH  KRERARKMEN REE
AE2BMENSMERAE 2L NA T ERE ©

F2M5 BRI B2 AEEANMERTRFE
MR ZE10E - RRERAERREE - RES
REBHEERRERL  AAESASEREE
E#B% -

FE3MR [ RAFAT | B2 REEANIFERFTR
EFPRZENEFIIH - KRERALRERRE

EEkMEZREE A2 m B AKE
REENMHKEESERACERARATER  BHA
EREES R EMEBBRZER  XNRFZER
RFEEE BT REFERKEERD -

RIBITEBER AR 20165 F 5

100.0 100.0

As far as the commercial banking business of the Group is concerned,
the credit ratings are broadly categorised as follows:

Class 1 “pass”, which covers Grade 1 to 9 of the Group’s internal loan
grading system, represents loans for which borrowers are current in
meeting commitments and for which the full repayment of interest and
principal is not in doubt.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers Grade 10 of the Group’s
internal loan grading system, represents loans with which borrowers
are experiencing difficulties and which may lead to credit losses to the
Group if the deterioration in loan quality cannot be contained.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers Grade 11 to 13
of the Group’s internal loan grading system, represents loans in
which borrowers are displaying a definable weakness that is likely
to jeopardise repayment; or collection in full is improbable and the
Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking
into account the fair value of collateral less cost to sell; or loans that
are considered uncollectible after all collection options have been
exhausted.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements

2016 2015
EHREEABRANEEZEERRENT Credit risk exposures relating to
on-balance sheet assets are as follows:
e RIERITHAEER Cash and balances with banks 15,058,787 17,505,906
EHRIT1E12(BA R Placements with banks maturing
EIEA M TE SR between one and twelve months 8,430,854 7,497,860
BIEEERANES Trading securities 8,871,844 8,572,394
BENARTEFEBEEEH Financial assets designated at fair
FFABRN SR EE value through profit or loss 279,056 217,796
TESBMTA Derivative financial instruments 1,177,322 1,079,328
EFERRBK Loans and advances to customers
AABER KRBT Loans and advances to individuals
—fEAR — Credit cards 4,613,534 4,706,017
—RIBER - Mortgages 32,224,005 31,273,079
—HAh - Others 11,557,295 9,729,001
TEERRBRK Loans and advances to
corporate entities
—EHER - Term loans 30,862,318 29,150,773
—RBER - Mortgages 16,213,526 16,016,536
—E5mE — Trade finance 8,020,721 7,986,955
—HAM — Others 10,163,322 10,762,963
H5RE Trade bills 4,299,974 6,469,899
HihBE Other assets 3,021,819 3,040,889
At S Available-for-sale securities
—E%RES - Debt securities 32,272,774 23,733,600
B E R HES Held-to-maturity securities 10,223,840 10,476,296
197,290,991 188,219,292
EHREEABRINEBZEERBRENT : Credit risk exposures relating to
off-balance sheet items are as follows:
W EREEMEERBE 2 KAAE Financial guarantees and other credit
related contingent liabilities 1,570,209 1,215,161
B0 IE R E A EARRE 2 E Loan commitments and other credit
related commitments 69,528,743 69,244,002
71,098,952 70,459,163
12H31H At 31 December 268,389,943 258,678,455
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AEBRBGRITE (RE) RADZ R EH A KE
BRZIEERBESEERALTRROR 2R
EERRAETESLEHIKE -

AEBZEERAAULE TR IEE—FFF
1t

o  ERRBFMAPI%HEDBEANLTRER
FHREERA (20155 : 4%)

s HWHAERIZEARDEZIRBERIBERD
ZIEE

o  ENRBNMEE T 7% HiEm I ER
RME (2015 4F : 98%)

e ARG ERBEZEFEREBREER
P E R K& 91.05% (20154 ¢
0.75%) : &

. BEIES REAMESFRIREF 78% (20155 :
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

The above table represents a worst case scenario of credit risk
exposure for the Group at 31 December 2016 and 2015, without
taking into account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements
attached.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for financial assets recognised
on the statement of assets and liabilities is the carrying amount.
For contingent liabilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
maximum amount the Group would have to pay if the instrument is
called upon. For undrawn facilities, the maximum exposure to credit
risk is the full amount of the undrawn credit facilities granted to

customers.

The Group’s exposures to credit risk, measured using the expected
gross credit exposures that will arise upon a default of the end obligor,
are shown in the disclosures required under the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules.

The results of credit performance of the Group can be further
assessed with reference to the following:

o 3% of the loans and advances portfolio are categorised in the
top grade of the internal rating system (2015: 4%);

° Mortgage loans, which represent the biggest group in the
portfolio, are backed by collateral;

° 97% of the loans and advances portfolio are considered to be
neither past due nor individually impaired (2015: 98%);

° Loans and advances to customers that are either individually
or collectively impaired constituted 1.05% (2015: 0.75%) of the
total loans and advances to customers; and

° 78% (2015: 73%) of the investments in debt securities and other
bills have at least an A- credit rating.
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(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.25 Loans and advances

Loans and advances to customers are summarised as follows:

2016 2015
fE e B R A (E R DRUE Neither past due nor individually

impaired 110,337,034 107,020,778
B HB R E R RE Past due but not individually impaired 2,143,478 1,808,227
&R E Individually impaired 1,174,209 796,319
Rk Gross 113,654,721 109,625,324
W OREEE Less: allowance for impairment (855,755) (686,025)
FEE Net 112,798,966 108,939,299
2016 2015

MEEREBR Impaired loans and advances
—ERREE (FE (F)) — Individually impaired (Note (a)) 1,174,209 796,319
—fFaRE(E(2)) — Collectively impaired (Note (b)) 21,617 21,815
1,195,826 818,134

B Impairment allowances made
— BRI (R () - Individually assessed (Note (c)) (435,210) (327,953)
— e (E(2)) - Collectively assessed (Note (b)) (19,637) (20,026)
(454,847) (347,979)
740,979 470,155
BEERRHATE" Fair value of collaterals held* 904,293 582,726

WEEREBREEFERK Impaired loans and advances

FRBBED L as a % of total loans and

advances to customers 1.05% 0.75%

* ERBAFEDREERRTEREFREES
B MEPREEEE

*

collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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() ERRERERDZEBTIRERREEREET
—frZ R RRENTERERER ([
REMHD R - MRBREEEZERZ AT
RRBERMEEKFTE - LREA FHEE o

(2) HRMERRRBFIEZSENGEEEERER
EEOEERRREHREEBPRERBHBIORZ
ERRBR - ZER D25 2 REE KRS
BEEFETERGAREERN D °

(A) AEERREEREZSEEBERN12A31BE
ZERBEE -

B R B R 2 R 1B % {5 42 58 /5 855,755,000
7L (2015 4F : 686,025,000 It ) * & 15 % (& 3
BAEE 3 2 % %435,210,0007% 7T (20154 :
327,953,0008 7T ) ki izbra EEFT HH E R
2 48 B8 47 A JE 1§ 420,545,000 7% T (2015 4F ¢
358,072,000/ 7T) © M1 IR EZ AR FER
KRR B A0 AR B (R 2 REEEER -

RIBITEBER AR 20165 F 5

3.2

3.2.5

Note:

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Loans and advances (Continued)

Individually impaired loans are defined as those loans having objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss
event has an impact on the estimated cash flows of the loans that can be
reliably estimated.

Collectively impaired loans and advances refer to those unsecured loans
and advances assessed for impairment on a collective basis and which
have become overdue for more than 90 days as at the reporting date.
The collective impairment allowance for these impaired loans, which is a
part of the overall collective impairment allowances, is shown above.

The above individual impairment allowances were made after taking into
account the value of collaterals in respect of such advances as at 31
December.

The total impairment allowance for loans and advances is
HK$855,755,000 (2015: HK$686,025,000), comprising an allowance
of HK$435,210,000 (2015: HK$327,953,000) for the individually
impaired loans and the overall collective impairment allowances
of HK$420,545,000 (2015: HK$358,072,000) provided on loans
assessed on a collective basis. Further information on the impairment

allowances maintained for each of loans and advances to customers,

and other accounts is provided in Note 21.
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3. HMKEKEE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 FERE@m 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BRIRB5 #) 3.25 Loans and advances (Continued)
(FA) #E0 B R (B 516 1B, Bk R 230 (@ Loans and advances neither past due nor individually
impaired
ERNBBEAR EEEEAERTRE The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that
& BB T — AR IR M52 8.2.3 1R R AI 3 K were neither past due nor individually impaired is normally
SREN RS - assessed based on the three broad gradings mentioned in Note
3.2.8.
A (ZEEF) i
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities
ERF E5RE
Credit RBER Eff BHER REER Trade At ait
20165125318 At 31 December 2016 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total
VI Class:
1-E% 1-pass 4550265 31,446,965 11,361,761 30,295,702  15839,334 7,204,384 9124360 109,912,771
2-klEE 2 - special mention - - - 249,137 42,206 24,642 27,549 343,534
3-RBFUAT 3 - sub-standard or below - 5,438 1,528 8,500 26,979 1,148 37,136 80,729
it Total 4,550,265 31,452,403 11,363,289 30,553,339 15,908,519 7,320,174 9,189,045 110,337,034
A (ZEZF) 13
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities
R 2504
Credt  1&IBEH iy BHER  REER Trade At A7
0155124318 At 31 December 2015 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total
VI Class:
1-E% 1 - pass 4,651,874 30,761,014 9542438 2817171 15,713,957 7,542,065 9,824,553 106,953,072
2-klEE 2 - special mention - - 10,963 4,000 2,869 34,961 12,689 65,382
8- RBFUAT 3 - sub-standard or below - 613 1,660 - 51 - - 2,3
it Total 4,651,874 30,761,627 9,655,061 28921171 15,716,877 7,577,026 9,837,142 107,020,778
TR TR 2 IRIBEREEE K Mortgage loans in the sub-standard or below class were
i 2 BB E W ST E AARRE assessed as not impaired after taking into consideration the

value and recovery of collaterals.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016 149



150

B H5 Rk B et

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HEERERE @
EER K @)

325 B RBS (&)

3.2

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

(2) BEIEREEZ B REZH (b) Loans and advances past due but not impaired
fiA(ZEEF) i -
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities
R+ E7nE
Credit  HBER At BHER  BBER Trade A it
20165128318 At 31 December 2016 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total
A1 EAZAT Past due up to 1 month 40,002 611,313 145,456 20,430 120,696 74111 632,743 1,644,751
AB1MANLE3EA Past due more than 1 month
and up to 3 months 12,238 98,931 32,328 10,140 40,680 38,420 56,306 289,043
B#3MANLZ6MA Past due more than 3 months
and up to 6 months 6,539 7478 8,824 - 1,701 26,927 9,218 60,687
BE6EANL Past due more than 6 months 4,490 15,483 5 - 10,989 54,995 63,035 148,997
At Total 63,269 783205 186,613 30570 174,066 104453 761302 2143478
FRlRR ATE" Fair valug of collaterals* - 3416 4,206 20298 173,129 172800 679470 1,791,338
fIA(ZEZF) =4
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities
fER~ BoRA
Credt  HIEEH Ay  FEER  ZBEX Trade Eh At
015123318 At 31 December 2015 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total
BRI EALNT Past due up to T month 32,555 422,907 135,387 10,649 170,200 4,715 517262 1,363,735
SE1EANEZMEA Past due more than 1 month
and up to 3 months 11,000 61,160 25,094 5,087 18,779 6,532 90,016 217,618
BH3EANLZ6MEA Past due more than 3 months
and up to 6 months 6,105 - 8,901 7,850 - 1,279 51,238 75,373
BH6EANE Past due more than 6 months 4483 16,995 5 37,168 21,284 240 71,326 151,501
At Total 54,143 501,062 169,387 60,704 210,263 82,826 729842 1,808,207
REERR ATE" Fair value of collaterals* - 500,661 4523 59,259 205,800 25,115 653554 1448912

* ER Az A FEDREERRTELIER
REEES  MEPREEME -

IR ERE R R BRE - HAERR A
FEDKBEFEBREEZGE AN
E o BEREAE ZBERmZAFENZE
M5B FIEE B E# -

RIRITEBER AR 20165 F 35

Fair value of collaterals is determined as the lower of the market
value of collateral and outstanding loan balance.

Upon initial recognition of loans and advances, the associated
collateral is valued based on valuation techniques for the
particular assets. In subsequent periods, the fair value of such
collateral is updated by reference to market price or indexes of
similar assets.
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3. HMKEEE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 FERE@m 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 B KRB @) 3.25 Loans and advances (Continued)
() 1EFREZ ZFEHRBH (c) Loans and advances to customers individually impaired
AREBRFTAXEBFAFEFARZES The individually impaired loans and advances to customers of
MAIZERNRERFERREBEARA the Group before taking into consideration the cash flows from
1,174,209,000%7c(2015 4 : 796,319,000 collateral held is HK$1,174,209,000 (2015: HK$796,319,000).
BIT) °
FERIREER LR R 2 A5 LN EE Tl The analysis of the gross amount of individually impaired loans
VEYER 2 B IEH B A EILER o and advances by class, along with the fair value of the related
T 3 collateral held by the Group as security, is as follows:
HEER-
BA(ZEEF) i 4 BRI
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment
5% allowances -
REER Bt  BHER  RBER Trade Eff &3 individual
20165125318 At 31 December 2016 Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total  assessment
{ERIRESR Individually impaired loans 38,397 7,393 218,409 130,941 506,094 22975 1,174,209 435,210
REERRZATE" Fair value of collaterals* 38,397 5,074 186,262 109,530 405,106 159,704 904,203
REEE-
fIA(ZE%F) % {ERIGTAE
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment
OE allowances -
HREER iy, BHEN  %EER Trade K A individual
155124318 At 31 December 2015 Mortgages Others ~ Termloans ~ Mortgages finance Others Total  assessment
[ERIREER Individually impaired loans 10,390 4,553 168,898 89,396 327,103 195,979 796,319 327,953
HAERRZATE" Fair value of collaterals* 10,365 3,001 118,088 79,433 220213 151566 582,726

* ER Bz A FEDREERRTERER
AEERH  METREEME

* Fair value of collaterals is determined as the lower of the market
value of collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HEEREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 EERKE @) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BFRBZ (#) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(T) #2EI3 187U LEZ B R (d) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months
)y BwHREEERERE ()  Gross amount of overdue loans
2016 2015
BHIAREE BHAREE
REEE EREEE
Gross Gross
amount of {R#2%  amount of Ih#B%E
overdue Bot overdue Bokt
loans % of total loans % of total
REBRFEHEEE Gross advances to customers
EH which have been overdue for:
—3EAN LE=61EA — six months or less but
over three months 188,025 0.17 229,892 0.21
—6EANLEE1E — one year or less but
over six months 425,466 0.37 260,593 0.24
—1F)E - over one year 473,646 0.42 209,635 0.19
1,087,137 0.96 700,120 0.64

AFRITEEFR AT 20165FF5¢
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3. HMBEBEE @
3.2 FERM @
325 B RB5 @)
(T) #BH3MEAUEZ B R ()

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

(d) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months

(Continued)
i)y BPEREEERRBIRZBEEEN, (i)  Value of collateral held and impairment allowances
Fris iR mE against overdue loans and advances

ERRBR BERE BEER-

KEBRYH B gl il b EE fBIRI A

Outstanding Current  FrAEDH ReREDH BERHEEE  Impairment

amount of market Portion  Portion not Other allowances -

loans and valueof  coveredby  covered by credit risk individual

2016 %128 31 H At 31 December 2016 advances collateral collateral collateral mitigation  assessment
BHKEEEPESREF  Overdue loans and advances

to customers 1,087,137 1,095,775 839,520 247,617 - 349,070

ERRE® it HEERE-

AERHH B B B RS [EIRET

Outstanding Curent  FAESH AAdESH BBHEREE  Impairment

amount of market Portion Portion not Other  allowances -

loans and valueof  coveredby  covered by credit risk individual

2015F12 31 H At 31 December 2015 advances collateral collateral collateral mitigation  assessment
BHKEEEPESREF  Overdue loans and advances

to customers 700,120 1,196,607 525,584 174,536 - 213,854

FEZERmEZR/ERER
R AR E M [EE B AR

RiBmE

Collateral held mainly represented pledged deposits, mortgage
over properties and charges over other fixed assets such as
equipment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HEEREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 EERKE @) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BFRBZ (#) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(%) #EHEZ(EHE EIEFE L2 8 (e) Rescheduled advances net of amounts included in
HE) overdue advances shown above
L#8% 1h#E%E
Bt B
2016 % of total 2015 % of total
BEPEX Advances to customers 394,408 0.35 243,284 0.22
B ZE Impairment allowances 24,982 15,825
326 BSZE. 3.2.6 Trade bills
2016 2015
B5EE @i Trade bills which have been overdue for:
—3fEALLEZ=61EA — six months or less but over
three months - 1,975
—6 A EE1FE - one year or less but over
six months 4,644 3,070
—1FE — over one year 6,337 -
10,981 5,045
R20164 12 H31 H X% 2015612 H31 H » W& As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, no trade bills were impaired.

MEZEZFIE -

154  KFRITEEABR AR 2016745



BAH5 Rk M ot

3. HHEBEREm
3.2 FERR@

3.2.7 WETHE # i
RERFA 2 WEEH R -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.7 Repossessed collateral

Repossessed collateral held at the year-end is as follows:

2016 2015

BELE Nature of assets
ek Repossessed properties 131,243 140,163
Efb Others 6,842 7,464
138,085 147,627

WEHERRZATERERIE - BURKIBERMN
WIER B2 ERAREERR

& &5t AT & IR 48 {8 /458,933,000 7% JT (20154 :
63,255,000 7T ) 2 7 B A K9 & T H 9
¥ DBASEREREAMEREM 2 AL TAT
LA (ERE R B o FZ IR A 2 M KIFE 30
ZEMEE| BTHRERLEZEE - HEZ
BERBWAR LR o

Repossessed collaterals are sold as soon as practicable with the
proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness of the
borrowers concerned.

Certain other properties in the Mainland China with a total estimated
realisable value of HK$58,933,000 (2015: HK$63,255,000), which had
been foreclosed and repossessed by the Group pursuant to orders
issued by courts in the Mainland China, represent assets held by the
Group for resale and have been reported under “Other assets” in Note
30. The relevant loans had been derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. BXEBERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 EERKE @) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
328 EXZEF 3.2.8 Debt securities
TRINTHR 2016 F % 20154 12 A 31 HiZ The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating
L ARIBIE E 2 AR DT 2 (EFE B © agency designation at 31 December 2016 and 2015.
BFEE EEN FHEERE HKRIHRE
RE&E AVETE Available- Held-to-
Trading  Designated for-sale maturity ait
2016512 A 31 H At 31 December 2016 assets atfairvalue  investments  investments Total
AAA AAA - - 2,536,311 - 2,536,311
AA-ZAA+ AA-to AA+ 8,871,844 - 8,946,344 1,530,009 19,348,197
A-ZA+ A-to A+ - - 15,647,450 2,786,638 18,434,088
BRRBERA- Rated but lower than A- - 264,572 2,746,471 1,873,496 4,884,539
RBEAR Unrated - 14,484 2,396,198 4,033,697 6,444,379
ait Total 8,871,844 279,056 32,272,774 10,223,840 51,647,514
BEEE BEN  AHREERE  HEIHRE
RedE  ATEAE Available- Held-to-
Trading  Designated for-sale maturity At
2015F12A 311 At 31 December 2015 assets at fair value investments investments Total
AAA AAA 249 - 997,458 - 997,707
AA-Z AA+ AA-to AA+ 8,572,098 - 7,104,515 1,372,442 17,049,055
A-ZA+ A-to A+ 47 - 10,681,887 2,711,844 13,393,778
BREERA- Rated but lower than A- - 209,618 2,756,536 2,191,143 5,157,207
FEHR Unrated - 8,178 2,193,204 4,200,867 6,402,249
At Total 8,572,394 217,796 23,733,600 10,476,296 43,000,086
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3.
3.2

B % E B B ()
EER K @)

329 WEBEEERBRZEMEEZREE

HEE
(F) Bt

BEPERZBRENTTIREDE BARE
BRZERAFELDE - —RMF &
EFRMERTENEERATRZEE
B - ERGIREE -

TRABFPERERIREHANT -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.2
329

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure

(@ Geographical sectors

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified
according to the location of the borrowers after taking into
account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies
when an advance is guaranteed by a party located in an area
which is different from that of the borrower.

The following table analyses gross advances to customers by
geographical area.

2016 & 20154
12A31H 12H31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2016 2015

XPERERE Gross advances to customers
— B - Hong Kong 90,514,829 88,670,794
— - China 7,573,907 7,374,771
— BP9 — Macau 12,793,705 12,007,126
— Hh - Others 2,772,280 1,572,633
113,654,721 109,625,324
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TA1%51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HERBERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 FERM@E 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

329 WHEEERBZEHEEZABRE 3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
HEE (@) exposure (Continued)
(Z2) 7% (b)  Industry sectors
HEERMBE — RTERERARSE Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

according to the usage of loans

2016 2015
EERREANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TrEc Rt Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERER - Property development 2,317,648 1,909,605
—MEKE - Property investment 15,095,225 16,136,906
— SR - Financial concerns 4,259,982 1,118,110
—BEL&L - Stockbrokers 1,804,854 965,931
—BEETER — Wholesale and retail trade 4,543,621 4,144,996
—RUEE - Manufacturing 2,435,207 3,026,032
— B BB - Transport and transport equipment 3,508,563 3,713,584
—R&EE) — Recreational activities 78,395 262,522
— BB — Information technology 74,186 72,019
—Hfb — Others 5,180,298 5,454,602
39,297,979 36,804,307
fELA Individuals
—BE [FEEEEE] - — Loans for the purchase of flats in
[RAAZEERETE ] & Home Ownership Scheme, Private
[HEBHRETE | BFER Sector Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 756,457 869,023
—BEEMEFEDEER — Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 22,230,051 21,260,300
—EHFRER — Credit card advances 4,377,622 4,465,225
—Hfh — Others 11,092,297 9,217,401
38,456,427 35,811,949
EEAFERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong 77,754,406 72,616,256
BH5ME GE) Trade finance (Note (1)) 7,723,386 7,394,880
ERBAIMERMNER () Loans for use outside
Hong Kong (Note (2)) 28,176,929 29,614,188

113,654,721 109,625,324
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3. HEEREE@m
3.2 EERKE @

329 BEECEREZEHBEES AREE
HEE (&)

(Z2) 77% &)

(1) LlIRZzESRERBDERECHER
BIEERER]) B 2 BREESmDHE
AFEEED HOMEOMFTE UL
mEIMEZEZERK

THEREBZBGMEBRR(BIEAFTR
TERRAR ([ RFRIT]) Z/BIMRITHE
AAET2ESRE) #18 297,335,000 /4
JL(2015412 A31 A : 592,075,000/ )
DER [EBBUIMEANER]ET °

(2 EBRBIMEFANERBEETEARR
BEEBUIMEAZER °

3.3 hiEER

B R T 4 R R (B AR B T 3 B
BE  BERAESERINGAZERER -

BERGzmERBEIHESS  EREERS
REBERMERKRERRZEEREEERT
ZRENFZEZ S RRRRE RIS ANEE © &
RIRFEIRA A [ LA N 3% 2 S R B 2R 1 R
E o ZERBLEAEETEETHE LR -
gREMERTSRARBE(TMSRRERE]) Z
B AR RABRNEERATEERRK
MEARK - SERRR EEREEREE (TR
REIEREERR]) T — BB 2 AR IR KR
BF - AR EERME FIRERE - AR5 - 5
B ERREEZFARREZRABTHERR
FAERRHEMRZKTEA - AT ARER
M BERBEARREEFRAEEEE-VE
kRERREZEE BREERAREZEGNE
FEEERIE -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure (Continued)

(b)  Industry sectors (Continued)

Notes:

(1) Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance
of imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong
Kong and merchandising trade classified with reference to the
relevant guidelines issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA?).

Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade
finance extended by the overseas subsidiary banks of Dah Sing
Bank, Limited (“DSB”)) totalling HK$297,335,000 (31 December
2015: HK$592,075,000) are classified under Loans for use outside
Hong Kong.

2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to
customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside
Hong Kong.

3.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses in assets, liabilities and off-balance

sheet positions arising from movements in market rates and prices.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed
within various risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board, the
RMCC and the TIRC under the authority delegated from the Board.
Risk limits are set at the portfolio level as well as by products and
by different types of risks. The risk limits comprise a combination
of notional, stop-loss, sensitivity and value-at-risk (“VaR”) controls.
All trading positions are subject to daily mark-to-market valuation.
The Risk Management and Control Department (“RMCD”) within the
GRD, as an independent risk management and control unit, identifies,
measures, monitors and controls the risk exposures against approved
limits and initiates specific actions to ensure positions are managed
within an acceptable level. Any exceptions have to be reviewed and
sanctioned by the appropriate level of management of TIRC, RMCC or

the Board as stipulated in the relevant policies and procedures.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HEERERE @
3.3 WiZEE @)

RFRITZMBABIRFIERRITRNDBERRA]
(DRPIFMERT ) RAHRIT(PE) BRAA
(TRFIRTT (PE) D) RIBE—EBERBMBER
R AERFERITRRE 2 A B8 T 35 AR ) W17 E
RITZEHEEE - R¥TIR1T 2 AREIE R EZEH
ERRERRBRPIEERTRAMRIT (PE)
MELEZTIHRAR

AEBEREEBEERLRBITR 2 MHRARERT
[Flz AR ERBER MR o

331 REEERZ T 5mE
THNR A B ARFTIRTT FORPIRE R RT o

AEBEZEERA - HINE - BFES - #alt
BERMITETAZ EERATFENSER °

(FF) THRERE B %

ERMERRER AEEERZEER
BRRA A ET SRR RIZHI TS
RBREREERBEEREAN - TZAN
SrEREEMSRER G EITARET o

i) THEREBE

AEEEATSRBEEE  EJ—
RS AEERFHEEERBAE
A5 TS TEEETERL - HE
PAAEEREESEKTERAIGEELRZ
AR - ph— AR A H 2 EAEIEH
H AEBEZEREKFEARI9% - Bt
FERERSTE - ERIBRE
LB RBREEZ ETEEX - Bt
FRAReZ 7 AN L G B Th B AR 3%
EBERE(EBaLEEEZEK -

RIRITEBER AR 20165 F 35

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited (“DSB China”), which are subsidiaries of DSB, run their
treasury functions locally under their own set of limits and policies
and within the overall market risk controls set by DSB. The RMCD of
DSB oversees and controls the market risk arising from the treasury
operations of BCM and DSB China.

The Group applies different risk management policies and procedures
in respect of the market risk arising from its trading and banking
books.

3.8.1 Market risk arising from the trading book

The following descriptions relate to DSB and BCM.

In the Group’s trading book, market risk is associated with trading
positions in foreign exchange, debt securities, equity securities and
derivatives.

(@)  Market risk measurement technique

In the management of market risk, the Group measures market
risks using various techniques commonly used by the industry
and control market risk exposures within established risk limits.
The major measurement techniques used to measure and
control market risk are outlined below.

(i) Value at risk

The Group applies a VaR methodology, which is a
statistically based estimate, to measure the potential loss
of its trading portfolio from adverse market movements. It
expresses as the maximum amount the Group might lose
given a certain level of confidence, which for the Group
is 99% for a one day holding period. There is therefore a
specified statistical probability that actual loss could be
greater than the VaR estimate. Hence, the use of VaR does
not prevent losses outside the VaR limits in the event of

extreme market movements.
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3.3

3.3.1

B 7% B B ()
i B K ()
FEEERZ 5 &)

(FF) TR B T% (%)

() TEERERE @

5 ERBERLRREERE S
(AAEBEME A —R) EEHERE
B - MBERBETMKERS A ZBHE
ME - mEARERBEE—(EEF
B2 BERRIKRE R &2
NS ERBEETHE -

AEEEELBAAEER TSR
REBEAR  FEERTSERRBE
BELZ BRI - FrE BRI R E
TURERAEEEEASESR -

EmiBRREE AN EEZ THBRER
EESEAN—EBRE EFghHE
BEZZESRMBEBRRERETD
EMZEBESERE RS EES XD
B WELBFERME - RREER
BRI GRERRIEMSRRAEZ
EIR R R E L TR R o AN
B FARAEHRGEE 2 TSR E
BB {8 42,468,0007 T (20154 :
2,368,000/ 7T) °

(i) BEEIAEIE

BRI R 15 TR BE IR 2
BEBK AR - BREEREER
EITHENARERE - BREZEN
AR - TERESRBRERFHET T
RENRE  REREBARAH 7%
ARSI BN ERARERR
SAEAEITRIE o BEO - TRAtERE
BEEMGAA 2B BRAFEER
HHEE B EKTF RERBR &R E HE
HIRBEEEBIENRTRE - It
Sh - ETTEBAREIER—HEXK
TEAUFHEAEBRBEMREZAR
BIRFRIFTBE AR M T 35 B J R4
B e

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7A7517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(@

Market risk measurement technique (Continued)
(i) Value at risk (Continued)

The VaR model assumes a certain “holding period” (one
day in the case of the Group) until positions can be closed.
It is calculated based on the current mark-to-market value
of the positions, the historical correlation and volatilities of
the market risk factors over an observation period of one
calendar year using a method known as parametric VaR
methodology.

The VaR model is continuously validated by back-testing
the VaR results for trading positions. All back-testing
exceptions are investigated and back-testing results are
reported to senior management.

As VaR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market
risk control regime, VaR limits are established and
reviewed by the Board and its delegated committees
at least annually for all trading positions and allocated
to business units. Actual exposures, including VaR,
are monitored against limits on a daily basis by RMCD.
Average daily VaR for the Group for all trading activities
during the year was HK$2,468,000 (2015: HK$2,368,000).

(i)  Stress tests

Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of
losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
tests carried out by RMCD include: risk factor stress
testing, where stress movements are applied to each risk
category; and scenario stress testing, which includes
applying possible stress events to specific positions or
portfolios. Besides, the expected shortfall of the trading
portfolio is measured to evaluate the expected size of
extreme trading loss beyond a specified confidence level
and over a longer holding period. In addition, reverse-
stress tests are performed as a useful tool to evaluate the
maximum size of market stress that the Group can endure
before hitting the prescribed tolerable levels.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TAL5)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HEEREE@m 3.
3.3 WiZEE @)
331 FEHEERZ H5REE &)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(F) FBEGE % (&) (@) Market risk measurement technique (Continued)
@iy EETAIE (&) (i)  Stress tests (Continued)

BORRz ERAETEREREL
ZESTFHIEM -

The results of the stress tests are reviewed by the Board
and its delegated committees regularly.

(Z) TEERGEZE (b)  VaR summary of trading portfolio

BZE20165F12A31H #ZE 201512 H31H
128 A 1E121EA
12 months to 31 December 2016 12 months to 31 December 2015
F 15 BB 543 15 R RIE

Average High Low Average High Low
SN [ fex Foreign exchange risk 2,288 2,675 1,782 1,397 2,137 732
F= = R Interest rate risk 989 1,482 461 471 1,459 181
Ex=E All risks 2,468 2,960 1,900 2,368 3,563 1,573

332 FHRITIRZ 5 BB

AREE ZRITRT - MiGEREZREMER K
HEMERES R -

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book
In the Group’s banking book, market risk is predominantly associated

with positions in debt and equity securities.

(F) TBREREIEN % (a)  Market risk measurement technique

EEFE AR CIZEERIZARE
BEXRMBET  RETTRNEE - &
SIRERETEREER  BUESIAEE
RITETEREIMNERR - A RERRE
EBRREFAR LERAFALBEER
JZ N 5E (B AR B BR A TR Il B 5 IR B BV E (B R
B e sHh REETERETHEEARSK
ARIMNERR ZMEBERBHFREZE
EREEBRESN RENAR (BIESE
DAB) - EERE ZERERAGERE
BHEERAEBRITER ZTHRAR

B I IR A5 AR BEEAFTERE
EIRITRARP 2 B R

RIRITEBER AR 20165 F 5

Within the risk management framework and policies established
by the Board and its delegated committees, various limits,
guidelines and management action triggers are established to
control the exposures of the Group’s banking book activities
to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, and price risk. In
particular, position and sensitivity limits and price triggers are
in place to control the price risk of the investment securities.
In addition, sensitivity analysis and stress testing (including
reverse-stress testing) covering shocks and shifts in interest
rates on the Group’s on- and off-balance sheet positions
and credit spreads on the Group’s investment securities are
regularly performed to gauge the market risk inherent in the
Group’s banking book portfolios and manage it against the
established control measures.

VaR methodology is not currently being used to measure and
control the market risk of the banking book.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA FThz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has limited net foreign exchange exposure
(except for USD, Macau Pataca (“MOP”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”)) as foreign exchange positions and foreign
currency balances arising from customer transactions are
normally matched against other customer transactions or
transactions with the market. Foreign exchange exposure
of the non-trading portfolio in respect of MOP and RMB
arise mainly from the operation of overseas subsidiaries
in Macau and Mainland China. The net exposure positions
including the trading and non-trading portfolios, both by
individual currency and in aggregate, are managed by
the Treasury Division of the Group on a daily basis within
established foreign exchange limits.

Long-term foreign currency funding, to the extent that this
is used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets, or vice versa,
is normally matched using foreign exchange forward
contracts to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk.

At 31 December 2016, if HK$ had weakened by 100 basis
points against RMB with all other variables held constant,
the profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$11 million higher (2015: HK$14 million higher), mainly
as a result that the foreign exchange gain on translation of
RMB denominated financial assets outweighed the foreign
exchange losses on translation of RMB denominated
financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HK$ had strengthened by 100 basis points
against RMB with all other variables held constant, the
profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$11 million lower (2015: HK$14 million lower).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TA1%51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HBEBEREm 3.
3.3 WHEER @
332 RERITHRZ T 5/E M (#)
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(i) FA=EER
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MM XEARBEERAGNELEE
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

(i)  Interest rate risk

The framework adopted by the Group to measure interest
rate risk exposures arising from its banking book positions
is consistent with the guidelines set out by the HKMA in its
Supervisory Policy Manual (“SPM”) on Interest Rate Risk
Management. From an earnings perspective, interest rate
risk is the risk that the net income arising from future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. From an economic value
perspective, interest rate risk is the risk that the economic
value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group takes on
interest rate risk from both perspectives in the banking
book. As such, the interest margins or net interest income
and the economic value of the capital may increase or
decrease as a result of such changes or in the event that
unexpected movements arise. The Board and the Asset
and Liability Management Committee (“ALCQO”) set limits
on the level of mismatch of interest rate repricing that
may be undertaken and monitor the interest rate impacts
through scenario analysis and stress testing regularly.

At 31 December 2016, if HK$ and US$ market interest
rates had been 200 basis points higher with other
variables held constant, the profit after tax over the next
12 months and the equity would have been HK$25 million
higher (2015: HK$46 million lower) and HK$632 million
lower (2015: HK$748 million lower) respectively.

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity

analysis on foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk are on

the same basis for both 2015 and 2016.

In addition to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk, the

Group’s investments in debt securities and equity securities

are also exposed to other price risks. Consequently, the value

of such investments could change significantly depending on

a variety of factors including liquidity risk, market sentiment

and other events that might affect individual or portfolios of

exposures.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk

The table below summarises the Group’s financial assets and

liabilities as well as off-balance sheet net notional positions and credit

commitments translated into equivalent HK$ amounts, categorised by

currency.
BT ESH bk AR¥ Hit £%

20165128318 At 31 December 2016 HKD Usb MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
BeREFITNER Cash and balances with banks 2,991,263 8,201,975 484,011 1,786,324 1595214 15,058,787
ERT1Z 128 ARIIENER Placements with banks maturing

between one and twelve months 2,730,000 3,139,380 - 1,783,549 777,925 8,430,854
BEEERENES Trading securities 8,871,502 - - 342 - 8,871,844
EEAATEFEREEY Financial assets designated at

STABGNEREAE fair value through profit or loss - 279,056 - - - 279,056

fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 20,699 1,145,007 - 485 11,131 1,177,322
XBERREER Advances and other accounts 86,955,181 17,293,945 6,363,750 8,856,064 627,265 120,096,205
AL EES Available-for-sale securities 6,048,685 26,275,108 631 198,390 216,422 32,739,236
BEIHES Held-to-maturity securities 400,000 6,595,010 2,401,808 540,012 287,010 10,223,840
SREEAT Total financial assets 108,017,330 62,929,481 9,250,200 13,165,166 3,514,967 196,877,144
g Liabilities
ROFER Deposits from banks 63,210 1,882,902 - 366,327 5,764 2,318,203
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 32,359 1,276,663 - 183 34,213 1,343,418
BEEERSNARE Trading liabilities 7,748,887 - - - - 7,748,887
REEH Deposits from customers 106,575,778 20,535,152 9,612,115 11,426,415 5,713,513 153,862,973
BRINGRE Certificates of deposit issued 4,816,285 1,743,601 = = = 6,559,976
#ERK Subordinated notes - 591,014 - - 1,205149 7,146,163
HibfRE kR Other accounts and accruals 1,542,615 982,009 75,717 285,815 86,467 2,972,623
SREEAT Total financial liabilities 120,779,134 32,361,431 9,687,832 12,078,740  7,045106 181,952,243
EESRRAKRRE Net on-balance sheet positions (12,761,804) 30,568,050 (437,632 1,086,426  (3,530,139) 14,924,901
BEERRINGRERTE Off-balance sheet net notional

positions* 25,579,010  (29,168,577) - (166,402) 3,514,048 (241,921)
EEEE Credit commitments 61,894,526 4,953,658 683,772 3,443,879 123,117 71,098,952
* BEABRINGEZRFHEZZEANREARE * Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional

BNESEBRERZIMESBITETANERF

o

amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which

are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency

movements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HEEREE@m

3.3 WiZEE @)
3.3.3 SMEEER ()

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)

B e R AR% Hif A

2015124318 At 31 December 2015 HKD usb MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
B e RIS Cash and balances with banks 5645828 7,749,441 496,360 2,062,617 1,551,660 17,505,906
FERT1 212 AR BHHER Placements with banks maturing

between one and twelve months 300,001 5,060,782 - 1,825,588 311,489 7,497,860
FEEERBNES Trading securities 8,572,347 - - 47 - 8572,3%
RENATEHEHEEY Financial assets designated at

STABRNEREE fair value through profit or loss - 217,796 - - - 217,79

fTESRMIA Derivative financial instruments 42,870 975,141 - 52 61,265 1,079,328
REETREERE Advances and other accounts 84,545,684 17,186,933 5,872,044 9,870,768 945,916 118,421,345
NSRS Available-for-sale securities 3,452,398 20,051,995 631 456,016 238,748 24,199,788
BRIHES Held-to-maturity securities 540,296 6,513,189 1,994,338 1,132,754 295,719 10,476,296
SHEER Total financial assets 103,099,424  57,755277 8,363,373  15347,842 3,404,797 187,970,713
afE Liabilities
SR Deposits from banks 103,918 1,446,107 152 112 622 1,550,911
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 29,639 1,413,377 - 581 14,835 1,458,432
BEEERRNERE Trading liabilities 6,270,630 - - - - 6,270,630
RPRER Deposits from customers 107,594,717 15,782,914 8,381,870 13,542,557 5,545,845 150,847,903
BETHENE Certificates of deposit issued 5,945,244 286,593 - - - 6231837
BEES Subordinated notes - 4,096,710 - - 1,223,184 5,319,894
Hinfk B RFER Other accounts and accruals 1,434,299 629,539 55,207 408,514 93,255 2,620,814
LREESH Total financial liabilities 121,378,447 23655240 8437229 13951764 6,877,741 174,300,421
EERBRRNEEFE Net on-balance sheet positions (18,279,023) 34,100,037 (73,856) 1,396,078 (3,472,944) 13,670,292
BEEABRRIMGERE TR Off-balance sheet net notional

positions* 29,612,545 (33,002,743) - (283,729) 3,488,306 (185,621)
SR Credit commitments 60,704,881 6,288,507 902,569 2,461,184 102,022 70,459,163

RIBITEBER AR 20165 F 5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.4 Interest rate risk

The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate
risks. Included in the table are the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual
repricing or maturity dates.

3EANL 1)L
38R EiE E5E
EDUN Over Over SENE FitE
3 months 3 months 1 year Over  Non-interest it
2016512831 A At 31 December 2016 or less to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
gE Assets
BeRERINES Cash and balances with banks 14,433,181 - - - 625,606 15,058,787
R 212 EARSIEBRER Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months 7,341,451 1,089,403 - - - 8,430,854
HEBERBNES Trading securities 4,931,755 3,880,021 60,068 - - 8,871,844
REAATEEEHED Financial assets designated at
SABRNEHAE fair value through profit or loss - - - - 279,056 279,056
fEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,177,322 1,177,322
EREAREMERE Advances and other accounts 97,350,046 6,756,560 9,903,125 1,798,264 4288210 120,096,205
A#HERS Available-for-sale securities 5,852,865 2,797,424 13,324477 10,293,182 471,288 32,739,236
HEIHES Held-to-maturity securities 4,266,206 3,147,947 2,809,597 = = 10,223,840
SREER Total financial assets 134,175,504 17,671,355 26,007,267 12,091,446 6,641,482 196,877,144
8 Liabilities
OB Deposits from banks 793,232 33,358 1,395,828 - 95,785 2,318,203
fEEBIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,343,418 1,343,418
RIEEERRVAR Trading liabilities 5,283,167 2,415,765 49,955 - - 7,748,887
EPREH Deposits from customers 123,042,794 23,355,524 1,286,633 - 6,178,022 153,862,973
BEANENE Certificates of deposit issued 3,642,359 1,659,472 1,258,145 - - 6,559,976
KERK Subordinated notes 1,634,220 - 5,511,043 - - 7,146,163
HihiRA REsR Other accounts and accruals 7,650 - - - 2,964,973 2,072,623
SREEAT Total financial liabilities 134,403,422 27,464,119 9,502,504 - 10,562,198 181,952,243
NESBEEAT (REHR) Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)* (227,328) (9,792,764) 16,504,763 12,091,446
MEffETARNZ S Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 5,677,142 (61,225) 4218879 (10,022,433)
NESRERA (£%) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* 5,449,314 (9,853,989) 20,813,642 2,069,013

* RAEFEN SR EENREEABRANEEM
BEMNFAEERETE - KHENSHZREZEDA
FOBE A X AR ET MR ITE T RS KRR

B o

*

Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of
on-balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap
takes into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered
into to mitigate interest rate risk.
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(LAB® T ITAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. BXEBERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 WiZEE @)
3.34 FIXEEE &)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)

3fERNE 3
3{EA EF E5F
FUT Over Over SENE a8
3 months 3 months 1 year Over  Non-interest At
155124318 At 31 December 2015 orless to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
BE Assets
RERERTNER Cash and balances with banks 15,733,402 1,111,202 - - 661,302 17,505,906
R 2128 ARZISHER Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months 4,399,716 3,098,144 - - - 7,497,860
HESERROES Trading securities 2,421,056 6,121,951 29,387 - - 8,572,304
RENATE2EEEY Financial assets designated at
STABRNEREE fair value through profit or loss - - - - 217,79 217,79
fiEeRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,079,328 1,079,328
BEEFRAMEKE Advances and other accounts 96,168,243 8,017,829 8,099,579 1,678,326 4457368 118,421,345
MHHEES Available-for-sale securities 2,182,122 2,139,471 12,311,285 6,495,804 471,016 24,199,788
BRIEES Held-to-maturity securities 3,503,986 677,165 6,295,145 - - 10,476,296
SREEAF Total financial assets 125,008,525 21,165,762 26,735,396 8,174,220 6,886,810 187,970,713
8 Liabilties
HikER Deposits from banks 686,709 - 813,755 - 50,447 1,550,911
fEeBIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,458,432 1,458,432
HEEERBNER Trading liabilities 703,526 5,504,770 62,334 - - 6,270,630
RFER Deposits from customers 116,684,257 27,616,233 747,174 - 5800239 150,847,903
BEANENE Certificates of deposit issued 3,160,688 1,616,677 1,454,472 - - 6,231,837
(EE Subordinated notes - - 5,319,894 - - 5,319,894
HiniRA RBsR Other accounts and accruals - - - - 2,620,814 2,620,814
SHBER: Total financial liabilities 121,235,180 34,737,680 8,397,629 - 9,929,932 174,300,421
HEHRERA (REH%) Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)* 3773345 (13571918 18,337,767 8,174,220
MEfTETARHZ®E Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 2,825,721 795,495 2,326,751 (6,105,877)
e gREER AR (FH%) Total interest sensitivity gap (acjusted)’ 6,599,066 (12776423 20,664,518 2,068,343

AFRITEEFR AT 20165FF5¢
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to fund increases in
assets or meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due without incurring unacceptable loss.

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group manages its liquidity on a prudent basis with the objective
to comply with the statutory standard and to ensure that there is an
adequate liquidity and funding capacity to meet normal business
operations and to withstand a prolonged period of liquidity stress of
not less than a month. Starting from 1 January 2015, the Group has
adopted the Liquidity Maintenance Ratio (“LMR”) introduced by the
HKMA to replace the liquidity ratio as a regulatory standard as part of
the implementation of Basel Ill liquidity regime in Hong Kong. During
the period, the Group had maintained a sufficiently high LMR well
above the statutory minimum of 25%.

Moreover, the Group has maintained a sound liquidity risk
management framework in accordance with the requirements set
forth in the SPM LM-2 on “Sound Systems and Controls for Liquidity
Risk Management” issued by the HKMA in April 2011. The SPM LM-2
is developed to implement the liquidity sound principles formulated
by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (“Basel Committee”)
to strengthen the liquidity risk management standards of banks.
During 2016, the HKMA has issued the revised SPM module LM-1
“Regulatory Framework for Supervision of Liquidity Risk” in July and
the revised module of the SPM LM-2 in November respectively. The
liquidity management and reporting framework as well as disclosures
of the Group are being enhanced for meeting the new requirements.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

Liquidity risk management is governed by the policy and framework
approved by the Board, which delegates to the Group’s ALCO to
oversee liquidity risk management. The ALCO regularly reviews the
Group’s loan and deposit mix and changes, funding requirements and
projections, and monitors a set of liquidity risk metrics, including the
LMR and maturity mismatch on an ongoing basis. Appropriate limits
or triggers on these risk metrics are set and sufficient liquid assets
are held to ensure that the Group can meet all short-term funding
requirements. The Treasury Division is responsible for the day-to-
day management of funding and liquidity position while the RMCD
is responsible for the measurement and monitoring of liquidity risk
exposures on a daily and monthly basis, and also conducting liquidity
analysis and stress testing. The Financial Control Division handles
regulatory reporting in relation to liquidity risk, and coordinates the
regular forecast of loans and deposits, and LMR, budget and analysis
relating to liquidity and funding management.

The Group places considerable importance to establish a diversified
and stable funding. While customer deposits form the primary portion
of the Group’s funding, certificates of deposit and medium term notes
are issued at opportune time in order to lengthen the funding maturity
and optimise asset and liability maturities. Short-term interbank
deposits are taken on a limited basis with the aim of maintaining the
presence in the market and the Group is a net lender to the interbank
market.

The monitoring and reporting take the forms of cash flow
measurements and projections for different time horizons, including
the next day, week and month, which are key periods for liquidity
management. The starting point for those projections is an analysis
of the contractual maturity of the financial assets and liabilities as
well as the expected maturity of these assets and liabilities based
on historical observations. The cash flow projections also take into
account the historical behaviour of off-balance sheet items, including
undrawn lending commitments and contingent liabilities such as
standby letters of credit and guarantees. A liquidity cushion is held to
withstand unexpected shortfall in net cash flow. Eligible securities in
the cushion are mainly in high credit quality and have sufficient market
depth that can be realised within 1 month. Debt securities held are
marked to the market on daily basis to ensure their market liquidity.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

REB D3|

Internal categorisation

BERAZREE

Cash to be recognised

EEEH

Asset classes

BEKREL
Eligibility criteria

ER 1{E AR B - ZEERBITRAEEMEIT 0% & 20% 2 ARES
ZBEES
Level 1 Within 1 month Debt securities issued by 0% and 20% risk weighted
government, multilateral
development banks and public
sector entities
FE2M% 1{ERR FEMEREITZEBES EENRRA-SA L
Level 2 Within 1 month Debt securities issued by non- Credit rating with A- or above
financial corporate entities
mE AR RAR Size of the liquidity cushion
(B8BT)
(in HK$ million)
NEB D AR Internal categorisation 2016 2015
ER Level 1 14,355 11,554
EP Level 2 9,684 7,891

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

171



172

B H5 Rk B et

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TAL5)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. BXEBERE@m
3.4 REBESES @
34.1 REIELE G EEEF (&)

265 B TE BRETT R RIS, - B 4 LA I TE AR
B~ — RIS EEE RO E AR R AR
ERBERRER B 2 TI5EN THEELE
WEHIER=EETE - FIEEREIERE L

FRAMNZESBER MEMBR SRR ZEF (F
AAHETT Bl BB 17 5 22 5 sk B E R AE U B 1 L P B 2
RgzEE) SEATRBMZRSEBEATFIRAE
TIRBEBERTZEEREANM S - AREE
ME=FAZRXIERIE - AEEZMBRRENES
REEERTAEEEREE MR ARNES
2 AEEZTET ARG RZ RINES K KA
LR - BITETAGHN TASE 2 BERREE
R WEE TR ARE IR - INFE BRI
EHmBEHAEENREERRATE K
e

34.2 ZIHHZ#HT

TERAMAEELRREMREGHES OB A K
RPAELDA (WER) ZHBHARDIBZEER
AfE -

RIRITEBER AR 20165 F 5

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The Group performs stress testing regularly, which includes an
institution-specific crisis scenario, a general market crisis scenario
and a combination of these crisis scenarios in order to assess the
potential impact on its liquidity position under stressed market
conditions and has formulated a contingency plan that sets out
strategies for dealing with liquidity problems and the procedures
for making up cash flow deficits (e.g. conducting repo transactions
or liquidation of assets held for liquidity risk management purpose)
in emergency situations. Intragroup transactions are conducted
on arm’s length basis and are treated the same way as other third
party transactions for the purpose of cash flow projection under
normal scenario. Subsidiaries of the Group are required to manage
their liquidity positions to meet their needs under both normal and
stressed conditions. Most of the Group’s derivative transactions
are exchange rate contracts and interest rate contracts. Under the
terms of our collateral obligations under derivative contracts, in the
event of a three-notch downgrade in credit ratings, the impact on the
Group’s liquidity position from additional collateral required to post is
immaterial.

3.4.2 Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, where
applicable, the earliest callable date.
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3. BXEBERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 REBESES @ 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 Z/RH 7T () 3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)
1ERAL 3EANL
B3AHAT 3k 1E0E
P5EE  1@EAENT  Smonthsor Over B58
Repayable Upto lesshbutover Jmonths  Over1 year SENE el ait

0165128318 At 31 December 2016 on demand 1 month 1 month to1 year to5years  Over5years Indefinite Total
gE Assets
BARES R Cash and belances with banks 1976261 130252 - - - - - 1508787
ERT1Z12[AR Placements with banks maturing

SR between one and twelve months - - 7,463,765 967,089 - - - 8,430,854
RIEBERRIES Trading securities - 2,602,110 2,706,114 3,469,166 94,454 - - 8,871,844
BEMATEEERES  Financial assets designated at

FARRASHARE fair value through profit o loss - - - - - 279,056 - 279,056
fEERTA Derivative financial instruments - 62,761 153,035 604,064 119,772 237,690 - 1,177,322
R REMER Advances and other accounts 8,246,624 14,898,538 11,842,894 14,926,815 32,246,185 36,374,530 1,560,619 120,096,205
fHERF Available-for-sale securities - 2,057,565 3,062,212 3,006,572 13,309,842 10,841,757 471,288 32,739,236
FRHEES Held-to-maturity securities - 1,676,029 2,908,307 3,179,324 2,460,180 - - 10,223,840
BENARE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 4,253,393 4,253,393
LEAHEERE Investments in jointy controlled entities - - - - - - 75,412 75,412
HE Goodil - - - - - - 811,690 811,690
EEE Intangible assets - - - - - - 58,640 58,640
MERAMEREE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 2,098,846 2,098,846
REnE Investment properties - - - - - - 964,447 964,447
PafERE Current income tax assets - - - 2,791 - - - 2,791
BEHEEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 68,286 - - 68,266
BEAH Total assets 10,222,385 34,379,529 26,126,321 26,155,821 48,298,719 47,733,033 10,294,335 205,210,649
8f Liabiliies
RO Deposits from banks 41,180 124,926 730,360 33,358 1,388,379 - - 2,318,203
fESMTA Derivative financial instruments - 90,292 327,153 646,769 189,167 90,037 = 1,343,418
RIEEBREMAE Trading liabilties - 550,384 4,732,783 2,415,765 49,955 - - 7,748,867
EPER Deposits from customers 59,330,699 29,482,803 40407315 23,355,524 1,286,632 - - 153862973
BENEE Certficates of depostt issued - 1,245,281 2,247,083 1,800,467 1,268,145 - - 6,559,976
) Subordinated notes - - 1,634,220 - 5,511,943 - - 7,146,163
AR A R Other accounts and accruals 50,394 1,228,367 701,825 763,710 59,208 2,353 166,766 2,972,623
Sl Current income tax liablties = = 5 160,096 g = = 160,09
BthEak Deferred income tax liabilties - - - - 91,741 - - 91,741
B Total liabilities 59,422,273 32,722,053 50,780,739 29,184,689 9,835,170 92,390 166,766 182,204,080
FhREtEE Net liquidity gap (49,199,388) 1,657,476 (22,654,41) (3,028,368) 38,463,549 47,640,643 10,127,569 23,006,569
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

1EANE 3EANE
{B3EAT EF 155t
MEEE  1EASNT  Imonthsor Over E5F
Repayable Upto  lessbut over Imonths  Over1 year SENE EIRED GH

201551231 A At 31 December 2015 on demand 1 month 1 month to 1 year to5years  Over5years Indefinite Total
EE Assets
ReRESANER Cash and balances with banks 2,242,604 15,263,302 - - = = - 17,505,906
R Z12[AR Placements with banks maturing

HEmER between one and twelve months - - 4,399,719 3,098,141 - - - 7,497,860
RIEBERRIES Trading securities - 970,485 1,866,683 5,685,617 49,609 - - 8,672,394
BEMATETEERES  Financial assets designated at

FARRNSHARE fair value through profit o loss - - - - - 217,79 - 217,79
fEEMTIA Derivative financial instruments - 127,618 61,352 321,722 522,780 45,856 - 1,079,328
P Advances and other accounts 8,287,084 13,158,097 13,997,865 16,916,271 29,030,243 35,731,575 1300210 118,421,345
TRIERS Available-for-sale securities - 272,680 1,801,792 2,593,677 11974532 7,086,091 471,016 24,199,788
RE5EES Held-to-maturity securities - 1,427,783 634,405 1,865,857 6,548,251 - - 10,476,296
BEnmRE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 4099217 4099217
AREHEERE Investments in jointy controlled entities - - - - - - 71,19 71,19
HE Goodwl - - - - - - 811,690 811,690
EREE Intangible assets - - - - - - 50,805 59,805
AEREMEREE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 1,941,866 1,941,866
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 991,376 991,376
Il Current income tax assets - - - 2,680 - - - 2,680
BILHELE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 83473 - - 83473
HERd Total assets 10,529,688 31,219,965 22,761,816 30,483,965 48,208,888 43,081,318 9746299 196,031,939
& Liabiltes
i Deposits from banks 21,047 96,308 40,000 581,254 812,307 - - 1,550,911
fiEemIA Derivative financial instruments - 90,088 62,248 357,804 763,153 185,049 - 1,458,432
RIEEERENAE Trading liabilties - 436,010 267,504 5,504,770 62,346 - - 6,270,630
EPmR Deposits from customers 57883788 343812 1648 27,617,351 T47174 - - 150,847,903
BENEE Qertificates of deposit issued - 1,310,093 1,850,594 1,616,677 1454473 - - 6,231,837
) Subordinated notes - - - - 5,319,894 - - 5,319,804
AR A R Other accounts and accruals 21,624 840,387 631,116 769,600 45972 - 312,115 2,620,814
Gl Current income tax liabilties - - - 201978 - - - 201978
EitHEAE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - 46,556 - - 46,55
8fa% Total liabilties 57,926,459 35,208,193 35,015,740 36,649,524 9,251,875 185,049 312,115 174,548,955
FratEh Net liquidity gap (47,396,771) (3,988.208)  (12,253,924) (6,165,559) 38,057,013 42,896,269 9,434,184 21,482,984
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

In respect of certificates of deposit held for investment purpose
and included in total assets as at the end of the reporting period,
the relevant balance, analysed based on the remaining period to

contractual maturity, is shown as follows:

1EANL 3EANL
{B3fEAZAT 3 1E0E
PHEE  1EAIUT  3monthsor Over 13
Repayable Upto  lesshut over 3months  Over1 year SENL EHHAS fit
on demand 1 month 1 month to1 year to5years  Over5years Indefinite Total
0165128318 At 31 December 2016
FREESH Certficates of deposit held
included in:
REIEES Held-to-maturity securities - - 100,000 100,000 200,000 - - 400,000
0155128318 At 31 December 2015
FREESH Certficates of deposit held
included in:
REIEE S Held-to-maturity securities - 378,578 - 498,955 300,000 - - 1,177,533

BEHEABEHRRRFRERMZEHE LS
BEEETHIER - HRETHEBRZKESR
AEERHIR R ARER - HIRTME © T2
FEMBERE N ERE - TRENFEMAERERSA
NgeS - EhEgmERRR

BEEABNIINARAGENKAERE B
MEBENED  RHGHEERSHESRERN
KR EREFFFAERRNEERE

REE-—RIARE=TeREFEHELED
RES @ ERERNEHEREETAE RIS
MBEERTRKELRAENSE - AR RZEE
AERFHRKIEABAPHRES - FARE
HEEZEEAENRKENGONBESRRVER
BRREVESHFR

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and
interest rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the
management of the Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely
matched, as businesses transacted are often of uncertain term
and of different types. An unmatched position potentially enhances
profitability, but also increases the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at
an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are
important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its

exposure to changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and
standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the
commitment because the Group does not generally expect the third
parties to fully draw funds under the agreement. The total outstanding
contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not
necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of these
commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that
will be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that
will be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group
manages the inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted
cash inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that normally will be settled on a net basis
include:

o Foreign exchange derivatives: OTC currency options, currency
futures, exchange-traded currency options;

o Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, OTC interest rate options, interest rate futures and
other interest rate contracts; and

o Equity derivatives: equity options.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:

° Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency
swaps;
° Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps and cross currency

interest rate swaps; and
° Credit derivatives: credit default swaps.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(Continued)
1EANLE AL
BAHIUT BE 1EUE
1fAZUAT 3 months or Over B5E
Upto less but over 3months  Over 1 year 5N E &5t
201612831 8 At 31 December 2016 1 month 1 month to 1 year to5years  Over5 years Total
FTETARER Non-derivative cash flow
af Liabilities
ROFH Deposits from banks 171,310 739,161 57,281 1,388,593 = 2,356,345
EFEH Deposits from customers 89,055,694  41,035364 23,627,830 1,380,074 - 155,098,962
HEEERENERE Trading liabilities 550,500 4,737,209 2,423,828 50,327 - 7,761,864
BRINGRE Certificates of deposit issued 1,263,992 2,264,701 1,852,694 1,318,939 = 6,700,326
#EREH Subordinated notes 45801 1,733,232 185989 6,184,172 - 8,149,194
EftaE Other liabilities 1,156,192 361,771 368,619 9,204 22806 1,918,682
BERE Total liabilities
(B#F1#8A) (contractual maturity dates) 92,243,489 50,871,438 28,516,241 10,331,399 22,806 181,985,373
fIETIRRER Derivative cash flow
BEREE TESRTE Derivative financial instruments
settled on net basis (8,962) (13,083) (5,249) (11,153) (1,370) (39,817)
REBEETESHTE Derivative financial instruments
settled on a gross basis
i Total outflow 37,504,889 || 14,088,014 || 26,098,609 3,073,949 970,731 || 81,736,192
MABE Total inflow (37,492,892) | | (14,058,105) || (25,951,105) || (2,646,157) (651,300) | | (80,799,559)
11,997 29,909 147,504 427,792 319,431 936,633
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

178

(Continued)
1EANER  3EAMLE
SEAHLT BE 1EE
1EASUT 3 months or Over B5E
Upto less but over 3months  Over 1 year 5ENLE At
20155124318 At 31 December 2015 1 month 1 month to 1 year to5years  Over 5 years Total
FETARSR Non-derivative cash flow
afE Liabilities
ROFH Deposits from banks 157,502 977 581,766 812,307 - 1,552,552
BPER Deposits from customers 90,526,511 32,826,501 27,934,728 1,362,298 - 152,650,038
HEEERENERE Trading liabilities 436,000 267,620 5,505,473 62,724 - 6,271,817
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 1318436 1,859,906 1,657,069 1,491,721 - 6,327,132
BERS Subordinated notes 46,791 108,437 148,769 5,893,981 - 6,192,978
A& fE Other liabilities 721,002 344,365 332,718 - 54,463 1,452,548
BEGE Total liabilities
(RthzIHA) (contractual maturity dates) 93,206,242  35402,806 36,160,523 9,623,031 54,463 174,447,065
ITETARER Derivative cash flow
REBLEE TESBTA Derivative financial instruments
settled on net basis 6,690 4,848 (25,200) (52,362) (2,158) (68,182)
RETEEE ITESRTA Derivative financial instruments
settled on a gross basis
it 5 Total outflow 34,372,804 || 18,995,925 || 29,679,102 || 2,808,579 503,610 || 86,360,110
AL Total inflow (34,414,618) | | (18,995,176) | | (29,437,748) || (2,382,385) (249,458) | | (85,479,385)
(41,724) 749 241,354 426,194 254,152 880,725

AFRITEEFR AT 20165FF5¢




BAH5 Rk M ot

3. HEEREE@m
3.4 HREBELES @

344 BEBMEXIEE
TREEATHER :

EAHERTEPEEREMRE 2B
B(KREBAEEEERBERIEHTIAZ
ABNAZHE)

MR ER R B A B R AR RSN B S 2 A TS 4R
*

ANEE AAE A Z T A BUR & & 4 A SR
RARRASN 2 REBRENFARE &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items

Included in the table below are the following items:

° Loan commitments by reference to the dates of the contractual
amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments
that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities;

o Financial guarantees based on the conditions existing at the
reporting date as to what contractual payments are required;

° The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of operating lease commitments
where a Group company is the lessee; and

o BBERENMRE 2 EAEE - J Capital commitments for the acquisition of buildings and
equipment.
1EHUR 1HHE 5F Lk
No later B5F Over &&t
2016512 A31H At 31 December 2016 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
BHEE Loan commitments 67,252,494 1,799,476 455744 69,507,714
R AR Guarantees, acceptances and
Hl ¢ B other financial facilities
—ERRERERE - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 827,652 148,601 - 976,253
—RERHEEAE - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 593,956 - - 593,956
BTN Forward forward deposits placed 21,029 - - 21,029
IR TR K Operating lease commitments 185,896 489,608 320,495 995,999
B Capital commitments 62,717 - - 62,717
CH) Total 68,943,744 2,437,685 776,239 72,157,668
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items (Continued)

1ELR 1N E 5
No later ZhE Over &t
2015412 A31H At 31 December 2015 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
BRUAE Loan commitments 66,145,095 2,958,451 140,456 69,244,002
R EALR Guarantees, acceptances and
H fth & Bl AR 75 other financial facilities
—ERRERERRE - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 356,891 417,443 2,178 776,512
—BEREERE - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 438,649 - - 438,649
EHFR Forward forward deposits placed = = = =
I E TR A A Operating lease commitments 183,332 468,581 349,332 1,001,245
BAHENE Capital commitments 165,688 = = 165,688
At Total 67,080,655 3,844,475 491,966 71,626,096

35 SRMEEREBFBEZAFE

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

(F) RFEZEE

Q$@x@?ﬁmi$A%aﬁ%$ﬁl
BEE N MEE R REIEFZEHE
R i%AﬁﬁﬁéﬁhéﬂMéigﬁ
EEMTAZMEERF - HEARRER
REEFMBLIEXAERMGER(WE
)BT - MIAEARTIERRE
BRATHEREBIEZ TN -

BT A AFENEBMSER TN
SEENTEREBTZAFRRSHEHE
BEMBNEEEEMITZER T
WAL ENE R A B E A E S A
5t o

%ﬁ o S K>
\Xy &

RIBITEBER AR 20165 F 5

(@) Determination of fair value

Fair values are subject to a control framework that the Board is
held responsible for ensuring proper valuation governance and
control processes of the Group. It delegates the responsibility
for overseeing the valuation process for financial instruments to
the TIRC. Valuation is performed independently by RMCD and
where appropriate, by independent and professionally qualified
valuers and the valuation results are periodically verified to
ensure the integrity of the fair value measurement process.

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date under current market conditions regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation
technique.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA FThz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(@)  Determination of fair value (Continued)

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency. A quoted price in an active market provides
the most reliable evidence of fair value and shall be used
whenever available. If a financial asset or a financial liability has
a bid price and an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the circumstances is
used by the Group.

Where observable market quotation of financial instruments is
not directly available, the Group estimates the fair value of such
financial instruments by using appropriate valuation techniques
that are widely recognised including present value techniques
and standard option pricing models. In applying valuation
techniques for these financial instruments, the Group maximises
the use of relevant observable inputs (for examples, interest
rates, foreign exchange rates, volatilities, credit spreads) and
minimises the use of unobservable inputs. For example, the
fair value of interest-rate swaps is calculated as the present
value of the estimated future cash flows, the fair value of foreign
exchange forward contracts is generally based on current
forward rates and the fair value of option contracts is derived
using appropriate pricing models, such as Black-Scholes
model.

The Group uses external price quotes and its own credit
spreads in determining the current value of its financial liabilities
and other liabilities for which it has elected the fair value option.
When the Group’s credit spreads widen, the Group recognises
a gain on these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has
decreased. When the Group’s credit spreads narrow, the Group
recognises a loss on these liabilities because the value of the
liabilities has increased.

Price data and parameters used in the measurement process

are reviewed carefully and adjusted, if necessary, to take
consideration of the current market developments.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(b)  Fair value hierarchy

The Group measures fair values using the following hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the observable and unobservable
inputs used in the fair value measurement:

Level Descriptions

1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities. This level includes equity
securities and derivatives that are listed on exchanges.

2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices). This level includes the majority of the OTC
derivative contracts.

3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This
level includes equity and debt securities with significant
unobservable components.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(b)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

BEAFEMEZEERARE Assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

2016F12H 31 A

F1K E2MK IR &%
At 31 December 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

A

0}

IATEHEAXEE
SABRMEHAE
BIEEERA

A

EEATESBAL
CTEPN

EBES

ITESRTE
RERERZ
RARELER

HHECSREE
EHES

e

RATEE2AEA

Descriptions

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Held for trading
Debt securities - 8,871,844 - 8,871,844

Designated at fair value
through profit or loss
Debt securities - 279,056 - 279,056

Derivative financial instruments
Held for trading 24 831,107 - 831,131
Held for hedging - 346,191 - 346,191

Available-for-sale financial assets

Debt securities - 32,267,946 4,828 32,272,774
Equity securities 254,705 136,704 75,053 466,462
Total assets measured at fair value 254,729 42,732,848 79,881 43,067,458

PAAT BT = B EEE) Financial liabilities at fair value

TABRNEREE through profit or loss

FIEEERG Held for trading - 7,748,887 - 7,748,887
fTHEEMIA Derivative financial instruments

FIFEERG Held for trading - 875,997 - 875,997

A R+ Held for hedging - 467,421 = 467,421
BAFEFEZEEA Total liabilities measured at fair value - 9,092,305 = 9,092,305
ATCAEIRFEEZCRMEERAIE LT Financial assets classified as Level 3 assets represent investments
HEBLFREFRE - HEERMEELRH in unlisted equity securities and debentures. They are stated at
RENTEEENE ZAAEIT cost which is considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair

value.

#H £2016F 12 31 H & 20154 12 A 31 For the year ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015,
HIEFE HiEcmEERBEE ARE there were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities into or

HAFESRTNEIRG - FREE2

REfKEEE o

out of the Level 3 fair value hierarchy. The changes in carrying
value represent the revaluation gains/losses.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)

RIBITEBER AR 20165 F 5

F1H F24 F3; A&t
201512 A31H At 31 December 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions
AT EFTE B EES Financial assets at fair value
FABENSRHEE through profit or loss
BEEERE Held for trading
&5 Debt securities - 8,572,394 - 8,572,394
EENAFEFEAH Designated at fair value
SEE A ERE through profit or loss
EE 5 Debt securities - 217,796 - 217,796
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments
RIEEBERE Held for trading 42 884,727 = 884,769
RBEBELEH Held for hedging = 194,559 = 194,559
At E s S REE Available-for-sale financial assets
EES Debt securities - 23,728,772 4,828 23,733,600
BntES Equity securities 208,587 182,571 75,030 466,188
BAVENECEERS Total assets measured at fair value 208,629 33,780,819 79,858 34,069,306
AAFEAFEREE Financial liabilities at fair value
FABRNEREE through profit or loss
HEEERAS Held for trading - 6,270,630 - 6,270,630
ITEERMIA Derivative financial instruments
RBEEER% Held for trading - 939,144 - 939,144
F5E RS Held for hedging - 519,288 - 519,288
BATEFECBERR Total liabilities measured at fair value - 7,729,062 = 7,729,062
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(c)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The table below summarises the carrying amounts and fair
values of those financial assets and liabilities not presented
in the Group’s statement of financial position at their fair
value. For disclosure purposes, these fair values have been
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at
the current market interest rate that is available to the Group

WEET o for similar financial instruments, if applicable, or in the case of
investment securities, determined based on market prices or
price quotations.

BREE ATE
Carrying value Fair value
2016 2015 2016 2015

CREE Financial assets

R e RIERITH AR Cash and balances with banks 15,058,787 17,505,906 15,057,714 17,507,491

FERT1E12AR Placements with banks maturing

ElL-ElEYEN between one and twelve months 8,430,854 7,497,860 8,439,024 7,504,096

BEFEEFRRBR Loans and advances to customers

BAER KRB Loans and advances to individuals

— =R - Credit cards 4,613,534 4,706,017 4,613,724 4,706,498
—RIBER - Mortgages 32,224,005 31,273,079 82,223,970 31,273,004
—Hfh - Others 11,557,295 9,729,001 11,562,909 9,732,804
EEFRBN Loans and advances to

corporate entities

—HHER - Term loans 30,862,318 29,150,773 30,864,563 29,149,405
—RIBEN - Mortgages 16,213,526 16,016,536 16,213,965 16,016,789
—E5RE - Trade finance 8,020,721 7,986,955 8,020,483 7,986,955
—Hfh - Others 10,163,322 10,762,963 10,155,470 10,769,582

BHRE Trade bills 4,299,974 6,469,899 4,325,745 6,504,322

BHEIHES Held-to-maturity securities 10,223,840 10,476,296 10,233,982 10,485,600

cRAE Financial liabilities

RITIEN Deposits from banks 2,318,203 1,550,911 2,318,874 1,569,956

BPER Deposits from customers 153,862,973 150,847,903 153,953,616 150,898,667

BEITHERE Certificates of deposit issued 6,559,976 6,231,837 6,565,994 6,235,944

RIEER Subordinated notes 7,146,163 5,319,894 7,298,495 5,452,466
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value (Continued)
(i) Placements with banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted
cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.

(i)  Loans and advances to customers, and trade bills

The estimated fair value of loans and advances and trade
bills represents the discounted amount of estimated future
cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows
are discounted at current market rates to determine fair
value.

(iii)  Investment securities

Investment securities include interest-bearing assets
included in the held-to-maturity category. Fair value of
held-to-maturity assets is based on market prices or
broker/dealer price quotations. Where this information is
not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market
prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

(iv) Deposits and balances from banks, deposits from
customers, certificates of deposit issued and other
borrowed funds

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated
maturity, which includes non-interest bearing deposits,
is the amount repayable on demand. The estimated
fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits and other
borrowings not quoted in an active market is based on
discounted cash flows using interest rates for new debts
with similar remaining maturity.
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3. HMKEKEE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
35 SsREEREGBZAFE®@M 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
() REERFEFTEZEHMTAE) (c)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value (Continued)
(v) EBBTHNEBESBIEEET (v) Debt securities in issue including subordinated
iz EER notes issued
HAREMESMEZFSFME - AKA For those notes where quoted market prices are not
HAEH B R 2 8 p S E AR available, the present value technique is used based on
B/ S BB ZIRETERGEA current yield curve and/or credit spread appropriate for
FE - the remaining term to maturity to estimate fair value.
3.6 EFXRERE 3.6 Capital management
AEBEBERNZBIEZAS : The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:
. BFENEBHWMERSENTIS ZRITEE . To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
BT E < BEAHIE regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;
. REREBHELREER 2N . To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its business as a
going concern;
. 7 A% R S U = [ ¥ AN 7 45 Lt A 25 AR B . To maximise returns to shareholders and optimise the benefits
EEEME & to other stakeholders; and
° IR KERNEM AT B ERLE - o To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
its business.
AEEEEETHERREERZE SR HIH Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
EREBERNTIEEEREES 2 H% - BIEX Hong Kong banking subsidiary is monitored regularly by the Group’s
EEZEBRITHBRAIZEARATEEREEE management, employing techniques based on the guidelines
KZER  BEAEERESEERERAERTE developed by the Basel Committee, as implemented by the HKMA, for
HER o supervisory purposes. The required information is filed with the HKMA

on a quarterly basis.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.6 Capital management (Continued)

As Basel Ill has become effective from January 2013 in Hong Kong,
DSB is required to meet three ratios, namely, the Common Equity
Tier 1 capital, Tier 1 capital and Total capital respectively against
risk-weighted assets. The internationally agreed minimum of these
three ratios starting from 1 January 2015 are set at 4.5%, 6.0%
and 8.0% respectively and are adopted by the HKMA. In order to
comply with HKMA'’s requirements as stated in the SPM CA-G-5 on
“Supervisory Review Process”, DSB is required to set further buffers,
to reflect material risks not included in the minimum regulatory
capital calculation, arising from regulator’s requirements, internal
assessment of risks and the results of stress tests under the Pillar
Il capital requirement. In addition, the capital conservation buffer,
countercyclical capital buffer and higher loss absorbency (“HLA”)
capital requirements introduced by the Basel Committee have
been implemented since 1 January 2016 in Hong Kong. In line with
the international standards, the HKMA also adopts the phase-in
arrangements for new capital requirements in relation to the Common
Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, Tier 1 capital ratio, capital buffers and HLA
capital requirements as set by the Basel Committee and will achieve
full implementation by 1 January 2019. Likewise, the Leverage Ratio
that forms part of Basel Ill implementation is under parallel run until
2017, with a view to establishing the Leverage Ratio as a Pillar 1
requirement on 1 January 2018, and relevant information has been
submitted by DSB for regulatory monitoring.

Risk-weighted amount is the aggregate of the risk-weighted amounts
for credit risk, market risk and operational risk, and covers both on-
balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. On-balance sheet
exposures are classified according to the obligor or the nature of each
exposure and risk-weighted based on the credit assessment rating
assigned by an external credit assessment institution recognised by
the HKMA or other rules as set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules,
taking into account the capital effects of credit risk mitigation.
Off-balance sheet exposures are converted into credit-equivalent
amounts by applying relevant credit conversion factors to each
exposure, before being classified and risk-weighted as if they were
on-balance sheet exposures.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.6 Capital management (Continued)

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Macau banking subsidiary, BCM, and banking subsidiary in China,
DSB China, are monitored regularly by the Group’s management,
employing techniques based on the guidelines provided by the
Autoridade Monetaria de Macau (“AMCM”) and the China Banking
Regulatory Commission (“CBRC”) respectively for supervisory
purposes.

The required information is filed by BCM with the AMCM and by
DSB China with the CBRC on a quarterly basis. The AMCM requires
BCM and the CBRC requires DSB China to maintain a ratio of own
funds or capital base to total risk-weighted exposures (i.e. the capital
adequacy ratio) not lower than the agreed regulatory minimum of 8%.

Certain non-banking subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to
statutory capital requirements from other regulatory authorities, such
as the Securities and Futures Commission.

3.7 Fiduciary activities

The Group provides custody, trustee, wealth management and
advisory services to third parties, which involve the Group making
allocation and purchase and sale decisions in relation to a variety
of financial instruments. Those assets that are held in a fiduciary
capacity are not included in the Group’s financial statements. These
services could give rise to the risk that the Group could be accused of
mal-administration.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Changes in estimates and assumptions may
have a significant impact on the results of the Group in the periods
when changes are made. The application and selection of different
estimates and assumptions, and their subsequent changes, could
affect the Group’s profit and net asset value in the future. The Group,
based on its high-level assessment of the sensitivity impacts on the
reported assets and liabilities of the Group arising from the changes
in critical accounting estimates and assumptions, believes that the
estimates and assumptions adopted are appropriate and reasonable,
and the financial results and positions presented in the Group’s
financial statements are fair and reasonable in all material respects.

(@) Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at
least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment
loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Group
makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease
can be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio.
This evidence may include observable data indicating that
there has been an adverse change in the payment status of
borrowers in a group, or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on assets in the Group. Management uses estimates
based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to
those in the portfolio when estimating its future cash flows of
recoverable amounts. The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows
are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.
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4.1

4.2

(LA T 7A7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)
(b)  Fair value of financial instruments

A majority of the Group’s investments in debt securities carried
at fair value are valued based on observable market quotations.
As a consequence of the difficulties in financial markets caused
by the 2008 global financial crisis, the Group had witnessed
observable declines in market liquidity and the range of market
quotations for certain securities have widened. The Group
applies judgement in selecting the most appropriate quotation
for valuation purposes based on its assessment of the range
of observable quotations, recent observable transactions, the
reliability and quality of the pricing source, and the value of
securities of a similar nature.

(c)  Goodwill and intangible asset valuation

For business combinations, subsequent to initial recognition
of goodwill and intangible assets, any major change in the
assumptions in relation to future benefits to be generated from
the intangible assets, including future cash flow of benefits
to be generated from the acquired entities, or discount rates
which could be caused by major changes in market conditions
and outlook, could result in adjustments to the carrying values
of such assets. In the event that the expected recoverable
amounts of goodwill and intangible assets are significantly lower
than their carrying values, impairment of such assets would
have to be recognised.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies

(@) Distinction between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property. In making its judgement, the Group
considers whether the property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-
occupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable
not only to property but also to other assets used in the
production or supply process.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

(@) Distinction between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties (Continued)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held to
supply services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
can be sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance
lease), the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted
for as investment property only if an insignificant portion is held
to supply services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is applied in determining whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as investment
property. The Group considers each property separately in
making its judgement.

(b) Impairment assessment on available-for-sale equity
securities, and investments in debt securities included in

the available-for-sale and held-to-maturity categories

The Group has conducted assessment of its available-for-sale
equity securities, and investments in debt securities included in
the available-for-sale and held-to-maturity categories as of the
end of the year and up to the date of the approval of the financial
statements of the Group. Assessment for any impairment, on
individual and collective basis, is made with reference to the
financial strength and credit rating of each issuer, industry
development and market conditions, and historical loss
experience of a portfolio of similar credits provided by rating
agencies. The Group has concluded that there are no objective
or specific indications that any of its available-for-sale and held-
to-maturity securities is individually impaired as at 31 December
2016.



B H5 Rk M ot

4.2

ERERER2EES MR
| | )

FERASEESBEZEXH E @

(%) HEB|EE

AEBBREELSTEAF IR ZIE D
BEBBEFEHA TEE MK REFESHA
ZHTEERMEERTESRES - lh—
DRBEHERAE - EELHER - K
SEFEERARSREZINHZEAR
RS - MARBARESEUHFREZTH
(TMBREERIBER - PIEEE S B E &
E¥n)  BEERAAREHDBERT
HHEEFES - RFREKEMBRERFE
M IEIREERPK NGB

(T) ZFERIKAREZEE

AEBEAHEREARBBGENEIT
FCEE - HARRBERIAREE) (B
IFBITHEBME) ABURE TR LR P M
RENERE - EELZHEE - AEEK
ZREEARBRROCENRYIRER
BRI1Z FHMAEERREFRR 2 ERER
MEBTREETARBEMN ZATREEMER
L8 -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7A7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

(c) Held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This classification
requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments
to maturity. If the Group fails to keep these investments to
maturity other than for the specific circumstances — for example,
selling an insignificant amount close to maturity — it will be
required to reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale. The
investments would therefore be measured at fair value, not

amortised cost.

(d)  Assessment of claims and contingencies

Judgement is needed to determine if provision for compensation
to certain customers who had bought structured investments
distributed (but not originated or arranged) by the Group need
to be recorded in accordance with the requirements of HKAS
37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”.
In making this judgement, the Group evaluates the information
relating to each or similar cases, and the likelihood and
estimated amount of outflow of resources which may be incurred
to settle the obligation after considering factors such as recent
settlement experiences and advice from legal counsel.
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4.2

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

(e) Impairment assessment of the investment in an associate,
Bank of Chongqing (“BOCQ”)

The Group carries out periodic impairment assessments on its
investment in BOCQ in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment

of assets”.

This assessment compares the carrying value of the investment
against the higher of management’s estimate of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal. Management’s estimate of
the value in use is based on a discounted cash flow projection
which contains certain assumptions derived from management
and observable market information. This estimate is subject
to application of management judgment and is sensitive to
assumptions on the discount rate and the cash flows arising
from the holding of this investment and from its ultimate
disposal.

As at 31 December 2016, management’s estimate of the value in
use is higher than the carrying value of its investment in BOCQ.
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5. ARAMBURRARRFEARGEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

RN B B AR R ER Statement of Financial Position of the Company
12A31H
As at 31 December
2016 2015
ME AR E Investments in subsidiaries 7,061,470 7,060,369
mMENE = Current assets
ER— R B A R 2 SR1TAS Bank balances with a subsidiary 64,684 51,115
FEUSAR I ELABR B Accounts receivable and
other accounts 490 453
FEUSH B A Bl 5IE Amounts due from subsidiaries 180,705 180,408
245,879 231,976
nBEE Current liabilities
TEIR B R M EMRE Accrued expenses and other accounts 3,110 3,114
FERTH B A 508 Amounts due to subsidiaries 416,863 416,863
419,973 419,977
B A A Net current liabilities (174,094) (188,001)
6,887,376 6,872,368
S EQUITY
A& Share capital 6,869,593 6,853,504
H Ao Other reserves (including
(BEREEF) () retained earnings) Note (a) 17,783 18,864
EREE Total equity 6,887,376 6,872,368

BE2N 201743 A 22 Bt /EREBREE M o

IFHE THE
EZE EFgE

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March
2017.

David Shou-Yeh Wong Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Director Managing Director
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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5. ARATBMBRARREFESE @ 5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
7 Note:
() RARFEEES (@) Reserve movement of the Company
BUBR R A BA
IRAD R E
B = B
Provision for
REBEF equity-settled
Retained share-based ast
Earnings compensation Total
201541 A1H At 1 January 2015 72,479 7,690 80,169
FEm A Profit for the year 456,216 - 456,216
TR BT R 2 Reserve arising from exercise
of share options - (769) (769)
VARSHE 2 - DA RR 19 75 E5 Tl Provision for equity-settled
HREN 2 B share-based compensation = 1,961 1,961
2014 FAREARR S 2014 final dividend (364,496) - (364,496)
2015 FH HARR B 2015 interim dividend (154,217) - (154,217)
2015412 H31H At 31 December 2015 9,982 8,882 18,864
20161 A1 H At 1 January 2016 9,982 8,882 18,864
FEREHH Profit for the year 520,674 = 520,674
TR B AT R 2 Reserve arising from exercise
of share options - (3,953) (3,953)
VAR SZ S LARR () AR it Provision for equity-settled
RN 2 B share-based compensation = 1,101 1,101
2015 SRR 2, 2015 final dividend (378,577) = (378,577)
2016 FH HAMR B 2016 interim dividend (140,326) - (140,326)
2016 12H31H At 31 December 2016 11,753 6,030 17,783

AFRITEBEFR AT 20165FF5¢
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6. EXDEBE

AEBERBEEEMERE ELE F(LEXEED
BE)RBNIBRE - AERTHREREMANTT
ZEENEZIREERRAZRMERERD
R EFEFERERZER - DIZEART B%
RIT - MERBIMRITRB DB BBRRHEE -
ARITREBZ LERREEFEBHON - B
SMRITES 2 BERIVIZEEHIBOMN -

RERBINAWER < EPH EmERT K&
REMERR  AEEREEXBE O/ TIZ
HOIA

s FEARTEBEEEIBEAZRFPER (&
ERTFRIE  TLAER  BX "BEEXK
MERRRE - REEBOHENRER
& o

. BERTEGLEEIER BR BE
BeMARBSRE  EETORRRMA
EEEERTHERMBEERS -

s WEXBIEBRFBINERT PREHFHR
EE MEEARERE FBHFREEER
REERB I ETEREE -

s IMRTTIRBEREBUNRFIMETEE
SN A B IR 2 B ARITARRITE
BRAKER —HAER BRI ZBEIRT

2 o

« EEEATEESEREG2SBHEY
WERE  EELAREBES (REEE
E) -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABHE T 7TA7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment reporting by the Group is prepared in accordance with
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”. Information reported to the chief
operating decision maker, including the Chief Executive and other EC
members, for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, is determined on the basis of personal banking,
commercial banking, treasury and overseas banking business.
Operating performances are analysed by business activities for local
banking business, and on business entity basis for overseas banking
business.

Considering the customer groups, products and services of local
businesses, the economic environment and regulations, the Group
splits the operating segments of the Group into the following
reportable segments:

° Personal banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from individual customers and the extension of residential
mortgage lending, personal loans, overdraft, vehicle financing
and credit card services and the provision of insurance sales

and investment services.

° Commercial banking business includes the acceptance of
deposits from and the advance of loans and working capital
finance to commercial, industrial and institutional customers,
and the provision of trade financing.

° Treasury activities are mainly the provision of foreign exchange
services and centralised cash management for deposit taking
and lending, interest rate risk management, management of
investment in securities and the overall funding of the Group.

° Overseas banking businesses include personal banking,
commercial banking business activities provided by overseas
subsidiaries in Macau and China, and the Group’s interest in a
commercial bank in China.

° Others include results of operations not directly identified under

other reportable segments, corporate investments and debt
funding (including subordinated notes).

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. EHEDERE @

IRENEREM S HAUERRBREER D
BZRAEEP  Em&RBEA - BEEZHN
ERNE: MAoRZENESERRESERMA
EENRAMESKA  H2RHSNR 28R
BREFDEERDE - DERZR S TIKER
FTEZFREF=EXZHZRBIEFERE - DA
B2 WA R ER & RS o

IBETNESBZBEZRXSEREREGENDED
B MEAXARXESBMAR KBRS TS
BZRACBEARIEENDREERA  DEE
NEMNDIEREmM - TEAEMIEESDHE
Em MR ERABAS - AERERAX
2N [HEM AT -

RIBITEBER AR 20165 F 5

6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the purpose of segment reporting, revenue derived from
customers, products and services directly identifiable with individual
segments are reported directly under respective segments, while
revenue and funding cost arising from inter-segment funding
operation and funding resources are allocated to segments by way
of transfer pricing mechanism with reference to market interest rates.
Transactions within segments are priced based on similar terms
offered to or transacted with external parties. Inter-segment income
or expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

All direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’ costs are
allocated to various segments and products based on effort and time
spent as well as segments’ operating income depending on the nature
of costs incurred. Costs related to corporate activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to segments, products and support functions
are grouped under Others as unallocated corporate expenses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

HZE2016F12H31 HLLEE

6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BARS BERT BB #1ER
Personal  Commercial BEER  Overseas A Inter- @it
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Others segment Total
FHSMA/ (i) Net interest income/(expenses) 1,543802 1,237,593 427,016 500,803 (71,695) - 3637519
EHBMA/ (%) Non-interest income/(expenses) 630,589 179,217 87,058 116,491 70,535 (1,000 1,082,950
EENA Total operating income 2,174,391 1,416,870 514,074 617,294 (1,160) (1,000) 4,720,469
BERH Operating expenses (1,874217)  (420,081)  (144798)  (462,560) 1,161 1,000 (2399,445)
TREFRERLEE Operating profit before loan impairment
Bl 2ERT and other credit provisions 800,174 996,339 369,276 154,734 1 - 2.301,04
EAERE R Loan impairment and other credit
Bib (%) /08 provisions (charged)/written back (260,201)  (351,916) - 48,550 - - (563,567)
THEFRERLEE Operating profit after loan impairment
Bk eERT and other credit provisions 539,973 644,923 369,276 203,284 1 - 1,757,457
HERBNEREBEE Nt (loss)/gain on disposal and fair value
BERENTEREL adjustment of investment properties
B(BR)/ s and other fixed assets (104) - - (186) 13,446 - 13,156
HENHNERS G Net gain on disposal of
available-for-sale securities - - 13,219 - 41,283 - 54,502
RELERELAGELER Loss on deemed disposal of investment
in an associate - - - - - - -
BIEBRENF £ Share of results of an associate - - - 602,793 - - 602,793
EEAREHER 225 Share of results of jointly controlled entities - - - - 18,593 - 18,503
WbiATRA Profit before taxation 539,869 644,923 382,495 805,891 73,323 - 2,446,501
B () /B Taxation (expenses)/credit (89,047 (106412 (63,112) (43,248) 776 - (301,043)
iyl Profit after taxation 450,822 538,511 319,383 762,643 74,099 - 2145458
HE2016F12A31HLLER For the year ended 31 December 2016
NER#HEER Depreciation and amortisation 64,704 13,148 5,949 35,822 40,072 - 159,695
R2016%F12 A318 At 31 December 2016
NREE Segment assets 46447588 54,664,156 69,352,142 35,258,558 4,670,788 (5,182,583) 205,210,649
PRAfR Segment liabilities 87,439,836 37,388,274 18848415 26533708 17,176,430  (5,182,583) 182,204,080
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. EHEDERE @)

HZE2015F12 A31 HIEFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

AARS TR MR EIEE
Personal  Commercial BIA%H  Overseas 2 Inter- &t
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Others segment Total
FHERA/ (i) Net interest income/(expenses) 1236755 1,149,755 377,085 508,611 (66,318) - 3,336,688
FEHSRA/ (%) Non-interest income/(expenses) 632,469 213,035 190476 126,657 88,517 (900) 1,250,254
EENA Total operating income 2,000,024 1,362,790 567,561 635,268 22,199 (900) 4,586,942
BELH QOperating expenses (1,260,121) (378,778) (140,878) (469,366) 8,585 900 (2,239,658)
THEFRERLMEE Operating profit before loan impairment
Bl 2ERT and other credit provisions 739,903 984,012 426,683 165,902 30,784 - 2347084
EAERE R EERE Loan impairment and other credit
(iRf)/ provisions (charged)/written back (230256)  (287,955) 15,000 (43,141) - - (496352
THEFRERLEE Operating profit after loan impairment
Bk eERT and other credit provisions 509,647 746,057 441,683 122,761 30,784 - 1,850,092
HERENE R Nt (loss)/gain on disposal and fair value
EREEREATERE adjustment of investment properties
L3 (BR)/ Wi and other fixed assets (1,283) (12) (13) 7 2,190 - 889
HENHNERS 2 NG Net gain on disposal of
available-for-sale securities - - 16,568 - - - 16,568
RELERELAREZER Loss on deemed disposal of investment
in an associate - - - (47,617) - - (47,617)
[ Ne A < Share of results of an associate - = = 665,942 = = 665,942
EEAREHER 22 Share of results of jointly controlled entities - - - - 21,945 - 21,945
BRHAn&R Profit before taxation 508,364 746,045 458,238 741,093 54,919 - 2,508,659
ik Taxation expenses (83,868)  (123,097) (75,609) (25,064) (449) - (308,087)
iyl Profit after taxation 424,496 622,948 382,629 716,029 54470 - 2000572
HE2015512 431 BLLER For the year ended 31 December 2015
NEREEER Depreciation and amortisation 58,882 12,246 6,759 40,746 38,299 - 156,932
#R2015% 12431 A At 31 December 2015
NREE Segment assets 44238858 55,906,000 63,141,488 31,842,489 4,788,614 (3,885,510) 196,031,939
HREE Segment liabilities 85,575,624 37,962,644 16816776 23,429,044 14,650,377 (3,885,510) 174,548,955
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6. EHEDERE @

RESNEEP ZKETIRBUNEE  RBFIRP
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REXER FERE BERE EFKRE
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BATE MRS 2 FTE D T RERR)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABHE T 7TA7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Revenues from external customers were contributed from banking
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and People’s Republic of China,
with major products and services including deposit taking, extension
of credit, asset-based finance, securities investment services offered
to customers.

The following tables provide information by geographical area, which
was determined with reference to the domicile of the legal entities
within the Group with business dealing and relationship with, and

services to external customers.

B 5 1E [
BEREM i
Hong Kong P9 Inter-segment wst
and Others Macau elimination Total
HZ2016 1231 HILEE For the year ended
31 December 2016
g A Operating income 4,296,065 425,304 (900) 4,720,469
B354 i Profit before taxation 2,226,389 220,112 - 2,446,501
R2016F12 31 H At 31 December 2016
BESG Total assets 187,933,454 19,602,001 (2,324,806) 205,210,649
BEE: Total liabilities 167,543,482 16,985,404 (2,324,806) 182,204,080
BREERGE Intangible assets and goodwill 318,667 551,663 = 870,330
A B R RAE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 78,461,648 1,684,413 (112,006) 80,034,055
& 32, 53 T ]
BB REM i
Hong Kong BP9 Inter-segment et
and Others Macau elimination Total
HE2015F12 831 ALEFE For the year ended
31 December 2015
gEUA Operating income 4,177,947 409,895 (900) 4,586,942
PR35 AL A Profit before taxation 2,290,917 217,742 - 2,508,659
1201561231 H At 31 December 2015
BESE Total assets 179,101,461 18,576,197 (1,645,719) 196,031,939
BEAF Total liabilities 159,959,284 16,235,390 (1,645,719) 174,548,955
BREERGE Intangible assets and goodwill 318,667 552,828 = 871,495
K AB R RAE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 76,231,176 1,862,244 (32,000) 78,061,420
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. FRAEWA 7. NET INTEREST INCOME
2016 2015
FEWA Interest income
e MEIRITHA R Cash and balances with banks 293,434 312,858
BHIRE Investments in securities 810,125 695,375
ZHEERNMEMER Advances and other accounts 4,080,265 4,045,160
5,183,824 5,053,393
FE X H Interest expense
RITER BEEXR Deposits from banks/Deposits
from customers 1,232,166 1,438,647
BEBITHTRE Certificates of deposit issued 75,116 78,234
BIEER Subordinated notes 226,842 198,517
HAt Others 12,181 1,307
1,546,305 1,716,705
MNEWABE Included within interest income
RARNFEFZEBEEHTABEN Interest income on financial assets
S BVEE 2 A B not at fair value through profit or loss 5,165,382 5,046,867
MEXZHEE Included within interest expense
FARAFEANEBEEB ABEH Interest expenses on financial
SRBEZABL liabilities not at fair value
through profit or loss 1,532,068 1,714,073
REZE 2016 FE 2015612 A31 HILEE @ Wi For the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, there was no interest
wmREREEEZFEHA o income recognised on impaired assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABHE T 7TA7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8. FRBBERAZWA

8. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

2016 2015
REERFASBA Fee and commission income
RARFEFE B EEBT ABEN Fee and commission income from
TREERAEBEZRBE RASKA financial assets and liabilities not
at fair value through profit or loss
—EEEEZREE R A — Credit related fees and commissions 151,334 136,538
—E5mE — Trade finance 73,596 91,987
—fEA+F — Credit card 295,806 301,225
HAib RS E RASKA Other fee and commission income
—BEEREe - Securities brokerage 81,749 132,011
—{(RERSHE K H Aty — Insurance distribution and others 129,210 111,249
—DEREES KU T EERS - Retail investment and wealth
management services 213,759 185,001
—RITRIBEERFEE - Bank services and handling fees 69,459 61,850
—HpR% & — Other fees 49,498 109,824
1,064,411 1,129,685
REERASH Fee and commission expense
RARNFEFZEBEEHTABEN Fee and commission expense from
CREERABBZREERAS S H financial assets and liabilities not
at fair value through profit or loss
—FEBLAES — Handling fees and commission 208,835 205,536
—BENEMER — Other fees paid 19,659 14,512
228,494 220,048

AEERE=TTRHEHEE Xt EEBEERK
BEERY - RENXBEAFNHBEZEELT
BEELEMBEERA -

The Group provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, and
investment management services to third parties. Those assets that
are held in a fiduciary capacity are not included in these financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITA57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

9. FEEWA

9. NET TRADING INCOME

2016 2015
SNE B B F W Net gain arising from dealing in
foreign currencies 79,693 137,480
FIEEERENBH 2T Net gain on trading securities 6,153 3,784
RIEEERSZMITAET R 2 F Net gain from derivatives entered
into for trading purpose 34,158 57,452
RAAFEEHREEe R TR 2 FEE Net loss arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value hedge (1,424) (8,774)
EEAAFEFEAHEEHFTA Net gain arising from financial
Bar eI A TR instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss 61,251 88,116
179,831 278,058
10. Hb&EEWA 10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2016 2015
A HEFHEE 2 R B Dividend income from investments
in available-for-sale securities
— kW& — Listed investments 11,696 9,197
—JEEMIRE — Unlisted investments 8,112 8,024
WEYEZHSWRALTE Gross rental income from investment
properties 24,305 23,867
HEmES WA Other rental income 12,227 11,423
Hh Others 10,862 10,048
67,202 62,559
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

11. EEXH 11. OPERATING EXPENSES
2016 2015
& B 3B M AR F) S i Employee compensation and
(BRREREEHM) (KisE12) benefit expenses (including
directors’ remuneration) (Note 12) 1,564,330 1,454,678
TERAEMEFEEESH Premises and other fixed assets
TERIENE expenses, excluding depreciation
—1TEMASS M - Rental of premises 180,448 168,309
—Hfth - Others 158,506 125,794
P& (MizE28) Depreciation (Note 28) 158,530 154,893
B RHEHER S Advertising and promotion costs 85,695 71,991
ENfell « SCEREE Printing, stationery and postage 44,902 51,816
|y EESHEEA (ME27) Amortisation expenses of intangible
assets (Note 27) 1,165 2,039
ZE RN & Auditors’ remuneration 7,893 7,685
Hth Others 197,976 202,453
2,399,445 2,239,658

12. BEEFMEERZH

12. EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND BENEFIT

EXPENSES

2016 2015
HMEEMAEER Salaries and other staff costs 1,467,856 1,366,556

DARR A7 4 EE T S Bl 1B (T2 % Provision for share-based
(Pfi7E43) compensation charged (Note 43) 5,083 9,643

BREZTH Pension costs — defined

— REHEKETE contribution plans 91,391 78,479
1,564,330 1,454,678
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

12. EEFMREFZH @ 12. EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND BENEFIT
EXPENSES (continued)
ez 5 AL The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals:
(i) BNesEr ()  The aggregate emoluments
2016 2015
e FE - BEUA=mREMER Salaries, housing, benefits in kind
and other allowances 95,771 90,294
RIRAEAET B2 B E K Employer’s contribution to
retirement benefit schemes 2,120 2,120
97,891 92,414
@iy SRESKRAATHMSAERNIT (i)  The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals are within

the following bands:

AE
Number of individuals

2016 2015
PEITHKS
12,000,001 - 12,500,000 1 1
17,000,001 - 17,500,000 - i
17,500,001 — 18,000,000 - 1
18,500,001 — 19,000,000 1 —
19,500,001 - 20,000,000 1 -
22,000,001 - 22,500,000 - 1
22,500,001 - 23,000,000 1 1
24,500,001 — 25,000,000 1 -

5 5

E5fimEEHRWAZALTA + H4467(2015F : Included in the emoluments of the five highest paid individuals were
A) AEE - HINEEMEC BFEERRE 2 the emoluments of 4 (2015: 4) Directors. Their respective Directors’
BIFE13 1A o emoluments have been included in Note 13 below.
RERN - NEBWEREASMNEERRAALTE No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid
€ - EAIASINBEARERE 2 8 s BB individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
8o compensation for loss of office during the year.
Fits I mRERAATHINE BIEEREEZF The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals shown above
SRR ARIE M A R Bl 2 B R TEIR SREDTEAL - included incentive bonuses accrued in respect of the services

rendered and the Group’s performance for the financial year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. ESM=

AR 2 7 383 1 B 2 B (B BRI 2 &
HEE)ER - AARETZHeRELN TR -

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company disclosed pursuant
to section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation were set out below:

BRERRM
R#zER
RBRA
¥4 Incentive BIERGE
2ER bonuses ZETHR
BYAE  accruedin Employer's
Salary,  respect of MRHBAE  contribution I
EZ#$  allowances services  EBMEZM  to retirement (&1)
HE2016F Year ended Directors’  and benefits rendered  Share-based benefit Total
12A31 HILEE 31 December 2016 Fee inkind inthe year payment schemes (Note 1)
£ Chairman
FFERE David Shou-Yeh Wong 500 5,520 18,500 - - 24,520
HTEE Executive directors
BERLA Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) - 8,000 3,550 - 650 12,200
TARLE Harold Tsu-Hing Wong - 6,785 13,884 1,622 522 22,813
FlRELE Gary Pak-Ling Wang - 5,662 12,600 - 492 18,754
FHTES Non-executive directors
THERLE Shoji Hirai 129 - - - - 129
AME— Kenichi Yamato 81 - - - - 81
BUFyTES Independent non-executive directors
e EMmE A Robert Tsai-To Sze 375 - - - - 375
REERAE Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung 245 - - - - 245
REFIEE Seng-Lee Chan 355 - - - - 355
REAEE Yuen-Tin Ng 370 - - - - 370
A% Total 2,055 25,967 48,534 1,622 1,664 79,842
i Note:
1. ERERBINAXMIBITEB AR AR RENE 1. For directors who are also directors of the Company’s subsidiaries,

N

RAZES  HHZEMBARXNZFHHE &
BE LI ZEAFMAEA

2. ZAFERNNFELER  TERANEEEBHRIT
MEARS - KHREH  HRAQRAEHR—
FRADRZ ERHEKEEEETBREXRF
25 (20154 : ) -

remuneration paid by these subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
total remuneration set out above.

2. No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
(2015: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITA57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

13. EEME @
T (5E)

3. REZE2016 512 A31 BILEE » WERTEE
EREETEANFREMBAREEEH b
BR7S S A sl AT E b B < (20154 : £E) ©

4. RER - WEZFRIEEL 2 ZENEH TES
Ko S 488 B JE BN 2 = AR A T [R) 28 = 75 S A sk s A+
EAIARIE (20154 : #) o

Note: (Continued)

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

No other emoluments were paid to or receivable by any director in

respect of directors’ other services in connection with management of

the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries undertakings during the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

No termination payments or benefits were made to the directors and no

consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties for making

available directors’ services during the year (2015: Nil).

BRFEARE
TRris 2 iR
RENEA
g8 Incentive RINEFIEE)
EHR bonuses LEEHT
EWAE  accruedin Employer's
Salary, respect of MEE%A  contribution =
EZWE  allowances sevices AW to retirement (1)
EZ2015F Year ended Directors’  and benefits rendered  Share-based benefit Total
1231 ALLFE 31 December 2015 Fee in kind in the year payment schemes (Note 1)
£ Chairman
FFERE David Shou-Yeh Wong 500 3,960 18,040 - - 22,500
HITES Executive directors
BERLA Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) - 8,000 3,350 - 650 12,000
FHEL4 Harold Tsu-Hing Wong - 6,572 15,506 - 522 22,600
FRELE Gary Pak-Ling Wang - 5,482 12,000 - 492 17,974
FRTEE Non-executive director
FHEREE Shoji Hirai 208 - - - - 208
BUEHTES Independent non-executive directors
LEMEE Robert Tsai-To Sze 360 - - - - 360
REERE Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung 240 - - - - 240
BREs M5 Seng-Lee Chan 345 - - - - 345
REBEE Yuen-Tin Ng 359 - - - - 359
Bt Total 2,012 24,014 48,896 - 1,664 76,586
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14. ERREBRRAMEERE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

14. LOAN IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND OTHER CREDIT

PROVISIONS
2016 2015
BRRERE Loan impairment losses
FHEEFR R EAME B R EEE Net charge/(reversal) of impairment
SRIREE (%) losses on advances and other
accounts
—E5EE - Trade bills 5,677 3,670
—BFEX - Advances to customers 567,755 508,713
—FER A R EMER B — Accrued interest and other accounts (9,865) (1,031)
563,567 511,352
FHEERREALR BB EREFRE Net charge of impairment losses on
advances and other accounts
— & RIS — Individually assessed 239,346 218,941
— R EFTHE - Collectively assessed 324,221 292,411
563,567 511,352
EREE Of which
— i R EEINEE (BIERER - new and additional allowances
BEMIEZ /) (including amounts directly
written off in the year) 706,806 641,447
— B - releases (88,644) (76,697)
— g - recoveries (54,595) (53,398)
563,567 511,352
HihZE#E Other credit provisions
AEfHEFSE 2 Net reversal of impairment losses
BB E1E)F B 5B on available-for-sale securities
— R A - Collectively assessed - (15,000)
W BR A F 7 Net charge to income statement 563,567 496,352
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BAS¥F7TA151)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

15. BiE

BB IS H T 1R BB A 5T P AR B vt 1 DA B =
16.5% (2015 5 : 16.5% ) IR © BN TD
2 R IME ET FE R m AR AN & B A & 153
B2 IRITREETE o

EEHBRRAAEENERER  KRABZF
IR BB TR N 3 E E ] TR P B A 2 i
RIERHHER ©

15. TAXATION

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2015:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on
overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.

2016 2015
RNEFEHIE - Current income tax:
—EBFEH - Hong Kong profits tax 251,689 287,525
—/BIMRIA - Overseas taxation 40,343 38,970
—RBAFETR 2 #E — Under-provision in prior years 1,802 782
IRIERIE (FzE35) ¢ Deferred income tax (Note 35):
— AR R 2= A A e - Origination and reversal of
temporary differences 6,912 (19,970)
—ERABEE — Utilisation of tax losses 297 780
I8 Taxation 301,043 308,087

AEBERBANGE N 2 HIRB IR A &R AN
P ERGTE 2 BRI T

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax
rate applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:

2016 2015

B 25 A g A

BRBEBFE
Fi%E16.5% T H 2 FiE
TRIEFAERR -
HABR 2 T EF =

BRI Z KA

TREFRAZ H

VAT 1% EE0 2 i 2 Bt i 8 B )
HEEHEE XA

RBEFED R ZEE

IR

RIBITEBER AT 20165 F 35

Profit before taxation 2,446,501 2,508,659

Tax calculated at Hong Kong

profits tax rate of 16.5% 403,672 413,929
Tax effects of:

Different taxation rates in other

countries 6,975 4,515
Income not subject to taxation (27,505) (30,054)
Expenses not deductible 18,630 32,416

Results of associates and jointly
controlled entities reported

net of tax (102,531) (113,501)
Under-provision in prior years 1,802 782
Taxation 301,043 308,087
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

16. IRE 16. DIVIDENDS
2016 2015
EIRFHIRE - FRE B 0.10%7T Interim dividend paid of HK$0.10
(20154 : 0.1187T) (2015: HK$0.11) per ordinary share 140,326 154,217
BORAREAIR S : BT A% 0.28 BT Proposed final dividend of HK$0.28
(20154 : 0.27787T) (2015: HK$0.27) per ordinary share 392,971 378,577
533,297 532,794
17. BREF 17. EARNINGS PER SHARE
2016 2015
(#B7T) (¥&7T)
(HK$) (HK$)
BRAF Earnings per share
=N Basic 1.53 1.57
3% Diluted 1.53 1.56

TR E AR F Ty iz R & F12,145,491,0007%5 7T
(20154 : 2,200,604,000 8 7T ) &2 E N E 217 2
A% (7 2 hnHE ¥ £11,402,426,008 % (2015
£ :1,401,868,770f%) 5t -

5 0% 58 B | Ty 47 1R 2 712,145,491,0005% 7T
(2015 4F : 2,200,604,0007%5 7T ) M FNE EE1TE
I % 0 2 hn#E -39 £101,406,170,384 1% (2015
F : 1,406,762,356 % ) I 5L FT A 2 T @A B
SENFETAARNE -

18. BERERITHEER

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on earnings
of HK$2,145,491,000 (2015: HK$2,200,604,000) and the weighted
average number of 1,402,426,008 (2015: 1,401,868,770) ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of fully diluted earnings per share is based on earnings
of HK$2,145,491,000 (2015: HK$2,200,604,000) and the weighted
average number of 1,406,170,384 (2015: 1,406,762,356) ordinary
shares in issue during the year after adjusting for the effect of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

18. CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS

2016 2015
He MERITHERR Cash and balances with banks 1,913,093 2,183,442
BRNMEHER Money at call and short notice 13,145,694 15,322,464

15,058,787 17,505,906
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITA57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

19. HFIFEERZENEBESREEUNQAF 19. TRADING SECURITIES AND FINANCIAL ASSETS
EfEEHEBHFABENERE DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
=3 OR LOSS

2016 2015

FEEERENES: Trading securities:

BRES Debt securities:

—&HBEm - Listed in Hong Kong 104,751 58,398
—3EEm — Unlisted 8,767,093 8,513,996
HIEEBERZNES BT Total trading securities 8,871,844 8,572,394

EENATFEAEEEES Financial assets designated at

FTABRMEREE fair value through profit or loss:

BEEES Debt securities:

—BBLINET - Listed outside Hong Kong 279,056 217,796

HIEEERRMESFRIETE Total trading securities and financial

AT EGZEBEEEA assets designated at fair value
BalemEERRE through profit or loss 9,150,900 8,790,190
BRETEBIESFNE : Included within debt securities are:
—BEERE (ZRBALIER) — Treasury bills which are cash
equivalents 2,148,217 228,497
—HiEEEE — Other treasury bills 6,678,945 8,314,638
— BN ES - Government bonds 44,682 29,010
— H b &8 A IR BT - — Other debt securities issued by:
—NEHE - Public sector entities = 249
—1Z — Corporate entities 279,056 217,796

9,150,900 8,790,190

R2016F N 2015F12 A31 8 @ LillFEEE A As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, there were no certificates of
BRARNTFENEZEBESERALEDIER deposit held included in the above balances of trading or fair value
BERE - debt securities.
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20. fT4EE®MIA

M2016F 12 A31 B AREHZITATA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

EREE The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts

AKEREAFENT : and their fair values as of 31 December 2016 were as follows:
&4/ AYE
255 Fair values
Contract/ EE 8%
notional amount Assets Liabilities
1) FHEEBERGEZITETIR 1) Derivatives held for trading
M) SEfETA a) Foreign exchange derivatives
RERBEAY Forward and futures contracts 73,340,752 601,383 (621,858)
B8 ARt 5 E g Currency options purchased and written 22,298,022 225,081 (224,946)
l) FIEHETA b) Interest rate derivatives
HEHE Interest rate futures 15,509 24 =
il Interest rate swaps 3,567,199 3,829 (28,379)
A) BEMTLIA ¢) Equity derivatives
BARGIT it i Equity options purchased and written 98,752 814 (814)
BEEBEMR AT REE /(B8R At Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for trading 99,320,234 831,131 (875,997)
2 FEEHREZITETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
W) BEULFEE R ITETR a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
GiEsetd Interest rate swaps 27,306,206 346,191 (277,155)
EiEA Currency swaps 1,205,962 - (190,266)
BIESRRR 2 TETREE /(BB A%t Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for hedging 28,512,168 346,191 (467,421)
BRRZITEERIREE /(B A Total recognised derivative financial assets/(liabilities) 127,832,402 1,177,322 (1,343,418)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

20. fTES@MT A wm) 20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
R2015F 12 A31 BRBIBZOTET A NEE The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts
AEREAFEENT : and their fair values as of 31 December 2015 were as follows:
&t/ N
5L Fair values
Contract/ BE A&
notional amount Assets Liabilities
1) HEEBERGEZITETIA 1) Derivatives held for trading
M) SEETA a) Foreign exchange derivatives
EHRHEEN Forward and futures contracts 81,116,914 269,836 (258,369)
B A ROH N Currency options purchased and written 55,739,652 572,595 (574,619)
l) FIETHETA b) Interest rate derivatives
Fl=HE Interest rate futures - - =
il Interest rate swaps 4,867,283 34,377 (98,232)
A) BEETLIA ¢) Equity derivatives
A ROR R I Equity options purchased and written 222,582 7,961 (7,924)
BEEERR A TREE/(B]) A% Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for trading 141,946,431 884,769 (939,144)
2 FEEMREZITETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
W) BEULFES R ITETR a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
ilEget Interest rate swaps 19,850,922 194,559 (340,795)
et Currency swaps 1,234,871 - (178,493)
BER AR 2 ITETREE/(BB) At Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for hedging 21,085,793 194,559 (519,288)
BREAZITESRIAEE/(Bf)A Total recognised derivative financial assets/(liabilities) 163,032,224 1,079,328 (1,458,432)
WENMETIE 2 AFEREEZEEE R FHEEY The effect of bilateral netting agreements, where applicable, has been
BE(ER) T E o taken into account in disclosing the fair value of derivatives.
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20. fTEE€mI A um)

FH B ARNEBF Y 2 SR FRAETHE (I
ER)ZFEZ12 A31 BEEAGBRINEBNE
BEBINESRE - 2500 ¢

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The credit risk weighted amounts of the above off-balance sheet
exposures as at 31 December, where applicable, has been taken into
account the effect of bilateral netting arrangements that the Group

entered into, are as follows:

2016 2015

EEE4 Exchange rate contracts 959,439 1,627,460
FIEEH Interest rate contracts 175,128 139,476
Hitna 4y Other contracts 3,388 13,714
1,137,955 1,780,650

HETAZANBBE/SERREM R
£ UTMRKREREREEE -

EERBINEHRBEN2EFTELEREL Z(R
TRER)RADMFAE 28R - At EAB 28
BARTRXZHF REEAORRFEME °

ARG FRES AR 2.9 E -

NG B AR R i R 2 A FE R

BREEERREYRIBERNZEZHFRE - Al
EEBELAREBITEEZBHEBFERAR -
$m T B 2 W %5 4 384,193,000 7% 7T (2015 4F
W 457,750,000 48 7T ) © ¥R IE B FE (G ¥R E
% 7 E518 /% 385,617,000 7T (2015 4F « E18 5
66,524,0005 7T ) ° WFEXLEE 2R 2
[ARAFELTHEReRT A2 Fikas FiE]
ﬁq °

The contract amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of
transactions outstanding as at the end of the reporting period. They
do not represent the amounts at risk.

The credit risk weighted amounts are the amounts that have been
calculated with reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the
HKMA. The amounts calculated are dependent upon the status of the
counterparty and the maturity characteristics of each type of contract.

The hedging practices and accounting treatment are disclosed in Note
2.9.

The Group hedges a portion of its existing interest rate risk in
investments in securities included in the loans and receivables
category, available-for-sale debt securities and issued liabilities
by fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swap. The gains
on the hedging instruments were HK$384,193,000 (2015: gains of
HK$57,750,000). The losses on the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk were HK$385,617,000 (2015: losses of HK$66,524,000).
The net impact is disclosed in “Net gain/loss arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value hedge” in Note 9.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

21. BRERKEMIRE

21. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

2016 2015
EAER KRB Loans and advances to individuals
—fEAR — Credit cards 4,613,534 4,706,017
—RIBER - Mortgages 32,224,005 31,273,079
— Efth — Others 11,557,295 9,729,001
EEREBR Loans and advances to corporate entities
—BHER - Term loans 30,862,318 29,150,773
—IRIBER - Mortgages 16,213,526 16,016,536
—EZmE — Trade finance 8,020,721 7,986,955
—H A — Others 10,163,322 10,762,963
REERBEE Gross advances to customers 113,654,721 109,625,324
R : REZERE Less: impairment allowances
— &R FT Ay - Individually assessed (435,210) (327,953)
— kR ERHE — Collectively assessed (420,545) (358,072)
112,798,966 108,939,299
B52E Trade bills 4,299,974 6,469,899
bk : BEERE Less: impairment allowances
— kR e RHE - Collectively assessed (14,578) (8,901)
4,285,396 6,460,998
H & E (FFE30) Other assets (Note 30) 3,021,819 3,040,889
bk : REEE Less: impairment allowances
— (& Bl FHE — Individually assessed (9,351) (19,585)
— R B RHE — Collectively assessed (625) (256)
3,011,843 3,021,048
ZEERNMEMER Advances and other accounts 120,096,205 118,421,345
B Impairment allowances
— &R FT Ay - Individually assessed (444,561) (347,538)
— kR ERHE — Collectively assessed (435,748) (367,229)
(880,309) (714,767)
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21. REEREREMERE @

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

21. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

(F) ZEFERRIFIRESEE2HEE (@) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans
and advances to customers and trade bills

BREHERX

B - BRI

Impairment allowances - Individual assessment

RBEX Hith &t
Mortgages Others Total
BAERRBRREEEZ2E Movement in impairment allowances
on loans and advances to individuals
20156 1 A1 BR&E: Balance at 1 January 2015 218 3,508 3,726
ERE (E) /R Impairment losses (reversed)/charged (466) 2,309 1,843
RELBEE M Loans written off as uncollectible - (2,444) (2,444)
W B B R EEMSH 2 B Recoveries of advances written off
in previous years 466 1,195 1,661
&N uEES Exchange and other adjustments - ®) ®)
201512 A31H At 31 December 2015 218 4,560 4,778
20161 B 1 HM& SR Balance at 1 January 2016 218 4,560 4,778
REBE (E%) /125 Impairment losses (reversed)/charged (459) 1,442 983
KREBEETMEESE Loans written off as uncollectible - (1,789) (1,789)
WEBEREEMELER Recoveries of advances written off
in previous years 496 1,412 1,908
B R E A Exchange and other adjustments - (94) (94)
2016512 A31H At 31 December 2016 255 5,531 5,786
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITA57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

21. REEREREMERE @ 21. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)
(R ZEFERRBFIRESFEE 2 HEE (@) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans
fBER B ¥iR& (@) and advances to customers and trade bills (Continued)

Impairment allowances - Collective assessment

HEER-FEME

HERS BEER Hith &%
Credit cards Mortgages Others Total
BAERRBNREEEZ2E Movement in impairment allowances
on loans and advances to individuals
201541 A1 BE&e Balance at 1 January 2015 26,690 10,365 53,500 90,555
RERERA Impairment losses charged 45,703 18,361 168,171 232,235
RELBEE M Loans written off as uncollectible (63,448) - (182,068) (245,516)
W B B R EMSH 2 B Recoveries of advances written off
in previous years 18,123 = 20,216 38,339
BE 5 R B At B Exchange and other adjustments - (224) 26) (250)
201512 A31H At 31 December 2015 27,068 28,502 59,793 115,363
20161 B 1 B &SR Balance at 1 January 2016 27,068 28,502 59,793 115,363
RESERE/(25) Impairment losses charged/(reversed) 58,739 (10,423) 183,726 232,042
REEEETMEE Loans written off as uncollectible (70,858) - (195,600) (266,458)
WEEREEME 2 ER Recoveries of advances written off
in previous years 14,536 - 21,545 36,081
B i R E A% Exchange and other adjustments - (1,331) (155) (1,486)
2016512831 H At 31 December 2016 29,485 16,748 69,309 115,542
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

21. REERREMERE @
(R) EFERRBRLEZEE v HBE

21.

(a)

ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

EREHER®@® and advances to customers and trade bills (Continued)
REEE-FATE
Impairment allowances - Individual assessment
BHER BRBER EZRE Hif fit
Term loans Mortgages  Trade finance Others Total
LEERREH Movement in impairment allowances
HEEE2 2 on loans and advances to corporate
entities
201541 B 1 B Balance at 1 January 2015 37,410 305 142,829 33,474 214,018
HEBRRE Impairment losses charged 84,555 1 97,825 34,717 217,098
REFERETM T Loans written off as uncollectible (22,045) - (75,540) (19,898) (117,489)
KEBREFHEZER Recoveries of advances written off
in previous years 698 - 9,126 3,541 13,365
R E At Exchange and other adjustments (1,180) - (2,643) - (3,823)
201512318 At 31 December 2015 99,438 306 171,597 51,834 323,175
2016F1 A1 BA&E Balance at 1 January 2016 99,438 306 171,597 51,834 323,175
HEBRRE Impairment losses charged 61,368 1 152,823 33,067 247,259
REBRETHHE Loans written off as uncollectible (37,814) - (87,500) (31,069) (156,377)
KEEREFHEZER Recoveries of advances written off
in previous years 4,303 - 5,788 6,514 16,605
[ E Exchange and other adjustments (287) = (951) = (1,238)
201612531 H At 31 December 2016 127,008 307 241,757 60,352 429,424
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITA57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

21. REEREREMERE @ 21. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)
(R ZEFERRBFIRESFEE 2 HEE (@) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans
1HER B B BRE (@) and advances to customers and trade bills (Continued)
REEE- AT
Impairment allowances - Collective assessment
EHER REEX EamE Hitp I
Term loans Mortgages  Trade finance Others Total
TEEFRBH Movement in impairment allowances
HEEE2 2 on loans and advances to
corporate entities
201551 A1 BREH Balance at 1 January 2015 58,074 14,206 68,989 64,476 205,745
REGRRE/ (%) Impairment losses charged/(reversed) 31,489 15,762 (16,525) 29,560 60,286
RELERETM T Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (11,696) (11,696)
KEERNEENEZER Recoveries of advances written off
in previous years - - - 33 33
B R E A Exchange and other adjustments (1,823) - (406) (529) (2,758)
2015512 4318 At 31 December 2015 87,740 29,968 52,058 81,844 251,610
201651 A1 BEES Balance at 1 January 2016 87,740 29,968 52,058 81,844 251,610
HEBRRE Impairment losses charged 35,844 32,482 12,320 11,164 91,810
RLERETHHEE Loans written off as uncollectible - - = (19,449) (19,449)
WEEREFHEER Recoveries of advances written off
in previous years - - - 1 1
B RE AR Exchange and other adjustments (2,866) = (680) (845) (4,391)
20165128318 At 31 December 2016 120,718 62,450 63,698 72,115 319,581
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

21. REERREMERE @ 21. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)
() Bt RN ERHEMERE 2 BB EHEIKRE (b) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on
HARR accrued interest and other accounts
EstREREMRE
Accrued interest
and other accounts
WEEHE - RFHEEE-
mER 18 Bl 74
Impairment Impairment
allowances - allowances -
Collective Individual
ment assessment
EFtFIEREMIRE Movement in impairment allowances
HEEE 22 on accrued interest and
other accounts
201541 A 1 BaY&&R Balance at 1 January 2015 366 20,506
VRN aEi- (ke Impairment losses reversed (110) =
BE 3, J2 EL At 3 B Exchange and other adjustments - (921)
2015412 A31H At 31 December 2015 256 19,585
201641 A1 BM#&R Balance at 1 January 2016 256 19,585
BE R BIRE(25) Impairment losses charged/(reversed) 369 (8,896)
B 3, I H i A B Exchange and other adjustments - (1,338)
201612 A 31 H At 31 December 2016 625 9,351
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TA1%51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

21. REERREMERE @

() BEEEFERRBR R EHERE
UBRINE :

EFEFRLBSEEREREAERAARNENR
ERMZEBaNMEETEP Z2RBREF
o ANRMABRAREERREEZE - U@
EBEZHEEE -

21. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

(c) Loans and advances to customers include finance
lease receivables as follows:

Loans and advances to customers include net investments in
equipment leased to customers under finance leases and hire
purchase contracts having the characteristics of finance leases. The
contracts have an option for acquiring by the leasee the leased asset
at nominal value at the end of the lease period.

2016 2015
REERMERE 2 RN ARERE Gross investment in finance
lease receivable:
1F AR Not later than 1 year 2,537,523 2,640,295
1FAEESF Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 3,400,897 3,694,792
5 F Later than 5 years 952,999 1,336,971

BMEMEZ REERZBERA

RMEHEREFE

MEMEREFBZOMAT

1ELAR
1FAEE5F

5FLAF

R2016F12 A31H @ LB ERERELEE
R85 EIERFIFREE (2015F « ) »

R2016F 12 A31H ' AEBE 2 EZREBEEER
FEAAWE 2 g SRR EEEHAEES A
49,665,000 7T (2015 4F : 45,415,000 7T) °

RIBITEBER AR 20165 F 5

6,891,419 7,672,058

Unearned future finance income
on finance leases (580,817) (708,387)

Net investment in finance leases 6,310,602 6,963,671

The net investment in finance leases
is analysed as follows:

Not later than 1 year 2,322,326 2,399,057
Later than 1 year and not

later than 5 years 3,167,869 3,426,844
Later than 5 years 820,407 1,137,770

6,310,602 6,963,671

There is no unguaranteed residual value included in the gross
investment in finance leases above as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
Nil).

The allowance for uncollectible finance lease receivables included
in the impairment allowances as at 31 December 2016 of the Group
amounted to HK$49,665,000 (2015: HK$45,415,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

22. W{HHERS

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

2016 2015
BRES Debt securities:
—&BBEm - Listed in Hong Kong 14,390,816 12,683,540
—BBLINET - Listed outside Hong Kong 13,928,043 9,060,290
—3EEm — Unlisted 3,953,915 1,989,770
32,272,774 23,733,600
SRS Equity securities:
—&BEm - Listed in Hong Kong 254,705 208,587
—3EET - Unlisted 211,757 257,601
466,462 466,188
At EE SRR Total available-for-sale securities 32,739,236 24,199,788
BREEEBESNA : Included within debt securities are:
—BIEEE (ZFRRLIER) — Treasury bills which are cash
equivalents 1,899,588 -
—HiEEEE — Other treasury bills 5,462,256 3,610,091
—BRES - Government bonds 238,910 238,109
—HMEBES — Other debt securities 24,672,020 19,885,400
32,272,774 23,733,600

i

s

MR2016 5 ;201512 A31 B @ Ll {EHSEHFIRE4

NI WBIERFEFHE °

A EES
BEITHEBRROTAT

Note:

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, there were no certificates of deposit held

included in the above balances of investments in debt securities.

Available-for-sale securities are
analysed by categories of
issuers as follows:

— R R AR SRR T — Central governments and
central banks 7,600,754 3,848,200
—RNEHIE - Public sector entities 603,533 500,463
—RIT R E A E B - Banks and other financial
institutions 3,549,923 4,132,163
— b — Corporate entities 20,982,498 15,716,434
—Hh - Others 2,528 2,528
32,739,236 24,199,788
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. KFEIWPRS

23. HELD-TO-MATURITY SECURITIES

2016 2015
BRES: Debt securities
—&BBEm - Listed in Hong Kong 3,167,081 2,384,910
—BBLINET - Listed outside Hong Kong 3,731,661 4,441,722
—3EEm — Unlisted 3,325,098 3,649,664
10,223,840 10,476,296
BREEEBESFNE : Included within debt securities are:
— A HFRE - Certificates of deposit held 400,000 1,177,533
—BEEZEE — Treasury bills 2,401,808 1,994,337
— B ESH - Government bonds 523,290 442 147
—HMEBES — Other debt securities 6,898,742 6,862,279
10,223,840 10,476,296
BEIHBS Held-to-maturity securities are
REITHERER AT : analysed by categories of
issuers as follows:
— FR R Je AR R ERTT - Central governments and central
banks 2,925,098 2,436,484
— 8RIT R B fth & B A - Banks and other financial
institutions 2,615,100 3,598,931
—1 — Corporate entities 4,683,642 4,440,881
10,223,840 10,476,296

AFRITEEFR AT 20165FF5¢
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24. BEATRE 24. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
2016 2015
E(EEEFE Share of net assets 3,908,770 3,754,594
EE Goodwill 344,623 344,623
a5t Total 4,253,393 4,099,217
2016 2015
1A1H At 1 January 4,099,217 3,746,918
FEIERTIIE AR Share of results, net of tax 602,793 665,942
FEMRBRTRIEIRE E (RS Share of investment revaluation
reserve, net of tax (12,623) 59,793
REHEZEE Loss on deemed disposal - (47,617)
B S Dividend received (142,741) (158,071)
ERER Exchange differences (293,253) (167,748)
12 A31H At 31 December 4,253,393 4,099,217

R2016F & 2015F 12 A31 HZ & RAl 2z £ &

The following is the key information relating to the associate as at 31

BRI December 2016 and 2015:

R R i B FEXH FribEzm B oLt
£ Place of incorporation Principal Percentage of
Name and operation activities interest in ownership

2016 2015
BERIT HEE AR HFIE HR1T
Bank of Chongqging People’s Republic of China Banking 14.66% 14.66%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TA1%51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24, EtE N TRIRE @) 24. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
(FF) EERITZREVKER (@) Selected financial information of BOCQ

BERITZEATET2EAHA12A318 - HE
2016 F ) 201512 A31 B It FEHE - AEH
REZ2016F 12 431 HX2015F 12 531 A1k
12@AA M BHRRECTEERITZES -

The statutory accounting reference date of BOCQ is 31 December.
For the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group included
the results of BOCQ on the basis of financial statements made up to
the 12 months to 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

2016 & 20154
12H31H 12 A31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2016 2015

EERTBEEERBEER Selected balance sheet

information of BOCQ

IR RIEFRRIBITRAS R Cash and balances with
central banks 47,605,944 45,592,990

R E IR 1T & & Rt rE Due from other banks and

financial institutions 61,942,010 54,729,387

EEERRBK Loans and advances to
customers 163,220,318 145,386,839
Hih R & E Other financial assets 133,780,297 129,026,511
HihEE Other assets 8,319,650 6,952,227
BEAGT Total assets 414,868,219 381,687,954

R EMIRTT & & mhik g Due to other banks and
financial institutions 67,106,331 87,405,976
BEFEER Customer deposits 255,294,063 237,861,211
Htemals Other financial liabilities 60,709,871 22,068,534
HEmaE Other liabilities 5,280,585 8,939,236
BEEET Total liabilities 388,390,850 356,274,957
e et Total equity 26,477,369 25,412,997

ERRITZBRES ST EAFBITHAMBER
RAZEEESRK

Reconciliation of BOCQ'’s total shareholders’ equity to the carrying
amount in DSB’s consolidated financial statements

RITIRITRIGR R RS 5

DSB’s share of total shareholders’

226

equity 3,882,841 3,726,753
hn: YR 2 R R A THE AR Add: Goodwill and fair value adjustment

at acquisition 370,552 372,464
BRHEE Carrying amount 4,253,393 4,099,217

RIBITEBER AR 20165 F 5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24, EtE N TRIRE @) 24. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
() EERRT2ERUEEN @m (@) Selected financial information of BOCQ (Continued)

BZE12A31 ALLFE
For the year ended
31 December

2016 2015

EERITZRREKSRER Selected income statement
information of BOCQ

M BUA Net interest income 8,939,604 8,631,850
RIS B RS WA Net fee and commission income 2,242,665 1,863,993
BEREEER Loan impairment charges (2,807,537) (1,399,548)
TEREHER Depreciation and amortisation (198,885) (189,022)
IESE Tax expense (1,346,454) (1,355,857)
FERH Profit for the year 4,077,942 3,907,913
E A2 E Other comprehensive income (183,636) 367,227
SEN B Total comprehensive income 3,894,306 4,275,140
BREERITIRE Dividends received from BOCQ 142,741 158,071
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. HEEZEHERKRE 25. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
2016 2015
JELETRL)  EAKAR Unlisted shares, at cost 20,000 20,000
FEIE B A R Share of post-acquisition reserves 55,412 51,119
75,412 71,119
R 20164F K 2015412 A 31 B Hy A 4 =82 40 The following are the jointly controlled entities as at 31 December
1k 2016 and 2015:
HHEERZEDL
& fif it 26 FEERRCE HE Percentage of
£ Place of Principal activities and effective interest
Name incorporation place of operation in ownership
IREGF AR AR A F) BB KEER - BB
Bank Consortium Holding Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, Hong Kong 13.333%
IREMEFERR QA BB BIBER RN - B
Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund 13.333%

business, Hong Kong

RS RLA R A A B MBS XL - BB

BCT Financial Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund 13.333%
business, Hong Kong

AEEERBIERBR AR <= BMMEATK The Group’s interest in Bank Consortium Holding Limited is held by

FiRITRA - MR EEAR AR KRB RE DSB, a subsidiary of the Company. Bank Consortium Trust Company

AR TREHER AR AR 22 EMB AR Limited and BCT Financial Limited are the wholly owned subsidiaries

of Bank Consortium Holding Limited.

228  AFEBRITEEABRAR 2016FFF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. MELQF] 26. SUBSIDIARIES

R2016F 12 A31 8 ' ARRIZHBARWT :

The following is a list of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31

December 2016:
RERBED BRTEBRRE
i 2 Percentage of shares held Particulars of
ARER TEER Place of EE Gk issued ordinary
Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly  Indirectly share capital
AFRTERAA R1T BB
Dah Sing Bank, Limited Banking Hong Kong 100% = HK$6,200,000,000
£H(1931) BB A BEE BB
MEVAS (1931) Limited Inactive Hong Kong 100% - HK$400,000,000
AMBHERAA BEX BB
Dah Sing Finance Limited Inactive Hong Kong 100% - HK$25,000,000
REER EBRURS
South Development Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100% = US$1
REER BRE
D.A.H. Holdings Limited Investment holding Bermuda 75.5% - US$1,000,000
AT (FE) BRAA R1T HEE AR AFE
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited Banking People’s Republic of - 100% RMB1,200,000,000
China
BPIRRRTRNERAA R1T R
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. Banking Macau - 100% MOP225,000,000
AMERERERAF mEX BB
Dah Sing Computer Systems Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 100% HK$20
RETRIEERE AR AR R4 BB
Dah Sing Insurance Brokers Limited Insurance broking Hong Kong = 100% HK$200,000
BEX EBENRS
DSLI (1) Limited Inactive British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1
AHEEBRRA RE AR BB
Dah Sing Nominees Limited Nominee services Hong Kong - 100% HK$100,000
REER BB
Dah Sing Properties Limited Investment holding Hong Kong = 100% HK$9,998

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. B2 E @)

26. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

FRERBAED BRTEBRRE
i 2 Percentage of shares held Particulars of
ARER TEER Place of HE ik issued ordinary
Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly  Indirectly share capital
REER BB
DSB BCM (1) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong - 100% HK$1
REER BB
DSB BCM (2) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong = 100% HK$1
AHERZBRAT EREE BB
Dah Sing Securities Limited Securities dealing Hong Kong - 100% HK$10,000,000
BEZE 0
MEVAS Nominees Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 100% HK$50,000
NERE RBRUAS
CWL Prosper Limited (formerly known Property investment British Virgin Islands = 100% US$1
as Channel Winner Limited)
RRENE (FE)ERAH EEE BB
Pacific Finance (Hong Kong) Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 100% HK$450,000,000
ZEGBERAH FifE BB
OK Finance Limited Money Lending Hong Kong - 100% HK$1,000
BEX EBENRS
Shinning Bloom Investments Limited Inactive British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1
HEREBRARA NERE BB
Vanishing Border Investment Services Limited  Property investment Hong Kong = 100% HK$20
NERE REBRUES
Wise Measure Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1
NERE EBENRS
Reliable Associates Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1
mEE¥ REAS
D.A.H. Hambros (Channel Islands) Limited Inactive Guernsey - 75.5% US$15,000

RIBITEBER AR 20165 F 5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

FRERBAED BRTEBRRE
i 2 Percentage of shares held Particulars of
ARER TEER Place of HE ik issued ordinary
Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly  Indirectly share capital
FNBEBEERAA BEX EE
Modern World Holdings Limited Inactive Hong Kong 100% - HK$1
HNBEEERDA mE¥ BB
Modern Bright Hong Kong Limited Inactive Hong Kong 100% = HK$1
NERE EBRAHS
Talent Union Holding Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands - 100% US$2
NERE EBENRS
Well Idea Enterprises Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands 100% - US$1

BRARFRITERAARARBERARSIN » EHlpr
BRRHBILARB LR EEAIMBTT MK
o BN E B M Z A R RS A
A e

BRAFTIRTT (FRE) BRR AR - BPIRHERITARGD
AMEA7F « D.A.H. Hambros (Channel Islands)
Limited K& k3t 51| BA7E & 7 ASNGE A SZ B9 2 7]
GN - A REBGERELE o

KFERTT(FRE) AR A RN 2008 F7 BEF B K
AL - EARE A EE A R LM B 2 5A 4R
A[BRAR] (EReE  HERMZLED
&)

Except for Dah Sing Bank, Limited which is a public limited company,
all the above companies are private companies, or, if incorporated
outside Hong Kong, have substantially the same characteristics as a
Hong Kong incorporated private company.

Except for Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, Banco Comercial
de Macau, S.A., D.A.H. Hambros (Channel Islands) Limited and
companies incorporated outside Hong Kong specified above, all other
companies operate in Hong Kong.

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited was incorporated in Mainland China in
July 2008. It is registered as “Limited liability company” (solely funded
by Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau corporate body) under the laws of
the People’s Republic of China.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITA57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

27. BERELEE

27. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

BAVER EFE#
&4 BYEE BV EE
BREE Core  Customer
wE Contract deposit  relationship ki &t
Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles  Trade name Total
XA Cost
2016F1A18K At 1 January 2016 and
2016512 A31H 31 December 2016 811,690 26,499 80,583 40,777 58,252 1,017,801
BV & Accumulated impairment/amortisation
2016%1A1H At 1 January 2016 - 26,499 80,583 39,224 - 146,306
FRTH (fraE11) Charge for the year (Note 11) - - - 1,165 - 1,165
201612 A 318 At 31 December 2016 - 26,499 80,583 40,389 - 147,471
REE Carrying value
2016128311 At 31 December 2016 811,690 - - 388 58,252 870,330
LR EPBE
At BVEE BYEE
BlEE Core Customer
BE Contract deposit  relationship i A
Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles  Trade name Total
%S Cost
201551 A1 R At 1 January 2015 and
2015124318 31 December 2015 811,690 26,499 80,583 40,777 58,252 1,017,801
2HERE/ B Accumulated impairment/amortisation
2015F1A1H At 1 January 2015 - 26,499 80,583 37,185 - 144,267
FRE (1) Charge for the year (Note 11) - - - 2,039 - 2,039
201512318 At 31 December 2015 - 26,499 80,583 39,224 - 146,306
REE Carrying value
2015128311 At 31 December 2015 811,690 - - 1,553 58,252 871,495

AFRITEBEFR AT 20165FF5¢
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27. BEREFREE @

BEEABRZEBVEERREAYN BROEREE
FRARETEERARBREBEZENF5E12
FZURFHEE - BREAEERMRYEESF
RO (B B 1B M AR A RR R IE R E 1R )
o

3}

HEDREEREANLEERERE —HNEKD
ERACHeELEN([REELENM]) - &
oL

-}
BORBMEZ50T

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS®EFIhI%1)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

27. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Intangible assets of finite life include contract intangibles, core
deposit intangibles and customer relationship intangibles, and are
amortised over their useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using a
diminishing balance method. Trade name is carried as an asset of
indefinite life and is tested annually for impairment losses. It is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment loss.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”)
identified according to business segments in line with the internal
management reporting structure. A summary of goodwill allocation is
presented below.

201512 H31 HK 201612 531 H
At 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016

BEERT B ASR1T BIMRIT
Commercial Personal Overseas &5t
Banking Banking Banking Total
B Hong Kong 196,478 122,189 - 318,667
R Macau - - 493,023 493,023
196,478 122,189 493,023 811,690

AEESFEREANR  BRBFTEZFHE
EmMEEZREELEEMAIOKREEE - Z:TEE
FAEEEEEABMFES - LA5FarE 2 78RR
S KRERBASFEREANEEFERE
2% HERIES FIABEKER - Z5Frr8lHEEE
BABENHUBHERCEESBN 2 EHRZE
R TERI R B N BB VEIE R 2 SE A BT AR 1 o P&
AR R HEERANEE 2 B AR A INEFEH
#11.2% (20154 : 10.9%) °

RS FETZRENRTER2RBREELR
5 2 3% Tt Al SRR 2= [ LA R BA St & 2 TE ORI
A - BUAEE &3 K R 2% HE Bl 55 5 F AR =K
iR o FTER 2 BHIR R A11.2% (20154 : 10.9%)
TEERAREE 2 BARKAIET I -

AFERYEEREERER 2B ERBR2015
FE) e

Impairment testing in respect of goodwill is performed annually by
comparing the recoverable amount of CGU determined based on
value in use calculation. The calculations use cash flow projections
prepared by the Senior Management based on a 5-year business plan,
taking into account projected annual growth rate, and in perpetuity
with 2% constant growth rate after the fifth year. The 5-year business
plan was developed by the Senior Management based on their
evaluation of the businesses of the relevant CGU and the conditions
in which such businesses will operate over the projected period. The
discount rate used is based on the Group’s weighted average cost of
capital at 11.2% (2015: 10.9%).

For trade name, impairment testing is performed annually using pre-
tax royalty rate of 3% with reference to similar business transactions,
projected revenue in the medium-term plan, and in perpetuity with 2%
constant growth rate after the fifth year. The discount rate of 11.2%
(2015: 10.9%) used is based on the Group’s weighted average cost of
capital.

No impairment losses on goodwill and trade name were identified in
the year (2015: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TA151)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

28. TERHMBEEEE

28. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS

&M
RERRE
Furniture,
equipment
{TE  and motor &%
Premises vehicles Total
BZE2015F12 A31 HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2015
FEREFE Opening net book amount 1,371,062 415,532 1,786,594
i Additions 233,281 96,994 330,275
BNOBTERIRENE Reclassification from premises to
investment properties (10,507) - (10,507)
HE Disposals - (1,457) (1,457)
TES L (EE11) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (42,111) (112,782) (154,893)
EH =R Exchange difference (5,878) (2,268) (8,146)
FERREFE Closing net book amount 1,545,847 396,019 1,941,866
2015412 431 H At 31 December 2015
BXAR Cost 1,841,277 911,934 2,753,211
2N E Accumulated depreciation (295,430) (515,915) (811,345)
BREVFE Net book amount 1,545,847 396,019 1,941,866
BZ2016F12A31 HILEE Year ended 31 December 2016
F YR FE Opening net book amount 1,545,847 396,019 1,941,866
#hig Additions 90,496 137,481 227,977
BN RREMERTE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises 105,488 - 105,488
ENMOBTERIREME Reclassification from to premises
investment properties (7,176) - (7,176)
HE Disposals - (444) (444)
e (KEE11) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (44,416) (114,114) (158,530)
EHER Exchange difference (6,933) (3,402) (10,335)
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 1,683,306 415,540 2,098,846
201612 A 31 H At 31 December 2016
BXAR Cost 2,021,099 974,788 2,995,887
2ENE Accumulated depreciation (337,793) (559,248) (897,041)
BREFE Net book amount 1,683,306 415,540 2,098,846

RIRITEBER AT 20165 F 5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7A7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

28. TERHMEEEE @ 28. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (Continued)
TEZEOFERRE : The net book value of premises comprises:
2016 2015
THfEH Leaseholds
ERBFE 2 F AL Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(E10E50F 2 [F) lease (between 10-50 years) 1,248,510 1,192,779
TEBBAINGFE 2 EIFEL Held outside Hong Kong on medium-—
(fE10E50F 2 ) term lease (between 10-50 years) 434,796 353,068

1,683,306 1,545,847

29. REYHE 29. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2016 2015
1H1H At 1 January 991,376 814,229
#ig Additions 29,497 162,924
BN BREMERTE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises (105,488) -
ENMOBITERIREME Reclassification from premises to
investment properties 35,600 11,900
EHAFEWZE Fair value gains on revaluation 13,462 2,323
12 A31H At 31 December 964,447 991,376
TEYZEZ BREFERTR : The net book value of investment properties comprises:
2016 2015
TR fEH Leaseholds
EEBFA 2 EIEL Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(E10E50F2M) lease (between 10-50 years) 916,530 928,209
TEERLAINER 2 BT AT Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(fE10E50F 2 ) term lease (between 10-50 years) 47,917 63,167
964,447 991,376
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7TA57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

29. BEYHE @)
() sHEREVE 2 AFE

AN B 2016 4 2015412 A 31 B AR EY
EREBEET T EM o WA BB B E R
EME-—AFEEH (HEREXER) BRAR
BANRESRPEEAZYERE — K FE 4
CRPY) BRA R AR Z MEREEL B
ERMARBEEELTRAR2E Z AU ER
3T HARK A4S B IRHETT ©

MiZEEAME L HEER  HERBHBHBRE
ERF 1P AT EFEF 2 ATFEEE B K
EEFARTIS2HEENS 2 RaMRENYER

EFEREMENEER 2T —BEBREA
KE B - 1B R AR E =BT AN RE
[E Pt /e RO SH & BALEN - FTEEZBRN TE
FJ5R1,57978 7T (20154 : 1,695/87T) EFF
73R 124,100 7% 7t (20154 : 123,800/ 7T) ° 4
EBNEENTREEBUEENEZ ATENE
HHEEEDLLARD - RZIFA -

REMEDBRAELTBUHRELLFE 135
(RHERE)F A FHESERHEIRR

RIBITEBER AT 20165 F 55

29. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(@) Fair value measurement of investment properties

The Group’s investment properties were last revalued at 31 December
2016 and 2015 by adopting the direct comparison approach or
the income capitalisation approach and with reference to recent
transactions for similar premises as far as practicable by independent,
professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation and Professional
Services) Limited for investment properties in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for investment
properties in Macau.

The basis of the valuation of property was market value which is
consistent with the definition of fair value under HKFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement” and takes into account the highest and best use of the
property from the perspective of market participants.

One of the key inputs used in valuing the investment properties was
the unit sale rate taking into account of time, location, and individual
factors such as size and levels of buildings, which ranged from
HK$1,579 (2015: HK$1,695) to HK$124,100 (2015: HK$123,800) per
square foot. A decrease in unit sale rate would result in decrease in
fair value measurement of the investment properties by the same
percentage and vice versa.

Investment properties are classified as Level 3 under the fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”.
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29. BEWHE @)

(2) DHESERPFEIRFI 2 A FEFEY

AR
TRHANERBEERTABRRIBE Z(AEE
HEIRR 2R EMEMFTEN R FERBITR
HiSR 2 B8R B 2 8K

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

29. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of fair value measurement in Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy

The following table provides a reconciliation of the movement
between opening and closing balances of Level 3 investment
properties, measured at fair value using a valuation technique with
significant unobservable inputs:

2016 2015
1A1H At 1 January 991,376 814,229
i Additions 29,497 162,924

EMDBRTERREME

— BN BATTEZREFE

—EfABBATESHRERE

NAFHEEHRHBRENERTE

12 431 H

RERIE L EEERE
IR E BRI RET
IEEd ]
~NEEEFRHS

RERFAZBEERSES
BHER AR NI

— APk

Reclassification from premises to
investment properties
— Net book value of premises
reclassified 5,673 10,507
— Surplus on revaluation credited to
premises revaluation reserve 29,927 1,393

Reclassification from investment

properties to premises at fair value (105,488) -
Fair value gains 13,462 2,323
At 31 December 964,447 991,376

Unrealised gains or losses recognised
in comprehensive income statement
relating to those assets held at the
end of the year
— Net surplus on property revaluation 29,927 1,393

Unrealised gains or losses recognised
in income statement relating to those
assets held at the end of the year
— Fair value gains 13,462 2,270
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

29. BEWHE @)
() BEFEIRBNAFEHETENER

29. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c) Information about Level 3 fair value measurement

BEGE TABRE 2 HE

Valuation Unobservable £i[E

technique(s) input(s) Range

REWZE WARBEET A ikl G 2.05% to 3.35%
(1B %) (20154 : 1.90% % 3.50% )

Investment properties  Income capitalisation approach Market yields 2.05% to 3.35%
(reversionary yield) (2015: 1.90% % 3.50%)

hiknika BREER7TIBTE104ET

(20154 : GFFRI4BILE102HE7T)

Market rental HK$71 to HK$104 per square foot

MMARBEECTZBEERAHEZREY X
BERZHERFRARBEECREERZEY
KX HBEAERKAZENET - 2FER
EEMSHESKICARBAR  EhizRaEERKE
MEERRER

30. HiEE

(2015: HK$34 to HK$102 per square foot)

For investment properties of which the fair value is determined using
the income capitalisation approach, the assessment is conducted
on the basis of capitalisation of net incomes with due allowance
for outgoings and reversionary income potential. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the market rental and
inversely correlated to the market yields.

30. OTHER ASSETS

2016 2015

YR R IR IR B
FERTURA
HAit

31. BEEERENES

Accounts receivable and prepayments 1,955,675 2,084,811
Accrued income 810,557 715,756
Others 255,587 240,322

3,021,819 3,040,889

31. TRADING LIABILITIES

2016 2015

HEBEREBEREEES

RITRITEBER AT 20165 F 55

Short sales of treasury bills
and treasury bonds 7,748,887 6,270,630
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32. EFEX

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABHE T 7TA7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

32. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

2016 2015

ETER R AERER Demand deposits and
current accounts 34,941,422 36,057,166
RETR Savings deposits 24,423,369 21,826,622
FEH - BAREHER Time, call and notice deposits 94,498,182 92,964,115

BEFO&BBESHIFEADEBET I HEEE
¥& 2 S 2 17 7 42,732,0005% 7T (2015 4 -
7,178,000/87T) °

BEH  BARERERIN  MEEMEPER
BRERIFR o

33. ERITHERRE

153,862,973 150,847,903

Included in customer accounts were deposits of HK$42,732,000
(2015: HK$7,178,000) held as collateral for irrevocable commitments
under import letters of credit.

Other than time, call and notice deposits, all other customer deposits
carry variable interest rates.

33. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT ISSUED

2016 2015

REDRF X E R TR TETR At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 5,052,951 4,361,923
REEERRC AN DI AR At amortised cost 1,507,025 1,869,914
6,559,976 6,231,837

R 2016 F M 2015F KN » REB R ERIIARER
BRI EAMERTEREENAFEFEAHEE
T ABS o

AEBENEEBITFREDBHEZS NEN
/£ 28R _EFr7 2 BR T {8 = 20,000,000 7% T
(20154 : 1%.8,000,000 78 T) ©

During 2016 and 2015, the Group did not designate on initial
recognition any certificates of deposit issued at fair value through
profit or loss.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the holders of these certificates of deposit is HK$20 million
higher (2015: HK$8 million lower) than the above carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TA1%51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

34. BEREHK 34. SUBORDINATED NOTES
2016 2015
225,000,000 ZE T4 2020 4F E| #iHY US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
EREEER (F(F)) Rate Notes due 2020 (Note (a)) 1,854,026 1,894,565
200,000,000 =TTk A E BIAEEL US$200,000,000 Perpetual Subordinated
(7 (2)) Fixed Rate Notes (Note (b)) 429,072 448,814
225,000,000 #7103 7T 7 2022 4 EI HARY S$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
EEREERGE(R)) Rate Notes due 2022 (Note (c)) 1,205,148 1,223,184
225,000,000 E T 2024 FEIHi A US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
EBBEERGE(T)) Rate Notes due 2024 (Note (d)) 1,749,252 1,753,331
250,000,000 3= T4 2026 F 2| Hi#) US$250,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
EBREERGEUX)) Rate Notes due 2026 (Note (€)) 1,908,665 =
7,146,163 5,319,894
REDRFRE R TN TES R At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 6,717,091 4,871,080
JR# R AT BR At amortised cost 429,072 448,814
7,146,163 5,319,894

R 2016 5 2 2015 F A » AEBARB R FIHFER
RrigEEMREEE /AR EFERLEZ

(F) & 75 K % 4R 17 R2010F2 811 R & 17 2
225,000,000 2= T £ %7 N 3% 22 5 Fr ([ #1 22 A 1)
EmWEREAMIMNERNEBREGR([E
%) o EERBN2020F2 A11 BEIH - F£8
£6.625% ' B FMNBE—K o RIFIRITIE 8
—BIBRERATET L A XI= HI A A IS E RS RO B R LS
FERABAETRITRERERERNZ IS

o
A °©

(Z) 75 K % 4R 17 R2007F2 A16 8 % 17 2
200,000,000 = TAE ST RAT LM MR E A= E
MiANE ARE KA E B EER ([EB] - WEE
2B HEER A2017F2 A17H - \3%1TH
SHREUEER  F£8/56.253% @ FEF
BR o Hig - MEBAREEREEEAED -
FENFEEETASEARETRITRERSE
1908 T - EEBEBSE RTELIME + K5
SRITAI A IRIZ M IS A sk A B A 12 R I B3R
HUAZEEEEERFAE (EHD) &K - AR
JRE E—BIFRIRTTE] AR R B & A i B E
ENBEBRAUETRITRAEREAERNTE
B

RIBITEBER AR 20165 F 5

During 2016 and 2015, the Group did not designate on initial

recognition any subordinated notes at fair value through profit or loss.

Note:

This represents US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as supplementary capital of DSB issued on 11 February 2010
(the “Notes”), which are listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange Trading
Limited (“SGX”). The Notes will mature on 11 February 2020. Interest at
6.625% p.a. is payable semi-annually. An interest rate swap contract to
swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating interest rate
based on LIBOR has been entered into with an international bank.

This represents US$200,000,000 Perpetual Subordinated Fixed Rate
Notes qualifying as upper supplementary capital of DSB issued on 16
February 2007 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SGX. The Notes
carry an optional redemption date falling on 17 February 2017. Interest at
6.253% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue date to the optional
redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest
rate will reset and the Notes will bear interest at 3-month LIBOR plus
190 basis points. DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the
HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the
optional redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment
date. An interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment
liability of the Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been
entered into with an international bank.
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34.

BEE® @

i ()

(2)

(A)

(T)

(%)

72010 F K% 2009 F © AFIRITHRK LIRS
KA R R ATRERE AR A RES A
75,000,000 7T }2.70,000,0003% 7T 2 S0 (&7
mBMzEOBEEERESEEEERZAE LI
BT -

It 75 K 7 iR 17 R2012462A8H % 1T 2
225,000,000 7 N3 7012 #1 X FT_E T4 R E B
MimnEARE S A EER ([EF]) - LEEHS
2022462 A9HEIH - EIBIEEIE H /2017
F2A9B - ABTEEZHREMHEER T8
54.875% @ FEEME—K - HiE  WEBEK
FEREHEERED  FANFESETAER
SEMFMB TR SR MNI76 2 F - EEBE
BB RIELIE  RFIRITAIRBRERERA
FEBBEARFEMNR B UZEEERBRAE
(FEEBH ) B o RFTRITINE B —BEPRIRITAI L
FlZ 2 B & Q) BB 8 EE I SRR AR TR
TRIZER S BERKZENFSFIK o

bt T3 K ¥ iR 17 R 201441 A29R8 % 17 2
225,000,000 TEBABERFHER A A
(TBEBRSAT]) LM RFEBEERBE I MR
EAZMEARNI0FHTE SRERR ([EH])
(BB EBCRITE (BAR) RADZEHK) - 1F
BIEHER2024F1 A20 A EIH - iIRBHEER A
20194F1 A290 - TR EEERIEEER -
FRRE5.25%  BY¥ERE—K - Hig - WE®K
KREREMEEAED  ARNFECETAE
K54 R B E G5 B R 3758 F - BEFE
BeERTELRE - RIRITAINERNEER
FEBSEARFEMNRBUZAEEBEME
(FEEBP ) B o RFTRITINE B —BEPRIRITEI L
Fe s By & A IS B 8 E e A SR R AR TR
TREFEAERRZEFIS K -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

34. SUBORDINATED NOTES (continued)

Note: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

In 2010 and 2009, DSB repurchased a portion of the Notes with a total
notional principal of US$75,000,000 and US$70,000,000 respectively
at a discount after unwinding an identical notional amount of interest
rate swap. Such repurchased Notes were cancelled after receiving prior
approval of the HKMA.

This represents S$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as supplementary capital of DSB issued on 8 February 2012
(the “Notes”), which are listed on the SGX. The Notes will mature on 9
February 2022 with an optional redemption date falling on 9 February
2017. Interest at 4.875% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue
date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not
redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest
at the then prevailing 5-year Singapore Dollar swap rate plus 376 basis
points. DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional
redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date. An
interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the
Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with
an international bank.

This represents US$225,000,000 Basel Ill compliant 10-year
Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of DSB
(subject to the provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong)
issued on 29 January 2014 (the “Notes”), which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”). The Notes will mature on 29
January 2024 with an optional redemption date falling on 29 January
2019. Interest at 5.25% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue
date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are
not redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear
interest at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 375 basis
points. DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional
redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date. An
interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the
Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with
an international bank.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

34. BEE®E @
(@)

() M J5 K 3 4R 47 R 2016F 11 A30H % 17 ~
250,000,000 X TEBAR S L RFEEE
BTN M FREA—RERNN10FHE SKE
&% ([ER]) (BBTEBCRTE (BAR)RAD
ZIER) o I EES AR 2026511 A30H FH »
EIEMEEHRA2021411 A30H - BHETEHE
HiR2HEEH - £854.25%  S¥EMHE—
R o B - WMEFRIERBUHEERARERD - 4%
WA S BB AERS FHEEEEES B EN
2558 T - BEBEBCERELIME - KFR
TR PNE R B S ARSI A 0 A 2R B
NEEEEER A GEHBH ) &1 o AFIRITN
B8 — B R 1TE] A R A A B ES M E
F IR A AT IRTT R 24T B AR A2 ENF

IS E/

AEBFENEREGFDBRIZANENNESEE
8 LA+ BT 5l 2 Bk m (& 1X 85,000,000 Jt (2015
£ : {£171,000,000 3 7T) °

35. IEEERIIE

REFIEEERBENHHRERGSENITE
S 55 BN HATI T8 & 2= AN B EAR 18 & B SR TR IR
HA[R] — TSNS G BN 5 RIETT - BEH 2 S
T

34. SUBORDINATED NOTES (continued)

Note: (Continued)

©)

This represents US$250,000,000 Basel Ill compliant 10-year
Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of DSB
(subject to the provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong)
issued on 30 November 2016 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the
SEHK. The Notes will mature on 30 November 2026 with an optional
redemption date falling on 30 November 2021. Interest at 4.25% p.a. is
payable semi-annually from the issue date to the optional redemption
date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest rate will be
reset and the Notes will bear interest at the then prevailing 5-year U.S.
Treasury Rate plus 255 basis points. DSB may, subject to receiving the
prior approval of the HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole but not in part,
at par either on the optional redemption date or for taxation reasons
on interest payment date. An interest rate swap contract to swap the
fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating interest rate based on
LIBOR has been entered into with an international bank.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the holders of these subordinated notes is HK$85 million

lower (2015: HK$171 million lower) than the above carrying amount.

35. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a

legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against

current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes

relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

2016 2015
EEFITBEE Deferred income tax assets 68,286 83,473
FERIE A& Deferred income tax liabilities (91,741) (46,556)

EEHBREERBBERBEREZRZERER R
B 2 Rt BTN T

RITRITEBER AT 20165 F 55

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities analysed based on the

underlying category of temporary differences and the expected date

of recovery and settlement are as follows:
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35. IEZERIE (@)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABHE T 7TA7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

35. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

2016 2015
EEFIBAE Deferred income tax assets:
—AlE12 @A A B E 2 IREFRIEE E - Deferred income tax assets to
be recovered after more
than 12 months 155,356 154,305
EEFIBARE Deferred income tax liabilities:
—EE12ERZEECEEHIEAE - Deferred income tax liabilities to
be settled after more
than 12 months (178,811) (117,388)
(23,455) 36,917

IEIERIRRR B BB T -

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as

follows:
2016 2015
1HA1H At 1 January 36,917 15,514
RURESBRNFRIE () /Bl Tax (charged)/credited to the
(M5E15) income statement (Note 15) (7,209) 19,190
RS IRARIE (), /o 3 Tax (charged)/credited to equity
(Fft5E39) (Note 39) (47,455) 6,063
EHER Exchange difference (5,708) (3,850)
12 HA31H At 31 December (23,455) 36,917

EERAEERBBERAFEZES) - TRER

MRRIBEEEE T BT

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances
within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

35. EZERIE (@)

35. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

IRIERIBEE - Deferred income tax assets:
AE EEX
ERERER RHEAM
Impairment Deferred
allowances BKER  expenses &t
and provisions  Tax losses  and others Total
20151811 At 1 January 2015 95,671 1,077 40,618 137,366
RURESER MR/ (1) Credited/(charged) to the income statement 14,572 (780) 6,997 20,789
ERER Exchange difference (3,677) - (173) (3,850)
2015F 12 318K At 31 December 2015 and
201641 A1H 1 January 2016 106,566 297 47,442 154,305
IR () /e (Charged)/credited to the income statement (991) (297) 8,047 6,759
EREE Exchange difference (4,050) - (1,658) (5,708)
2016512831 H At 31 December 2016 101,525 - 53,831 155,356
EEHEAE Deferred income tax liabilities:
NERBHE REVEER
Accelerated Investment REEL
R tax properties Investment &5t
Provisions depreciation revaluation revaluation Total
201551 81H At 1 January 2015 8,977 72,977 8,585 31,313 121,852
RREERAS I/ (E5) Charged/(credited) to the
income statement 759 1,297 (1,310) 853 1,599
TR B A E A Credited to equity - - - (6,063) (6,063)
2015F12 318K At 31 December 2015 and
20161/ 1H 1 January 2016 9,736 74,274 7,275 26,103 117,388
RUEEAZE/ (2E) Charged/(credited) to the
income statement 293 14,360 (685) - 13,968
RERRAR Charged to equity - - - 47,455 47,455
201612531 H At 31 December 2016 10,029 88,634 6,590 73,558 178,811

RITRITEBER AT 20165 F 55
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35. IEZERIE (@)

T FENRERRAEE () 2 RER
17 :

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABHE T 7TA7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

35. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The deferred income tax (charged)/credited to equity during the year
is as follows:

2016 2015
R Rz 2 A FERE - Fair value reserves in shareholders’ equity:
— A (i E39) - available-for-sale securities (Note 39) (47,455) 6,063

36. EKELQFZEER

REMBRARAKE BFREEE R RE —RE
RIGETRBMEL 2 EHRFIID

36. BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position captions
are balances with group companies arising from transactions
conducted on normal commercial terms:

2016 2015
ekl /NG o Balances from the holding company
FHEERKREMER Advances and other accounts 559 933
EPEER Deposits from customers 1,067,524 20,887
Hb AR B &TaHR Other accounts and accruals 596 -
HL[F RSB A Rl 2 48R Balances from fellow subsidiaries
BEERMEMRE Advances and other accounts 38,171 33,594
EPEER Deposits from customers 1,542,313 1,562,898
HEMiRE RTER Other accounts and accruals 3,221 6,989
%EER Subordinated notes 39,654 40,554

37. FAREBRAILE
() BAEE

K12 A31 AR B RIDAREREG 2 ERER
EEABEEEZEARSMT

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(@) Capital commitments
Capital expenditure in respect of projects and acquisition of fixed

assets as at 31 December but not yet incurred is as follows:

2016 2015

ERGEREEEEZHRAX

Expenditure contracted but not

provided for 62,717 165,688
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITA57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

37. BARBEBEREIE @ 37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(Continued)

(Z) EE&RE (b) Credit commitments

REBEEABRINEKEREFEFZE/MIA The contract and credit risk weighted amounts of the Group’s off-

EHSBEREEERBINESEERT balance sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to

customers are as follows:

EHEE
Contract amount
2016 2015
BEEEERER Direct credit substitutes 507,886 320,644
X SR 2 s ATE B Transaction-related contingencies 468,367 455,868
B 5 S AIEE Trade-related contingencies 593,956 438,649
ARG ERUH T /R 78 25 3 AN 2 S Commitments that are
unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice 66,088,547 64,573,823
A HE Other commitments with an
[RAERBR 7 original maturity of:
—LR1E - under 1 year 2,870,509 4,175,180
—1FMAE -1 year and over 548,658 494,999
RATFR Forward forward deposits placed 21,029 =
71,098,952 70,459,163
EERBIMNESEE
Credit risk
weighted amount
2016 2015
N B E SR Contingent liabilities and commitments 1,289,997 1,521,336

246  AFEBRITEEBRAR 20165 FF
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37. HAEBERALE @)

(R) BEERZEE

TRTRRAREEINERESBEBEFNEE R
MERHFADMBEREEESERZIINEERE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(Continued)
(c) Assets pledged

Exchange Fund debts pledged with the HKMA to facilitate the Group’s
trading and market-making activities in Exchange Fund debts are as

s follows:
2016 2015
BERGEEEERNEE : Assets pledged with HKMA:
FHIEEBERZMES Trading securities 6,036,748 5,771,254
At EES Available-for-sale securities 1,148,005 490,324
7,184,753 6,261,578
HEABE : Associated liabilities:
RIEEERZMARE Trading liabilities 7,748,887 6,270,630

TRTIBZEBEBRER TIERESREE 2
B ES AR REZREE

The carrying amounts of the non-government bonds pledged with
unrelated financial institutions under repurchase agreements and the
associated liabilities are as follows:

2016 2015

Bl 2 IR EE Assets pledged under

repurchase agreements:
AN EES Available-for-sale securities 691,634 169,803
R R RIS Held-to-maturity securities - 3,943
691,634 173,746
HHEAE Associated liabilities:

RITIER Deposits from banks 466,306 43,914
HbR B kAR Other accounts and accruals 186,987 123,271
653,293 167,185

BB R RERBREN A FERER 2E S
MRRE(ERR

REBEHERA - AEBETREER - HEHEA
NERES  TEHHERZEFNETANGEER

B o

The fair value of the transferred securities and associated liabilities
approximate the carrying amount of the transferred securities.

The Group cannot use, sell or pledge the above securities for the

duration of the repurchase agreements and is exposed to the credit
risk of the issuers of the transferred securities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

37. RABBRAIE @) 37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(Continued)
(T) R&EHERIE (d) Operating lease commitments
MAEEZ AT AERBA BT BUEMER S Where a Group company is the lessee, the future minimum lease
HEMNAKRK B M2 HEHEMNHETELT - payments under non-cancellable building operating leases are as
follows:
2016 2015

1FHA Not later than 1 year 185,896 183,332
1FEUABESF Later than 1 year and

not later than 5 years 489,608 468,581
5% E Later than 5 years 320,495 349,332

995,999 1,001,245

MAEE Y ATAEHEA - 28] BUN 1Y) 548 L Where a Group company is the lessor, the future minimum lease
FAEMARRKRABL T HEREZEENT payments under non-cancellable building operating leases are as
follows:
2016 2015
1FA Not later than 1 year 34,100 31,213
1FARBRESF Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 33,930 21,154
68,030 52,367

248  KIBITEEER AT 2016540
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

38. A 38. SHARE CAPITAL
2016 2015
R N & R
B - Ordinary shares, Number Share Number Share
ERTRHRRA issued and fully paid: of shares capital of shares capital
1A1H At 1 January 1,401,971,828 6,853,504 1,401,701,805 6,850,354
SITERREEITRG Issue of shares upon exercise
(8B RO ERER of share options (with transfer
W 2 ) from share-based
compensation reserve) 1,495,507 16,089 270,023 3,150
12 A31H At 31 December 1,403,467,335 6,869,593 1,401,971,828 6,853,504

BEBANA AR 200445 6 A 12 B RN R A T2
([EZRRMEETE]) - BZRRETEIEITLAK -
97 {7 (2015 5 : 97 1) RN #E LAFREE 14,356,991
A% (2015 4F : 14,356,991 %) AR A& {5 © B &%
FTAREENDHDES REMRTERAEB © BZat
£ X 37 % 22016412 A31 A Lk » 5115 (2015
F 5117 ) RAXHELATRAE 2,039,841 f% (2015 4F :
2,039,841 %) "2 RIIR (7 B RSk B Ef o

Pursuant to the Company’s Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”)
adopted on 12 June 2004, 97 (2015: 97) options to subscribe for
14,356,991 shares (2015: 14,356,991 shares) of the Company had
been granted to certain directors and senior executives of the Group
since the inception of the Scheme. Up to 31 December 2016 and since
the incorporation of the Scheme, 51 (2015: 51) options to subscribe
for 2,039,841 shares (2015: 2,039,841 shares) of the Company have
lapsed or expired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITA57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

38. MR @)

AEAMEZERSRITHRABRBERIME B
B ZRABRERARRBIRMEE EFHT

38. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Movements in the number of the Company’s shares in the share
options under the Scheme held by directors and senior executives
during the year are as follows:

RRERRGHE
Number of shares
in the options

2016 2015
1A1H At 1 January 11,880,959 12,150,982
RERFTE KK Exercised or lapsed during the year (1,495,507) (270,023)
12 A31H At 31 December 10,385,452 11,880,959

W12 A 31 BADARES TR Z BAERFFIA T

Particulars of the outstanding options as at 31 December are as

follows:
RRETRGEE
AREHA Number of shares
Number of options in the options

RYBRTHEE Date of grant and exercise price 2016 2015 2016 2015
201112 8128 - 12 December 2011, at an exercise

B ESR8.1 B price of HK$8.91 per share* 15 15 8,100,655 8,100,655
201212 A218 21 December 2012, at an exercise

BT ESRT7.96 8T price of HK$7.96 per share* 13 22 2,097,859 3,531,053
20143 F 260 - 26 March 2014, at an exercise

B ESR11.68 8L price of HK$11.68 per share* 3 4 186,938 249,251

31 41 10,385,452 11,880,959

* RIEZ BT B 2GR - DAREITE 2 R AE * Pursuant to the terms of the Scheme, adjustments were made to the

A RERD A RITEEDRARFN20145

5 AyEk 2 AR EHFEE -

RIBITEBER AT 20165 F 35

exercise price and the number of shares that can be subscribed for
under the outstanding share options as a result of the Rights Issue of the
Company completed in May 2014.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

39. f#&fE 39. RESERVES
WRhE  REER
fEEMRRE REEMHRR EREHRR (&)
GERE  Premises Investment  EXEE  -REE  Resenefor  Refained
Consolidation  Revaluation  Revaluation  Exchange General Share-based  Earnings ait
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Compensation (Note) Total
01651 81H At1 January 2016 (220,986) 240,193 216,550 73,328 700,254 8,882 13,595,880  14,614,09%
REARER T EAR Issue of ordinary shares pursuant to
i3 exercise of share aptions - - - - - (3,953) - (3,953
BRI ERS Fair valug gains on avalable-for-sale
IRy securities recognised n equity - - - - - -
ATERERNT ET e Fair value gain realised and transferred to
Pl SNE T income statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale securities - - (54,502) - - - - (54,502)
RAERREESZETHE  Defered income tax on movements in
(KizF35) investment revaluation reserve (Note 35) - - (4455 - - - - (445
REENABAERRE Reserve arising from reclassification of
VIEPA:A premises to investment properties - 20,927 - - - - - 20,927
BERRRRBER Exchange differences arising on translation of
HEHZZ the financial statements of foreign entities - - - (361,8%) - - - (361,8%)
WREZ ARG AERE Provision for equity-setled
Eipg L share-hased compensation - - - - - 1,101 - 1,01
ERR Profit for the year - - - - - - 2145491 2145491
NI5ERERE 2015 firel didend - - - - - - BRsT) (85T
016 FF 5k 2016 interim dividend - - - - - - (140328 (140,32)
016F128317 At 31 December 2016 (220,986) 210,120 432,312 (288,573) 700,254 6,030 15222468 16,121,625
BZ12831 AILFEE
Year ended 31 December
2016 2015
BREAMRBAENNA Proposed final dividend/
ZEURAREARE,BIRARHMR (i 16) final dividend paid included
in retained earnings (Note 16) 392,971 378,577
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITA57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

39. f#fE @

39. RESERVES (Continued)

Whha  REEA
EERRE RAERER U bl (i)
GelRE  Pemses Investment  ENEE  —KEE Resenefor  Retained
Consolidation ~ Revaluation ~ Revaluation ~ Exchange General Share-based ~ Eamings it
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Compensation (Note) Total
015F1 A 1A At 1 January 2015 (220,986) 238,800 167,962 283,090 700,254 7690  11,913989 13,090,799
BEAREL T Rk Issue of ordinary shares pursuant
ki3 to exercise of share options - - - - - (769) - (769)
NERTRIESS Fair value gains on avalable-for-sale
T securites recognised in equity - - 59,093 - - - - 59,093
ATERERTETNE Fair value gain realised and transferred to
i SNEIZ) Gt income statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale securities - - (16,568) - - - - (16,568)
RBEEREZHZETHE  Deferred income tax on movements
(Kzt3s) ininvestment revaluation reserve (Note 35) - - 6,063 - - - - 6,063
REENIENERRE Reserve arising from reclassification
IEPA:A of premises to investment properties - 139 - - - - - 1,393
REBENRER Exchange differences arising on
MERZR translation of the financial statements
of foreign entities - - - (209,767) - - - (209,767)
MRS R AR f A Provision for equity-settled
e VA share-based compensation - - - - - 1,961 - 1,961
EREA Profit for the year - - - - - - 2200604 2,200,604
NUERERE 2014 final dividend - - - - - - (364,496)  (364,496)
NI6ERERE 2015 ntrim dividend - - - - - -7 (s42m)
015% 128318 At 31 December 2015 (220,986) 240,193 216,550 73,323 700,254 8882 13,595,880 14,614,096

AFRITEBEFR AT 20165FF5¢
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39. f#fE @
it

RHATRITRHEREMBITAAEERBYERRDE
B RE BRI T AN 2 AR ERE - BRZEER
1 (R RORPIRSRERTT RoRHIRTT (PR HRIF &
BRRTEGIMAFBEERBNZAEERE
ZEERERRAIKETREAZFHESR - BEREZ
HHARBFELERETEN  TEERERFHEFHNH
B o

2016412 431 8 « KHR1TE 5 7E 1,398,280,000
77T (2015 4 : 1,528,440,000787T) 2 © 51 A EE f#
BHRIBHEL S —RHE  SEEREGARBERF

$E5E °

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

39. RESERVES (Continued)

Note:

DSB as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is required to maintain
minimum impairment provisions in excess of those required under HKFRS
in the form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory reserve, which also covers
BCM and DSB China, is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong
Banking Ordinance and local regulatory requirements for prudential supervision
purposes. The regulatory reserve restricts the amount of reserves which can
be distributed to shareholders. Movements in the regulatory reserve are made
directly through equity reserve and in consultation with the HKMA.

As at 31 December 2016, DSB has earmarked a regulatory reserve of
HK$1,398,280,000 (2015: HK$1,528,440,000) first against its consolidated
general reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked against
its consolidated retained earnings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITA57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

40. FEREREBAERNE 40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
(R) HIRETREREBEEEEZRRRE (@) Reconciliation of operating profit before gains and
BAIZEEGREKCEZHRERA losses on certain investments and fixed assets to net
SREEHAREK cash from operating activities
2016 2015
HBRETRE REEEE 2 W & EER Operating profit before gains and losses
2B on certain investments and fixed assets 1,757,457 1,850,932
VBN N Net interest income (3,637,519) (3,336,688)
% B s Dividend income (19,808) (17,221)
EREBERELMEERE Loan impairment losses and
other credit provisions 563,567 496,352
e Depreciation 158,530 154,893
BB E B Amortisation expenses of intangible assets 1,165 2,039
R Bl E 2 B sE 5 Advances written off net of recoveries (389,478) (323,741)
PARR A S 5 BARR (0 1B AR R 3 M o 1k A8 Provision for equity-settled share-based
compensation 1,101 1,961
RLEUNCS Interest received 5,152,265 5,124,993
BERFLE Interest paid (1,105,919)  (1,406,651)
B E Dividend received 176,849 191,812
HEEERBEEYR 2 EE T Operating profit before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 2,658,210 2,738,681
SEEERBRZEY Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
—RE RERITHER KRB EBR - cash and balances with banks and
3EAZBAREHER money at call and short notice with an
original maturity beyond three months 884,914 (1,012,606)
— [RE|HI BB 3 8 A 2 SR TR - placements with banks with an original
maturity beyond three months (718,339) (946,177)
—FIEEBERENES - trading securities 1,620,270 (3,534,331)
—THEeRTIA - derivative financial instruments (213,008) (10,892)
—EBENATEFZ A EEHABRN - financial assets designated at fair
EREE value through profit or loss (61,260) (88,163)
U ES - trade bills 2,169,925 914,158
—BFPEX - advances to customers (4,029,397)  (4,395,278)
—HiRA - other accounts 113,871 727,088
— Al EE S - available-for-sale securities (6,309,518) (823,627)
— BRI HES - held-to-maturity securities 149,992 242,272
—IRITER — deposits from banks 767,292 (21,556)
—RHEEEMAENEE - trading liabilities 1,478,258 673,015
—BPEN — deposits from customers 3,015,070 8,267,664
—BITIE - certificates of deposit issued 1,949,048 110,714
—HBR B KB - other accounts and accruals (1,441,098) 635
b 5 SR Exchange adjustments 62,612 62,345
REEEERANERE Cash generated from operating activities 2,096,842 2,903,942
XA EBETHNEREZHE Interest paid on certificates of deposit issued (64,022) (83,828)
BHBEBNEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (309,433) (314,496)
BAVEIINR Overseas tax paid (26,395) (21,177)
KEEETABREF58 Net cash from operating activities 1,696,992 2,484,441

254  KFEITEEBERAR 20165 F 5
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40. ZFEREREBLEERME @

(2) ERERBLERN REREAR
SEERERBERHEIEARST
B TH&S REEER(LEE
AEBRETHEERERER S
P22

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise the following balances
with maturity of three months or less from the date of
acquisition, deposits that are readily convertible to known
amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

2016 2015

B4 RIERITHES
BEHAESEA ST 2 BARERER

JREIEA B 4E 3 1 H 5 IA T 2 FEIRTTEVIF K

BENBEEERAZNESAZBERE

BENAIHBEEEFAZBEERE

JRESE ESkTF A AR R R 1T HY 45 #4 359,580,000 75
JC(20154F : 344,517,0005570) B[R & MR
HEEE | RET IR EEEE [HE RERITH

REER RIS ©

Cash and balances with banks 1,553,513 1,838,925
Money at call and short notice

with an original maturity within

three months 11,692,449 12,969,242
Placements with banks with an

original maturity within

three months 2,328,319 2,113,664
Treasury bills included
in trading securities 2,148,217 228,497

Treasury bills included
in available-for-sale securities 1,899,588 -

19,622,086 17,150,328

Included in cash and balances with banks, HK$359,580,000 (2015:
HK$344,517,000) were balances with central banks for prudential
purposes and have been excluded from cash and cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

41. EFRTES

BEEBRTUEH(F622GE)F178(REESE
FmBER) BEERTESEHE2016F K% 2015
F12 A31 HILFE ZFFEFE - W27

41. LOANS TO DIRECTORS

Particulars of loans to directors disclosed pursuant to section 17

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622G) (Disclosure

of Information about Benefits of Directors) for the year ended 31

December 2016 and 2015 are shown as below.

2016 2015
M12 A31 Bz B GREEERE Aggregate amount of relevant
transactions outstanding
at 31 December
—BEREBR - Loans and advances 108 46
FNERR G 2 m=BER Maximum aggregate amount of
relevant transactions during
the year
—BEREBR - Loans and advances 331 242

R2016 F 2015 F il v FTERAR S H—ME
B RIERE]  WEAARAALRL °

AFRITEEFR AT 20165FF5¢

The above relevant transactions in 2016 and 2015 were all transacted

by a subsidiary and nil by the Company.
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42. BREALZRE

BEREALRZFEALHARNERIFERESS
— 71 S HEELYBREERRITET
FEERTES - WEEMBTRALZE KRS
IHEAERFER  REALTHERABHEEA
4

MN2016F k20154 + REBEFHEATBIE
REEZERAR - REKBAR - ZRARZ
BRKEEHEKEEENREEEAFENZ
NAETZEFERER S o NATIBYIENIT
EFEREAEB 2V BRERN  EHZEN
THF(R) R RBRFEERBE X HET
EH - 2EEFREEBREARBREAEEREZHA
M REENBBEEREIRSDNBEAEE 2
ERER - BlHZE  —REAEGRRED @ &
AFEEBRFEAERD R RREEHSEST -

HAMBALTZEARSIT :

() BERAFKERMBLATNNRS

RRAFRAEEEZEMB A RNF N EZER A
LRRAZMBARRIZHERERS (ERRE
BRHPES EMARRAN(T EHRRIE14A.315)
WEIREE T ZBWARSH - 25X 52 81E
REBEHT B IRIE LT AR A F14A.535 2 14A.54
B ERARAKEZFE LR -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA FThz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties, which have the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to
common control or common significant influence.

During 2016 and 2015, the Group entered into various continuing
connected transactions with related parties including the holding
company, fellow subsidiaries of the Group, companies directly or
indirectly controlled or significantly influenced by the shareholders
or directors of the holding company. These, as described in Note
(a) below and being continuing connected transactions, had been
reviewed by the Company’s independent non-executive directors in
their review of the financial statements of the Group. Based on their
review and enquiry with management, the Company’s independent
non-executive directors were satisfied that all of the continuing
connected transactions were conducted in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms, and
in accordance with relevant agreements on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole.

Details of the significant related party transactions are as follows:

(@) Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries within the Group
received and incurred the following income and expense from the
continuing connected transactions (within the definition of Rule
14A.31 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK
(the “Listing Rules”)) entered into with the holding company and
fellow subsidiaries during the year. The aggregate values of these
transactions are within or consistent with the respective annual caps
applicable to the Group pursuant to Rules 14A.53 and 14A.54 of the
Listing Rules.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TA1%51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. BEEALTZRS @)
() BERATIRERMEBATNRS @

REF R ERRBEARIRT  RPIFERTT
EE—SBEHBEARZEREERAR(HE])
RPZBWAKH 25T ¢

42.
(a)

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Income or expense arising from transactions involving subsidiaries,

namely DSB, BCM and another subsidiary of the Group, Vanishing

Border Investment Services Limited (“VB”) are as follows:

2016 2015
BEAFLE (FE () Interest paid (Note (i)) (14,189) (12,708)
BUWERITFEE (FX (i) Bank charges received (Note (i)) 10,166 8,766
Bl REFEAEERE KX Rentals and related building
(& (i) management fee and charges
received (Note (ii)) 18,522 19,339
ENEeREEAEERE K Rentals and related building
(7 (iii)) management fee and
charges paid (Note (iii)) (9,639) (9,666)
BUWEERE (5E (iv)) Management fees received (Note (iv)) 18,855 17,682
B RBAS RENE (5 (V) Insurance commission and referral
fees received (Note (v)) 165,216 133,376
EAREBRE (5 (vi) Insurance premiums paid (Note (vi)) (16,394) (19,258)

() AEEARHoREBEETARRKZRITRY

RINRITRAKEEAMAK B A B AER AR RIE
REEME A R ZRRHE A E (G [ R¥ o
SEDREERRTRS - BEXESE - 89
HBik  XERRITERES - ERREPRIE
BEERRRREERE -

FRXELEE  aBER  XEREREPZR
TR - THRRIEER P R EMRRARET A
SEEMEFZHARATARET AN CRER -
ERRAPRELEEERRLRBLERD
At BEmSRERYE - ERRAP&REZ
REMSEGIWEEEFH - ERTAASHB
AT PARR AL o ARERE AR BhE B 2 Bk 25
TR REBMEMFEEL  JREFN—THTT
LR 6EA S EBA T IARIE - FTAEZFRITR
B E M E — RN SRR EE FHRME - Bk
REBEAH S REEM 2 |RITLHE - TR
EF R -

RIBITEBER AR 20165 F 5

Note:

@)

Banking arrangements provided by the Group for companies within the
DSFH Group

DSB and other members of the Group provide standard banking services
to members of the holding company and fellow subsidiaries not being
subsidiaries of the Group (collectively the “DSFH Group”) including
cheque clearing, autopay, cheque and deposit bank accounts, credit
card merchant facilities, co-branded credit cards and investment
dealing.

The banking services in respect of cheque clearing, autopay, cheque
and deposit accounts are provided to the DSFH Group in the same way
as they are provided to other customers of the Group under standard
account opening and other forms. The credit card merchant facilities
and co-brand credit card arrangements are provided under normal
commercial contracts and are at market standard. The standard market
practice for credit card merchant facilities is not to provide for a fixed
term, but allow for termination at the option of the bank by giving written
notice. The co-brand credit card arrangements between the Group and
the DSFH Group can be terminated after the first two years by either
party giving not less than six months’ notice in writing. All such banking
services, by their nature, are not normally provided for a fixed term.
Accordingly, the banking arrangement between the Group and the DSFH
Group are not for a fixed term.
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42. BEEALTZRS @)
() BERATIRERMEBATNRS @

T

(i)

(ii)

&)

AEEBRHEBEBRE T ARRRZRITRHE
(&)

BMARR ZRITHBARMAMESBEBRETA
AR ZRITRY - RAKEREMBERPRE L
—RIBITIRB R LB - BRRIETEEETE
17 - REBAAF B EBRHEZFRITRS -
SARSEE A R L S IR T IR IS M AR — B
ZAEKA -

REBZRITHBERRAN —RRIEEEBRIZS
MEEPRUEBMERITRELER - ZFERE
REGRBERATFR(BETEHFR BT
) o RAEBZRITHBRAFRFERZES
BEATEHMEBKERR - gt EWRAME -
RITEBEEKE R RFREFER ETRAISE
1AAEPTE 255 BRIER D -

BRI EBEEK B ARAFRAREEZ
RITMBR R 2 ERIIETHKFEEE - XA
B H T E =7 2 FRBERTERNZEF
R ERBEEGR - BAERZETBEBAR
SEEBEEFEER - BERNI - ZERHERERS
BT EMHRIFE14A90F 2 B - WER
B RRAAEZ RTE ©

RIRBRIRTS ~ RFRIR AR - KT AT KRR

REBFAFTIRTT - B FORPIERRITRZ W
HE
RFTRIT  BPIFERTREEEHERTHE

METAFEREBZKB AT @ BIAFRERR
BERAR ([RFREIRE]) - RRBAESR
RAT (TRFREAIE]) - KTASRBRAERA
A(RFAT ]  RPIRBREODER AR (R
R ) RAFRITEERDERGE o RFHRT
RPIRI S RTT RIS BIRPE L 2 B KA RIRH
REBARTS - RITIRRACIE - KT ASTRORFIRE
WS  ZHE  AEEREREMAERE
B - AT ZHEEREMIINTE -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.

(a)

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(0]

(ii)

Banking arrangements provided by the Group for companies within the
DSFH Group (Continued)

The banking services provided by the Company’s banking subsidiaries
to the companies within the DSFH Group are banking services and
arrangements normally provided by the Group to its other customers
and are conducted on normal commercial terms. The provision of such
banking services by the Group to the DSFH Group enables the Group
to earn reasonable income consistent with the nature and types of the
banking services.

The banking subsidiaries of the Group provide commercial banking
services and products to their customers in the ordinary and usual
course of their businesses. Such services and products include the
taking of deposits (including fixed and floating term deposits and
deposits at call). Customers who place deposits with the banking
subsidiaries of the Group include members of the DSFH Group.
For purposes of the Listing Rules, the placing of deposits provided
by members of the DSFH Group constitute continuing connected
transactions within the meaning of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Directors confirm that the deposits placed by members of the DSFH
Group at the banking subsidiaries of the Group are at market rates and
on normal commercial terms that are comparable or no more favourable
than those offered to independent third parties and that no security over
the assets of the Group is granted in respect of such financial assistance.
On that basis, such continuing connected transactions are exempt from
complying with the reporting, disclosure and independent shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

Lease of properties between DSIS, DSIA, DSLA and MIC and DSB, VB
and BCM

DSB, BCM and VB have leased certain of their owned properties to
members of the DSFH Group, namely Dah Sing Insurance Services
Limited (“DSIS”), Dah Sing Insurance Agency Limited (“DSIA”), Dah Sing
Life Assurance Company Limited (“DSLA”), Macau Insurance Company
Limited (“MIC”) and DSB as their office premises. DSB, BCM and VB
received from DSIS, DSIA, DSLA and MIC the lease rentals, and air-
conditioning charges, building management charges and other utilities
charges based on the actual amount of costs incurred. The following
table summarises the leases that have been entered into.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITA57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. BEEALTZRS @)
(R) BERATIRERMEBATNRS @ (a)

42. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

260

= (&) Note: (Continued)
@iy RIRBRT - RFRBRE - RTASRRM (i)  Lease of properties between DSIS, DSIA, DSLA and MIC and DSB, VB
REBFAFNIRTT « BB RORPIgERITR 2 and BCM (Continued)
HE (&)
SRHE
(TEEERER
ARREER
Monthly rent (exclusive
X5 B8 HEb) HEHRN HEZME of management fees

Transaction date

Contracting parties

Term of lease

Property subject to lease

and utility charges)

2013412 A30H RARTETANRRRS  2014F1 8182 BRI AREES10KAEAR18IZ2E - AJHAEEER HK$621,600
30 December 2013 DSB leased to DSIS 201612 A31 8 515540 F AR
1 January 2014 to The whole of the 18/F, Island Place Tower, 510 King’s
31 December 2016 Road, North Point, Hong Kong with a lettable floor area
of 15,540 square feet
2013%12 A30H AHRITRTAIRBRY ~ 204F1A18% BEAR02HHEE - AT HBEEEER6402 TR HK$268,884
30 December 2013 DSB leased to DSIS 201612 A31H A portion of the 20/F., Island Place Tower with a lettable
1 January 2014 to floor area of 6,402 square feet
31 December 2016
2013412 A30 A AMBIRTAFIERAE 201451 518% BEAE20ZHERE  AHBEEAREA2623 TAR HK$102,297
30 December 2013 DSB leased to DSIA 201612 A31 8 A portion of the 20/F., Island Place Tower with a lettable
1 January 2014 to floor area of 2,623 square feet
31 December 2016
2013612 4308  HBEHATANAS 201451 A1BZE RERIIFIBER L1504 ZBHEE - LEEEEE132 HK$11,756
30 December 2013 VB leased to DSLA 201612 A31H Rk
1 January 2014 to A portion of Room 1504 of Shenzhen Development Centre,
31 December 2016 Shenzhen, People’s Republic of China, with a gross floor
area of 132 square metres
2013412 A30H REEERTETRIRR 201451 818F RIVRFIEERTAE10ER11ERE  THHEREREA MOP147,000
30 December 2013 BCM leased to MIC 2016 F 12 A31H Q4 F 5K
1 January 2014 to The whole of the 10/F. and 11/F., BCM Building, Macau
31 December 2016 with a total lettable floor area of 924 square metres
2013F 12308  AMBIETANRRERE  2014F1A18Z BEAE19ZHHERE - AIHEEHEEA6,558 FAR(A HK$249,204
30 December 2013 DSB leased to DSIS 2016F 12 A31H 201456 A1 R  BPES5297FHFRKE20156108 (B2014F6 168 -

RIBITEBER AT 20165 F 35

1 January 2014 to
31 December 2016

200 E—HRPESS05FAR)

A portion of the 19/F., Island Place Tower with a lettable
floor area of 6,558 square feet (reduced to 5,297 square
feet with effect from 1 June 2014 and further reduced to
3,505 square feet with effect from 20 October 2015)

2 HK$201,286 ) &
201510 H20 B - #
— SR EHK$133,190)
(reduced to HK$ 201,286
with effect from 1

June 2014 and further
reduced to HK$133,190
with effect from 20
October 2015)
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42. BEEALTZRE @)
(R) BERATIRERMEBATNRS @

(iv)

&)

RETERITH EWE T R AF B AR KA RT
[ High Standard 78 /¥ %

MARFR2013F12 A30R 2 BEHE © X
%ﬁfﬁfqéﬁimﬁ)\wA I B - BRI
KT NS B BEFEFE 4825 RBANE i
TAASH R HEAE RS EE (T AEEEEA
2,340 F 5 R) FARHIRTT - MERHEASF
2013412 A28 H#EZE20164F 12 A27 A Ik -
H A& /630,000 T TEEEEE BT
Zf - BERTEAR - KRITIEZMERER
I -

AR A]R2013F 12 A0 2@ EHE - K
%ﬁfiﬁéﬂ High Standard Investment Limited
([High Standard]) #z1H & & © BiRiHZ -
AFTRTTHE High Standard A& Bt BHEE
5105 BBERNE 1782 — S ERIRHFT - A
HAEEERENE4581FHR - AH=F " A
20141 A1 H#E=2016F12 A31H1E * A
174,078 7L - TEEEEE  BFEM - BE

BN B L2 T R TR S 18

201312 4308 + AFIRIT(REMBAA]
BIERPIRE S IRTT) EAHT & BET B A R AT
IRk - RSz BEFHA=F - 52014
F1H1BRER - £2016F 12 A31 AR -

RIBIRAE RIS W KR RIG s - AFTER1TE
RERAF LB E R RREE TERMRT
BURTS - ZERBEERIE THIFA

. BEISIRTY - BIEEIEERE - 5D RAZEED
I RS RITHE  KBERKRA
HETR ;

. TR RalE - AEfEZ
& BRE

ER &
2 RARERMELE R

. RAFT & B 5 B B AR S 38 B T RAR AR
(%uid [ZERIS D) »

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.

(a)

(LAY T 7A1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Leaseback of property by DSB from DSLA and lease of property by DSB
from HS

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 30 December
2013, a lease back agreement was entered into by DSB with DSLA on
28 December 2013 pursuant to which DSB leased from DSLA a portion
of Flat A on Basement and Portion AA on Ground Floor of Thai Kong
Building, No. 482 Hennessy Road, Hong Kong with a lettable floor
area of 2,340 square feet at a monthly rent of HK$630,000 exclusive of
management fees, government rates, electricity service charges and
air-conditioning charges for a term of three years commencing on 28
December 2013 and ending on 27 December 2016. The Premises have
been used by DSB as bank branch premises.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 30 December
2013, a lease agreement was entered into by DSB with High Standard
Investment Limited (“HS”) on 30 December 2013 pursuant to which
DSB has leased from HS a portion of the 17th Floor of Island Place
Tower, Island Place, 510 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong as its
office premises with a lettable floor area of approximately 4,581 square
feet at a monthly rent of HK$174,078 exclusive of management fees,
government rates, electricity service charges and air-conditioning
charges for a term of three years commencing on 1 January 2014 and
ending on 31 December 2016.

Computer and Administrative Services Agreement with DSFH Group

On 30 December 2013, DSB (and its subsidiaries including BCM) entered
into a computer and administrative services agreement with DSFH. The
Services Agreement was for a fixed term of three years with effect from
1 January 2014 and ending on 31 December 2016.

Pursuant to the services agreements, DSB has agreed to provide
members of the DSFH Group with certain computer and administrative
services. These services principally consist of the following:

o computer services including data processing, printing and
enveloping, system development, technical support, disaster
recovery and contract management;

o administrative, company secretarial, internal audit, compliance,
operational, risk management, investment custodian and treasury

operations; and

o secondment of, and provision of services by, staff to the DSFH
Group (collectively, the “Services”).
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RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

Computer and Administrative Services Agreement with DSFH Group
(Continued)

With the stronger pool of resources and functional expertise of DSB
which historically has been operating to provide administrative and
computer services to other companies within the DSFH Group on a cost-
recovery basis, the provision of the Services to the DSFH Group at a
fee enables the Group to continue to expand its scale and operational
capabilities while costs incurred by the Group in providing the Services
are recovered from the DSFH Group.

Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral
services

(@) Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSIS, DSIA, MIC and
MLIC

On 30 December 2013, DSIS and DSIA entered into distribution
agreements and underlying agency agreements with DSB for the
marketing and distribution of life and general insurance products
through DSB’s branch networks for a fixed term of three years
with effect from 1 January 2014. On the same day, MIC and
Macau Life Insurance Company Limited (“MLIC”) entered into
distribution agreements and underlying agency agreements
with BCM for the marketing and distribution of life and general
insurance products through BCM’s branch network for a fixed
term of three years with effect from 1 January 2014.

Pursuant to the distribution agreements entered into by DSIS
with DSB (the “DSIS Distribution Agreements”), DSB markets and
distributes such life assurance products as agreed between the
parties from time to time for the DSFH Group through its branch
and other distribution networks and its subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the DSIS Distribution Agreements, DSB has
entered into an agency agreement with DSIS (the “DSIS Agency
Agreements”) in respect of the sale of life assurance policies
in return for commission payments as agreed between the
parties from time to time. Under the terms of the DSIS Agency
Agreements, the commission payable by DSIS to DSB in respect
of such life assurance products shall vary, depending on the
product type, between 1% and 50% of the first year’s premium
received, plus up to 24% of the renewal premiums in respect of
certain policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) Transactions with the holding company and fellow

subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(v) Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services
(Continued)

(@)

Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSIS, DSIA, MIC and
MLIC (Continued)

Pursuant to the distribution agreements entered into by DSIA
with DSB (the “DSIA Distribution Agreements”), DSB markets and
distributes such general insurance and life assurance products as
agreed between the parties from time to time for the DSFH Group
through its branch and other distribution networks.

Pursuant to the DSIA Distribution Agreements, DSB has
entered into an agency agreement with DSIA (the “DSIA Agency
Agreements”) in respect of the sale of certain general insurance
and life assurance products in return for commission payments,
as agreed between the parties from time to time. Under the terms
of the DSIA Agency Agreements, the commission payable by
DSIA to DSB in respect of:

1) general insurance products shall vary, depending on
the product type, between 1% and 30% of each year’s
premium received in respect of a new or renewal policy;
and

2) life assurance products shall vary, depending on the
product type, between 1% and 50% of the first year’s
premium received, plus up to 24% of the renewal premiums
in respect of certain policies.

Pursuant to the distribution agreement entered into by MLIC with
BCM (the “MLIC Distribution Agreement”), BCM markets and
distributes such life assurance products as agreed between the
parties from time to time for MLIC through its branch and other
distribution network.

Pursuant to the MLIC Distribution Agreement, BCM has entered
into an agency agreement with MLIC (the “MLIC Agency
Agreement”) in respect of the sale of life assurance policies
in return for commission payments as agreed between the
parties from time to time. Under the terms of the MLIC Agency
Agreement, the commissions payable by MLIC to BCM in respect
of such life assurance products shall, initially, not be less than
10% of the first year’s premium received and which may vary
depending on the product type and change between the parties
from time to time, and in respect of certain types of policies, an
agreed percentage of renewal premiums.
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Note: (

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow

subsidiaries (Continued)

Continued)

Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services
(Continued)

(@)

Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSIS, DSIA, MIC and
MLIC (Continued)

Pursuant to the distribution agreement entered into by MIC with
BCM (the “MIC Distribution Agreement”), BCM markets and
distributes such general insurance products of MIC as are agreed
between the parties from time to time through its branch and other
distribution network.

Pursuant to the MIC Distribution Agreement, BCM has entered
into an agency agreement with MIC (the “MIC Agency Agreement”)
in respect of the sale of general insurance products in return
for commission payments, as agreed between the parties from
time to time. Under the terms of the MIC Agency Agreement, the
commission payable by MIC to BCM in respect of general insurance
products shall vary, depending on the product type, between 10%
and 50% of each year’s premium received in respect of new or
renewal policies.

In respect of each of the DSIS, DSIA, MLIC and MIC Distribution
Agreements (collectively the “Distribution Agreements”), DSIS and
DSIA shall each reimburse or pay on behalf of DSB, and MLIC
and MIC shall each reimburse or pay on behalf of BCM, agreed
expenses including the registration fees for licences for the bank
staff to sell insurance, sales incentives, marketing expenses
and other costs and expenses related to the performance of the
Distribution Agreements.

Each of the Distribution Agreements is on a mutually non-exclusive
basis and is for a three-year fixed term with effect from 1 January
2014. Each of the DSIS, DSIA, MLIC and MIC Agency Agreements
(collectively the “Agency Agreements”) is on a mutually non-
exclusive basis for a three-year fixed term with effect from 1
January 2014, save that the provisions relating to the payment of
outstanding renewal premiums shall remain in force until payment
is received in full.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow

subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

V)

Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services
(Continued)

(@)

Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSIS, DSIA, MIC and
MLIC (Continued)

The distribution and agency arrangements described above,
including the commission rates set out in the various sets of
Distribution Agreements and Agency Agreements, are consistent
with normal arrangements between banks and insurance
companies in the Hong Kong and Macau markets, and will provide
the Group with insurance products and services to be offered
to the customers of the banking subsidiaries of the Group. The
distribution of different types of insurance products through the
respective bank branches and other distribution networks of DSB
and BCM in return for a commission income to be paid by the
DSFH Group will also produce fee income which will be of benefit
to the Group.

Business referral services

On 30 December 2013, the Company entered into a cooperation
agreement with DSFH pursuant to which and as part of their
respective usual and normal course of business currently
conducted, members of the Group may refer to members of
DSFH Group business opportunities for life and general insurance
policies to be underwritten by any member(s) of DSFH Group,
either directly or via their sole agents, if any, from time to time.
There is no commitment on any member of the Group to refer to
member(s) of DSFH Group such transactions of any minimum or
maximum number and/or amount. The cooperation agreement
is on a mutually non-exclusive basis and is for a three-year fixed
term with effect from 1 January 2014. Where concluded between
the relevant parties, the terms and conditions for the provision of
such business referral services shall be, if required, reduced into
individual written agreement(s).

Pursuant to the cooperation agreement, the fee income actually
received shall either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they are
normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to relevant
member(s) of the Group than terms available from independent
third parties. The fee income is payable by cheque(s) monthly in
arrears.
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42.

(a)

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(vi)

Insurance services provided by DSI(1976), DSLA, MIC and MLIC

The insurance policies underwritten by Dah Sing Insurance Company
(1976) Limited (“DSI (1976)”) and MIC in the name, and for the benefit,
of DSB and other members of the Group and their respective customers
are subject to renewal annually. The group life assurance policies
underwritten by DSLA and MLIC in relation to the provision of insurance
cover for the death and/or critical iliness of the employees of DSB and
other members of the Group are subject to renewal annually.

The master policies between DSLA and DSB in relation to the provision
of insurance cover for their respective customers are for a fixed term of
three years with effect from 1 January 2014.

DSI (1976) underwrites general insurance policies in the name, and for
the benefit, of DSB and other members of the Group and their respective
customers including policies covering domestic motor, property all risks,
public liability, money, electronic equipment, employees’ compensation
and group personal accident. Such policies are subject to renewal
annually.

DSLA underwrites insurance policies to cover the death and/or critical
illness of certain borrowing customers of DSB and employees of DSB
and other members of the Group. The provision of the insurance cover
for customers is set out in the terms and conditions of the relevant bank
borrowing arrangement. Such policies can be terminated within two
months in the event of non-payment of premiums.

MIC underwrites insurance policies in the name, and for the benefit, of
BCM and its customers including policies covering medical, personal
accident, employees’ compensation, motor fleet, properties, civil liability
and money. Such policies are subject to renewal annually.

MLIC underwrites life insurance policies to cover the death and/or critical
illness of BCM’s pension plan members and such policies are subject to
renewal annually.

The premiums payable under such insurance policies are payable
in arrears on a monthly basis and are calculated by reference to the
outstanding credit balances in respect of each of the products to which
they relate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.

(a)

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Insurance services provided by DSI(1976), DSLA, MIC and MLIC
(Continued)

The insurance policies are procured by the Group to enable certain of
the Company’s subsidiaries, namely DSB and BCM, to comply with
relevant regulatory requirements in reducing the risks to the Group’s
assets, businesses and operations and/or to provide additional services
to the Group’s customers. In addition, the Directors consider that the
insurance services by DSI (1976), DSLA, MIC and MLIC are effective
and the fees proposed by DSI (1976), DSLA, MIC and MLIC respectively
are comparable to those offered by other insurance companies in the
market.

On 30 December 2013, the Company entered into a cooperation
agreement with DSFH pursuant to which members of the DSFH Group
would provide insurance services to DSB and other members of the
Group. The cooperation agreement was for a fixed term of three years
with effect from 1 January 2014 and ending on 31 December 2016 (both
days inclusive).

Proposed Hong Kong Distribution Agreement and Macau Distribution
Agreement

On 2 June 2016, DSFH announced that it had entered into a share sale
agreement (the ‘Sale’) with an external party for the conditional sale of
those entities within the DSFH Group which are engaged in the sale
and underwriting of life insurance products. These DSFH life insurance
subsidiaries comprise DSLA, DSIS and MLIC. On the same date, DSB
proposed to enter into the Hong Kong Distribution Agreement with
DSLA and DSIS, and BCM proposed to enter into the Macau Distribution
Agreement with MLIC upon completion of the Sale for the distribution of
the life insurance products of DSLA and MLIC in Hong Kong and Macau
respectively.

The completion of the Sale is conditional on a number of conditions
which include obtaining approval from the relevant regulatory
authorities. As at the date of approval of these financial statements,
the required approval from the relevant regulatory authorities in Hong
Kong and Macau is not yet granted. On this basis, the Hong Kong
Distribution Agreement and the Macau Distribution Agreement are yet to
be concluded.
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42. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Key management personnel

(i) Material transactions and balances with directors and key
management personnel

The Group provides credit facilities to, and takes deposits from
the Group’s key management personnel, their close family
members and entities controlled by them. For the year ended 31

BB ¢ December, the following balances were outstanding:
2016 2015
ERRIR Loans and advances 24,926 25,121
TER Deposits 395,308 202,029
AEA 2 BEFRES Undrawn commitments 4,318 3,695
iR Guarantee 1,095 1,095

(i) ETEEEASHE

AR ETZEEABLBHTES - HRMH
ERREREFRMFEIS -

() BREQNARAEZEFHNERZIEZR
SER

FR AEBWRIBHBERREERAT
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(i)  Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel of the Company are executive
directors and their remunerations are included under Note 13.

(c) Transactions and balances with associate and jointly
controlled entity

During the year, the Group received from BOCQ, an associate,
dividend income of HK$142,741,000 (2015: HK$158,071,000).
During the year, the Group received deposits from Bank Consortium
Trust Company Limited, a jointly controlled entity and the balance
of deposit as at 31 December 2016 was HK$7,830,000 (2015:
HK$56,293,000).

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

Share-based compensation, pursuant to the Company’s Share Option
Schemes (the “DSBG Schemes”) and the Share Option Schemes of
its holding company, Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the “DSFH
Schemes”), is available to directors and senior executives of the
Group. Details of the share-based compensation paid to directors are
disclosed in Note 13.
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BEREIERNRITE 2 2HRRENS - HAF
TR RAER -

BAFIRTEEEE - ARRAETEKBE AR
ETEZRESRRE - ERERATARRET
BEERRETER  BESRBREZAEEE
NBEE  BRAZESSHESREFRGD - &
A RIFTE FE AR @ BB 2012 S LART AT
FTROGRRRHE - R2012F REBATIR T 2 3R HE -
NRAFUHTEBITHIRD « AT AL o

ZERBIETIE AT RTEBEFT BN 2GR K
REAET - BHRBEZTEB T BRES R
HEZEERRARFAEZTSGUNBTERREBR
SFT ETHRBIZE17.039) FIRE T » HAER A
T2EP R EEET « (\AARKRNERTA
REBRSIMEE ZWMHE : R (i) AN ARG E
EERTEASELEAREERIMBEEZT
HUTIE - K201443 A3 H A FIEGI(622F)
EMATR T 2 RIRE - EESHRREZITERE
KEZERARARRANPIFRBMN BT ZHEE -
ZRBIE 2 TE T ER T B E 1556
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA FThz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
(@) DSBG Schemes

The shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of a
new share option scheme (the “New DSBG Scheme”) and, at the
same time, the termination of the Share Option Scheme adopted
by the Company on 12 June 2004 (the “Old DSBG Scheme”) at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 27 May 2014. No
further options can be offered under the Old DSBG Scheme after its
termination but the provisions of the Old DSBG Scheme remain in
full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to allow
grantees to exercise share options granted prior to the termination
of the Old DSBG Scheme but not yet exercised at the time of
termination.

Under the Old DSBG Scheme, the Company issued to certain
directors and employees of its subsidiaries share options on terms
that allow the Company the choice of making cash payments,
determined based on the intrinsic value of each share option, instead
of allotting newly issued shares to the directors or employees at
the date of exercise. The Company has the intention to adopt cash
settlement practice in respect of the share options granted prior
to year 2012. For share option issued in 2012 and afterwards, the
Company has the intention to settle its obligations by issuing new
shares.

The share options were granted in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Old DSBG Scheme. The exercise price per
option share was concluded by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on behalf of the Board of the Company on the basis no
less exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and was determined
as no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; and (ii) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the SEHK for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant. For options
granted before the commencement of the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) on 3 March 2014, the nominal value of the Company’s
shares of HK$1 each in the capital of the Company had been taken
into account in determining the exercise price per option share. The
exercise period is between the first and sixth anniversaries from the
date of grant.
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43. ARG HER BB w0
(2) R EmetE

AFT S BN 2005F 4 A28 HIRH 2 BRI &
(TRFemETSE])BER2015F 4 A28 HIEM °
R2015F5 A27 B + K< g% S @B L& F AR
TRBRETE (AT SRFEED - KIS eE
FTEIRIEE - TEREBILEIEE — RO ERRR
R RESE 2 BB T ABRAITE
REBRIEAEREERRIERIRITEZ 25
RBEmS - DEE TR RIER -

BAHERETS KRR TEMBARSE
TESREBREE - EFIEFAFATEEA
EEREERBETER  RESRREZANEEE
BN BRAZEFHEEREMNBN - X
MeRMERAURS MER RITEEB LB
RIBEBITRAE °

ZERRRE TR AR < B EFT BN Z R R AGHF
T - BRREZITEERIER RFTME
BEEREAFECHESTSUTNBERRBERS
Fr ET AR A28 17.03(9) iR E T - AMER AT
2P ZEEEFERE (VAR NERT
BREEBRZMEE ZWMIE K (i) KT
NEZEXTHASAEXBREBRIMER
Z W HE - A 201443 A3 AR RHEN] (622
B)ERAR T 2RRE  BESHORREZT
FEEREZEEART BB ERBG 2T
EE - ZRARIEZITEHRTINER T B AR
1E2E6FKEA o

RIBITEBER AR 20165 F 5

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
(b) DSFH Schemes

The share option scheme of DSFH adopted on 28 April 2005 (the “Old
DSFH Scheme”) had expired on 28 April 2015. On 27 May 2015, the
shareholders of DSFH approved the adoption of a new share option
scheme (the “New DSFH Scheme”). No further share options can
be offered under the Old DSFH Scheme after its expiration but the
provisions of the Old DSFH Scheme remain in full force and effect to
the extent necessary to give effect to allow the grantees to exercise
share options granted prior to the expiration of the Old DSFH Scheme
but not yet exercised at the time of expiration.

Under the Old DSFH Scheme, DSFH issued to certain directors
and employees of its subsidiaries share options on terms that allow
DSFH the choice of making cash payments, determined based on the
intrinsic value of each share option, instead of allotting newly issued
shares to the directors or employees at the date of exercise. DSFH
has adopted the cash settlement practice and intends to continue this
practice in respect of the existing share options issued.

The share options were granted in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Old DSFH Scheme. The exercise price per
option share was concluded by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on behalf of the Board of DSFH on the basis no less
exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and was determined
as no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of DSFH’s shares
traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing
price of DSFH’s shares traded on the SEHK for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant. For options granted
before the commencement of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
on 3 March 2014, the nominal value of DSFH shares of HK$2 each in
the capital of DSFH had been taken into account in determining the
exercise price per option share. The exercise period is between the
first and sixth anniversaries from the date of grant.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

(b) DSFH Schemes (Continued)

Share options granted under the Old DSBG Scheme:

R¥AH 5l ByEH e BRITHEEGET)
Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price per share (HKS)
2011%12 A12H R XN 2011F12A12HZ 2012F 12 A12HZ

201612 A 128 20174612 A 12 @
12/12/2011 Cash-settled 12/12/2011-12/12/2016 12/12/2012-12/12/2017 8.91
2012512 A21H DARRIE X 2012F 12 A21HE 2013F 12 A21HE

2017512 A 218 2018412 A21 B
21/12/2012 Equity-settled 21/12/2012-21/12/2017 21/12/2013-21/12/2018 7.96
201443 A 26 H AR 2014326 HE 20156326 HE

20193 A26 H 20203 A26 H
26/03/2014 Equity-settled 26/03/2014-26/03/2019 26/03/2015-26/03/2020 11.68

AFRITEEFTE B RMALE20165F12 A
318 - WEEMRBREREAFRITREHE

No share options had been granted under the New DSBG Scheme
since the date of its adoption to 31 December 2016.

R o
BAHERETEET Z2ARE : Share options granted under the Old DSFH Scheme:
Sl 5l BFEH T BRITEE(ER)
Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price per share (HKS)
2011412 4128 RREX N 2011512 A12R% 20125612 126 %

201612 A12H 2017124128
12/12/2011 Cash-settled 12/12/2011-12/12/2016 12/12/2012-12/12/2017 38.35
2012412 218 ARE X 2012612 A21RZ 2013612 A21 A%

2017912 A21H 201812 A21H
21/12/2012 Cash-settled 21/12/2012-21/12/2017 21/12/2013-21/12/2018 31.88

AFemastE 8 MM BA-LZE2016F12 A 31 H
1F - WEAERRAER IR RS & BT 2w -

No share options had been granted under the New DSFH Scheme
since the date of its adoption to 31 December 2016.
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43. ARG HER BB w0
AU ES IR A TE R 2 A B 40 /3 E 1 S B 2 S H 4n

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

Share-based compensation charged to income statement is as

T~ follows:

2016 2015
VARSCHE 2 5t 2 R ke Equity-settled options 1,101 1,961
LAZR & 3 A5 2 R AR A Cash-settled options 3,982 7,682
&5t Total 5,083 9,643
LB ST Cash-settled options

FERRFRITEEBETERAF SR ETEIFT
BT z2UReZMNORKRE  RNEBEREEH
#7243,341,0007 7T (20154 : 39,359,000/ 7T )
ABEBZERBEATFEZAE - ZABETRE
T (V) R 2 B B INTEEN S L o LA TE
DAZTBA R EEERIE TR EF2/BR

Ny
=t
al =+ °

®¥H

With respect to the cash-settled options granted under the Old
DSBG Scheme and Old DSFH Scheme described above, the Group
has recorded liabilities of HK$43,341,000 (2015: HK$39,359,000) in
respect of the fair value of the share options at the reporting date.
These do not include cost separately borne by DSFH as stated under
note (iv) below. The fair value is determined by using the Trinomial
Option Pricing Model, and based on the major assumptions set out in
the following tables.

RIBITEEEE
Old DSBG Scheme

2016 2015

2011 20114

12H812H 124121

12 December 12 December

Grant date 2011 2011

ANARR12 A31 8
Z BB (F7T)

I8 E (B7T)

TEET B8 (5E (i)

FHI ()

A B M) == (3 (i)

TEETAR 2 2 (5 (i)

RIBITEBER AR 20165 F 5

Share price of the Company

as at 31 December (HK$) 14.26 13.72
Exercise price (HK$) 8.91 8.91
Expected volatility (Note (i) 30.62% 34.33%
Time to maturity (years) <1 <2
Risk free rate (Note (ii)) 0.84% 0.51%
Expected dividend rate (Note (iii)) 2.75% 2.50%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

UBLF(12 R () Cash-settled options (Continued)
AHERMERE
Old DSFH Scheme
2016 2015
2012F 2011 F 20125 20115
128218 128128 12R21H 12A12H
(& (iv)) (& (iv)) (& (iv) (3 (iv)
21 December 12 December 21 December 12 December
2012 2011 2012 2011
£FH Grant date (Note (iv)) (Note (iv) (Note (iv)) (Note (iv)
REemR12 31 2RE (1) Share price of DSFH as at 31 December (HK9) 5245 5245 38.75 38.75
1B (ET) Exercise price (HKS) 31.88 38.35 31.88 38.35
TEHR R (2() Expected volatility (Note (i) 35.36% 35.36% 36.33% 36.33%
FH(F) Time to maturity (years) <2 <1 A3 <2
ERRAE (R (i) Risk free rate (Note (i) 1.07% 0.84% 0.74% 0.51%
TR S 2 (5 (i) Expected dividend rate (Note (ii) 2.96% 2.96% 2.67% 2.67%
e Note:
i) FEHE R RIERERE B ZATAE —FARQF (i) Expected volatility is determined by calculating the historical volatility

KRB ERRRENE - URREE
ARBRRHEBEREZKE - 8B ERAIRRBK
Bz EFHMANZIRNRE  WEEANER -

(i) EERMNXSEMFHIEBINEESREZR

B

(i)  FEAREXRTIIRBEREME] °

(v) ZERKIEZZHAZERDBRFTEEEE - K
B B R AR FEFR 7,092,000 7 T (2015
£ : 3,335,000 70) B E R KERERSZ I
38,757,000 7% 7T (2015 F « Wzs BR A RS2 ) [0l #%
1,265,000/ 7T) °

RIEANR T EBREMEEEENIRSIRE - &
NIEEBELL5ER 2016 12 A 31 H 449,590,000
77T (2015 £ = 31,900,000787T) °

of the share price of the Company and DSFH, as applicable, during the
one year period immediately preceding the measurement date and is
based on the assumption that there is no material difference between
the expected volatility over the time to maturity of the options and the
historical volatility of the share prices of the Company and DSFH as set
out above.

(ii) Risk free rate is the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes yield of relevant
time to maturity.

(iii) Expected dividend rates are based on historical dividends.

(iv)  The cost of these options is borne by the holding company, DSFH. DSFH
has recorded liabilities of HK$7,092,000 (2015: HK$3,335,000) and a
charge to income statement of HK$3,757,000 (2015: a reversal of charge
to income statement of HK$1,265,000) for these options.

The total intrinsic value of the share options for which the grantees’
right to receive cash on a vested basis as of 31 December 2016 is
HK$49,590,000 (2015: HK$31,900,000).
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43. ARG HER R E (w0
UREZ 2R RE
B AFIRITRBER SR T 2 AR

MREE  ERETRZAFETI A=A BE
EEEAGE -

RFRITEEFAEBRAALE20165F12 A
318 - WEEAARES N 2 RBRERE AR
TTEREFE 8 -

BT 2 RIRHE R T O1T B 2 BB
T~

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
Equity-settled options

With respect to the equity-settled options granted under the Old
DSBG Scheme described above, the fair value is determined by using
the Trinomial Option Pricing Model at the date when the options are
granted.

No equity-settled options had been granted under the New DSBG

Scheme since the date of its adoption to 31 December 2016.

Movements in the number of share options granted and their related
weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

AFBTREET S AFEREHE
0Old DSBG Scheme 0Old DSFH Scheme
2016 2015 2016 2015
RYTHE BYAEE RYTHE BYAEE
AFBTEE  NETH AHBOEE METS AFER  MERY KHeR METS
ABRER ke RES fkE  RRED kE  RkEd i
R&B8E (%7) RABE (#7) k& A (B7) b€ (B7)
Numberof ~ Weighted ~ Number of Weighted ~ Numberof ~ Weighted ~ Number of Weighted
DSBG shares average DSBG shares average DSFH shares average DSFH shares average
in share exercise in share exercise in share exercise in share exercise
options price options price options price options price
granted (HKS) granted (HKS) granted (HKS) granted (HKS)
—R-A At 1 January 11,880,959 8.69 12,150,982 8.69 417,227 35.92 47,227 35.92
&y Granted - - - - - - - -
EiEH Expired - - - - - - - -
BTt Exercised (1,495,507) 8.12 (270,023) 8.82 - - - -
BEE/ R Cancelled/forfeited - - - - - - - -
12A318 At 31 December 10,385,452 8.77 11,880,959 8.69 47,227 35.92 417,227 35.92
12 431 BAIfTfE Exercisable at 31 December 9,429,992 8.78 8,474,534 8.69 385,935 36.25 302,490 36.34

AAAEP20164F 12 A 31 HARITEE 2 RIRE 2 1TE(E
79678 7T = 11.68 7% 7t (20154F : /1 F7.967%5 7T
£11.68%87) « RENMEFHFSRENTERR1.2F
(20154F : 2.3%F) - IR AEBEEE RSRITBABT
WAz K< R - 12016 F 12 A 31 BRTTEZ
A ERBIRE Z1TEEN T-31.88 B L E38.35/8 7T
(20154 : N T31.88 B L E38.35/87) * REMNETF
BFIRE DT EIA1.334F (20154 : 2.334F)

RIRITEBER AR 20165 F 35

The Company’s share options outstanding as of 31 December 2016
have exercise prices in the range of HK$7.96 to HK$11.68 (2015:
HK$7.96 to HK$11.68), and a weighted average remaining contractual
life of 1.2 years (2015: 2.3 years). In respect of directors and senior
executives of the Group, their applicable DSFH’s share options
outstanding as of 31 December 2016 have exercise prices in the
range of HK$31.88 to HK$38.35 (2015: HK$31.88 to HK$38.35), and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.33 years (2015: 2.33
years).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(VA7 T Th51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

44. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

Financial assets and liabilities are presented net when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle them on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

(@) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement and offset on the statement of financial
position

The Group maintains an account with the Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC”) through which it conducts
securities trading transactions for its customers.

In presenting the amounts due from and to HKSCC, the Group has
offset the gross amount of the accounts receivable from and the
gross amount of the accounts payable to HKSCC. As at 31 December
2016, the net amount was a receivable and was included in “Accounts
receivable and prepayments” in Note 30; and as at 31 December
2015, the net amount was a payable and was included in “Other
accounts and accruals”. The amounts offset are shown below.

2016 2015

JERE B REE 2 FIEERE Gross amount of accounts
receivable from HKSCC 41,492 10,748

FERNBABRREE 2 FIEREE Gross amount of accounts
payable to HKSCC (329) (31,068)
FEUL(FEfT) B R REE FEE Net amount due from/(to) HKSCC 41,163 (20,320)

(2) RFRRFERFERBEMBRR X
NEHE-EMEERAE

AEEERAEERIHTFIIVARFRLEER
B BB EERR - FREEBRATE - —B
HRENEN  MBESRXIHFIRTKK S
BaRIE - MAAERRFARHA R FEEE -
WIFREENEMN  MERYFIRSENEE
BER—BIeEMBARRTHHEEERR

& o

(b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position

Master netting arrangements

To mitigate credit risks, the Group enters into master netting
arrangements with counterparties whenever possible. Netting
agreements provide that, if an event of default occurs, all outstanding
transactions with the counterparty will be terminated and all amounts
outstanding will be settled on a net basis. Except for the event of
default, all outstanding transactions with the counterparty are settled
on a gross basis and generally do not result in offsetting the assets
and liabilities in the statement of financial position.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

275



276

B H5 Rk B et

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

44. TRIEEHSENHEHEmw

(2) SEEFAEREEBREEMBRRER
A eMEERERS @

BEFEEELH (#)

TRIREEE RERBNIZBRFREER
R ERBRAORNERMTAFE -

44.

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL

LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting

agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position (Continued)

Master netting arrangements (Continued)

The following tables present details of financial instruments subject

to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar

agreements.
EERBRARANE AR
Related amounts not set
off in the statement
of financial position
REBRRRA
HEERR RUHRRRA
SHBREE  ITueR
Gross amounts BEFE
of recognised  Net amounts $HIE THRAME
oRI4R financial ~ of financial (Bf% BHATZFR
EESE liabilties assets  HEAAR) REYE PAad
Gross set off presented Financial gl Amounts not
amounts of inthe inthe  instruments BEHR subject to
recognised statement statement (including Cash enforceable
financial ~ offinancial of financial non-cash collateral et netting (il
016F128317 At 31 December 2016 assets position position collateral) received  Netamount  agreements Total
SHEE Financial assets
fiEemIA Derivative financial instruments 816,223 - 816,223 (579,441) (27,141) 209,641 361,099 1,177,322
EERERRRANE 2 ARLR
Related amounts not set
off in the statement
of financial position
REBRRER REBRRRA
HERRE  dInzeR
SHEEEER 8E%8
Grossamounts et amounts SRIE RERAKE
SEIER  ofrecognised  of financial (A% BT RS
e financial liabilties ~ EEEAR) BEVE pia
Gross  assetsset presented Financial EER Amounts not
amounts of offinthe inthe  instruments ReEA subject to
recognised statement statement (including Cash enforceable
financial ~of financial of financial non-cash collateral ] netting ait
0165128318 At 31 December 2016 liabilities position position collateral)  placed out ~ Netamount  agreements Total
HEE Financial liabifies
FER Depostts from banks 466,306 - 466,306 (466,306) - - 181807 2318203
fTEEHIA Derivative financial instruments 1,142,821 - 1,142,821 (579,441) (98,173) 465,207 200,597 1,343 418
HEEEREMAE Trading liabilties 7,748,887 - 7748887 (7,184,759) - 564,134 - 7,748,887
HibiRE RER Other accounts and accruals 186,987 - 186,987 (186,987) - - 2,785,636 2,972,623

RIBITEBER AR 20165 F 5
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44, OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position (Continued)

AR F R E T () Master netting arrangements (Continued)
URESBRR RN SRR R
Related amounts not set
off in the statement
of financial position
REBHRRR
HEzeEL RUERRRR
SHARAE  JlnecR
Gross amounts HERR
of recognised  Net amounts $R1a AFRAE
Biew financial ~ of financal (B BT R
EELE liablties assels  BeHEfR) R
Gross setoff  presented Financial L Amounts not
amounts of inthe inthe  instruments Refn subject to
recognised statement statement (including Cash enforceable
financial ~ offinancial  of financal non-cash collateral it netting 8%
015128318 At 31 December 2015 assets position position colateral) received ~ Netamount  agreements Total
PHEE Financial assets
fTESMIA Derivative financial instruments 543,777 - 543,777 (474,682) (18,213) 50,882 535,551 1,079,328
ERHRKRRAHHE AELE
Related amounts not set
off in the statement
of financial position
REBHARA  RBRRARA
HEZERE  JIRegR
SHAGSE BRTE
Grossamounts ~ Net amounts SHIA AP RAKE
BEB728  ofrecognised  of financial (it EHaT25E
EESE financil liabiities ~ HEEAR) RE v
Gross assets set presented Financial BER Amounts not
amounts of offin the inthe  instruments BeEm subject to
recognised statement statement (including Cash enforceable
financial of financial of financial non-cash collateral i ] netting At
201551231 A At 31 December 2015 liabilities posttion position collateral) placedout ~ Netamount agreements Total
LRAR Financial liabties
#ER Deposits from banks 43,914 - 43914 (43914 - - 1,506,997 1550911
fESRTE Derivative financial instruments 1,250,102 - 1,250,102 (474,682) (446,015) 329405 208,330 1,458,432
HEEERENAR Trading liabilities 6,270,630 - 6,270,630 (6,261,578) - 9,052 - 6,270,630
AR A Rk Other accounts and accruals 123211 - 123271 (123,21) - - 2,497,543 2,620,814
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TIREBAKEZ ERHERI K 2 B M
MER - B IREET I MK Z —FFD

1. BAXZREEER

The following information relates to the Group and is disclosed as part

of the accompanying information to the financial statements and does

not form part of the audited financial statements.

1. CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

2016 %12 A 31 H
As at
31 December 2016

2015412 A31 H
As at
31 December 2015

BEAF R R
—BERE—R
——#&

—um

2016412 A31 H X% 2015412 A31 HZEATE
R ETF RIS E MR (BIERPIEER
T RAFERTT (R B ) ARIRCERITZ (B AR) R A
WEZERBE I ERFTEHE - ZEAFTRLLER
FTHEZ REITISRABRAIRERR

RIBFBRITEMGED - AFIRTT B BEMRT
AETERT R EFEENR < RFIFERITA
BT EBRPIRITREEE R E AR (H
B) A8 TARTRRITEEEHNRTE °

RITRITEBER AT 20165 F 55

Capital adequacy ratio

— Common Equity Tier 1 12.7%
- Tier 1 12.7%
- Total 18.3%

12.2%
12.2%
16.7%

The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December

2015 represents the consolidated position of DSB (covering BCM

and DSB China) computed on Basel Il basis in accordance with

the Banking (Capital) Rules. This capital adequacy ratio takes into

account market risk and operational risk.

DSB as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject to the

minimum capital adequacy ratio requirement under the Hong Kong

Banking Ordinance. BCM is subject to Macau banking regulations and

DSB China is subject to China banking regulations.



AEB XTI HFE R

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

2. BEEX

(LA T 7A7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. CAPITAL BUFFERS

2016

PEEEE AN & Capital conservation buffer ratio 0.625%
¥ E HARR T & AN b 2 Countercyclical capital buffer ratio 0.462%
1.087%

H2016%F1 A1 8 ElEEEASPEEER
RARFRTT - EEAPEFERLRIZEART R
K7 ARGEERHE -

3. RBEEHRFHLE

With effect from 1 January 2016, the above capital buffers are
phased-in and applicable to DSB. The countercyclical capital buffer
ratio is computed on the same consolidated basis as the capital
adequacy ratio.

3. LIQUIDITY MAINTENANCE RATIO

2016 2015

MENEEMR L X

MEBEERFTLRTIAMRIT(BIFRPIHER
T RAFIRIT(FED)) R ERFESEE A& F
VAR EERFLLENBEFLOH - RHE
E#FLEERDREBGRITE OREIE) RADFE -

RIRITREBEMRITARIBE B RITEIED
BETFTRPESLEHERR - RPIHRRITAE
A RRFIRITRE T RE RAFIRTT (PE)
BB TABTERITREENRE

NSY

4. 1ERHEE

Liquidity maintenance ratio 41.9% 39.5%

The LMR is calculated as the simple average of each calendar
month’s average consolidated liquidity maintenance ratio of DSB
(covering BCM and DSB China) for the financial year. The LMR is
computed in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

DSB as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject to the
liquidity requirement under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. BCM

is subject to Macau banking regulations and DSB China is subject to
China banking regulations.

4. LEVERAGE RATIO

2016 2015

BB

CRITE (BZR) FRAIDE 24A(6) 1557 & LB b =
2B o B TARIRITZEARR 2 LT R IR
BEAFR R R HRGA ERETE

Leverage ratio 8.2% 7.9%

The disclosure on leverage ratio is required under section 24A(6)
of the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The above ratios represent the
consolidated position of DSB and are computed on the same
consolidated basis as the capital adequacy ratio.
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REB XTI HFER

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(LAB® T ITA57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. SNEREME

THAREBE2016F12 A31 HZETMEE
E B & 2 SNEFEE (F B 2 INEFRE BB TS
HNEFRE10%) - MEAAMRE Z LA o

R2016412 A31 B %2015 12 A31 H » &"K&
[ 3 AT (] A NS S5 R 5 5E o

5. CURRENCY CONCENTRATIONS

The following sets out the net foreign exchange position in USD and
other individual currency that constitutes more than 10% of the total
net position in all foreign currencies as at 31 December 2016 and the
corresponding comparative balances.

The Group did not have any structural foreign exchange position as at
31 December 2016 and 2015.

Hitrshig SNESE

P Other Total

EY ARY Macau foreign foreign

201612831 H At 31 December 2016 US dollars Renminbi Pataca currencies currencies
BERESBT Equivalent in HK$ millions

REEE Spot assets 64,651 13,702 9,347 4,923 92,623

REAE Spot liabilities (33,722) (13,522) (10,993) (8,437) (66,674)

REIEA Forward purchases 25,926 12,881 - 5,379 44,186

RHEL Forward sales (55,094) (13,047) - (1,865) (70,006)

HiME SRR Net options position - - - (6) (6)

&/(8Q)®FH Net long/(short) position 1,761 14 (1,646) (6) 123

H Ao INEEET

ke Other Total

e AR Macau foreign foreign

2015412 A31H At 31 December 2015 US dollars Renminbi Pataca  currencies  currencies
BERBESBT Equivalent in HK$ millions

REEE Spot assets 58,812 16,721 8,472 5,443 89,448

REAE Spot liabilities (24,177) (16,238) (9,566) (8,872) (58,853)

RHE A Forward purchases 27,958 12,735 - 5,853 46,546

RHET Forward sales (60,960) (13,018) - (2,364) (76,342)

HiRE R Net options position @) 1) - 4 =

R/(8) 835 Net long/(short) position 1,630 199 (1,094) 64 799
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

6. EERSBEIREIITN

(LA T 7A7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND

EXPOSURES
() RIT¥ESBE2EFERAE(UERA (@ Gross advances to customers by industry sector
EZoERUSEFERRENE S LES classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
) by percentage covered by collateral
201612 A 31 H 2015412 A 31 H
At 31 December 2016 At 31 December 2015
ERARE EesE
ZERRRE SHEARRE
ZBDH ZBERL
% of gross % of gross
AERELR advances REELH advances
Outstanding covered Outstanding covered
balance by collateral balance by collateral
TEEBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
THEsR Industrial, commercial and financial
- MEERE - Property development 2,317,648 82.0 1,909,605 66.5
—MERE - Property investment 15,095,225 99.3 16,136,906 98.5
—SRbE - Financial concerns 4,259,982 26.6 1,118,110 30.7
—RELLR - Stockbrokers 1,804,854 44.9 965,931 451
—HEETEE - Wholesale and retail trade 4,543,621 88.5 4,144,996 90.1
— 8% - Manufacturing 2,435,207 94.0 3,026,032 935
— BB EHRE - Transport and transport equipment 3,508,563 78.8 3,713,584 89.1
—REED - Recreational activities 78,395 97.4 262,522 56.5
— &R - Information technology 74,186 87.7 72,019 89.1
—Efth - Others 5,180,298 82.2 5,454,602 83.3
39,297,979 82.2 36,804,307 88.5
EA Individuals
-BE [REEHREE ] - Loans for the purchase of
[FLA2RERE] K flats in Home Ownership
[BEEEEE] BFER Scheme, Private Sector
Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 756,457 100.0 869,023 100.0
~-BEHMEENEER - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 22,230,051 99.9 21,260,300 99.9
—ERRER - Credit card advances 4,377,622 - 4,465,225 -
—Hft - Others 11,092,297 43.9 9,217,401 37.5
38,456,427 72.4 35,811,949 71.4
EEBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong 77,754,406 77.4 72,616,256 80.1
Z58E (GE(1) Trade finance (Note (1)) 7,723,386 66.2 7,394,880 66.5
EEBIMEBRNER () Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(Note (2)) 28,176,929 74.0 29,614,188 68.7
113,654,721 758 109,625,324 76.1
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EEZM T E R

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(LAB® T 7TA57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6.

B R EREE 2 BN 4T ()

(R) RITES B2 EFERARE (LEXA

Q)

EPERUSERARRENE DD
) (@)

Liis Rz BERERSERESE RELZE
BiEsImMoEREEED  HOMEBOMNME -
IARERESMELE 2 ER -

THRBEBZEIBMEBER(BEKRFET
ZHINBRTHBAARTFZESRME) &
f6297,335,000% JC(20154F12 318 :
592,075,000 % 7T) D MR [FEBBAIMERRE
FKIETF -

ERBUIMERNERBRER TEESPEER
BIASMERZE K °

AFRITEEFR AT 20165F55¢

(a)

Note:

ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)

Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of
imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong and
merchandising trade classified with reference to the relevant guidelines
issued by the HKMA.

Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade
finance extended by the overseas subsidiary banks of DSB) totalling
HK$297,335,000 (31 December 2015: HK$592,075,000) are classified
under Loans for use outside Hong Kong.

Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to customers
located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside Hong Kong.



AEB XTI HFE R

6. EERBREZFEIMNDH @

(R) RITES Bz EFERAE (LEXRA
BoERUARERARRENE S LD

) (@)

Ll EERES

#EFE10% oA EEVTT

¥ BE(SREERE B R M ER MR

BRMENEFTREERIT

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(LAY T 7A7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (continued)

(@) Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

For each industry sector reported above with loan balance
constituting 10% or more of the total balance of advances to
customers, the attributable amount of impaired loans, overdue loans,
and individually and collectively assessed loan impairment allowances
are as follows:

BXaE
AHARE
BiB3EA BRI Gad
Gross HEER HEER
advances Individually Collectively
KMEBLEH REER overdue assessed assessed
Outstanding Impaired for over impairment impairment
2016512 A 31 B At 31 December 2016 balance loans 3 months allowances allowances
ERBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
THeH Industrial, commercial
and financial
S - Property investment 15,095,225 92,594 89,700 10,276 51,607
(N Individuals
—BEHMEENEER - Loans for the purchase
of other residential
properties 22,230,051 10,670 24,893 - 4,552
EEBAIMERRER Loans for use outside
Hong Kong 28,176,929 364,972 380,615 189,010 145,416
et
B3 EA {ERIGTE frEEHE
Gross TEER RE%ER
advances Individually Collectively
ENEY BEER overdue assessed assessed
Outstanding Impaired for over impairment impairment
201512 A31H At 31 December 2015 balance loans 3 months allowances allowances
EEBRANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TR Industrial, commercial
and financial
—MERE - Property investment 16,136,906 - 45,009 - 26,886
EA Individuals
—REHMEENEER - Loans for the purchase
of other residential
properties 21,260,300 - 23,645 - 2,222
EBRMIMERRER Loans for use outside
Hong Kong 29,614,188 304,159 356,762 191,321 184,871
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AEEZHITIFER

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. EERSREIHEIIDH @ 6. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (continued)
() RITESPEZ2EFERABE(LERHA (@) Gross advances to customers by industry sector
BoERUSERARRENEI LS classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
) () by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

TRFEBEBERNEWSFIZR NI EEIBREER The amount of new allowances charged to income statement, and the

MBI Z MIHBER o

amount of impaired loans and advances written off during the year
were disclosed in the tables below.

WEEREE

REEEBEER  MEHZEN
HME5%  Recoveries
Loans of advances

LR written written off
New off as in previous
2016 & 2016 allowances uncollectible years
EBBERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TrEea Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERE — Property investment = = =
fEA Individuals
-~ BEHEMEEMEER - Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties - - 364
TEBBAIMEROER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 149,372 115,111 6,137
WEIERESF
REEEER  MEHZIERN
ME%  Recoveries
Loans  of advances
LR written written off
New off as in previous
20154 2015 allowances  uncollectible years
ERBERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TH2 Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEKRE - Property investment = = =
fELA Individuals
-~ BEHEMEEMESR - Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties - - 474
EERBIMERRNER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 230,629 108,053 11,610
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

6. EERBREZFEIMNDH @

(2) HhE KX AEREE

REBEFBSER(RITE(KRE) R - LT HP
BAREXBNREZ AN H2RELBSERYF
BIRRBERBHRBRPMAIZFRITERZE TR
RIRBEERERBEERAUDE - EPREERN
RITRERNMRITHBRARR T 2 HBEIAREER

(LABHE T 7TA7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (continued)

(b) Mainland activities exposures

The analysis of Mainland activities exposures is based on the
categories of non-bank counterparties and the type of direct
exposures defined by the HKMA under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules
with reference to the HKMA Return of Mainland Activities, which
includes the Mainland activities exposures extended by DSB and its

HYERER ©

Mainland subsidiary bank only.

BEESERRN BEABRM
HIERER HYERER
On-balance  Off-balance MR
sheet sheet Total
2016 2016 exposure exposure exposures
1. PREBR - FREST 1. Central government, central government-
BANKELREREAR owned entities and their subsidiaries and
MeERra (A& AHE]) joint ventures (“JV”s) 6,982,813 335,952 7,318,765
2. AT - 5B 2. Local governments, local government-owned
BEERRE RS entities and their subsidiaries and JVs 2,067,880 639,122 2,707,002
NAIFIEE AT
3. BEEFEAMZBER%E 3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland China or
FH B 3k 37 R EL A A other entities incorporated in Mainland
REKBARMEERA] China and their subsidiaries and JVs 8,442,337 1,717,472 10,159,809
4. RABELME-BERZ 4. Other entities of central government not
R BT B H i i reported in item 1 above 1,579,550 153,473 1,733,023
5. AEELME_BER L 5. Other entities of local governments not
Hb 75 B A L A reported in item 2 above 569,977 11,774 581,751
6. BEERBE AU AN Z 6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland
B Rk R B At DA China or entities incorporated outside
INBK L BOHERE - T B Mainland China where the credits are
B B A granted for use in Mainland China 8,070,905 542,543 8,613,448
7. Eth R 58 F - HergE 7. Other counterparties where the exposures are
AR (ESS R BURRESE considered to be non-bank Mainland China
RITEE PR exposures 579,554 = 579,554
28,293,016 3,400,336 31,693,352
RETIRAT R E A 3R 1T B Total assets of DSB and its Mainland subsidiary
NEIZ MR EER 2 EEAS  bank after provision 189,622,746
EEABRANSRE On-balance sheet exposures as percentage
HEESTENL of total assets 14.92%

i L ERHEeEREPEREEREMHTRR
BEzE® -

Note: The balances of exposures reported above include gross advances and
other balances of claims on the customers.
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(LAB® T ITAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. EERREZEIND I & 6. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)
(Z) BB KpEEKREREE (2 (b) Mainland activities exposures (Continued)
EERERAN BEABRN
K EREE HEREE
On-balance  Off-balance RN
sheet sheet Total
20154 2015 exposure exposure exposures
1. PRBRT - FREST 1. Central government, central government-
EEHRE R E owned entities and their subsidiaries
NGNS and JVs 5,600,248 342,416 5,942,664
2. WA - B 2. Local governments, local government-
%ﬁﬁ’ﬂ%%&ﬁm% owned entities and their subsidiaries
NGIE =X UNE] and JVs 1,812,458 556,047 2,368,505
3. BREEFEAM 2 BEK 3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland China or
TE R B A HB B ST Y EL A i other entities incorporated in Mainland
REWBARMAE AR China and their subsidiaries and JVs 6,880,961 2,069,484 8,950,445
4. REELRE—HER2 4. Other entities of central government not
FR SR T B EL At i reported in item 1 above 671,859 174,376 846,235
5. REELMEZHER 2 5. Other entities of local governments not
Hb 75 U ) E A reported in item 2 above 374,271 231,530 605,801
6. FEEEREAMAINZ 6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland
B R 5l 72 R B A 3 A SN China or entities incorporated outside
DAVl 7 b Mainland China where the credits are
B AR B i granted for use in Mainland China 10,677,468 336,276 11,013,744
7. Eth R 5HF - HergE 7. Other counterparties where the exposures are
AR Ve R BIRBE considered to be non-bank Mainland China
ERTERE PR exposures 8,270 = 8,270

26,025,535 3,710,129 29,735,664

RETIRAT R E A3t IR 1T P B Total assets of DSB and its Mainland subsidiary

NEIZMBREERE 2 EESST  bank after provision 181,672,638
EEABRARERE On-balance sheet exposures as percentage

HEEGTEN of total assets 14.33%
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

6. EERBREZFEIMNDH @

(A RERSH2EFERRERARE

=)
£

BFERZBHAH T AR EEARBB %2
RHUFFEWSE - —MME - B EROER
FRBRZSHHUT TR 2B - AR

%o

TRATFPENRERE  ARRETFER - B
2P EREERIMER A R AR EE R RS
1 o

(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (continued)

(c) Analysis of gross advances to customers and overdue
loans by geographical area

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account the
transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when an advance is
guaranteed by a party located in an area which is different from that
of the counterparty.

The following table analyses gross advances to customers,
individually impaired advances to customers, overdue advances to
customers and individually and collectively assessed impairment
allowances by geographical area.

18 B3R E 185U 34 AR

BEFEX B RE%ER

EFEFME  Individually BEHIEFEFR  Individually  Collectively
Gross impaired Overdue assessed assessed

advances to advances to  advances to impairment impairment

201612 A831H At 31 December 2016 customers customers customers allowances allowances
BB Hong Kong 90,514,829 1,044,157 892,925 391,466 294,687
H China 7,573,907 72,815 127,256 30,499 67,881
R Macau 12,793,705 55,200 60,641 12,552 48,779
HAfth Others 2,772,280 2,037 6,315 693 9,198
113,654,721 1,174,209 1,087,137 435,210 420,545

(ER{ERES A RIFHE A RS

BEFER B2 R ELER

EFER#EE  Individually BEEFEF  Individualy  Collectively

Gross impaired Overdue assessed assessed

advancesto  advancesto  advances to impairment impairment

2015412 A31H At 31 December 2015 customers customers customers allowances allowances
B8 Hong Kong 88,670,794 694,726 482,606 283,589 205,814
H China 7,374,771 76,030 186,222 31,712 101,454
el Macau 12,007,126 25,507 31,236 12,608 44,534
Hith Others 1,572,633 56 56 44 6,270
109,625,324 796,319 700,120 327,953 358,072
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AEEZHITIFER

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. fEERBREZFEIMNDH @

(T) EIRRfERE

BREREHREZERRRNERK  REXS
B3 H) P T I BR B MO R 5 F R K EH H
B - —RME  BEXHETFHEEEHETR
BER®NZ—HHER  ETEES —MRTHE
SMD1T - MEAREENTNRENESR - 1 SR
Rl —BREBES —BIR o &t REMRA
ZREBERER - RARKERERERE10% A
EEETELHE -

6. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (continued)

(d) International claims

The information of international claims discloses exposures to foreign
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and is derived according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account any
transfer of risk. In general, transfer of risk from one country to another
is recognised if the claims against a counterparty are guaranteed by
another party in a different country or if the claims are on an overseas
branch of a bank whose head office is located in a different country.
Only regions constituting 10% or more of the aggregate international
claims after taking into account any recognised risk transfer are

disclosed.
FRITHARE
Non-bank private sector
FERAT
SRE kem
BEAKE Non-bank FARE
20161231 B At 31 December 2016 #®1T Official financial  Non-financial EERAE
BEER In millions of HK$ Banks sector institutions  private sector ~ Total claims
BEERL Offshore centres 1,867 17,682 6,684 113,351 139,584
—Hh BB - of which: Hong Kong 1,430 15,171 6,684 97,608 120,893
BEAGAR Developing Asia and Pacific 24,301 1,730 1,149 10,070 37,250
—Hih: - of which: Mainland China 20,282 1,730 1,133 8,561 31,706
JERITR AR
Non-bank private sector
FERIT
SRIKE El
BAKE Non-bank FAARE
201512 A 31 H At 31 December 2015 1T Official financial  Non-financial (EGE
BEAT In millions of HK$ Banks sector institutions  private sector Total claims
B Offshore centres 3,758 13,771 3,231 113,347 134,107
—Hh: FE - of which: Hong Kong 2,483 11,676 3,089 98,523 115,771
FRATAR Developing Asia and Pacific 28,424 1,574 863 9,223 40,084
—HA - of which: Mainland China 22,107 1,574 847 7,821 32,349
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(LABHE T 7TA7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. EENERFEZEIIDT @ 6. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND

EXPOSURES (Continued)
(R) GEAERIAREEZERARREN (€)

Credit commitments and contingent liabilities analysed

ERalndvaiin by percentage covered by collateral
2016 2015
ZIKH m ZHEA @
EHLE RENESL aHeE REMNBIL
Contract % covered Contract % covered
amount by collateral amount by collateral
MBERREMEEERE 2 Financial guarantees and
FAAE other credit related
contingent liabilities 1,570,209 29.3 1,215,161 20.6
BEFEEREMEEERE 2 Loan commitments and
HHE other credit related
commitments 69,528,743 3.6 69,244,002 4.7

71,098,952 4.2 70,459,163 5.0
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. EHE-TERBERABZEXRER

BIERBIER 2 EAREREEANT -

() FERBZERER

7. CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, MARKET AND

OPERATIONAL RISKS

The capital charge for each class of exposures are summarised as

follows:

(i) Capital charge for credit risk

2016 2015
F R R R Sovereign exposures 208 727
NE B B AR Public Sector Entity exposures 24,711 24,489
RITR PR AR Bank exposures 883,987 1,103,611
78 7 1 R\ e Securities firm exposures 26,854 5,334
V5 B R B Corporate exposures 5,368,416 4,879,814
ReIEH Cash items 22,349 24,373
EETERRAE Regulatory retail exposures 1,022,063 1,006,926
FEZBER Residential mortgage loans 1,207,197 1,164,515
Lt AR 280 HA R P R AR Other exposures which are not
past due exposures 1,135,741 1,079,825
260 B 2 B Past due exposures 65,192 41,375
FHC R bR dE Securitization exposures 21,136 16,496
AEAGBRARRAE 2 ERNERERE Total capital charge for on-balance
sheet exposures 9,777,854 9,347,485
HEEERER Direct credit substitutes 11,289 14,716
X 518 A IE B Transactions-related contingencies 15,662 14,957
B 5/ 2 S AIEE Trade-related contingencies 8,400 6,256
RERTER Forward forward deposits placed 336 =
Eo At Other commitments 67,512 85,778
XA Exchange rate contracts 76,755 130,197
MESL Interest rate contracts 14,002 11,158
ALY Equity contracts 271 1,097
ERMERE Credit valuation adjustment 59,654 52,566
AEAGBRINARAE 2 EARNERERE Total capital charge for off-balance
sheet exposures 253,881 316,725
FARARZGEF 2 EARERBTE Total capital charge for central
counterparties 298 -
ZER 2 EARERERE Total capital charge for credit risk 10,032,033 9,664,210

IR E TR EER BB E AR B 2 Bk N
HEATTIA 8% MBE - WHAEEZER[EEER
K] o institution’s actual “regulatory capital”.

This disclosure is made by multiplying the risk-weighted amount
derived from the relevant calculation approach by 8%, not the
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(LABHE T 7TA7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. EE - TEREREERBRZ2ERER 7. CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, MARKET AND
(#8) OPERATIONAL RISKS (continued)
(i) THERBZERER (i) Market risk capital charge
AEERBEEFELTEM SRR © The Group uses the Standardised Approach for calculating market
risk.
2016 2015
B g BXER  ERIESE BAREKR
Risk weighted Capital  Risk weighted Capital
amount charge amount charge
FIEE AL Interest rate exposures
(BHEHE) (including options) 369,287 29,543 527,025 42,162
HINE o B 1 Foreign exchange exposures
(BE=EE RAE) (including gold and options) 1,658,738 132,699 1,119,975 89,598
2,028,025 162,242 1,647,000 131,760
[\ Bez hn e £ 2 B R FI R S R1T R ARFTERTT (R The risk-weighted amount included those amounts arising from
Bl) 2] 2 TG K2R - derivative contracts executed by BCM and DSB China.
(i) BERBRZERER (iii) Operational risk capital charge
AEBEFHRAENEEAE LT HRERR The Group uses the Basic Indicator Approach for calculating

operational risk.

2016 2015

BIER R EARER Capital charge for operational risk 680,864 632,371
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(LAB® T ITA57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8. HEE®E

AEERRSERRE MR E RS EIE BT
ENEERBERRER -

AREEEIACEAR THEAR  FIEME
% RBHASER  BERR  BEARLEE
MRS - SERRZ EEEBRRAEEZEH
M6 EROEEENTEEE MR ARER
B RATAHNS BIE E RO -

REDE T SRR TRRIE R o st T REAL
BEEABRAZEERSGNEERERINCZE
BEXHREBFRERR -

1) 2R 3\ fx 45 P 1) 2R B A = 8 i o] BN & B A9 B
BUR S RS A R B o

ﬁ@ﬁ@ﬂmﬁ%$ﬁl*%ﬁ$ﬁ¢$mﬁﬁ
RAOER T ANENAEREIRIE2 2
& EETRALE -
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8. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group recognises the changing nature of risk and manages it
through a well-developed management structure.

Risk management is focused on credit risk, market risk, interest rate
risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, reputation risk and strategic risk.
Credit risk occurs mainly in the Group’s credit portfolios comprising
commercial and retail lending, equipment and hire purchase
financing, and treasury and financial institutions wholesale lending.

Market risk arises mainly from the Treasury Division and is associated
principally with the Group’s on-and off-balance sheet positions in the
trading book and its investment securities.

Interest rate risk means the risk to the Group’s financial condition
resulting from adverse movements in interest rates.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to fund increases in
assets or meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due without incurring unacceptable losses.

Operational risk is the risk of loss (direct or indirect) resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events.

Reputation risk is the risk arising from the potential that negative
publicity regarding the Group’s business practices, operational errors
or operating performance, whether true or not, could cause customer
concerns or negative view, decline in the customer base or market
share, or lead to costly litigation or revenue reductions.

Strategic risk generally refers to the corporate risk that may bring
significant immediate or future negative impact on the financial
and market positions of the Group because of poor strategic
decisions, unacceptable financial performance, and inappropriate
implementation of strategies and lack of effective response to the
market changes.

The other risk management aspects are disclosed below.
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8. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(@) The risk management structure of the Group

The Board of Directors has the broad overall responsibility for the
management of all types of risk. The responsibilities of the Board in
relation to risk control are:

° the approval of the overall strategy and policies to ensure
that credit and other risks are properly managed at both the
transaction and portfolio levels;

° the management of risk, both financial and non-financial,
conducted through operational and administrative control
systems including the operation of the Group Audit Committee;
review of key results (against forecasts), operational statistics
and policy compliance; and

° the review of financial performance by analysis against
approved budgets and analysis of variations in key non-financial
measures.

The RMCC have been delegated the authority to oversee and guide
the management of different risks which are more particularly
managed and dealt with by GRD and different functional committees.

(b) Group risk function

The independent Group Risk function is responsible for ensuring that
policies and mandates are established for the Group as a whole. GRD
monitors and reports the Group’s risk positions to the Board via the
RMCC, sets standards for the management of financial risks and data
integrity and ensures that the financial risks are fully considered in the
product planning and pricing process. GRD reviews and manages all
credit and risk exposure policies for the Group including the approval
of exposures to new markets, economic sectors, organisations,
credit products and financial instruments which expose the Group to
different types of risks. In determining risk policies, GRD takes into
account the guidelines established by the HKMA, business direction,
and risk adjusted performance of each business.
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8. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Group risk function (Continued)

The Group’s risk management expertise continues to advance the
overall quality of the Group’s lending portfolios, and enables the
Group to meet the changing regulatory requirements and enter
into credit exposures with the confidence that it understands the
associated risks and rewards.

The Group continues to evolve its risk management capabilities
under the aegis of the Head of GRD, with increasing focus of its risk
strategy on risk and reward and returns on capital. The Group uses
a range of risk measurement and analytical tools in its management
of various risks which it faces in its day-to-day businesses and these
are continually being enhanced and upgraded to reflect the ever-
changing business needs and the requirements of the regulators.

(c) Credit committees

The Group has a GCC for approving major credit limits. The CMC and
the TIRC are the functional committees responsible for approving and
recommending policies, limits and mandates for risk control in loans
and treasury business respectively. The credit risk function, while set
up to support the business areas, reports solely to the GRD.

(d) Credit risk
(i) Credit risk exposures

Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s are the external credit
assessment institutions (“ECAIs”) that the Group uses
for the assessment of its credit risk exposures to banks,
sovereigns, public sector entities, and collective investment
schemes as well as securitisation exposures and exposures
to rated corporates. The Group also has an internal grading
methodology for assessing credit exposures to unrated
corporates.

The process it uses to map ECAI issuer ratings to exposures
booked in its banking book follows the process prescribed in
Part 4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules.
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8. RABEIEm 8. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(T) EER K@ (d) Credit risk (Continued)
()  1EEEEAEE) ()  Credit risk exposures (Continued)
RATER
A
EEfIAIA
aHREZ
ERARLE
Total
EIAERRRRE exposure
LEREE RATERG covered by
Exposures after BRIESE REZER recognised
recognised credit Risk-weighted REAT guarantees
risk mitigation amounts BRNES Total or
ER#E B B B B ] exposure recognised
L] (i2) (i3) (i2) (33) Total risk- covered by credit
016 2016 Total Rated Unrated Rated Unrated weighted recognised derivative
BRER Class of exposures Exposures (Note 2) (Note 3) (Note 2) (Note 3) amounts collateral contracts
B EEBERA A On-balance sheet
1. TR 1. Sovereign 12,290,833 12,997,956 - 2,595 - 2,595 - -
2. NEEN 2. Public Sector Entty 957,583 1,795,966 - 308,885 - 308,885 - -
3 HEEREN 3. Multlateral
Development Bank 138,901 138,901 - - - - - -
4 %1 4. Bank 31,118,925 32,216,869 419,759 10,844,834 204,999 11,049,833 - -
5 B5E 5. Securities firm 671,339 339 671,000 170 335,500 335,670 - -
6. %8 6. Corporate 79,314,254 23,157,038 52,424,933 14,847,787 52,257,418 67,105,205 3,969,853 621,812
7. B2EH 7. Cash items 789,937 - 3,071,298 - 279,363 279,363 - -
8 EE% 8. Regulatoryretail 17,390,244 - 17,034,386 - 12,775,790 12,775,790 270,604 85,255
0. [l 9. Residentia
mortgage loans 35,357,131 - 34,520,137 - 15,089,965 15,089,965 - 836,994
10. EthxeH 10. Other exposures
Bl which are not past
due exposures 12,985,021 1,926,728 10,578,862 1,175,844 13,020,915 14,196,759 489,007 57
1. aBEkAE 11, Pastdue exposures 817,721 - 817,721 - 814,894 814,804 531,775 70348
L. BEBER) B. Off-balance sheet
1. R 1. Off-balance sheet
TARA exposures other
H0k than OTC derivative
TARIH transactions or
LEERRR credit derivative
EREE contracts 1,730,320 - 1,730,320 - 1,289,997 1,289,997 87,356 -
2. BMIETR 2. OTC derivative
5 transactions 2,361,536 1,885,628 475,908 747,066 390,789 1,137,855 129,351 78,997
A, RERZHT C. Central Counterparties 186,407 - 186,407 - 3728 3728 - -
T. EF1250%E%EE D, Exposures that are
LBlEAdE risk-weighted
at 1,250% 21,136
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8. MEBEEum 8. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(T) EER K @ (d) Credit risk (Continued)
()  1GEEEAEE) () Credit risk exposures (Continued)
XRTER
3
[EEHTETA
BHREZ
EEREEE
Total
BEHEERERE exposure
LERAEE RATERR covered by
Exposures after BRMESE [RE2 B recognised
recognised credit Risk-weighted RELE quarantees
risk mitigation amounts BmEY Total or
Bl Bk KB R R e exposure tecognised
et (i2) (i#3) (i2) (i3) Totalrisk- covered by credit
0155 2015 Total Rated Unrated Rated Unrated weighted recognised derivative
Bl Class of exposures Exposures (Note 2) (Note 3) (Note 2) (Note 3) amounts collateral contracts
B, EEBERA A On-balance sheet
1. TEfhE 1. Sovereign 8,075,602 9,236,426 - 9,087 - 9,087 - -
2. NEEN 2. Public Sector Entty 829,140 1,674,997 - 306,115 - 306,115 - 118,333
3 HEEREN 3. Multlateral
Development Bank 77,078 77,078 - - - - - -
4, %11 4. Bank 36,297,148 36,514,368 852,034 13,389,806 405,337 13,795,143 - -
5 B5E 5. Securities firm 133,708 47 132,605 314 66,302 66,676 356 -
6. A8 6. Corporate 73,313,705 22,324,455 46,286,423 11,480,302 49,517,367 60,997,669 5,034,364 892,931
7. B4%EH 7. Cash items 780,518 - 3,677,564 - 304,657 304,657 - -
8 EEZE 8. Regulatoryretail 17,224,322 - 16,782,095 - 12,586,571 12,586,571 291,557 150,670
9. (FERE 9. Residentia
mortgage loans 34,258,269 - 33,300,144 - 14,556,441 14,556,441 106 958,019
10. EthxeH 10. Other exposures
Rl which are not past
due exposures 11,845,454 1,977,154 9,998,853 1,123,372 12,374,435 13,497,807 196,124 8
1. mBEkAE 11, Past due exposures 477,259 - 477,259 - 517,188 517,188 293,943 39,257
4. BEBER) B. Off-balance sheet
1. BRI 1. Oft-balance sheet
ARG exposures other
&% than OTC derivative
TASHH transactions or
LRERER credlt derivative
NEmEE contracts 1,718,843 - 1718843 - 1,521,336 1,521,336 54,787 -
2. SMIETE 2. OTC derivative
25 transactions 2,926,935 1,799,013 1,127,922 729,899 1,050,751 1,780,650 85,862 -

A. EF1250%EREE C. Exposures that are
LBlgdE risk-weighted at
1,250% 16,496
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(d)

(LAY T 7A1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
() Credit risk exposures (Continued)

Note:

(1) principal amount or credit equivalent amount, as applicable, net of
individually assessed impairment allowances.

2) including exposures with ECAI issue-specific rating and
exposures which have an inferred rating (i.e. exposures which
do not have an issue-specific rating but whose risk-weights are
determined under the Capital Rules by reference to an ECAI
issuer rating assigned to the obligor of the exposure or to an ECAI
issue rating of any other exposures of the obligor).

(3) exposures which do not have ECAI issue-specific rating, nor
inferred rating.

(i)  Counterparty credit risk exposures

The Group exercises strict control limits in tenor and
outstanding amounts on net open positions arising from OTC
derivative transactions, repo-style transactions and credit
derivative contracts booked in its banking book or trading
book. The credit risk exposures associated with these contracts
are predominantly their fair values (i.e. the positive marked-
to-market values favourable to the Group). These credit risk
exposures together with potential exposures from market
movements are managed as part of the overall lending limits
allowed to counterparties. Collateral or other security is
generally not obtained for such credit risk exposures.

Settlement risk arises in situations where a payment in cash
or a delivery of securities or equities is made in expectation
of a corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. To
mitigate settlement risk, daily settlement limits are established
for individual counterparty on the aggregate of all settlements
on a day. The Group will also enter into netting arrangements
and make settlement on the basis of delivery against payment
as appropriate.
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8. RMREE@m 8. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(T) EER K @ (d) Credit risk (Continued)
(i)  RBEHFEEREGRAE &) (i) Counterparty credit risk exposures (Continued)
BRASERTEBITETIAGN 2 ERR Under the terms of the current collateral obligations of the
ETIER - RiB#E2016F 12 831 B Zik Group with respect to derivative contracts, the Group estimates
o REBMGFTITEEREEEFREA based on the positions as at 31 December 2016 that it would not
B — A Y IE R NI A FBIME R 5 (2015 4F - be required to post additional collateral in the event of one notch
;) o downgrade in its credit rating (2015: Nil).
REE B B E IR MR A= 6l 2 Sy 88 The Group has in place the policies and procedures to control
AEE @ BERTHEITIEEZERARRR and monitor wrong-way risk, including requiring prior approval
FHIHEBEMZ before entering into prescribed wrong-way risk deals.
TERBAAEERBSIMTIERSGZEE The following table summarises the Group’s main credit
ZE R AIE - exposures arising from OTC derivative transactions.
2016 & 20154
12831 H 12H31H
At At
31 December 31 December
BMTERS OTC derivative transactions 2016 2015
N EESERTE Gross total positive fair value 1,247,508 1,152,520
EEESEEE Credit equivalent amount 2,366,553 2,926,935

RAERRERE - RER

Value of recognised collateral by type

—ER — Deposits 129,351 85,882
[R\BR hnHE B KR Risk weighted amounts 1,137,955 1,780,650

RIBITEBER AT 20165 F 35
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(LAY T 7A1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8. REREREm@m 8. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(T) EER K@ (d) Credit risk (Continued)
(i)  XBHF=ERERAEE) (i)  Counterparty credit risk exposures (Continued)
TRV EEZESEREEERRFEEKL An analysis of the credit equivalent amounts or net credit
BBz INE SR RR 2 AT o exposures, and the risk-weighted amount is summarised as
follows.
2016 F 20154
12H31H 12AH31H
At At
31 December 31 December
BIMTERS OTC derivative transactions 2016 2015
LR Notional amounts:
—$R1T - Banks 80,746,539 983,087,809
— =B — Corporates 15,226,960 31,038,100
—HAt — Others 6,512,189 720,946

102,485,688 124,846,855

EESEYE Credit equivalent amounts/net
EERFE credit exposures:
—R1T — Banks 1,813,911 1,690,666
— =B — Corporates 441,229 1,122,993
— HAh — Others 111,413 113,276
2,366,553 2,926,935
[\ Bk e R Risk-weighted amounts:
—R7T - Banks 711,207 675,725
—=H — Corporates 404,875 1,068,165
—HAh — Others 21,873 36,760
1,137,955 1,780,650
2016512 H31 H % 2015612 H31 H » W& There were no credit exposures arising from repo-style
BREOBEARIREENTERIEHNZEER transactions and credit derivative contracts at 31 December
Bz o 2016 and 31 December 2015.
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(d)

(e)

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
(iii)  Credit risk mitigation

The credit risk mitigation techniques used by the Group are
generally those recognised by the Banking (Capital) Rules for
reduced capital weighting. Common types of collateral obtained
are cash deposits, real estate properties, as well as taxi and
public light bus medallion. For certain types of advances to
customers, the Group also places reliance on guarantees issued
by governments, public sector entities and corporates with
acceptable credit rating.

Real estate properties taken as collateral are evaluated before
the loan can be drawn. For property collateral supporting
problem accounts, their open market values are appraised at
least every three months. For property collateral that has been
repossessed, the Group’s policy is to arrange for realisation as
soon as practicable.

Market risk

The Group is exposed to various types of market risk. Details of the

risk management policies and procedures adopted are set out in Note

3.3 to the financial statements.

(f)

Asset securitisation

The Group uses the standardised (securitisation) approach to

calculate the credit risk for securitisation exposures on Basel lll basis.
Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s are the ECAIs that the Group has
used in relation to each and all classes of the securitisation exposures

below.
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8. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(f) Asset securitisation (Continued)

The asset securitisation exposures of the Group represented
investment in structured investment vehicles managed by third
party portfolio managers and in which the Group is an investor. The
investment is classified as a financial asset designated at fair value
through profit or loss in the Group’s banking book and has been
assessed as impaired since 2007. It is carried at a residual value of
27.26% (2015: 21.29%) of the par value as at 31 December 2016
based on price quote obtained from the investment manager.

BB E
g%
Bl 1,250%
BREE BRAERE
AfEE Risk-weighted Exposures deducted from
7 amount - BARE LRRE-RER “HER
EH Securitisation Outstanding at1,250% Capital Common Equity Tier 2
BRI exposures amounts risk weight ~ requirements  Tier 1 Capital Capital
2016 F 2016
HHLAK Synthetic securitisations
—ERMHRETA - Structured investment
vehicles 21,136 264,201 21,136 - -
20154F 2015
HHAK Synthetic securitisations
—ERMHRETA - Structured investment
vehicles 16,496 206,201 16,496 - =
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8. REMREEum
(BR) RITIRZ RERE

RNE BRI B [R5 TE\ BB R ERIE B
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FHE o TS ERIRER TS B EEEMGE -

8. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@) Equity exposures in banking book

The Group distinguishes its equity holdings between those taken for

strategic reasons and those taken for capital appreciation purposes

at inception of the acquisition. Equity holdings identified for capital

appreciation purpose is evaluated based on rigorous investment

analysis and is subject to internal guidelines on stock selection,

marketability, valuation, position limit, management action trigger,

and various other control guidelines. Listed equity holdings are valued

on the basis of market bid prices.

2016 2015
REHE B2 BH W Realised gains from sales/liquidations 30,843 =
REIR 2 BhE Unrealised revaluation gains
—EBEEREE - Amount included in reserves but not
ERER NG ER 2 5 through income statement 95,964 123,415
() SRITEZFZEEE (h) Interest rate risk exposures in banking book
B
Currency
BT =TT AR¥E Hte =5
2016 2016 HK$ Us$ CNY Others Total
FlxEREE Interest rate risk shock
EF200%F +200 basis points
— &R, CR) - Increase/(decline)
in earnings 201,000 (176,000) 1,000 (49,000) (23,000)
Currency
BIL Xt ARE Hith &
20154 2015 HK$ Us$ CNY Others Total
GUBSENCY S Interest rate risk shock
FF200%5F +200 basis points
— &R CRd) - Increase/(decline)
in earnings 110,000 (156,000) (8,000) (42,000) (96,000)

RIBITEBER AR 20165 F 5
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(LA T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(i) Operational risk

The Group manages its operational risk through a management
structure comprising members of senior management, an
independent risk management team and operational risk officers
from each business and support function, and operating through a
set of operational risk policies, risk tool-kits, operational risk incident
reporting and tracking system, and control self-assessment and
key risk indicator tools. The Operational Risk and Internal Control
Committee (“ORICC”) has been set up to oversee the operational
risk management and internal control matters of the Group. ORICC is
chaired by the Chief Executive with certain Executive Directors and
senior management as members. Together with a well-established
internal control system, operational risk can be adequately identified,
assessed, monitored and mitigated. To allow the operational risk
framework to be clearly communicated to all levels within the Group,
awareness and training programs are conducted from time to time.

To minimise the impact on the Group’s business in the event of
system failure or disasters, back-up sites and operation recovery
policies and plans have been established and tested for all critical
business and operations functions.

Operational risk framework is also supported by periodic independent
reviews of internal control systems by external and internal auditors.
The Group’s RMCC have an overall oversight of the performance and
effectiveness of operational risk management.

() Reputation risk

The Group manages reputation risk through upholding a high
standard of corporate governance and management oversight,
maintenance of effective policies and procedures with emphasis
on internal control, risk management and compliance; anti-money
laundering and counter terrorist financing; proper staff training and
supervision; staff awareness of compliance issues; proper handling
of customer complaints or dissatisfaction; and adherence to sound
business practices. Standards are set and policies and procedures
are established by the Group in all areas, which operate to reduce
vulnerability to reputation risk.
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8. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(k) Strategic risk

The Board of Directors, assisted by senior management, is directly
responsible for the management of strategic risk. Directors formulate
the strategic goals and key direction of the Group in line with the
Group’s corporate mission, ensure business strategies are developed
to achieve these goals, oversee the strategic development and
implementation to secure compatibility with the Group’s strategic
goals, ensure proper change management is in place, review business
performance and address issues arising from anticipated operational
or market changes, deploy proper resources to achieve the Group’s
objectives, and authorise management to take appropriate actions to
mitigate risks.

() Compliance with the Basel Ill Capital Standards

Since the revised capital adequacy framework known as Basel Il
has become effective from January 2007, DSB has adopted the
standardised approach for credit risk and market risk, and the
basic indicator approach for operational risk. These are the default
approaches as specified in the Banking (Capital) Rules. Accordingly,
the Group has overhauled its systems and controls in order to meet
the standards required for these approaches.

To implement the new international capital standards commonly
referred to as the “Basel IlI” rules, the HKMA had published the
Banking (Capital) (Amendment) Rules between 2012 and 2015, and
revised SPM CA-G-5 on “Supervisory Review Process” in 2012
and 2016. The revised capital standards and related regulatory
requirements have come into force for all locally incorporated
authorised institutions in Hong Kong starting from 1 January 2013.
DSB has enhanced its capital management and reporting framework
as well as disclosures for meeting the new requirements.

In addition to the implementation of the Banking (Capital) Rules under
the Basel Il framework in Hong Kong, two new capital buffers, namely
the Capital Conservation Buffer and Countercyclical Capital Buffer,
designed to ensure that banks build up sufficient capital to withstand
periods of stress and system-wide risk associated with periods of
excessive aggregate credit growth, have commenced to phase in
since 1 January 2016. To align with the regulatory requirements,
DSB’s capital management framework has been enhanced to
incorporate the two capital buffers as elements in the setting of
internal capital targets for capital adequacy monitoring and capital
planning.
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8. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

() Compliance with the Basel Ill Capital Standards

(Continued)

To address the negative externalities posed by systemically
important institutions, the Basel Committee established a framework
in November 2011 (subsequently updated in July 2013) for the
identification of global systemically important banks (“G-SIBs”) and
the determination of their corresponding HLA capital requirements.
Subsequently, a principles-based framework for dealing with
domestic systemically important banks (“D-SIBs”) was issued by the
Basel Committee in October 2012. Based on the latest list of G-SIBs
and D-SIBs issued by the Financial Stability Board (“FSB”) and the
HKMA respectively, DSB is neither designated as a G-SIB nor D-SIB
and therefore not subject to further capital surcharge.

(m) Launch of new product or service

The launch of every new product or service is governed by the New
Product Approval process stipulated under the Group Risk Policy
which requires the relevant business and supporting units, including
GRD, to review the critical requirements, risk assessment and
resources plan before the launch. New products or services which
could have a significant impact on the Group’s risk profile should be
brought to the attention of the Board or its designated committee(s)
before the launch. The Group’s Internal Audit function performs
regular independent review and testing to ensure compliance by the
relevant units in the new product approval process.

(n) The role of Internal Audit

The Group’s Internal Audit Division is an independent, objective
assurance and consulting unit, which is designed to focus on
enhancing and sustaining sound internal control in all business and
operational units of the Group. The Division reports functionally to the
Group Audit Committee, which is chaired by an Independent Non-
Executive Director. The Division conducts a wide variety of internal
control activities such as compliance audits and operations and
systems reviews to ensure the integrity, efficiency and effectiveness
of the systems of control of the Group.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The financial statements of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 93 to
277, which comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31

December 2016;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then

ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarized as follows:
° Impairment of loans and advances to customers

° Impairment assessment on investment in an associate, Bank of
Chongging (“BOCQ”)

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

307



308

B 2B AR S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BAEETTEE @)

BEEsE

BFENREHE

FLUEANBREME
21

R2016 5125318
EEERERBALES
113,654,721 F A 7T - B3R
BRI EEES55,755 T
T HeARREEEA
435210 F %L HARME
5B 420,545 TAT ©

ERERETREETHIE

KEZEATHE :

o HEESEHNZR
EEREENEMRN
BAMBHMERT
Ao BEXBEAR

BEABRERTEE
PR -

o RENHE BEF
EHREEHAAE
AREMBETER
BiE o

o FERERMAZZ
%ﬂ@“ BRER
ERMERG 2t

@ DEREERZY

THAEEEEN
%@”
ERREREEEREME

% RAREFERARE
K ARBERENEY
REBEMEZH -

EMNENARERRETEE

7
s

RETREHH T ETHBRNHE
TRt

EXSR(ARENAEES
%&Em%h%ﬁ)&ﬁ%ﬁ
AR E SR ERY
ERt TR

RARERAREEHEEN
EREBEEERH AR

EREHETNAAETHRE
AENEERE  AEREE
FEEREROFES -
R BAR AL AR 2 s 0 =t

et
B o
It

BT NRERERS  RAKEH
IATER :

LffEHE T EREEE RN
EEfFZRE &Mﬁ$ﬁﬂﬁ
AREERNTE o

RTEEEREHRESAD
BA ZMERTETERR
HERREHNETEFAR
ABIEREREA - BES
HERE BfRTNERE
EEPRR : A ARTE
FTEEERR  LRER
ABIFTTES - LERE N
MR - SR SR
KMBUNETRESHNE
£ AR TREERREE
BNRS o

RIRITEBER AT 20165 F 5

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment of loans and advances to customers

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements

As at 31 December 2016, the Group
recorded loan impairment allowance
of HK$855,755 thousand against the
total loan portfolio of HK$113,654,721
thousand, with HK$435,210 thousand
as individual impairment allowances
and HK$420,545 thousand as collective
impairment allowances.

Management assessed the impairment of
loans by considering the following:

o The identification of impairment
events, which differs based upon the
type of lending product and location.
Judgement is required to determine
whether a loss has been incurred.

* The measurement of impairment,
including the assessment of whether
historical experience is appropriate
when assessing the probability of
default in the portfolio.

* The parameters and assumptions
used to calculate impairment
including the valuation of collateral
for secured lending and the impact of
economic factors to the credit quality
of the loan portfolio.

Loan impairment allowances is an audit
focus due to the materiality of the balances
and the underlying calculations are subject
to significant judgement of management.

We understood and tested key controls in relation
to:

* the accuracy and completeness of the
transfer of loan data, including outstanding
loan balances and loan loss data, between
underlying source systems and the
impairment models that the Group used;

o the post-lending ongoing monitoring controls
in place to detect the occurrence of the
impairment events; and

o the management’s impairment assessment
and estimation processes, including the
assessment of the impairment models and
calculation of impairment allowances based
on the loan data and impairment events
identified in a way which is appropriate for
addressing the credit risk of the Group’s loan
portfolio.

In addition to testing the key controls, we have
also performed the following procedures:

o We assessed the criteria for determining
whether an impairment event had occurred
and the relevant impact on the estimated
impairment allowances.

* To corroborate with the management’s
identification of the impairment events,
we selected samples of performing loans
with characteristics indicating higher
risk of impairment event occurrence as
well as non-performing loans. To identify
such characteristics, we performed,
included but not limited to, analysis on
non-performing loans; business risks on
industries; and geographical locations of
borrowers, in particular, Mainland China
corporate exposures. On those samples,
we independently assessed whether
impairment events had occurred and tested
the appropriateness and adequacy of
impairment allowances.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Impairment of loans and advances to customers (Continued)

*  For a sample of individually impaired loans
we understood the latest developments at
the borrowers and the basis of measuring
the impairment allowance and considered
whether key management judgments
were appropriate given the borrowers’
circumstances. We also re-performed
management’s impairment calculation
and tested key inputs to the impairment
calculation including valuation of collateral
held and estimated future cash flow from
borrowers.

o For the collective impairment allowances,
which reflects and addresses losses
incurred but not yet identified, we sample
tested the accuracy and completeness of
the underlying loan information used in
the impairment models by agreeing data
to the Group’s loan systems as well as re-
performing the calculation of the impairment
allowances. For the key assumptions applied
in the models, we challenged management
regarding the appropriateness by applying
our industry knowledge and benchmarking
with peer banks historical data.

For individual impairment allowances, we found no
material exceptions from our testing. For collective
impairment allowances, we found the key
assumptions and inputs used in the impairment
models were reasonable and in line with our
industry knowledge and market information.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment assessment on investment in an associate, Bank of Chongging (“ BOCQ”)

Refer to note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements

The Group’s investment in BOCQ is
accounted for as an associate, using the
equity method. The Group has recorded
the investment in BOCQ of HK$4,253,393
thousand as at 31 December 2016.

Management identified the carrying value
of the investment is higher than the market
value of BOCQ which is considered
an indicator of potential impairment.
Management performed an impairment
assessment and has assessed that the
recoverable amount of investment in
BOCQ was higher than its carrying value
and concluded that there is no impairment.
The recoverable amount was measured as
value-in-use (“VIU”) estimate calculated by
discounted cash flow model (‘DCF”).

We focused on impairment assessment
on investment in BOCQ because of
the materiality of the balance and
the DCF models involved highly
subjective management judgements and
assumptions.

We assessed the DCF model used by the
management and examined the impairment
assessment performed by management which
set out the basis for their judgements and
assumptions with relevant supporting evidence
including historical market data. We used our
understanding of BOCQ (with reference to external
market information, third-party sources, including
analyst reports, and publicly available BOCQ
information) and the Chinese banking industry to
challenge and assess the reasonableness of the
key assumptions applied, including the discount
rate, profit growth rate and terminal value.

We also performed sensitivity analysis on
the VIU estimates to evaluate how sensitive
management’s assessment is to the change of
different inputs of key assumptions individually
and collectively in different scenarios.

Based on the procedures we performed, we found
that the VIU estimated by management was within
a reasonable range.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,

and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheng Sin Bun, Benson.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2017



TENBIRT—D1T0MR

MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES - LISTS OF BRANCHES

41T Branch #h3k Address B Tel {EH Fax
RHFBTERA T

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

EREDT

Hong Kong Island Branches

BEA21T BB 2057

Aberdeen 20 Wu Pak Street, Aberdeen 2554 5463 2554 0843
SEEER LI ERB18FEET OEE—E 1054

Admiralty Centre Shop No. 10, 1st Floor of the Podium, Admiralty Centre, 2529 1338 3110 2818

No. 18 Harcourt Road

SHsRE DT IR EET B 718 482 9%

Causeway Bay 482 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay 2891 2201 2591 6037

FEDIT EEE R 19 9RIRBKKNEH T A SR &l

Central Shop A, G/F, Worldwide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central 2521 8134 2526 9427

BELD1T 278 293-299 I = AEH T 15-22 55 e b e

Fortress Hill Shop No.15-22, G/F and basement, Empire Apartments, 2922 3389 2887 7604
Nos. 293-299 King’s Road

HETITEDTT HLITE 108 5 RET R AL O T BSR4

Gloucester Road Shop B, G/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road 2507 8866 2507 8654

ME DT SR SET 13 B GRAE M T AR

Happy Valley Shop A, G/F, Kam Yuk Mansion, No. 13 Yuk Sau Street, 2572 0708 2572 0718
Happy Valley

BIEWH1T LB BT 100 SR A IE SR A IEFT B T G59 577

Heng Fa Chuen Unit G59, G/F, Heng Fa Chuen Paradise Mall, 100 Shing 2558 7485 2889 2520
Tai Road, Chaiwan

HTBEST I T 2E 16458

Johnston Road 164, Johnston Road, Wanchai 2572 8849 2891 3743

BB D 1T TEFERA2FE OB T AR R 1IBAE

Kennedy Town Shop A2, G/F, & Unit A, 1/F, Man Kwong Court, 12 Smithfield Road 2849 2280 2960 0790

tADIT 298 433-437 SRR E

North Point Chu Kee Building, 433-437 King’s Road 2561 8241 2811 4474

BHEEDT LEHEB57-87 FALEM T G874

Shaukiwan Shop G8, G/F, Tai On Building, 57-87 Shaukiwan Road 2568 5271 2567 5904

AEEDAT 2R RIET 443-453 5740 15-16 5748

Shek Tong Tsui Shop No. 15-16, G/F, 443-453 Queen’s Road West 2857 7473 2108 4539

ERA4T FIREEET 2885 HBEFE AEM T B2 RAE—EB=E

Sheung Wan G/F & 1/F, No. 288 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan 2851 6281 2581 2216

RKEFDT AREPRARREE 1 SRLER B H T 501 554

Taikoo Shing Shop No. G501, On Shing Terrace, No. 28 Taikoo Shing 2884 4802 2884 3151

Road & No. 1-9 Tai Yue Avenue, Taikoo Shing
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TENBIRT—D170MR

MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES - LISTS OF BRANCHES

41T Branch

ik Address

B Tel

fHE Fax

REFBVITHERAF
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

NEEDT

Kowloon Branches

BEHDIT
Shing Yip Street
AL D 1T
Hunghom

EBD1T

Jordan

BEDT

Kwun Tong

BED1T
Lok Fu
EZHWAIT

Mei Foo Sun
Chuen

HADT
Mongkok

K 4T
Shamshuipo
BRIEES T
Telford Gardens
TIE S 1T
Tokwawan
HERST
Tseung Kwan O
S ER

FEBF LT
Tseung Kwan O
Metro City Plaza

RBBS 1T
Tsimshatsui

EIERCEM 105k T AL
Shop A, G/F, 10 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong
AR ENAT28 SR SR EIH N 3 R4 SR 1 E 2R E R 218 354

Shop No. 3 and 4 on G/F, Shop No. 2 on 1/F and Shop
No. 3 on 2/F, Cheron Court, 28 Wuhu Street, Hunghom

R E 335 5%

335 Nathan Road, Jordan

BIEREEASFELT R LM T 7-9 574

Shop Nos. 7-9, G/F, Yee On Centre, 45 Hong Ning Road,
Kwun Tong

EEEM L E ES —E 1101 21102554

Shop Nos. 1101 and 1102, 1/F, Lok Fu Plaza, Wang Tau Hom
FEF U A AR E 10A T~ N26E & F 5= 47

Shop No. N26E & F, G/F, 10A Nassau Street, Stage V,
Mei Foo Sun Chuen

A £5 58 2038 697 5%
697 Nathan Road, Mongkok

IR R AT 124 5730 T
G/F, 124 Fuk Wing Street, Shamshuipo

NEEEERES — B 12 F5A-FBA SR
Units F5A-F6A, Level 2, Telford Plaza |, Kowloon Bay

4 258 245B % 247 5= S 2 Hits T
G/F, Mei King Mansion, Phase Il, No. 245B and 247 Tokwawan Road

15 R 2= 18137 9 9% PopCorn &5 B G58 5 i 48
Shop G58, G/F, PopCorn, 9 Tong Chun Street, Tseung Kwan O

1 BT 0 58 = B — 12 127 SR

Shop 127, Level 1, Metro City Plaza Ill, Tseung Kwan O

KA IRRBE 66-70 5 & TBAE
Golden Crown Court, 66-70 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui

2191 8103

2365 8110

2385 0161

2389 3911

2337 6300

2370 2660

2394 4261

2361 0951

2927 4130

2365 9035

2752 1223

2927 2101

2366 9121

2191 8723

2363 5917

2782 0993

2389 8239

2337 6922

2370 2006

2391 9104

2958 0985

2755 4967

2363 5696

2752 1098

2702 2305

2311 1491

AFRITEEER AT 2016544



TENBIRT—D1T0MR

MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES - LISTS OF BRANCHES

41T Branch

ik Address

T Tel

& E Fax

REFBVITHERAF
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

NEEDT

Kowloon Branches

BT
Wong Tai Sin
JH it 2 1T
Yaumatei

EANIIERE 1085k =AML O T G3C SR
Shop No. G3C, Ground Floor, Wong Tai Sin Plaza, Wong Tai Sin

A I 0 3R 238 561 5%
561 Nathan Road, Yaumatei

2326 5165

2782 1339

2350 0894

2385 9285

MREDT

New Territories Branches

BEDIT

Kwai Fong

BRBRLUESDT

Ma On Shan Plaza

BRI DT
Maritime Square
BB DT
Ocean Walk
PH1T
Shatin

WIRE 1T
Sha Tsui Road
ExpeT
Sheung Shui
REDT

Tai Po

RE 5T

Tai Wai

FORBLS K77 SRS RS EIS 12 116 5%
Shop No. 116, First Floor, Kwai Fong Plaza, Kwai Fong Estate,
177 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung

SRR LIPRD 5K 608 5% 55 82 1L &35 =1 335 5 il
Shop 335 on Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza, 608 Sai Sha Road,
Ma On Shan

BB 83 5% 5 Kk 108 D-E 548
Shop 108 D-E, Maritime Square, 33 Tsing King Road, Tsing Yi

P9I 22 % 168-236 51 E 85 11 & 93-95 55 4

Shop 11 and 93-95, Ocean Walk, 168-236 Wu Chui Road, Tuen Mun
Y HAFE AR O T 9 58

Shop 9, G/F, Lucky Plaza, Shatin

E/EYDIR 8 286-288 it T

G/F, Nos. 286-288 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan

_FOKETE K 55-59 SFIKRIIEM T BSR4

Shop B, G/F, Siu Kai House, 55-59 San Fung Avenue, Sheung Shui
AL R 1 SR AHESH T 53 57 & 54 55 4

Units 53-54 on Level 1, Tai Po Plaza, No.1 On Tai Road, Tai Po

YD H K B 55-56 SEFEIE T 14-18 SR BB T~ 1 R 2504

Shops 1 and 2 on Ground Floor, Grandeur Garden,

14-18 Chik Fai Street, 55-56 Tai Wai Road, Shatin

2487 8033

2929 4137

2435 1368

2404 6931

2606 3533

2615 1510

2671 5030

2667 2588

2691 1272

2489 1253

2633 3432

2435 1582

2404 7130

2601 2413

2615 1099

2672 1533

2664 3637

2606 1531
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TEWBIRIT—D1T0MR

MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES - LISTS OF BRANCHES

41T Branch

ik Address

T Tel

fHE Fax

REFBVITHERAF
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

HREDTT

New Territories Branches

RKERT
Tin Shui Wai

Z2EDT
Tsuen Wan

BAA1T
Tuen Mun

FORDAT
Tung Chung

BEIT

Fanling

TRAFILEDT
Yuen Long Castle
Peak Road

TLRARKEI R IEHT 3SR R AL S0 R AR P45 148 L120 SR4fH
Shop No. L120, First Floor, Tin Shing Shopping Centre,
Tin Shing Court, 3 Tin Ching Street, Tin Shui Wai, Yuen Long

EERME14-16FEHERE
Dang Fat Mansion, 14-16 Tai Ho Road, Tsuen Wan
PR 1B 52-62 SR S E L T 458 ] 5574

Shops 4 and 5 on G/F, Man Cheung Mansion,
52-62 Tuen Mun Heung Sze Wui Road

N | 5OR B SR AT 1 SRR 0 T 23 54
Shop 23, G/F, Tung Chung Crescent, 1 Hing Tung Street,
Tung Chung, Lantau Island

e B M 88 SRIEEE S T~ A11-A14 ]2 110-112 5548
Shop Nos. A11-A14 and 110-112, Ground Floor, Flora Plaza,
No. 88 Pak Wo Road, Fanling

JCEAS LU AR TTBAER 162-168 SRHE FE T C R4
Shop C, G/F, Len Shing Mansion, 162-168 Castle Peak Road,

Yuen Long

2448 9008

2492 8102

2441 6218

2109 3484

2677 8830

2479 4555

2448 9112

2415 0984

2441 6613

2109 4353

2669 9950

2479 4522
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TENBIRT—D1T0MR

MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES - LISTS OF BRANCHES

41T Branch

ik Address

E5F Tel

RAEERRTROBRAA

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

BRAMDT

Macau Branches

RERLT

Main Branch
RED1T
Almirante Lacerda
EADBAIT

Areia Preta

BEST
Kin Wa

B 51T
Mercadores
EWMAIT
Nape

BEM 1T
Palha

AT O51T
Ponte e Horta

DEE ST
Ribeira do Patane
Ao

Toi San

St S #H D 1T
Pedro Coutinho

FE ARSI 572 5%
Avenida da Praia Grande, No. 572

TRLEMIR B A S B5 43597 B

Avenida Almirante Lacerda, No. 43B

BYIRE58:8 K5 30-30E 5%
Estrada Marginal do Hipédromo, Nos. 30-30E

BORGEBKEENE 13 Eit TAH
Estrada Marginal da Areia Preta, S/N,
Edf. Kin Wa, Bloco 13, R/C, Loja A

B KHT40-42 5K AT
Rua dos Mercadores, Nos. 40-42, R/C A

R E A% 315-363 57 M % .03 T~ O
Alameda Dr. Carlos D’ Assumpgéo, Nos. 315-363,
Edificio “Hot Line”, R/C, Loja “O”

EE AT 4-6 5%
Rua da Palha, Nos. 4-6

AT A 29 5%
Praca Ponte e Horta, No. 29

E=ITR A 1A 402 5%

Rua do Visconde Paco d’Arcos, No. 402, R/C
BILERAHE +— MR E 18 £ “CC”
Rua Onze Bairro Tamagnini Barbosa, S/N,
Jardim Cidade Nova, Bloco 18, R/C Loja “CC”

St SAT 259 DL &R T B&E

Rua de Pedro Coutinho No. 25D, Queens Court, Loja B, R/C

(853) 8791 0000

(853) 2831 6191

(853) 2837 8262

(853) 2845 0759

(853) 2857 2610

(853) 2872 2515

(853) 2837 3762

(853) 2837 8704

(853) 2895 2942

(853) 2823 8483

(853) 2821 6523

BT

Taipa Branches

RFEHBDIT
Prince Flower City

BEIT
Tak Fok

B RRAEARFIER — BB T 14

Rua de Evora, Prince Flower City, Lai San Kok, R/C I, Taipa

KFBERABRERSRICEFH

Avenida de Kwong Tung, S/N, Edificio Tak Fok Seaview Garden,

R/C, Loja F, Taipa

(853) 2884 2788

(853) 2882 1308

BRIRDAT

Coloane Branch

BEBRA1T
Coloane

FRIRE S A1 9 5% D
Largo do Matadouro, No. 9-D, Coloane

(853) 2888 2374
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T EMBIRIT— 1T oMK

MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES - LISTS OF BRANCHES

417 Branch #h3k Address B Tel
RERIT (FE) BRAF

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

w7 YT 78 4 1R R P RS 5047 SR R RITRE 1618

Head Office 16/F, Ping An Bank Building, 5047 Shennan Dong Road, (86-755) 2519 9033

EYNBEZAT
Shenzhen Qianhai
Sub-Branch
B2 1T

Guangzhou

ieb=5: k)
Shanghai
=Pk
Nanchang
EIDAT
Zhenjiang
HILXAT

Foshan Sub-Branch

Luo Hu District, Shenzhen

YR LR e O T3 B s s A B 250 (Jb R ) 4-7 1R4B1E 123
Shop 123, Building 4-7, Zhuo Yue Wei Gang (North), Industrial
Road 7, Shekou, Nan Shan District, Shenzhen

BREEMNmEFER AR 604-2 58 KFIRITAE B
2[Z01 &L

Unit 01, 1/F-2/F, Dah Sing Bank Building, 604-2,

North Renmin Road, Yue Xiu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong
FETRERERILX8651EBE

Room B, 1/F, 86 North Cao Xi Road, Xu Hui District, Shanghai

I EEEmEAES L1365 1-2E

1/F-2/F, 136 Dieshan Road, East Lake District, Nanchang, Jiangxi

TLERA $EI T I A [ AR B 59 5%
59 Jiefang Road, Jing Kou District, Zhenjiang, Jiangsu

FEER A 5 1L T e [ A 3L B B B 8 5 U 8 87 SR B SR
111140~ 1204

Shop 111, Shop 120, No. 1 Bauhinia Building,
Starcrest, 8 Jinyuan Road, Guicheng,

Nanhai District, Foshan, Guangdong

(86-755) 2238 5500

(86-20) 8116 0888

(86-21) 2411 3388

(86-791) 8688 7333

(86-511) 8530 9999

(86-757) 8513 3555
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Paper from responsible sources

FEHABEHNRMERNMER
gw%cocrg FSC™ C006398

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited X¥i&R{TSkREHR 2 F
36/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong
BERETIE T/ RAFERF OL=1T"18

Telephone E3E : (852) 2507 8866

Facsimile {EE : (852) 2598 5052

Website — #84F : www.dahsing.com
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